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DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS

In this Draft Letter of Offer, unless the context otherwise requires, the terms defined and abbreviations set forth
below shall have the same meaning as stated in this section. The following list of certain terms used in this Draft
Letter of Offer is intended for the convenience of prospective investors only and is not exhaustive. References to
statutes, rules, regulations, guidelines and policies will be deemed to include all amendments and modifications

notified thereto.

The work and expressions used in this Draft Letter of Offer but not defined herein, shall have, to the extent
applicable, the meaning ascribed to such terms under the Companies Act, the SEBI Regulations, the SCRA, the
Depositories Act or the rules and regulations made thereunder. Notwithstanding the foregoing, terms used in
“Statement of Tax Benefits” and “Financial Statements” beginning on Pages 49 and 86, respectively, shall have the
meaning given to such terms in such sections.

Company & Industry Related Terms

Term

Description

“Our Company” /
“Issuer” / we /us/
“Kallam”

Unless the context otherwise requires, refers to, Kallam Textiles Limited, a public
limited company under the Companies Act, 2013

Articles of Association

The Articles of Association of our Company, as amended from time to time

Associates Associates of our company
Audited Financial Audited financial statements for the Fiscal 2017-18, including the notes thereto and
Statements reports thereon

Auditors/Statutory
Auditors

The Statutory Auditors of our Company, Chevuturi Associates, Chartered
Accountants (Firm Registration No. 000632S)

BCI

Better Cotton Initiative, an initiative by World Wildlife Fund started in 2005 for
promoting better standards in Cotton Farming

Board of Directors /
Board

The Board of Directors of our Company, unless specified otherwise

Directors / our Directors

The Director(s) on the Board of our Company, unless otherwise specified

EPCG Scheme

Export Promotion Capital Goods Scheme

Equity Shares

Equity share of our Company of face value Rs. 2 each

Group Companies

Group Companies as determined in terms of Regulation 2(1)(t) of SEBI ( Issue of
Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018

KMP The key management personnel of our company in accordance with provisions of
SEBI ICDR Regulations and the Companies Act, 2013. For details, please refer to
chapter on “Our Management” beginning at Page 71

MOA The Memorandum of Association of our Company, as amended from time to time

NCEF National Clean Energy Fund

Promoter The promoter of our Company namely Poluri Venkateshwara Reddy, Kallam

Mohan Reddy, Gurram Venkata Krishna Reddy, Movva Venkata Subba Reddy

Promoter Group

The promoter group of our company as determined in terms of Regulation 2(1)(pp)
of SEBI ICDR Regulations

Registered Office

Registered Office of our Company situated at N.H 5, Chowdavaram, Guntur,
Andhra Pradesh — 522 019

SITP

Scheme for Integrated Textiles Parks

TUF/TUFS

Technology Upgradation Fund/Technology Upgradation Fund Scheme




Issue Related Terms

Term

Description

Abridged Letter of Offer

The Abridged Letter of Offer to be sent to Eligible Equity Shareholders of our
Company with respect to this Issue in accordance with the provisions of the SEBI
ICDR Regulations and the Companies Act.

Allotment / Allotted

Unless the context otherwise requires, the allotment of Equity Shares pursuant to
the Issue

Allottee(s)

Persons to whom our Equity Shares will be issued pursuant to the Issue

Applicant(s) / Investor(s)

Eligible Equity Shareholders and / or Renouncees who are entitled to apply or have
applied for Equity Shares under the Issue, as the case may be

ASBA / Application
Supported by Blocked
Amount

The application (whether physical or electronic) used by an ASBA Investor to make
an application authorizing the SCSB to block the amount payable on application in
the ASBA Account.

ASBA Account

Account maintained with an SCSB and specified in the CAF or plain paper
application, as the case may be, for blocking the amount mentioned in the CAF, or
the plain paper application, as the case may be.

ASBA Investor(s)

Eligible Equity Shareholders proposing to subscribe to the Issue through ASBA
process and who are holding our Equity Shares in dematerialized form as on the
Record Date and have applied for their Rights Entitlements and / or additional
Equity Shares in dematerialized form; have not renounced their Rights Entitlements
in full or in part; are not renouncees; and are applying through blocking of funds in
a bank account maintained with SCSBs.

All QIBs, Non-Institutional Investors and other Investors whose application value
exceeds ¥ 2,00,000 complying with the above conditions must participate in this
Issue through the ASBA Process only.

Banker(s) to the Issue

[e]

Composite Application
Form / CAF

The form used by an Investor to make an application for the Allotment of Equity
Shares in the Issue

Consolidated Certificate

The single certificate issued by our Company to each Allottee per folio to whom
Equity Shares are allotted in physical form pursuant to the Issue.

Controlling Branches of
the SCSBs

Such branches of the SCSBs which coordinate with the Lead Manager, the
Registrar to the Issue and the Stock Exchange, a list of which is available on
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes

Designated Branches

Such branches of the SCSBs which shall collect application forms used by ASBA
Investors and a list of which is available on
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes

Designated Stock
Exchange

The Designated Stock Exchange for this Issue shall be BSE Limited

Draft Letter of Offer

This Draft Letter of Offer dated March 27, 2019, filed with BSE for obtaining in-
principal approval, which does not contain complete particulars of the Issue.

Eligible Equity Equity Shareholders of our Company as on the Record Date
Shareholder(s)
Equity Shares Fully paid up equity shares of our Company having a face value of ¥ 2 each

Foreign Portfolio
Investor / FPI

Foreign portfolio investor as defined under SEBI (Foreign Portfolio Investors)
Regulations, 2014 and includes a person who has been registered under the SEBI
FPI Regulations, 2014

Issue / Rights Issue

Issue of [e®]Equity Shares of face value of ¥ 2 each our Company for cash at a price
of X[ e] (including share premium of X[ e]) per Equity Share for an aggregate amount
not exceeding ¥ 995.50 lakhs to the Eligible Equity Shareholders on rights basis in
the ratio of [e] Equity Share for every [@®]Equity Shares held by the Eligible Equity
Shareholders on the record date, i.e. [®]

Issue Closing Date

[e]

Issue Opening Date

[e]

Issue Price

3 [e] per Equity Share
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Term

Description

Issue Proceeds / Gross
Proceeds

The monies received by our Company pursuant to the issue of Equity Shares on
Rights basis which are allotted pursuant to the Issue

Issue Size

The issue of [e] Equity Shares for an aggregate amount not exceeding ¥ 995.50
Lakhs

Lead Manager

SPA Capital Advisors Limited

Letter of Offer

The Letter of Offer Dated [e], to be filed with the BSE and SEBI after obtaining
in-principal approval from BSE.

Listing Agreement

The listing agreement entered into between us and the BSE

Non Institutional
Investor(s)

Non institutional investor as defined under Regulation 2(1)(jj) of the SEBI ICDR
Regulations.

“Qualified Foreign
Investor(s)” / “QFI(s)”

Qualified Foreign Investor as defined under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Foreign Portfolio Investors) Regulations, 2014 (as amended), registered with
SEBI under applicable laws in India.

Qualified Institutional
Buyer(s) / QIB(s)

Qualified Institutional Buyer as defined under Regulation 2(1)(ss) of SEBI ICDR
Regulations, which means:

a mutual fund, venture capital fund, alternative investment fund and foreign venture
capital investor registered with the Board; a foreign portfolio investor other than
Category Il1 foreign portfolio investor, registered with the Board; a public financial
institution; a scheduled commercial bank; a multilateral and bilateral development
financial institution; a state industrial development corporation; an insurance
company registered with the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of
India; a provident fund with minimum corpus of twenty five crore rupees; a pension
fund with minimum corpus of twenty five crore rupees; National Investment Fund
set up by resolution no. F. No. 2/3/2005-DDII dated November 23, 2005 of the
Government of India published in the Gazette of India; insurance funds set up and
managed by army, navy or air force of the Union of India; insurance funds set up
and managed by the Department of Posts, India; and systemically important non-
banking financial companies.

Record Date

Designated date for the purpose of determining the Shareholders eligible to apply
for Equity Shares in the Issue, in this case []

Registrar / Registrar to
the Issue

M/s Big share Services Private Limited

Renouncees

Any person(s) who has / have acquired Rights Entitlements from the Eligible Equity
Shareholders

Rights Entitlement

The number of Equity Shares that an Eligible Equity Shareholder is entitled, that is
determined as a proportion to the number of Equity Shares held by such Eligible
Equity Shareholder on the Record Date, i.e., [*] Equity Share for [+] Equity Shares
held on [+].

SAF

Split Application Form which is an application form used in case of renunciation
in part by an Eligible Shareholder in favour of one or more Renouncee(s)

Self-Certified Syndicate
Bank / SCSB

Self-Certified Syndicate Bank(s), registered with SEBI, which acts as a Banker to
the Issue and which offers the facility of ASBA. A list of all SCSBs is available at
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes

Stock Exchange

BSE Limited (BSE), where our Equity Shares are presently listed

Working Day

Working Day means all days on which commercial banks in the city of Guntur are
open for business;

provided that in respect of Issue period, working day shall mean all days, excluding
Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays, on which commercial banks in the city of
Guntur are open for business and in case of time period between the Issue closing
date and listing of Equity shares on the Stock Exchanges, working day shall mean
all trading days of the BSE, excluding Sundays and Bank Holidays.
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Conventional / General Terms and Abbreviations

Term Description
AS Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
BSE BSE Limited
CAGR Compounded Annual Growth Rate (calculated by taking the nth root of the total percentage
growth rate, where n is the number of years in the period being considered)
Companies Means the Companies Act, 1956 or the Companies Act, 2013, as may be applicable, as amended
Act or substituted by any statutory modification / re-enactment thereof
CDSL Central Depository Services (India) Limited
CIN Corporate Identification Number
CSR Corporate Social Responsibility

Depositories
Act

The Depositories Act, 1996, as amended from time to time

Participant /
DP

Depository / Depositories registered with SEBI under the SEBI (Depositories and Participant) Regulations,
Depositories 1996 / 2018, as amended from time to time, in this case being NSDL and CDSL
Depository Depository participant as defined under the Depositories Act

ECS Electronic Clearing System

EGM Extra Ordinary General Meeting

EPS Earnings per Equity Share

ESOP Employees Stock Option Plan

FCCB Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds

FEMA 2017 The Foreign Exchange Management (Transfer or Issue of Security by a Person Resident
Outside India) Regulations, 2017

Fls Financial Institutions

Financial Twelve months ending on March 31 of a particular year

Year / Fiscal

Year / FY

FVCI Foreign venture capital investor, registered with SEBI under the SEBI (Foreign Venture
Capital Investor) Regulations, 2000

GST Goods and Service Tax

HUF Hindu Undivided Family

ICAI Institute of Chartered Accountants of India

IND AS Indian Accounting Standards as notified by the MCA vide Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rule 2015

Indian GAAP | Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India, including the accounting standards
specified under the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

IREDA Indian Renewable Energy Development Agency Limited

MCA Ministry of Corporate Affairs

Net Asset Net Asset Value per equity share at a particular date computed based on total equity divided by

Value/NAV number of equity shares.

Net Worth Aggregate of paid up share capital, share premium account and reserves and surplus (excluding

revaluation reserve), as reduced by the aggregate miscellaneous expenditure (to the extent not
availed or written off) and the debit balance of the profit and loss account.

Non Residents

All Bidders who are not NRIs or FPIs and are not persons resident in India

NRI

A person resident outside India, who is citizen of India and shall have the same meaning as
ascribed to such term in the foreign exchange management (Deposit) Regulations, 2016

NSDL National Securities Depository Limited

RONW Return on Net Worth

RTGS Real Time Gross Settlement

SCRA Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956

SEBI Securities and Exchange Board of India constituted under the SEBI Act, 1992, as amended

4




Term

Description

SEBI Act The Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992

SEBI FPI Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Portfolio Investors) Regulations, 2014, as
Regulations amended

SEBI ICDR Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations Regulations, 2018, as amended

SEBI Listing | Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations Regulation, 2015, as amended

SEBI Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Takeover Regulations, 2011, as amended

Regulations




NOTICE TO INVESTORS

The distribution of the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer or CAF and the issue of the Rights Entitlement
and the Equity Shares on a rights basis to persons in certain jurisdictions outside India are restricted by legal
requirements prevailing in those jurisdictions. Persons into whose possession the Letter of Offer, the Abridged
Letter of Offer or CAF may come are required to inform themselves about and observe such restrictions. Our
Company is making this Issue on a rights basis to the Eligible Equity Shareholders and will dispatch this Letter of
Offer / Abridged Letter of Offer and CAF only to Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided an Indian address
to our Company. Those overseas shareholders who do not update our records with their Indian address or the address
of their duly authorized representative in India, prior to the date on which we propose to dispatch this Letter of Offer
/ Abridged Letter of Offer and CAFs, shall not be sent the Letter of Offer / Abridged Letter of Offer and CAFs.

No action has been or will be taken to permit the Issue in any jurisdiction where action would be required for that
purpose, except that the Draft Letter of Offer was filed with BSE for its in-principal approval and Letter of offer
will be filed with SEBI for its information. Accordingly, the issue of the Rights Entitlement and the Equity Shares
may not be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, and the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer or any offering
materials or advertisements in connection with the Issue may not be distributed, in any jurisdiction, except in
accordance with legal requirements applicable in such jurisdiction. Receipt of the Letter of Offer or the Abridged
Letter of Offer will not constitute an offer in those jurisdictions in which it would be illegal to make such an offer
and, in those circumstances, the Letter of Offer or the Abridged Letter of Offer must be treated as sent for
information only and should not be acted upon for subscription to Equity Shares. Accordingly, persons receiving a
copy of the Letter of Offer or the Abridged Letter of Offer should not, in connection with the issue of the Equity
Shares or the Rights Entitlements, distribute or send the Letter of Offer or the Abridged Letter of Offer in or into
any jurisdiction where to do so, would or might contravene local securities laws or regulations. If the Letter of Offer
or the Abridged Letter of Offer is received by any person in any such jurisdiction, or by their agent or nominee, they
must not seek to subscribe to the Equity Shares or the Rights Entitlements referred to in the Letter of Offer or the
Abridged Letter of Offer.

Neither the delivery of the Letter of Offer or the Abridged Letter of Offer nor any sale hereunder, shall, under any
circumstances, create any implication that there has been no change in our Company’s affairs from the date hereof
or the date of such information or that the information contained herein is correct as at any time subsequent to the
date of the Letter of Offer and the Abridged Letter of Offer or the date of such information.

NO OFFER IN THE UNITED STATES

THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS AND EQUITY SHARES HAVE NOT BEEN AND WILL NOT BE
REGISTERED UNDER THE UNITED STATES SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE “US
SECURITIES ACT”), OR ANY U.S. STATE SECURITIES LAWS AND MAY NOT BE OFFERED, SOLD,
RESOLD OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED WITHIN THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA OR THE
TERRITORIES OR POSSESSIONS THEREOF (THE “UNITED STATES” OR “U.S.”), EXCEPT IN A
TRANSACTION EXEMPT FROM THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES ACT. THE
RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS AND EQUITY SHARES REFERRED TO IN THE LETTER OF OFFER OR THE
ABRIDGED LETTER OF OFFER OR THE CAF ARE BEING OFFERED IN INDIA, BUT NOT IN THE
UNITED STATES. THE OFFERING TO WHICH THE LETTER OF OFFER OR THE ABRIDGED LETTER OF
OFFER OR THE CAF RELATES IS NOT, AND UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES IS TO BE CONSTRUED AS,
AN OFFERING OF ANY EQUITY SHARES OR RIGHTS FOR SALE IN THE UNITED STATES OR AS A
SOLICITATION THEREIN OF AN OFFER TO BUY ANY OF THE SAID SECURITIES. ACCORDINGLY,
THE LETTER OF OFFER OR THE ABRIDGED LETTER OF OFFER OR THE CAF SHOULD NOT BE
FORWARDED TO OR TRANSMITTED IN OR INTO THE UNITED STATES AT ANY TIME.



CURRENCY OF FINANCIAL PRESENTATION

In the Draft Letter of Offer, unless the context otherwise requires, the currency is “Indian Rupees/ Rs./ INR/ 3. All
references to one gender also refers to another gender and the word “Lac / Lakh” means “one hundred thousand”,
the word “million (mn)” means “ten lac / lakh”, the word “Crore” means “ten million” and the word “billion (bn)”
means “one hundred crore”. In this Draft Letter of Offer, any discrepancies in any table between total and the sum
of the amounts listed are due to rounding-off.

Throughout this Draft Letter of Offer, unless otherwise stated, all figures have been expressed in Lakhs and / or
crores. Unless indicated otherwise, the financial data in this Draft Letter of Offer is derived from our Company’s
audited financial statements for Financial years ending March, 2018 prepared in accordance with IND AS,
applicable accounting standards and guidance notes issued by the ICAL, the applicable provisions of the Companies
Act and other statutory and / or regulatory requirements and are included in this Draft Letter of Offer as required
under the SEBI ICDR Regulations. Unless indicated otherwise, the operational data in this Draft Letter of Offer is
presented on a basis and refers to the operations of our Company. In this Draft Letter of Offer, any discrepancies in
any table between the total and the sums of the amounts listed are due to rounding off.

For additional definitions used in this Draft Letter of Offer, see the section ‘Definitions and Abbreviations’ on page
1 of the Draft Letter of Offer.

USE OF MARKET DATA

Unless stated otherwise, market data used throughout this Draft Letter of Offer has been obtained from internal
Company reports, data, websites and industry publications. Industry publication data and website data generally
state that the information contained therein has been obtained from sources believed to be reliable, but that their
accuracy and completeness and underlying assumptions are not guaranteed and their reliability cannot be assured.



FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain statements in the Draft Letter of Offer are not historical facts but are “forward-looking” in nature. Forward
looking statements appear throughout the Draft Letter of Offer, including, without limitation, under the chapter
“Risk Factors”. Forward-looking statements include statements concerning our plans, objectives, goals, strategies,
future events, future revenues or financial performance, capital expenditures, financing needs, plans or intentions
relating to acquisitions, our competitive strengths and weaknesses, our business strategy and the trends we anticipate
in the industry and the political and legal environment, and geographical locations, in which we operate, and other
information that is not historical information.

EEINT3 CEINT3 CEINT3 CEINT3

Words such as “aims”, “anticipate”, “believe”, “could”, “continue”, “estimate”, “expect”, “future”, “goal”, “intend”,
“is likely to”, “may”, “plan”, “predict”, “project”, “seek”, “should”, “targets”, “would” and similar expressions, or
variations of such expressions, are intended to identify forward-looking statements but are not the exclusive means

of identifying such statements.

By their nature, forward-looking statements involve inherent risks and uncertainties, both general and specific, and
risks exist that the predictions, forecasts, projections and other forward-looking statements will not be achieved.

These risks, uncertainties and other factors include, among other things, those listed under “Risk Factors”, as well
as those included elsewhere in the Draft Letter of Offer. Prospective investors should be aware that a number of
important factors could cause actual results to differ materially from the plans, objectives, expectations, estimates
and intentions expressed in such forward-looking statements. These factors include, but are not limited, to:

e  General economic and business conditions in the markets in which we operate and in the local, regional and
national economies;

e Increasing competition in or other factors affecting the industry segments in which our Company operates;

e Changes in laws and regulations relating to the industries in which we operate;

Our ability to meet our capital expenditure requirements and/or increase in capital expenditure;

Fluctuations in operating costs and impact on the financial results;

Our ability to attract and retain qualified personnel;

Changes in technology in future;

Changes in political and social conditions in India or in countries that we may enter, the monetary policies of

India and other countries, inflation, deflation, unanticipated turbulence in interest rates, equity prices or other

rates or prices;

e The performance of the financial markets in India and globally; and

e Any adverse outcome in the legal proceedings in which we are involved.

For a further discussion of factors that could cause our actual results to differ, please refer to “Risk Factors” on page
12 of the Draft Letter of Offer. By their nature, certain market risk disclosures are only estimates and could be
materially different from what actually occurs in the future. As a result, actual future gains or losses could materially
differ from those that have been estimated. Neither we nor the Lead Manager make any representation, warranty or
prediction that the results anticipated by such forward-looking statements will be achieved, and such forward-
looking statements represent, in each case, only one of many possible scenarios and should not be viewed as the
most likely or standard scenario. Neither we nor the Lead Manager nor any of their respective affiliates or advisors
have any obligation to update or otherwise revise any statements reflecting circumstances arising after the date
hereof or to reflect the occurrence of underlying events, even if the underlying assumptions do not come to fruition.
In accordance with SEBI / Stock Exchanges requirements, we and Lead Manager will ensure that the Eligible Equity
Shareholders are informed of material developments until the time of the grant of listing and trading permissions
by the Stock Exchanges.



The following is a general summary of the terms of the Issue. This summary should be read in conjunction with, and is
qualified in its entirety by, the more detailed information appearing elsewhere in this Draft Letter of Offer, including the

LETTER OF OFFER SUMMARY

sections entitled “Risk Factors”, “Objects of the Issue”, “Our Business” and “Offering Information ”.

A. Primary Business

We are engaged in the business of Ginning, manufacturing of Cotton yarn and also have facilities of yarn dyeing
and weaving. Our manufacturing facilities are located in the state of Andhra Pradesh. We have three Hydel
Power Plants of total capacity of 4 MW in Telangana.

Objects of the Issue :

Requirement of Funds
The total estimated funds requirement is given below:

Sr. No. Particulars Amount (in ¥ Lakhs)

1 Additional Working Capital Requirements 2,414.63
2 General Corporate purposes [e]
3 Expenses for the issue [e]
Total [o]
Means of Finance
Sr. No. Particulars Amount (in ¥ Lakhs)

1 Proceeds from the Rights Issue 995.50

2 Internal Accruals [e]

Total [o]

Intention and extent of participation by our Promoter(s) and Promoter Group in the Issue

One of our Promoter, Mr. Poluri Venkateswara Reddy, in his capacity as a Promoter and as representative of
the Promoter Group, vide his letter dated March 16, 2019 has given an undertaking that he alongwith the
Promoter Group, and/or through one or more investors will subscribe to the total entitlement of the entire
Promoter Group. The same is proposed to be ensured by way of subscription and application for additional
shares and/or by renouncing their Rights Entitlement in part.

In such an event, the shareholding of Promoter and Promoter Group in the Company may accordingly stand
modified. Further, they reserve the right either through themselves or through investors to additionally
subscribe for any unsubscribed portion in the Issue. Such subscription to additional Equity shares and the
unsubscribed portion of the Issue, if any shall be in accordance with Regulation 10(4) of SEBI (Substantial
Acquisition of Shares & Takeovers) Regulations, 2011. Their entitlement to subscribe to the Issue would be
restricted to ensure that the public shareholding in the Company after the Issue does not fall below the
permissible minimum level as specified in the applicable laws.

Summary of Financial Information: The summary of select financial information as per audited financial
statements for FY 2015-16, FY 2016-17 and FY 2017-18; and Limited Review Report for quarter and Six
months ended September 30, 2018 is as under:

Particulars Six  months | FY 2017-18 | FY 2016-17 | FY 2015-16
ended
September
30, 2018
Equity Share Capital (in Rs. Lakhs)
856.39 856.39 685.11 685.11
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Net Worth (in Rs. Lakhs)

10,551.43 10,112.48 8,618.37 7,424.21
Revenue from operations (in Rs.
Lakhs) 14,696.56 31,264.27 28,863.17 | 26,916.95
Profit After Tax (in Rs. Lakhs)

542.21 1,567.30 1,279.00 591.36

Earnings per share (in Rs.) 1.27 3.66 2.99 1.73
Net Asset Value per equity share (in
Rs.) 24.64 23.62 25.16 21.67
Total borrowings (as per balance sheet)
(in Rs. Lakhs) 27,402.00 29,166.09 30,958.58 | 29,039.78

E. There are no auditor qualifications which would require adjustments in the Audited Financial information.
F. Summary of Outstanding Litigations:

Following are the Summary of Outstanding Litigations involving our Company/ Promoters / Directors:

CASES PENDING AGAINST OUR COMPANY/PROMOTERS/DIRECTORS
S. Category Brief Description Total no | Amount involved
no. of cases (in Rs. Lakhs)
Criminal Case CC 278/2017 filed u/s 200 of 1 0.41
1 Criminal CrPC read with Sec 124(7) of Companies
Act, 2013
2 Civil OS 41 of 2018 U/s 26 of CPC 1 Not Ascertainable
CASES PREFERRED BY OUR COMPANY
S. . . Total no | Amount involved
no. Category Brief Description of cases (in Rs. Lakhs)
1 Civil Civil Appeal with The Appellate Tribunal of 1 50.00
the Electricity & Supreme Court
2 Criminal Under Negotiable Instruments Act 4 9.76
3 | Commercial Tax Commercial Tax 2 2.68
4 Income Tax Direct Tax 1 95.11

G. For Risk factors please refer to the Chapter “Risk Factors” beginning from page 12 of this Draft Letter of
Offer.

H. Summary of Contingent Liabilities
Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31.03.2018 | Asat 31.03.2017 | As at 31.03.2016
Estimated amounts of contracts 6.45 0.00 0.00
remaining to be Executed on

Capital accounts, and not provided for

State Levies on Electricity 37.21 99.68 332.51
Income-tax 0.00 15.22 8.03
Total 43.66 114.90 340.54

For further information on contingent liabilities, please refer to Page 120 of the Chapter on “Financial

Statements”.

For details on Related Party Transactions, please refer to the Chapter of “Financial Statements™ on Page 86.
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J.  Our Promoters, Promoter Group, Directors and their relatives have not financed the purchase, by any other
person, of the Equity Shares of our Company during the period of six months immediately preceding the date
of filing of this Draft Letter of Offer with BSE.

K. There were no issuance of Equity Shares for consideration other than cash in the last one year from the date
of filing of Draft Letter of Offer with BSE.
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RISK FACTORS

An investment in equity shares involves a high degree of risk. You should carefully consider all the information
in the Draft Letter of Offer, including the risks and uncertainties described below, before making an investment
in our Equity Shares. The risks and uncertainties described in this section are not the only risk we may face. If
any of the following risks actually occur, our business, financial condition and results of operations could suffer,
the trading price of our Equity Shares could decline, and you may lose all or part of your investment. Unless
otherwise stated in the relevant risk factors set below, we are not in a position to specify or quantify the financial
or other implications of any risk mentioned herein. In making an investment in this Issue, prospective investors
must rely on their own examination of our Company and terms of the Issue.

Unless otherwise stated or the context otherwise requires, the financial information used in this section is derived
from our Audited Financial Information.

INTERNAL RISK FACTORS

1.

Our Company/Promoters/Directors are party to certain legal proceedings and cannot assure investors that
we will prevail in these actions. Any adverse outcome in these or other proceedings may adversely affect
our business, reputation, financial condition and results of operations.

We are involved, from time to time, in legal proceedings that are incidental to our operations and involve suits
filed by and against our Company by various parties. There are some outstanding litigations involving our
Company/Directors/Promoters including Criminal, Civil, Tax related and certain cases filed by us under
Negotiable Instruments Act. These legal proceedings are pending at different levels of adjudication before
various courts and tribunals in different jurisdictions. A degree of judgement is required to assess our exposures
in these proceedings and determine the appropriate value of provisions if any. A summary of outstanding legal
proceedings involving our Company, Promoters and Directors is as under:

CASES PENDING AGAINST OUR COMPANY/DIRECTORS/PROMOTERS
S. Category Brief Total no | Amount involved
no. of cases (in Rs. Lakhs)
Criminal Case CC 278/2017 filed u/s 200 of 1 0.41
1 Criminal CrPC read with Sec 124(7) of Companies
Act, 2013
2 Civil 0OS 41 of 2018 U/s 26 of CPC 1 Not Ascertainable
CASES PREFERRED BY OUR COMPANY
S. Category Brief Total no | Amount involved
no. of cases (in Rs. Lakhs)
1 Civil Civil Appeal wit_h _ The Appellate Tribunal of 1 50.00
the Electricity & Supreme Court
2 Criminal Under Negotiable Instruments Act 4 9.76
Commercial Tax Commercial Tax 2 2.68
4 Income Tax Direct Tax 1 95.11

Should the proceedings be decided adversely against us, or any new developments arise, such as a change in
Indian law or rulings against us by appellate courts or tribunals, we may incur significant expenses and
management time in such legal proceedings and may need to make provisions in our Financial statements for
such litigations, which could have adverse effect on our business, reputation, results of operations, financial
condition and prospects. For further details, please see the section entitled “Outstanding Litigation and Material
Developments” on page 145.
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2. Our Company had negative cash flows from investing activities and financing activities during the preceding
financial years. Inability to earn positive cash flows may have an adverse effect on the business operations
of our Company.

While our Company has positive cash flow from operational activities in the preceding two financial years,
however, we do have negative cash flow from investing activities primarily due to purchase of fixed assets and
from financing activities due to repayment of borrowing and payment of interest and financing charges in the
preceding two financial years. The details of the same are given below:

Details of Cash flow (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended March 31,
2018 2017
Net Cash from Investing activities (1,091.01) (1,309.18)
Net Cash from Financing Activities (3,435.76) (46.70)

For further details of our cash flows, please see Cash Flow Statement under the head “Financial Statements”
beginning on page 86.

If we are not able to maintain positive cash flow or improve profitability, we cannot assure you that we will be
able to sustain our growth or not incur losses in future periods.

3. We have not provided for certain contingent liabilities for financial year ending 2018 and 2017 which if
materialize could adversely affect our financial position.

In the financial years ending March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017, we have not provided for the following
contingent liabilities as per audited financial statements:
(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31.03.2018 | As at 31.03.2017
Estimated amounts of contracts remaining to be Executed on 6.45 -
Capital accounts, and not provided for

State Levies on Electricity 37.21 99.68
Income-tax - 15.22
Total 43.66 114.90

If any contingent liability materializes, our results of operations and financial condition may be adversely
affected. For more details of our contingent liabilities for the fiscals ended March 31, 2018 and 2017 refer to
the section titled “Financial Statements” on page 86 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

4. We have entered into a number of related party transactions. There can be no assurance that entering into
such transaction with related parties will be the most beneficial option for our Company.

We have entered into a number of related party transactions with our Directors / Key managerial Personnel and
entities with which our Directors/KMP’s are associated. The amount of related party transactions in last three
financial years and its percentage to total income as per audited financial statements is given below:

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
F.Y 2018 F.Y. 2017 F.Y. 2016
Amount % of Turnover | Amount % of Turnover Amount % of Turnover
1,195.47 3.81 1,043.93 3.60 839.25 3.04

For further details on related party transactions, see the chapter titled “Financial Statements” on page 86 of the
Draft Letter of Offer.

Our Company’s policy on transactions with related parties is that such transactions are conducted on normal
commercial terms in the ordinary and normal course of business. Our Company may enter into additional
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transactions with its related parties in the future. However, there is no independent verification that the terms
of such transactions with the related parties are most beneficial to our Company or whether more favorable
terms could have been achieved had such transactions been entered with unrelated parties.

. Our Company has started preparing its financial statements, from the period beginning April 1, 2017, under
Ind-AS. Significant differences exist between IND AS and Indian GAAP, which may be material to investor’s
assessments of financial condition of our company.

Our Company is required to prepare annual financial statements under IND AS for the Fiscal year 2017-18 as
required under section 133 of Companies Act, 2013. We have adopted IND AS w.e.f April 01, 2017.
Accordingly, Our financial statements, including the financial statements included in this Draft Letter of Offer,
are prepared in accordance with IND AS for FY 2017-18 and also for previous FY 2016-17 has been redrafted
to make it comparable.

IND AS differ in significant respects from Indian GAAP. Accordingly, the degree to which the IND AS
financial statements included in this Draft Letter of Offer will provide meaningful information is entirely
dependent on the reader’s level of familiarity with Indian accounting practices.

Our business is dependent on proper maintenance of manufacturing facilities which are located at two places
in Andhra Pradesh and Hydel Power Plants in Telangana which contributes to our revenue. The loss of or
shutdown of operations at any of our manufacturing facilities and underutilization of our manufacturing
capacities may have an adverse effect on our business and results of operations.

We have manufacturing facilities at various locations. Our Ginning, Ring Spinning and Open end Spinning
Plant is located in Guntur, Andhra Pradesh, Weaving and Dyeing plant is located in Addanki, Andhra Pradesh
while our Hydel Plants are located nearby Nelakondapalli, Telangana.

The success of our manufacturing activities and the success of our products depend on, among other things, the
productivity of our workforce, compliance with regulatory requirements and the continued functioning of our
manufacturing facilities and machinery. Our manufacturing activities are subject to operating risks, such as fire,
breakdown or failure of equipment, power supply or processes, performance below expected levels of output
or efficiency, obsolescence, labour disputes, strikes, lock-outs, non-availability of services of our external
contractors, earthquakes and other natural disasters, industrial accidents etc. Disruptions in our manufacturing
activities, due to natural or manmade disasters, workforce disruptions, regulatory approval delays, fire or the
failure of machinery or any other reason could delay production or require us to shut down the affected
manufacturing facility. Although we have implemented industry acceptable risk management controls at our
manufacturing locations and continuously seek to upgrade them, the risk of fire or explosion associated with
these materials cannot be completely eliminated. The occurrence of any of these risks could significantly affect
our operating results.

Cotton being a highly flammable commodity, every stage from procurement, processing, storage and
transportation to trading is fraught with an imminent danger of an instant fire. The risk of fire hazard is increased
due to increased automation and use of large volume of air for material handling. Blow room and carding area
are more prone to such hazard. Any spark generated at these places can not only generate fire but also the same
could propagate to other machines through cotton conveying systems. Any fire, or such mishaps or accidents
at the Company’s facilities could lead to property damages, property loss and accident claims and could impact
our business and results of operations.

Further, capacity utilization at our manufacturing facilities or power plants are subject to various factors
including availability of raw material , power, water, efficient working of machinery and equipment and optimal
production planning. An inability to utilize our manufacturing facilities to their full or optimal capacity, non-
utilization of such capacities or inability to adapt to technological changes may adversely affect our results of
operations and financial conditions.
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7. Raw material most of which is Cotton / Kapas is sourced from external suppliers, mostly farmers. Any
increase in the Raw Material Cost or other input costs and shortfall in the supply of Raw Material and
quality of the same may adversely impact our business, cause delay and increase in costs.

Our core business involves manufacturing of cotton yarn and cotton fabric. Therefore, our Company is heavily
dependent on Kapas and Cotton Bales as major Raw Material, which is sourced from external suppliers, mostly
farmers. Since most of the key raw materials are Cotton based, the industry is sensitive to Cotton prices. Being
an agricultural commodity, there can be fluctuations in price of cotton due to the vagaries of weather among
other factors. Any rise in Cotton price may hurt our margin as they account for majority of input cost.
Specifically, timing differences in pricing changes between raw material prices, which may change daily, and
contract product prices, which in many cases are negotiated only monthly, quarterly or less often, sometimes
with an additional lag in effective dates for increases, have had in the past and may continue to have a negative
effect on our profitability. Any significant increase in cotton prices may also result in market shift towards
alternate products such as synthetic and man-made fabrics.

Further, any delay in supply or non-conformity to quality requirements by our suppliers or fluctuations in the
prices of the same may adversely affect our production process and our ability to meet our customer’s
requirements which may lead to loss of customers. Further, while we purchase most of our Cotton from the
domestic market, however, from time to time, we also import some of our Raw Materials and thus are subject
to risk related to currency fluctuation, global logistic disruptions and other factors. This may have an adverse
effect on our margins and results of operations.

& Our inability or failure to accurately forecast and maintain a balance between optimum inventory levels may
result in unexpected shortfall or surplus of raw material which could adversely affect our business, results
of operations and financial condition.

We monitor our inventory levels based on our projections of future demand. Because of the length of time
necessary to produce commercial quantities of our products, we make raw material procurement decisions well
in advance of sales for some of our products. Further, cultivation of cotton, which is our major raw material, is
started in July every year with onset of monsoon, Cotton packing from the fields start in November and
continues till February. Best quality kapas is procured in the months of November - March only. 80% of the
entire cotton procurement completes by March every year. Therefore, most of the raw material is procured in
the months of November to March and we may be required to make spot payment to farmers in many cases.
Further, since we only have one manufacturing facility for each division, higher inventory needs to be
maintained in order to cater to our customer demands at all time.

We strive to keep optimum inventory at our factory to control our costs and working capital requirements. To
maintain an optimal inventory, we monitor our inventory levels based on our projections of demand as well as
on a real-time basis. However, unavailability of products, due to high demand or inaccurate forecast, can result
in the unavailability/surplus of raw material which may result in loss of sales and adversely affect our customer
relationships. Conversely, an inaccurate forecast can also result in an over-supply of raw material or finished
products, which may increase inventory costs, negatively impact cash flow, reduce the quality of inventory and
ultimately lead to reduction in margins or write-offs of inventory. Any of the aforesaid circumstances could
have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition. As on March 31,
2018, we have inventory level of Rs. 4,243.14 Lakhs of Raw Materials and Rs. 1,511.95 Lakhs of finished
goods.

Further, due to the seasonal nature of cotton production and procurement, our results of operations in one
quarter may not be comparable to the results of operations in other quarters and may not accurately reflect the
revenue trend for the whole financial year.

9. Our electricity supply may not be reliable; we may be adversely affected by increasing power costs.

Our manufacturing operations require substantial amount of power. Power and fuel costs constitute our second

highest manufacturing expense after raw material cost, amounting to ¥3,447.29 lakhs in FY 2017 - 18 and

33,282.27 lakhs in FY 2016-17. We procure power from Southern Power Distribution Company of Andhra
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10.

11.

12.

13.

Pradesh for our manufacturing operations. If the per unit cost of electricity is increased by the state electricity
boards our power costs will increase. It may not be possible to pass on any increase in our power costs to our
customers, which may adversely affect our profit margins. If our supply of electricity were interrupted or limited,
we would be required to suspend production, which, if lasting longer than a very short period, result in reduction
of our capacity utilization and thereby, would materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition
or results of operations. In addition to the production losses that we would incur during production shutdowns,
we may not be able to immediately return to full production volumes following power interruptions, however
brief. Accordingly, any increase in power costs or interrupted supply of power could adversely affect our
operations, and financial condition.

We are subject to government policies and regulations relating to the agricultural sector, particularly related
to cotton and related industries; which may have an impact on our operations and profitability.

Production of cotton, our primary raw material for our operations and trade flows are significantly affected by
government policies and regulations. Governmental policies affecting the agricultural industry (such as taxes,
tariffs, duties, subsidies and import and export restrictions on agricultural commodities and commodity
products) can influence industry profitability, the planting of certain crops versus other uses of agricultural
resources, the location and size of crop production and the volume and types of imports and exports. Future
government policies may adversely affect the supply, demand for and prices of our products; restrict our ability
to do business in our existing and target markets; which could adversely affect our financial results and cash
flows.

We have not undertaken an independent appraisal for proposed fund requirement and the deployment of
the proceeds of the issue.

The funds being raised through the Issue are proposed to be used for additional working capital requirement
for increase in operations and other general corporate purposes. The fund requirement is based on our
management estimates’ and has not been appraised by any bank/financial institution. These are based on current
conditions. In view of the highly competitive nature of our industry we may have to revise our management
estimates’ from time to time and consequently our funding requirements may also change.

Pending utilization of the net proceeds, we intend to deposit such Net Proceeds in scheduled commercial banks.
The utilization of the net proceeds will be monitored by our Board.

One of our Group Companies, M/S Kallam Agro Products & Qils Private Limited has incurred loss during
FY 2017-18.

Kallam Agro Products & Qils Private Limited, an entity part of our Promoter Group, has incurred net loss after
tax of Rs. (588.15) Lakhs during FY 2017-18. Accordingly, Kallam Agro Products & Oils Private Limited had
negative EPS of Rs. (156.84). We cannot assure you whether Kallam Agro Products & Oils Private Limited
will be profitable in the future.

Our Promoters may have the ability to determine the outcome of any shareholder resolution.

Our Promoter Group is the largest shareholder of our Company holding 52.83% of the pre issue capital. As a
result, our promoter group may continue to be the largest shareholders of post-issue equity capital of our
company. As significant shareholders, our Promoters may have interests which may affect the interests of
shareholders and /or our interests and may have the ability to determine the outcome of any shareholder
resolution.
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15.

16.

17.

One of Our Group Companies, M/S Kallam Brothers Cottons (Private) Limited is in Ginning of cotton
business which is also part of our line of business. Further, one of our Director and an individual in the
Promoter Group are also on the Board of Directors of aforesaid Company. This may have conflict of interest.

The objects of our Group Company, M/S Kallam Brothers Cottons (Private) Limited allow it to carry on
business of ginning of cotton which is similar to one of the activities being carried out by our Company.
Accordingly, there are some Common Pursuits between this Company and our Company. Certain member of
Promoter Group and one of the Directors are also on the board of directors of M/S Kallam Brothers Cottons
(Private) Limited. Accordingly, we cannot assure you that business activities of our Group Company will not
create a potential conflict of interest for our Promoters and/or our Directors.

Our Company is dependent on third party transportation providers for the supply of raw materials and timely
delivery of our products and any disruption in their operations or a decrease in the quality of their services
could affect our Company's reputation and results of operations.

As a manufacturing business, our success depends on the smooth supply and transportation of the raw materials
required for our manufacturing process and transportation of our products from our units or warehouses to our
customers and distributors, both of which are subject to various uncertainties and risks.

We use a combination of third party transportation providers and our own fleet for the delivery of raw materials
to us and delivery of our products to our customers and distributors. At present, we have
agreements/arrangements with one third party transport service provider, M/S Supreme Transport Solutions
Private Limited, with whom we have entered into agreement for transportation of fabric rolls / bales from our
weaving plant to various customers in India. Transportation strikes have happened in the past, and could be
again in the future and can have an adverse effect on our supplies and our deliveries to and from our customers
and suppliers in a timely and cost efficient manner. In addition, raw materials and products may be lost or
damaged in transit for various reasons including occurrence of accidents or natural disasters. There may also
be delay in delivery of raw materials and products which may also affect our business and our results of
operation negatively. Failure to maintain a continuous supply of raw materials or to deliver our products to our
customers in an efficient and reliable manner could have a material and adverse effect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

We may not be able to identify or effectively respond to consumer needs, expectations or trends in cotton
fabric industry in a timely manner, which could adversely affect our relationship with our customers, our
reputation, the demand for our products, our market share and our prospects.

The success of our business depends in part on our ability to anticipate, identify and respond promptly to
evolving trends in demographics and consumer preferences, expectations and needs in respect of Cotton Fabric
Industry. The fashion industry is rapidly evolving, and aligning our business concept to respond to our
customers’ preference for fabric and their colors is critical to our future success. Our success is also dependent
on our ability to identify and respond to the economic, social, and other trends that affect demographic and
consumer preferences in a variety of our Fabric categories. As we continue to grow our business by expanding
our products and our geographic reach, maintaining quality and consistency may be more difficult and we
cannot assure you that our customers’ confidence in our products will not diminish. Failure or any delay on
our part to identify such trends, to align our business concept successfully and maintain quality could negatively
affect our relationship with our customers, the demand for yarn and fabric we sell, the rate of growth of our
business, our market share and our prospects.

We are subject to risks associated with product recall, and any product liability due to defects in our products
may adversely affect our business and results of operations and could also lead to adverse publicity.

Defects, if any, in our fabric could lead to rejection of supplied fabric and consequential financial claims.
Repeated successful claims would adversely affect our results of operations. Management resources could also
be diverted away from our business towards defending such claims. Additionally, such defects may also result
in our customers rejecting to buy our products in future. As a result, our reputation, business, revenues, results
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19.

20.

21.

of operations and financial condition could suffer. We cannot assure you that the limitations of liability set forth
in our contracts will be enforceable in all instances or will otherwise protect us from liability for damages.

We may be subject to labour unrest, slowdowns, increased wage costs, and shut-downs.

India has labour legislations that protects the interests of workers, including legislation that sets forth detailed
procedures for the establishment of unions, dispute resolution and employee removal, and legislations that
imposes certain financial obligations on employers upon retrenchment. At present, none of our factories have
any labour union. There is no assurance that our employees will not seek unionization in the future. In the event
that employees at our plants seek to unionise, it may become difficult for us to maintain flexible labour policies,
and may increase our costs and adversely affect our business. As on the date of Draft Letter of Offer, there are
no pending cases involving our company in any industrial/labour courts. However, we cannot assure you that
any such case will not arise in future.

Further, our business operations, specifically our manufacturing facilities are subject to certain operating risks,
such as breakdown or failure of equipment, power supply or processes, reduction or stoppage of water supply.
In the event that we are forced to shut down our manufacturing facility for a significant period of time, it would
have a material adverse effect on our earnings, our other results of operations and our financial condition as a
whole.

Any strikes or lock-outs, work stoppages, slowdowns, shut downs, supply interruptions or costs or other factors
beyond our control, may disrupt our operations and could negatively impact our financial performance.

We depend heavily on our Key Management Personnel, and loss of the services of one or more of our key
executives or Key Management Personnel could weaken our management team.

Our success largely depends on the skills, experience and efforts of our Key Management Personnel and on the
efforts, ability and experience of key members of our management staff. Our Key Management Personnel have
extensive experience in purchase and ginning of cotton, manufacturing and marketing of Cotton Yarn & Fabric
that are critical to the operation of our business. For further details see “Our Management” on page 71.
Individuals with industry-specific experience are scarce, and the market for such individuals is highly
competitive. As a result, we may not be able to attract and retain qualified personnel to replace or succeed our
Key Management Personnel or other key employees, should the need arise. The loss of services of one or more
members of our Key Management Personnel or any of our other management staff could weaken our
management expertise significantly and our ability to undertake our business operations efficiently. This could
have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

The risk of non-payment or default by our customers may adversely affect our Company’s financial
condition and results of operations.

Our Company has implemented stringent measures for timely collection of receivables. However we cannot
assure you, that we will be able to maintain recoveries in relation to our debtors in the future. Moreover, as our
Company’s business expands, it may experience increase in delay or defaults in payments by its debtors. Thus,
if our Company is not able to manage its bad debts, the overall revenue realization will fall and its results of
operations may be adversely affected.

As on March 31, 2018, we have negligible receivables which were more than 6 months as per audited financial
statement for FY 2017-18.

Our Company has not entered into any long-term contracts with most of its customers and we typically
operate on the basis of orders. Inability to maintain regular order flow would adversely impact our revenues
and profitability.

Our Company has had long standing business relationships with certain customers and has been supplying our
products to such customers for several years. However, we have not entered into any long term contracts with
these customers and we cater to them on an order-by-order basis. Our long-standing relationship with our major
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23.

24.

25.

customers has been one of the most significant factors contributing to our growth. Our commitments to quality
and customer service practices have been strong contributing factors to our robust customer relations.

However, in the absence of long term contracts with such customers, we cannot assure you that our Company
would continue to receive repeat business from such customers. Failure to receive repeat business from our
customers may have an adverse effect on our business and financial results.

Our insurance coverage may not adequately protect us against certain operating hazards and this may have
an adverse effect on our business operations.

Our insurance coverage is likely to cover all normal risks associated with the operation of our business but there
can be no assurance that any claim under the insurance policies maintained by us will be honored fully, in part
or on time. We have obtained various insurance policies to cover risk associated with the operation of our
business. As on January 31, 2019 we have Insurance cover of Rs. 1,08,882.91 Lakhs including insurance against
fire and burglary, insurance for Marine export import risk, Directors and Officers Liability and others. While
we are in the process of renewal of all the insurance policies, any delay in obtaining renewal and to the extent
that we suffer loss or damage that is not covered by insurance or exceeds our insurance coverage, our results
of operations and cash flow may be adversely affected. For more information on our Insurance cover, please
refer to the section titled “Our Business” on Page 59.

Our Company requires a number of approvals, licenses, registrations and permits in the ordinary course of
our bhusiness (es) and the failure to obtain or renew them in a timely manner may adversely affect its
operations.

We require a number of approvals, licenses, registrations and permits for our business(s). Additionally, we may
need to apply for renewal of approvals which expire, from time to time, as and when required in the ordinary
course. For details, please refer to section titled “Government and Other Approvals” on page 152 of the Draft
Letter of Offer. Furthermore, the government approvals and licenses are subject to various conditions. If we
fail to comply, or a regulator claims that our Company has not complied with these conditions, our business,
financial position and operations would be materially adversely affected.

Inability to obtain adequate financing to meet our Company’s liquidity and capital resource requirements
may have an adverse effect on the proposed expansion activities of our Company and business operations.

Our Company may require additional funds for the financing of our business operations. The actual amount
and timing of our future capital requirements may differ from estimates as a result of , among other things,
unforeseen delays or cost overruns in producing our products, changes in business plan due to prevailing
economic conditions, unanticipated expenses and regulatory changes. To the extent our planned expenditure
requirements exceed our available resources; we will be required to seek additional funds either as equity or
debt.

Our inability to obtain such financing could impair our business, results of operations, financial condition or
prospects. Such inability could result from, among other things, our Company’s current or prospective financial
condition or results of operations or from its inability for any reason (including reasons applicable to Indian
companies generally) to issue securities in the capital markets. There can be no assurance that finance from
external sources such as bank finance will be available at the times required or in the amounts necessary, to
meet our requirements.

Our Company has outstanding unsecured loans that may be repayable on demand.

As of January 31, 2019, our Company had unsecured borrowings of ¥ 320.55 Lakhs from our Promoters &
Promoter Group which are repayable by our Company as and when demanded. It may be difficult for us to
manage our cash flow and ensure that sufficient funds are available at all times to repay our unsecured lenders.

In the event of any default on the repayment of unsecured loan, the unsecured lender could initiate legal
proceedings against us to recover the amount due to such unsecured lender together with interest and penalty.
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27.

Any such legal proceedings will have a material adverse effect on our reputation, creditworthiness and financial
condition.

Export destination countries may impose varying duties on yarn, thread or fabrics or enter into free trade
agreements with countries other than India. Any increase in such duties or the entry into free trade
agreements with countries other than India may materially adversely affect our business, financial condition
and results of operations.

We generated Rs. 9,115.70 lakhs and Rs. 4,459.00 lakhs as revenues from exports in Fiscal Year 2018 and
Fiscal Year 2017 respectively, which represented 29.15% and 15.44% of our revenue from operations for the
respective periods. During such periods, we exported our cotton yarn products to countries like Bangladesh,
Korea, China, Thailand etc. These export destination countries impose varying duties on our products. There
can be no assurance that the duties imposed by such countries will not increase. Any change or increase in such
duties may adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Additionally, export destination countries may also enter into free trade agreements or regional trade
agreements with countries other than India. Such agreements and alteration of any existing tax treaties may
lead to increased competition or may even place us at a competitive disadvantage compared to manufacturers
in other countries and could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. Further,
changes in import policies in countries to which we export our products may have a significant adverse impact
on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We are subject to certain restrictive covenants in our financing arrangements which may limit operational
and financial flexibility, and failure to comply with these covenants may impact our future results of
operations and financial condition.

Certain of our financing arrangements include covenants to maintain certain debt to equity ratios, debt
coverage ratios and certain other liquidity and profitability ratios. There can be no assurance that such
covenants will not hinder business development and growth. Defaults under one or more of our financing
agreements could impact our business, results of operations, financial condition and prospects. Some of our
financing agreements and debt arrangements set limits on or require us to obtain lender consents before,
among other things:

Effect any change in the Company’s capital structure.

Formulate any Scheme of Merger/Acquisition/Amalgamation/Reconstitution.

Implement any Scheme of expansion/modernization/diversification or acquire fixed assets.
Make investments / advances or deposit amounts with any other concern.

Create any further charge, lien or encumbrances over the assets charged to the Bank in favour of any
other concern.

Enter into borrowing arrangements with any bank/FI/Company.

Undertake guarantee Obligations on behalf of any other Company/borrower.

Declare Dividends for any year except out of profits relating to that year.

Change in composition of company’s Board of Directofs.

Sell, assign, mortgage or otherwise dispose off any of the Company’s fixed assets charged to the lender

There is no assurance that we will be able to comply with these financial and other covenants or that we will
be able to obtain the consents necessary to take the actions which we believe are necessary to operate and grow
our business. We cannot assure you that our business will generate cash in an amount sufficient to enable us to
service our debt or fund our other liquidity needs.

For details of the loans availed, please refer to section titled "Financial Indebtedness” on page 140 of this Draft
Letter of Offer. In compliance with such restrictive covenants, we had applied for consent of our lenders for
this Rights issue and we have received consents from all three of our Bankers, i.e, Andhra Bank, Indian Bank
and Bank of Baroda in regards of the Rights Issue. However, the consent from IREDA is still awaited.
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Uncertainty regarding the textile industry, economic conditions and other factors beyond our control could
adversely affect demand for our products and services, our costs of doing business and our financial
performance.

Our financial performance depends significantly on the textiles industry, as well as general economic conditions
in India and other countries where we export our products. Adverse conditions in or uncertainty about these
markets or the economy could adversely impact our customers’ confidence or financial condition, causing them
to determine not to purchase our products or delay purchasing or payment for those products.

We operate in a competitive market and any increase in competition may adversely affect our business and
financial condition.

We face competition from existing Yarn & Fabric manufacturers, both organized and unorganized, including
potential entrants to the industry that may adversely affect our competitive position and our profitability. A
critical challenge in the Textile industry is the competition from unorganized and small players. We expect
competition could increase with new entrants coming into the industry and existing players consolidating their
positions. Some of our competitors may have access to significantly greater resources. The large players having
higher industry share includes Vardhman Textiles Limited, Nahar Spinning Mills Limited, Sutlej Textiles and
Industries Limited, Nitin Spinners Limited, Rajapalayam Mills Limited, Ambika Cotton Mills Limited etc.

Further, introduction of new improved products or brand perception and our inability to match our offerings
with such improved products change may in turn affect the perception and market of our products. As a result
of such competition, we may have to price our products at levels that reduce our margins, increase our capital
expenditure in order to differentiate ourselves from other players and increase our advertising and distribution
expenditures in order to compete with such competitors, which may materially and adversely affect our
business, results of operations and financial condition.

Our corporate reputation could be adversely affected if we fail to meet high safety, quality, social,
environmental and ethical standards.

We believe that we have a good corporate reputation. If any part of our operations fail to meet high safety,
quality, social, environmental and ethical standards, our corporate reputation may be adversely affected. This
may lead to the rejection of Kallam Textiles Limited as one of the preferred Yarn & Fabric manufacturer by
customers in South and West India and diversion of management time into rebuilding and restoring its
reputation which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations
and prospects.

We are heavily dependent on machinery for our operations. We have not entered into technical support
service agreements for the maintenance and smooth functioning of some of our machineries. Any break-
down of our machinery will have a significant impact on our business, prospects, results of operations and
financial condition.

Our Existing Facilities are heavily dependent on plant and machinery. They require periodic maintenance
checks and technical support in an event of technical breakdown or malfunctioning. Any significant
malfunction or breakdown of our machinery may entail significant repair and maintenance costs and cause
delays in our operations. While our company has entered into technical support service agreements for a few
of our machineries, we do not have the same for others, which are repaired / serviced in-house. Although our
Company has accessibility to avail the technical support from the external experts and the machinery suppliers
locally, any failure to quickly redress any technical issue, may increase our downtime which may affect our
business, prospects, results of operations and financial condition. Further, while we believe that we maintain
necessary supplies of spare parts and maintenance related equipment, if we are unable to procure the necessary
spare parts in a timely manner or if we are unable to repair the malfunctioning machinery promptly, our
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manufacturing operations may be hampered which could have an adverse impact on our business, results of
operations and financial condition.

Some of the shareholders, domestic or overseas, whose addresses are not updated in our Company records
may not receive the Letter of Offer and CAF. Further, our Company will not distribute the Letter of Offer,
Abridged Letter of Offer and CAF to overseas shareholders who have not provided an address in India for
service of documents.

Our Company will dispatch the Letter of Offer and CAF (the “Offering Materials”) to the Shareholders who
have provided an address in India for service of documents. The Offering Materials will not be distributed to
addresses outside India on account of restrictions that apply to circulation of such materials in various overseas
jurisdictions. In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 our Company will serve documents at the
addresses, including email addresses which have been provided by the members. Though our Company has
requested all the Shareholders to provide their updated addresses for the purpose of distribution of Offering
Materials, still despite all efforts, some Eligible Equity Shareholders may neither receive the original CAF nor
may be in a position to obtain the duplicate CAF. Such Shareholders are being advised that they may make an
Application to subscribe to the Issue on plain paper.

However, our Company cannot assure that the regulator would not adopt a different view with respect to
compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and may subject our Company to some action.

Any future equity offerings or issue of options under employee stock option scheme may lead to dilution of
investor’s shareholding in our company.

Purchasers of Equity Shares in this Issue may experience dilution of their shareholding to the extent we make
future equity offerings and to the extent we decide to grant options to be issued under any employee stock
option scheme.

Our ability to pay dividends in the future will depend upon future earnings, financial condition, cash flows,
working capital requirements and capital expenditures.

Our company has been paying dividend in the past. However, the amount of our future dividend payments, if
any, will depend upon our future earnings, financial condition, cash flows, working capital requirements and
capital expenditures. There can be no assurance that we will be able to pay dividends.

Our revenues and expenses vary significantly from period to period, which could cause our share price to
decline.

Our revenues and profit may vary significantly in the future. Therefore, we believe that period-to-period
comparisons of our results of operations may not be necessarily meaningful and may not be relied upon as an
indication of our future performance. It is possible that in the future some of our results of operations may be
below the expectations of market analysts and our investors, which could cause the share price of our Equity
Shares to decline significantly.

Some of the factors which may affect the fluctuation of our operating results include:

Cotton scenario in India and price of cotton/kapas

the functioning of our plants;

the ability to modify and enhance our suite of fabric offerings based on customer needs and evolving
technologies;

changes in our pricing policies or those of our competitors;

the effect of wage pressures, seasonal hiring patterns and the time required to train and productively utilize new
employees;

increase or decrease in cost of inputs
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There can be no assurance that the equity shares will be allocated and credited to investor’s demat account
within specified time, or that the trading in equity shares will commence in a timely manner which may
subject the investors to market risk.

We shall ensure that Equity Shares are allotted and/or application moneys are refunded within fifteen days from
the date of closure of the issue. If the Equity shares are not allotted and/or application money are not refunded
within fifteen days, we undertake to pay interest at a rate and within such time as per applicable laws.

Investors can start trading only after receipt of listing and trading approvals in respect of equity shares which
may require additional time which may subject them to market risk.

EXTERNAL RISK FACTORS
Any changes in the regulatory framework could adversely affect our operations and growth prospects.

We are / will be subject to various regulations and policies including manufacturing, Customs, GST, Income
Tax, Labour acts, etc. Our business and prospects could be materially adversely affected by changes in any of
these regulations and policies, including the introduction of new laws, policies or regulations or changes in the
interpretation or application of existing laws, policies and regulations. There can be no assurance that we will
succeed in obtaining all requisite regulatory approvals in the future for our operations or that compliance issues
will not be raised in respect of our operations, either of which could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of operations.

A slowdown in economic growth in the markets in which we operate could cause our business to suffer.

Our performance and growth are dependent on the health of the economy of the markets in which we operate.
The economy could be adversely affected by various factors such as political or regulatory action, social/civil
disturbances, terrorist attacks and other acts of violence or war, natural calamities, interest rates, commodity
and energy prices and various other factors. Any slowdown in the economy of the markets in which we operate
may adversely affect our business and financial performance and the price of our Equity Shares.

Extremities of weather, regional conflicts and other political instability may have adverse effects on our
operations and financial performance.

Certain events that are beyond our control such as earthquake, fire, floods and similar natural calamities may
cause interruption in the business undertaken by us. Our operations and financial results and the market price
and liquidity of our equity shares may be affected by changes in Indian Government policy or taxation or social,
ethnic, political, economic or other adverse developments in or affecting India.

Any downgrading of India’s debt rating by a domestic or international rating agency could adversely affect
our business.

Any adverse revisions to India’s credit ratings for domestic and international debt by domestic or international
rating agencies may adversely affect our ability to raise additional financing, at the interest rates and other
commercial terms forwarded to us. This could impact our profitability and ability to obtain financing for capital
expenditures and the price of our Equity Shares.

Regional or International hostilities, terrorist attack or other acts of violence of war may have a significant
adverse impact on international and Indian financial markets. Such incidents could also create a greater
perception that investment in Indian Companies involves a higher degree of risk and could have an adverse
impact on our business and on the market price of our company’s equity shares.

Regional or International hostilities and other acts of violence or war may negatively affect the Indian markets

on which our Equity Shares trade and also adversely affect the financial markets. These acts may also result in

a loss of business confidence, impede travel and other services and ultimately adversely affect our business. In
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addition, any war with our neighbors might result in investor concern about stability in the region, which could
adversely affect the price of our Equity Shares. Such incidents may also create a greater perception that
investment in Indian companies involves a higher degree of risk and could have an adverse impact on our
business and the price of our Equity Shares.

Investors may be subject to Indian taxes arising out of capital gains on the sale of shares.

Under current Indian tax laws, capital gains arising from the sale of equity shares within 12 months in an Indian
company are generally taxable in India. As provided in the budget for financial year 2018-2019, any gain
realised on the sale of listed equity shares on a stock exchange held for more than 12 months will be subject to
capital gains tax @10% in India if Securities Transaction Tax (“STT”) has been paid on the transaction. STT
will be levied on and collected by a domestic stock exchange on which our equity shares are sold. Any gain
realised on the sale of equity shares held for more than 12 months to an Indian resident, which are sold other
than on a recognised stock exchange and on which no STT has been paid, will be subject to long term capital
gains tax in India. Further, any gain realised on the sale of listed equity shares held for a period of 12 months
or less will be subject to short-term capital gains tax in India. Capital gains arising from the sale of equity shares
will be exempt from taxation in India in cases where the exemption from taxation in India is provided under a
treaty between India and the country of which the seller is resident. Generally, Indian tax treaties do not limit
India’s ability to impose tax on capital gains. As a result, residents of other countries may be liable for tax in
India as well as in their own jurisdiction on a gain upon the sale of equity shares. The above statements are
based on the current tax laws.
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The details of this Issue are set out below:

THE ISSUE

Equity Shares proposed to be issued by
our Company

[*]Equity Shares

Rights Entitlement

[*]Equity Share for every []Equity Shares held on the Record
Date

Record Date

[]

Issue Price per Equity Share

[]. The Issue Price has been arrived at in consultation
between the Issuer and the Lead Manager

Issue Size

Not exceeding I 995.50 Lakhs

Equity Shares outstanding prior to the
Issue (Paid up Equity Share Capital)

4,28,19,375 Equity Shares of ¥ 2/- each

Equity Shares outstanding after the Issue,
assuming full subscription (Paid up Equity
Share Capital)

[*] Equity Shares of ¥ 2/- each

Terms of payment

100 percent of the issue price

Obijects of the Issue

Please refer to section “Objects of the Issue” on page 45 of the
Draft Letter of Offer

For more information on the payment terms, refer to the Chapter titled “Offering Information” on page 158 of the

Draft Letter of Offer.
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following tables set forth the summary financial information derived from our audited financial statements as
on and for financial year ended March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017 prepared in accordance with IND AS and the
Companies Act and should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and the notes (including the
significant accounting principles) thereto included in the chapter “Financial Statements” on page 86 of the Draft
Letter of Offer.

Our Company does not have any material Subsidiary Company in terms of Regulation 16(1)(c) of SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015. Accordingly, the financial statements of our Company are not required to be consolidated in
accordance with the applicable Indian Accounting Standards.

Summary Statement of Assets and Liabilities
(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2018 2017
ASSETS
1 | Non-current assets
a | Property, Plant and Equipment 4,15,68,45,036 3,57,37,55,113
b | Capital work-in-progress 5,90,36,453 4,48,31,391
¢ | Financial Assets
i) Loans 6,45,05,945 6,25,02,865
ii) Other financial assets - -
d | Other non-current assets 14,64,073 2,24,60,945
Total Non — Current Assets 4,28,18,51,507 3,70,35,50,314
Current assets
a | Inventories 92,87,11,656 87,21,84,599
b | Financial Assets
i) Trade receivables 22,77,96,003 31,06,24,716
ii) Cash and cash equivalents 75,99,878 78,14,521
iii) Other Bank Balances 54,01,676 55,29,125
iv) Loans 5,12,161 19,03,078
v) Other financial assets 4,500 17,390
¢ | Other current assets 45,64,26,590 29,56,40,549
Total Current Assets 1,62,64,52,464 1,49,37,13,978
Total Assets 5,90,83,03,971 5,19,72,64,292
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capital 8,56,38,750 6,85,11,000
Other Equity 2,03,76,16,494 1,40,15,12,462
2,12,32,55,244 1,47,00,23,462
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
a | Financial Liabilities
i)Long term Borrowings 1,75,60,68,613 1,94,30,40,847
iii) Other financial liabilities - -
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Provisions 1,24,81,130 1,03,49,650
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 28,38,06,725 15,80,40,824
Other non-current liabilities 8,74,37,870 9,80,86,333

Total Non-current Liabilities

2,13,97,94,338

2,20,95,17,654

Current liabilities

Financial Liabilities

i) Short-term Borrowings

1,16,05,40,476

1,15,28,17,033

ii)Trade payables 8,38,55,898 2,80,45,069
iii)Other financial liabilities 35,08,37,434 28,50,43,044
Other current liabilities 1,81,56,070 1,06,79,980
Provisions 6,32,691 41,322
Current tax Liabilities (Net) 3,12,31,820 4,10,96,728
Total Current liabilities 1,64,52,54,388 1,51,77,23,176
Total Liabilities 3,78,50,48,728 3,72,72,40,830
Total Equity and Liabilities 5,90,83,03,971 5,19,72,64,292
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Statement of Profit & Loss

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars For The Year Ended March 31,
2018 2017
I. |Revenue from Operations 3,12,64,26,542 2,88,63,17,329
Il. |Other Income 1,13,22,728 1,01,23,693
I1l. |Total Income (I +11) 3,13,77,49,270 2,89,64,41,022
IV. |Expenses:
Cost of materials consumed 1,70,28,44,603 1,58,01,38,922
Purchases of Stock-in-trade - -
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-
progress (3,84,98,189) (11,81,21,634)
Employee benefits expense 20,86,36,897 18,04,95,661
Finance Costs 21,88,33,106 21,98,66,793
Depreciation and amortization expense 14,19,46,320 13,64,89,377
Other expenses 69,33,02,560 68,57,71,056
Total Expenses (1V) 2,92,70,65,297 2,68,46,40,175
Profit before exceptional items and tax
V. |(II1-1V) 21,06,83,973 21,18,00,847
V1. |Exceptional Items - -
VII. |Profit before tax (V- VI) 21,06,83,973 21,18,00,847
VIII. [Tax expense:
Current Tax 4,60,26,739 5,00,00,000
Deferred Tax (Net of MAT Credit Entitlement) 79,27,680 3,39,01,162
IX |Profit for the year (VII-VIII) 15,67,29,554 12,78,99,685
X |Other Comprehensive Income
A. Items that will not be classified to statement of profit
and loss (Net of Tax)
a) Remeasurement of land at fair value 28,44,38,715 -
b) Revaluation surplus on measurement of buildings at
fair value 33,72,20,182 -
c) Remeasurement of defined employee benefit plans 9,27,375 (2,37,883)
d) Deferred Tax charge on above (11,78,38,220) -
Total Other Comprehensive Income 50,47,48,052 (2,37,883)
Xl. |Total Comprehensive Income for the year (IX+X) 66,14,77,606 12,76,61,802
Earnings per share — Basic and Diluted (Profit after tax
XII. |and before OCI/Wt. average number of shares) 3.66 2.99
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Cash Flow Statement

(Amount in Rs.)

PARTICULARS

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit before tax 21,06,83,973 21,18,00,847
Add/Less : Adjustments for

Depreciation 14,19,46,320 13,64,89,377
Interest Expense 21,88,33,106 21,98,66,793
Interest income (42,73,465) (32,24,480)
Amortisation of Govt. Grants (45,91,242) (44,05,796)
Remeasurement of employee defined benefit plans 9,27,375 (2,37,883)
Profit on sale of assets - (1,43,785)
Loss on sale of assets 4,64,465 3,42,081
Operating Profit before Working Capital changes 56,39,90,532 56,04,87,154
Add/Less : Adjustments for working capital

Inventories (5,65,27,057) (11,51,05,423)
Trade & Other receivables (5,75,59,729) (23,62,87,289)
Trade & other Payables 6,24,22,697 (3,99,71,955)
Cash generated from Operations 51,23,26,443 16,91,22,487
Less: Direct taxes paid 5,98,64,908 2,75,09,337
Net cash from Operating Activities 45,24,61,535 14,16,13,150
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of fixed assets and Capital WIP (Net of subsidy) (11,61,28,193) (13,91,92,436)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 26,26,683 76,17,770
Margin Money deposit with banks and other balances 1,27,449 (25,67,611)
Interest Received 42,73,465 32,24,480
Net cash used in Investing activities (10,91,00,596) (13,09,17,797)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from /(repayment) of Borrowings (12,04,96,653) 22,34,42,238
Dividend and tax paid (82,45,823) (82,45,823)
Interest and finance charges (21,48,33,106) (21,98,66,793)
Net cash from/(used in) Financing Activities (34,35,75,582) (46,70,378)
Net Increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (2,14,643) 60,24,975
Cash & Cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 78,14,521 17,89,545
Cash & Cash equivalents at the end of the year 75,99,878 78,14,521
Net Increase in cash and cash equivalents (2,14,643) 60,24,975
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Pursuant to a resolution passed under Section 62(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 by our Board in its meeting held
on [], it has been decided to make the following Offer to the Eligible Equity Shareholders, with a right to renounce:

ISSUE OF []JEQUITY SHARES OF FACE VALUE OF X 2 EACH (“EQUITY SHARES”) OF KALLAM
TEXTILES LIMITED (“KALLAM” OR THE “COMPANY” OR THE “ISSUER”) FOR CASH AT A
PRICE OFX[] (INCLUDING SHARE PREMIUM OF ¥ [+]) PER EQUITY SHARE (“ISSUE PRICE”) FOR
AN AGGREGATE AMOUNT NOT EXCEEDING X 99550 LAKHS TO THE ELIGIBLE EQUITY
SHAREHOLDERS ON RIGHTS BASIS IN THE RATIO OF [] EQUITY SHARE FOR EVERY []
EQUITY SHARES HELD BY THE ELIGIBLE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS ON THE RECORD DATE,
I.E. [] (THE “ISSUE”). THE ISSUE PRICE IS [] TIMES THE FACE VALUE OF THE EQUITY SHARES.

FOR FURTHER DETAILS, PLEASE REFER TO “OFFERING INFORMATION” ON PAGE 158 OF THE
DRAFT LETTER OFFER.

Registered & Corporate Office
N.H 5, Chowdavaram,

Guntur, Andhra Pradesh — 522 019
Tel. No.: +91 863 2344016

Fax No.: +91 863 2344000

Email: corp@ksml.in

Website: www.ksml.in

Corporate Identity Number: L18100AP1992PLC013860

Security Codes for the Equity Shares: BSE: 530201

Security ID: KALLAM

Address of the Registrar of Companies, Andhra Pradesh and Telangana
2" Floor, Corporate Bhawan,

GSI Post, Tattiannaram Nagole, Bandlaguda

Hyderabad — 500 068

Tel. No.: +91 40 29805427, 29803827, 29801927

Fax No.: +91 40 29803727

E-mail: roc.hyderabad@mca.gov.in

Website: www.mca.gov.in

Board of Directors of our Company

Sr. Name Designation Address DIN
No.
1. Mr. Poluri Managing Director Flat No.401, 402, Lakshmi Grand, 00018677
Venkateshwara Reddy Syamala Nagar, 4th Line, Guntur 522
006 Andhra Pradesh
2. | Mr. Gurram Venkata Joint Managing | Flat.No. 406, Krisals County, 12th 00018713
Krishna Reddy Director & CEO Line, Syamala Nagar, Pattabhipuram,
Guntur 522 006 Andhra Pradesh
3. Mr. Movva Venkata Whole Time Director | Flat No.202, Lakshmi Grand, Near 00018719
Subba Reddy & CFO Santhosh Matha Temple, 4th Line,
Main Road, Syamala Nagar, Guntur
522 006, Andhra Pradesh
4. | Mr. Suryanarayana Nominee Director of | 1, Essar  Apartments,  West 00021952
Murty Vaddadi IREDA Maredpally, Secunderabad 500 026,
Telangana
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522 002, Andhra Pradesh

Sr. Name Designation Address DIN
No.
5. | Mr. Ajeya Kallam Independent Director | 3 — 7 — 405/Dc/18 & 19, Nalanda 00278595
Nagar, Hyderabad 500 048 Telangana
6. | Mr. Pulla Rao Swargam | Independent Director | D.No. 29-14-57, Flat. No.002, Sai 02360239
Prema Residency, Prakasam Road,
Suryaraopet, Vijayawada 520 002,
Andhra Pradesh
7. | Mr. Ramagopal Independent Director | Flat No. 105, Tranquil Towers, 02889497
Varanasi Whitefield, Sree Tirumala
Construction, Kondapur,
Serilingampally, K V Rangareddy
Hyderabad - 500 084, Telangana
8. Mrs. Bhargavi Vangala | Independent Director | D.No. 5-13-13, 2/12 Brodipet, Guntur 06950741

For details of our Directors, refer to section titled “Our Management” on page 71 of the Draft Letter of Offer.

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Mr. Nandan Bisoi

Kallam Textiles Limited

N.H 5, Chowdavaram,

Guntur, Andhra Pradesh — 522 019

Tel. No.: + 91 863 2344016

Fax No.: + 91 863 2344000

Email: corp@ksml.in

Lead Manager to the Issue

SPA Capital Advisors Limited

SEBI Regn. No.: INM 000010825

25, C — Block, Community Centre

Janak Puri, New Delhi - 110 058

Tel. No.: +91 11 4558 6600, 4567 5500

Fax No.: +91 11 2557 2342

E-mail: kallam.rights@spagroupindia.com

Investor Grievance: grievances.mb@spagroupindia.com
Website: www.spacapital.com

Contact Person: Sri Krishna Tapariya / Manish Sharma

Legal Advisor to the Issue

Jampani Nageswara Rao

5t Line, Between 14-15™ Cross Roads,
Brodipet, Guntur — 522 002

Tel: +91 863 2350825

Email: jnracadvocat@gmail.com

Regd No. — 144/81/A.P Bar Council

Auditors of our Company

M/s Chevuturi Associates, Chartered Accountants
D. No. 33-25-33/B, Govinda Rajulu Naidu Street,
Suryaraopet, Vijayawada — 520 002

Andhra Pradesh

Tel.: +91 98499 10509

Email Id: balinenir@yahoo.co.uk

Contact Person: Raghunadha Rao Balineni
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Firm Registration No.: 000632S
Peer Review Certificate: 010120 dated June 30, 2017

Registrar to the Issue

Bigshare Services Private Limited

SEBI Regn. No.: INR000001385

1%t Floor, Bharat Tin Works Building,

Opp. Vasant Oasis, Makwana Road, Marol,
Andheri East, Mumbai — 400 059

Tel.: +91 22 6263 8200

Fax: +91 22 6263 8299

E-mail: rightsissue @bigshareonline.com
Investor Grievance e-mail id: investor@bigshareonline.com
Website: www.bigshareonline.com
Contact Person: Ashish Bhope

Investors may contact the Registrar to the Issue or our Company Secretary and Compliance Officer for any pre-
Issue or post- Issue related matters. All grievances relating to the ASBA process may be addressed to the Registrar
to the Issue, with a copy to the SCSB, giving full details such as name, address of the Applicant, number of Equity
Shares applied for, amount blocked, ASBA Account number and the Designated Branch of the SCSB where the
CAF, or the plain paper application, as the case may be, was submitted by the ASBA Investors. For details on the
ASBA process, see “Offering Information” on page 158.

Experts

Our Company has received consent from our Statutory Auditors, M/s Chevuturi Associates through its letter dated
December 11, 2018 to include its names as required under Section 26(1)(v) of the Companies Act, 2013 in this Draft
Letter of Offer and as an “expert” as defined under Section 2(38) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the
Limited Review Financial Information, the Audited Financial Statements and Statement of Tax Benefits,
respectively, and such consents have not been withdrawn as of the date of this Draft Letter of Offer.

Banker to the Issue & Refund Banker
Our company has appointed [®] as Banker to the Issue and Refund Banker.

Self-Certified Syndicate Banks
The list of banks that have been notified by SEBI to act as SCSB for the ASBA process is provided on SEBI website
at https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes

Banker to our Company

Andhra Bank

Guntur Main Branch

Gowri Sankar Theatre Road,
Kothapet, Guntur

Andhra Pradesh

Tel.: +91 863 2227420

Fax: +91 863 2321919

E-mail: bm0150@andhrabank.co.in

Indian Bank

Sambasivapet

Guntur — 522 001

Andhra Pradesh

Tel.: +91 863 2220061

Fax: +91 863 2237473

E-mail: guntur@indianbank.co.in

32


mailto:rightsissue@bigshareonline.com
mailto:investor@bigshareonline.com
http://www.bigshareonline.com/
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes
mailto:bm0150@andhrabank.co.in
mailto:guntur@indianbank.co.in

Bank of Baroda

Guntur Branch,

Rajiv Gandhi Bhawan,

Near Hindu College, Guntur — 522 004
Andhra Pradesh

Tel.: +91 863 2220244

Fax: +91 863 2224775

E-mail: guntur@bankofbaroda.com

Credit Rating
This being a right issue of equity shares, no credit rating is required.

Trustees
This being a Rights Issue of Equity Shares, appointment of Trustees is not required.

Appraising Agency
The issue has not been appraised.

Monitoring Agency
Since the issue size is less than Rs. 100 Crore, appointment of Monitoring Agency is not required.

Underwriting / Standby agreement
Our Company has not entered into any underwriting / standby agreement.

Issue Schedule
Issue Opens on [e]
Last date for requests for Split Application Forms [o]
Issue Closes on [e]
Date of Allotment (on or about) [o]
[e]
[e]

Date of Credit of Shares in Demat Account (on or about)
Date of listing (on or about)

SPA Capital Advisors Ltd. is the sole Lead manager to the Issue responsible for all pre issue and post issue
activities.

Minimum Subscription

If our company does not receive the minimum subscription of ninety percent of the Issue, our Company shall refund
the entire subscription amount within fifteen days from the date of closure of the issue. In the event that there is a
delay of making refunds by more than the prescribed time after our Company become liable to pay the subscription
amount, our Company shall pay interest for the delayed period at rates prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

Principal Terms of Loans and Assets charged as security

For details in relation to the principal terms of loans and assets charged as security in relation to our Company,
please see the section entitled “Financial Statements” and “Financial Indebtedness” on page 86 and 140
respectively.

Filing
This Draft Letter of Offer has been filed with BSE for its in-principal approval. After the in-principal approval is

received from BSE, the Letter of Offer will be filed with BSE and also with the Northern Regional Office of the
SEBI, located at 5th Floor, Bank of Baroda Building, 16, Sansad Marg, New Delhi — 110 001 for its information.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Our capital structure and related information as on date of the Draft Letter of Offer is set forth below.
(Rs. In Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Share Capital Aggregate value | Aggregate Value

at face value at Issue Price

A. | Authorised Share Capital
5,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 2/- each 1,000.00

B. Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up Share Capital
4,28,19,375 Equity Shares of Rs. 2/- each 856.39

C. Present Issue in terms of the Draft Letter of Offer
[e] Equity Shares at an Issue Price of I[e] per Equity Share [e] 995.50

D. | Subscribed and Paid-up capital after the Issue, assuming
full subscription

[®] Equity Shares of ¥2 each fully paid-up [o]

E. Share Premium Account: (in Rs. Lakhs)
Before the Issue Nil
After the Issue [e]

Notes to the Capital Structure
1. Changes in Authorised Share Capital
The Authorised share capital of our Company prior to IPO was Rs. 720 Lakhs (Rupees Seven Crore Twenty Lakhs)

equivalent to 72,00,000 equity shares of face value Rs. 10. The details of Changes in Authorised share capital of
our company after Initial Public Offering (IPO) on April 28, 1995 are given below:

Date No. of Cumulative Face  Authorised Particulars
Equity No. of Value Share
Shares Equity ® Capital
Shares (in)

September 25, 1999  28,00,000 1,00,00,000 10/-  10,00,00,000 Capital increased from Rs.
7,20,00,000 to Rs. 10,00,00,000
February 02, 2017  4,00,00,000 5,00,00,000* 2/- 10,00,00,000 Splitting of the equity shares

from the face value of Rs. 10/-
each to face value of Rs. 2/-
each

* As per resolution passed by Shareholders of our Company by Postal Ballot, results of which were declared on

January 07, 2017.
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2. Equity Share Capital History

Our Company came out with IPO in March, 1995. Prior to the IPO, the subscribed and paid up capital of our
Company was Rs. 3,58,29,000 (35,82,900 equity shares of face value Rs. 10 each). The details of Changes in Equity

share capital of our company after IPO are given below:

Date of No. of Cumulative Face | Issue | Cumulative Nature of Nature of | Category of
Allotment Equity No. of Value | Price Paid up consideration | Allotment Allottees
Shares Equity (in%) | (in) | Capital (in
Shares )
Prior to 35,82,900 35,82,900 10/- 10/- | 3,58,29,000 | Shares allotted | - Promoters
IPO since and
Incorporation Associates
and prior to of Promoters
IPO holding
33,32,900
equity
shares and
ICICI
Securities
and Finance
Company
Limited
holding
2,50,000
equity
shares
April 28, 32,68,200 68,51,100 10/- 10/- | 6,85,11,000 | Shares allotted | Public Public
1995 pursuant to Issue Shareholders
IPO
February - | 3,42,55,500* 21- - | 6,85,11,000 | Increase in Share Not
02, 2017 number of Split from Applicable
shares face value
consequent of Rs 10/-
upon splitting | each to
of equity share | Rs. 2/-
of face value each.
of Rs.10/-
each to face
value of Rs.
2/- each
October 85,63,875 | 4,28,19,375 2/- - | 8,56,38,750 | Shares allotted | Bonus All the
14,2017 pursuant to Issue Shareholders
Bonus Issue in ason
the ratio of 1:4 October 13,
2017

* As per resolution passed by Shareholders of our Company by Postal Ballot, results of which were declared on
January 07, 2017.
Note: Details of Share Capital allotment prior to IPO in 1995 are not available.
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3.

Our shareholding pattern as on December 31, 2018 as filed with Stock Exchanges is as follows:

Table | - Summary Statement holding of specified securities

Number of Voting Rights Shareh Number of
held in each class of olding , Shares
No L Number of
securities asa% . pledged or
. Share (1X) No. assUmi Locked in otherwise
of holdin No. of ng full shares encumbere
No. | sh gas . . of Shares (XI1)
of | are a% of No of Voting (XIV) Rights Shar Under | convers d
. ion of (X111)
Part | s total es lying
No. of convert
ly un no. of Unde Outsta -
No. of . . Shares - ible Number
Categ Nos. fully pai de_r Total nos. | shares rlyin Under nding securiti of equity
of - d- | lyi shares (caleul g . conver
Cate | ory of share paid up u n held ated Outst lying tible | (asa As shares
gory | shareh equity P g _ Total - | Outsta .| percent As held in
hold equ | De VE as per andin . securit a% -
m older shares - I asa% nding - age of a% demateria
ers ity | po | (IV)+(V)+ | SCRR g ies : of .
()} held - la of Warra diluted of lized form
(nn shar | sit (Vi) , Class conv and tota
(v) . ss (A+B - nts share No. | total | No. XIV)
es | or 1957) eg: o Total +C) ertibl (Xi) No. capital) | (@) | Shar | (a) |
hel | y ) X : e of prtal Sha
g: Xh= es
d Re As y secur Warra (V1) held res
(V) | cei a % of ities nts X) (b) held
pts (A+B X) (Xi) Asa% (b)
v +C2) (@) of
" (A+B+
C2)
Prom
oter &
Prom
oter
(A) | Group 20 [22620544 22620544 | 52.83 | 22620544 22620544 | 52.83 52.83 22620544
(B) | Public | 4686 [20198831 20198831 | 47.17 | 20198831 20198831 | 47.17 47.17 18215615
Non - - - - -l - - - - - - o - - - -
Prom
oter-
Non
(C) | Public -
Shares | - - - - - - - - | - - - - - -l - - - -1 -
under
lying
(C1) | DRs
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Shares | - - - - - - -] - - - - - - - - -
held
by
Emplo
yee
(C2) |Trusts
Total | 4706 |42819375 42819375 | 100.00 | 42819375 42819375 | 100.00 100.00 40836159
Table II: Statement showing shareholding pattern of the Promoter and Promoter Group
Number of Voting Rights held in Shareholdi
Sharehol each class of securities ng,asa %
ding as assuming
a % of full
No. of ct)?ﬁllar:rg;s No of Voting Rights Total convgfrsmn Nl:)mlljiir of
Name fully paid | Total nos. as - quity
. . (calculat convertible | shares held
Seria of the up equity shares ed as per a% securities in
I No. Shareholders shares held P of -
No. of held SCRR, Total (asa demateriali
Shareho 1957) cl Votin percentage zed form
Ider Asa % "f‘;s Total of diluted
of €g- right share
(A+B+C g capital)
2) S As a % of
(A+B+C2)
Al Indian
Individuals/Hind 19
u undivided
Family
N RAJENDRA
1 PRASAD 478750 478750 1.12 478750 478750 1.12 1.12 478750
NALLI
PRATHIBHA
2 RANI 187500 187500 0.44 187500 187500 0.44 0.44 187500
PRABHAKARA
3 RAO NALLI 173018 173018 0.40 173018 173018 0.40 0.40 173018
ANUMULA
4 RANGA REDDY 127500 127500 0.30 127500 127500 0.30 0.30 127500
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GURRAM
VENKATA
KRISHNA
REDDY

3513723

3513723

8.21

3513723

3513723

8.21

8.21

3513723

POLURI
GOVERDHAN
REDDY

1093455

1093455

2.55

1093455

1093455

2.55

2.55

1093455

POLURI
VENKATESHW
ARA REDDY

1151250

1151250

2.69

1151250

1151250

2.69

2.69

1151250

POLURI
SIVANAGENDR
AMMA

296205

296205

0.69

296205

296205

0.69

0.69

296205

KALLAM
MOHAN
REDDY

2679625

2679625

6.26

2679625

2679625

6.26

6.26

2679625

10

NAGIREDDY
KALLAM

736250

736250

1.72

736250

736250

1.72

1.72

736250

11

KALLAM
HARINADHA
REDDY

2732500

2732500

6.38

2732500

2732500

6.38

6.38

2732500

12

PRATHYUSHA
KALLAM

1188125

1188125

2.77

1188125

1188125

2.77

2.77

1188125

13

SUREDDY
MALLESWARI

462

462

0.00

462

462

0.00

0.00

462

14

MOVVA
VENKATA
SUBBA REDDY

428125

428125

1.00

428125

428125

1.00

1.00

428125

15

VENU GOPALA
REDDY POLURI

971575

971575

2.27

971575

971575

2.27

2.27

971575

16

UMASANKARA
REDDY MOVVA

675651

675651

1.58

675651

675651

1.58

1.58

675651

17

KALLAM
ANNAPURNA

643750

643750

1.50

643750

643750

1.50

1.50

643750

18

MOVVA
KAVITHA

77500

77500

0.18

77500

77500

0.18

0.18

77500

19

SUBBAYAMMA
POLURI

537

537

0.00

537

537

0.00

0.00

537

17155501

17155501

40.06

17155501

17155501

40.06

40.06

17155501

Any Other (Body
Corporate)

5465043

5465043

12.76

5465043

5465043

12.76

12.76

5465043
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KALLAM AGRO

PRODUCTS
AND OILS
PRIVATELTD 1 5465043 5465043 12.76 | 5465043.00 5465043.00 | 12.76 12.76 5465043
Sub Total Al 20 | 22620544 | 22620544 52.83 22620544 22620544 | 52.83 52.83 22620544
A2 Foreign - ) ) ) ) ] ] ) )
A Al+A2 (Total) 20 | 22620544 | 22620544 52.83 22620544 22620544 | 52.83 52.83 22620544
Table I11: Statement showing shareholding pattern of public shareholder
: : : Shareholdi
Number of Voting Rights held in
Sh_arehol each class of securities ng,asa %
ding as assuming
a % of ) ) full
No. of total no. No of Voting Rights Total | conversion | Number of
Name fully paid | Total nos of shares as of equity
. - " | (calculat o convertibl | shares held
Seria of the up equity shares ed as per a% e securities in
I No. Shareholders shares held P of -
No. of SCRR, (asa demateriali
held Total
Sharehol 1957) Class Votin | Percentage zed form
der Asa % . Total of diluted
eg:X g
of right share
(A+B+C S capital)
2) As a % of
(A+B+C2)
B1 Institutions 1
a Mutual Funds 1 62500 62500 0.15 62500 62500 0.15 0.15 -
Venture Capital . ) ) B ) B ) B )
b Funds
Alternate ) ) ) . ) B ) B )
c Investment Funds
Foreign Venture ) ) ) . ) ) ) ) )
d Capital Investors
Foreign Portfolio . . . . ) B ) B )
e Investors
Financial - - - - - - - - -
Institutions /
f Banks
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Insurance
Companies

Provident Funds /
Pension Funds

Any Other

Sub Total (B1)

62500

62500

0.15

62500

62500

0.15

0.15

B2

Central
Government /
State
Government /
President of
India

B3

Non —
Institutions

2)(i)

Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital up
to Rs. 2 lakhs.

4539

10734631

10734631

25.07

10734631

10734631

25.07

25.07

9261415

a)(ii)

Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital in
excess of Rs. 2
lakhs.

19

7789661

7789661

18.19

7789661

7789661

18.19

18.19

7421536

Devika Anand

550942

550942

1.29

550942

550942

1.29

1.29

550942

Hara Mohan
Maadhur Kallam

622875

622875

1.45

622875

622875

1.45

1.45

622875

Jyothi Bhukya

440081

440081

1.03

440081

440081

1.03

1.03

440081

Nitin G

770961

770961

1.80

770961

770961

1.80

1.80

770961

P Kinnera

568218

568218

1.33

568218

568218

1.33

1.33

568218

Thirupathi
Lakshminarayana
n

1631610

1631610

3.81

1631610

1631610

3.81

3.81

1631610

Vecha Sai Naga
Padmasree

1001218

1001218

2.34

1001218

1001218

2.34

2.34

1001218
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NBFC’s - - - - - - - - -
(b) | Registered  with
SEBI
(c) Employee Trusts ) ) ) ] ) ] ) ] )
Overseas - - - - - - - - -
Depositories
(d) (holding DRs)
Any Other
(e) (specify) 127 1612039 1612039 3.76 1612039 1612039 3.76 3.76 1532664
IEPF 1 494375 494375 1.15 494375 494375 1.15 1.15 494375
Bodies Corporate 57 653372 653372 1.53 653372 653372 1.53 1.53 573997
Clearing Members 32 59360 59360 0.14 59360 59360 0.14 0.14 59360
Foreign Portfolio
Investor (Category
1) 1 117408 117408 0.27 117408 117408 0.27 0.27 117408
Non-Resident
Indian (NRI) 36 287524 287524 0.67 287324 287524 0.67 0.67 287524
Sub Total B3 4685 | 20136331 | 20136331 47.03 20136331 20136331 | 47.03 47.03 18215615
B1+B2+B3
B (Total) 4686 | 20198831 | 20198831 47.17 20198831 20198831 | 47.17 47.17 18215615
Table 1V: Statement showing shareholding pattern of Non-promoter- Non-public shareholder
: : : Shareholdi
Number of Voting Rights held in
Sh_arehol each class of securities ng,asa %
ding as assuming
a % of ) ) full
No. of total no. No of Voting Rights Total | conversion | Number of
Name fully paid of shares as of equity
. . Total nos. | (calculat o convertible | shares held
Seria of the up equity a% L ;
shares ed as per securities in
I No. Shareholders shares of -
No. of held SCRR, (asa demateriali
held Total
Sharehold 1957) Cl : percentage zed form
ass Votin -
er Asa % . Total of diluted
eg:X g
of right share
(A+B+C s capital)
2) As a % of
(A+B+C2)
Custodian/DR Holder - - - - - - - - -
Name of DR Holders (If
C1l Available)
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Cc2

Employee Benefit Trust
(under SEBI (Share based
Employee Benefit)
Regulations, 2014)

Total Non-Promoter- Non
Public Shareholding (C)=
C1+C2
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4.

List of Shareholders holding more than 1 % of the share capital of our Company.

Name Number of shares | Total percentage
held

Kallam Agro Products and Oils Ltd 54,65,043 12.76
Gurram Venkata Krishna Reddy 34,69,156 8.10
Kallam Harinadha Reddy 27,32,500 6.38
Kallam Mohan Reddy 26,79,625 6.26
Prathyusha Kallam 11,88,125 2.77
Poluri Venkateshwara Reddy 11,51,250 2.69
Thirupathi Lakshminarayanan 11,15,275 2.60
Poluri Govardhan Reddy 10,93,193 2.55
Vecha Sai Naga Padmasree 10,01,218 2.34
Venu Gopala Reddy Poluri 9,71,575 2.27
Nagireddy Kallam 7,36,250 1.72
Gurram Nitin 6,85,000 1.60
Umasankara Reddy Movva 6,71,650 1.57
Kallam Annapurna 6,43,750 1.50
P Kinnera 5,68,218 1.33
Devika Anand 5,50,942 1.29
Hara Mohan Maadhur Kallam 5,21,875 1.22
Lakshminarayanan T 5,16,335 1.21
Investor Education And Protection Fund Authority

Ministry of Corporate Affairs 4,94,375 1.15
N Rajendra Prasad 4,78,750 1.12
Jyothi Bhukya 4,36,881 1.02
Movva Venkata Subba Reddy 4,28,125 1.00

Subscription to the Issue by the Promoters and Promoter Group

One of our Promoter, Mr. Poluri Venkateswara Reddy, in his capacity as a Promoter and as representative of
the Promoter Group, vide his letter dated March 16, 2019 has given an undertaking that he alongwith the
Promoter Group, and/or through one or more investors will subscribe to the total entitlement of the entire
Promoter Group. The same is proposed to be ensured by way of subscription and application for additional
shares and/or by renouncing their Rights Entitlement in part.

In such an event, the shareholding of Promoter and Promoter Group in the Company may accordingly stand
modified. Further, they reserve the right either through themselves or through investors to additionally
subscribe for any unsubscribed portion in the Issue. Such subscription to additional Equity shares and the
unsubscribed portion of the Issue, if any shall be in accordance with Regulation 10(4) of SEBI (Substantial
Acquisition of Shares & Takeovers) Regulations, 2011. Their entitlement to subscribe to the Issue would be
restricted to ensure that the public shareholding in the Company after the Issue does not fall below the
permissible minimum level as specified in the applicable laws.

Our Promoter and Promoter group holds 2,26,20,544 equity shares of our company representing 52.83 % of
the issued share capital.

Other than one of our Promoter Mr. Kallam Mohan Reddy who has acquired 7,32,750 shares on May 11,
2018 as gift from his mother (interse transfer) none of our Promoters have acquired any shares in the
preceding twelve months. However, following Members of our Promoter Group have acquired shares in the
preceding twelve months:

Name of Member Number of shares acquired
Kallam Haranadha Reddy 4,86,875

Poluri Sivanagendramma 51,574

Umasankara Reddy Movva 5,000

Venu Gopala Reddy Poluri 392
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21,

Our Promoters, Promoter Group, Directors and their relatives have not financed the purchase, by any other
person, of the Equity Shares of our Company during the period of six months immediately preceding the
date of filing of Draft Letter of Offer with BSE.

There are no outstanding warrants, options or rights to convert debentures, loans or other instruments into
Equity Shares as on the date of the Draft Letter of Offer. We have no partly paid up Equity Shares or call
in arrears as on the date of the Draft Letter of Offer.

None of the shares were issued by our Company during the last 12 months at a price lower than the Issue
Price.

None of the Equity Shares of our Company are locked-in as on the date of the Draft Letter of Offer.

There were no issuance of Equity Shares for consideration other than cash or out of revaluation reserves.
However, our Company made an Issue of 85,63,875 Equity Shares of Rs. 2 each as fully paid up bonus
shares out of free reserves which were allotted on October 14, 2017.

None of the Equity Shares of our Company held by the Promoter is subject to pledge or encumbrance as on
the date of this Draft Letter of Offer.

The Shareholders of Our Company, in its Annual General Meeting held on September 22, 2018 have
approved two Employee Stock Option Plan, i.e, Kallam Textiles Ltd Employees Stock Option Plan 2018 |
(ESOP-1 2018) and Kallam Textiles Ltd Employees Stock Option Plan 2018 Il (ESOP-I1 2018). A total of
4,28,194 (Four Lakh twenty eight thousand one hundred ninety four) Stock Options equivalent to 4,28,194
equity shares of the Company are proposed to be granted through each scheme. However, no Options have
been granted.

The present Issue being a rights issue, the requirements of Promoters’ contribution and lock-in are not
applicable.

Except for the allotment of Equity Shares pursuant to exercise of options under Kallam Textiles Ltd
Employees stock option Plan 2018 | (ESOP-I 2018) and Kallam Textiles Ltd Employees stock option Plan
2018 Il (ESOP-11 2018), if any, there will be no further issue of capital whether by way of issue of bonus
shares, preferential allotment, rights issue or in any other manner during the period commencing from
submission of the Draft Letter of Offer with the Stock Exchanges until the Equity Shares to be issued
pursuant to the Issue have been listed. However, for growth of business in future, our company may explore
various options including issue of further securities either by way of preferential basis or further public issue
of specified securities or Qualified Institution Offer, subject to approval of shareholders as applicable within
six months from the date of opening of the present issue.

If our company does not receive the minimum subscription of ninety percent of the Issue, our Company shall
refund the entire subscription amount within fifteen days from the date of closure of the issue. In the event
that there is a delay of making refunds by more than the prescribed time after our Company become liable
to pay the subscription amount, our Company shall pay interest for the delayed period at rates prescribed
under the Companies Act, 2013.

The ex-rights price of the Equity Shares as per Regulation 10(4)(b) of the SEBI Takeover Regulations is [*].

Our company has not undertaken any public issue in the three years immediately preceding the date of this
Draft Letter of Offer.

At any given time, there shall be only one denomination of the Ordinary Shares.
Our Company, its directors or the merchant banker have not entered into any buy back arrangements for

purchase of the specified securities of the issuer, or have not entered into any arrangements for safety net
facility.
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OBJECTS OF THE ISSUE
The proceeds of the Issue are proposed to be utilized by us for financing the following objects:
1. Additional Working Capital Requirements
2. General Corporate Purposes
3. Expenses for the issue

The main objects clause as set out in the Memorandum of Association enables our Company to undertake its
existing activities and the activities for which funds are being raised by our Company through the Rights Issue.

Requirement of Funds

The total estimated funds requirement is given below:

Sr. No. Particulars Amount (in ¥ Lakhs)
1 Additional Working Capital Requirements 2,414.63
2 General Corporate purposes [e]
3 Expenses for the issue [e]
Total [e]

Means of Finance

Sr. No. Particulars Amount (in ¥ Lakhs)
1 Proceeds from the Rights Issue 995.50
2 Internal Accruals [e]
Total [e]

The fund requirement and deployment is based on our Management estimates and has not been appraised by any
bank or financial institution or any other independent agencies. The fund requirement above is based on our
current business plan.

We operate in highly competitive, dynamic market conditions and may have to revise our business plan from
time to time. Consequently, our fund requirements and utilization of proceeds may also change accordingly. Any
such change in our plans may require rescheduling of our expenditure programs, at the discretion of our
management, subject to necessary approvals, and such rescheduling, if any, shall be within the objects of the
Issue.

We do not propose to raise any funds for meeting the object of the issue from sources other than the proceeds of
the rights issue and internal accruals. For the FY 2017-18, our Company has earned cash profit of Rs. 2,986.76
Lakhs and Net profit of Rs. 1,567.30 Lakhs. Further, in the nine month period ended December 31, 2018, as per
provisional figures, our Company has made a cash profit of Rs. 1,809.76 Lakhs and Net profit of Rs. 625.15
Lakhs. Accordingly, Our Company confirms there is no requirement to make firm arrangements of finance
through verifiable means towards at least 75% of the stated means of finance, excluding the amount to be raised
from the Rights Issue.

Details of use of Issue Proceeds:

1. Additional Working Capital Requirements

We are in the business of manufacturing of yarn and fabric, and have to maintain adequate inventory during all
times. Since we also sell our products to customers on credit, the increased sales will result into increase in
debtors. We intend to utilize our capacities at optimum level in our plants. Some of our final products from the
Ginning and Spinning plants are used as raw material in our Weaving and Dyeing plants. Since we only have one
manufacturing facility for our Ginning & Spinning Division and Weaving & Dyeing division respectively, higher
inventory needs to be maintained in order to cater to our customer demands at all time. Hence we need to maintain
the sufficient inventory at each division to cover the lead time between ordering to delivery time and optimizing
order quantity based on delivery cost and storage costs.
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Presently, we have sanctioned working capital limits of Rs. 14,200 Lakhs from our bankers. The equity infusion
through Rights Issue is proposed to meet our increasing working capital requirement that will help in maintaining
creditors, debtors, inventory holding levels as per our operations requirement. Therefore, in order to smoothen
our working capital cycle, we propose equity infusion of Rs. 800 Lakhs through Rights Issue and the remaining
requirement will be met through Internal accruals.

The working capital requirement is estimated as under:

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars Mar-17 Mar-18 Mar-19 Mar-20
Actual Actual Estimated Projected
Current Assets
Inventories 8,721.84 9,287.13 11,612.12 14,229.00
Raw Material 4,105.26 4,243.14 5,884.21 8,720.00
Work-in-process 2,485.79 2,957.81 3,589.12 2,625.00
Finished Goods 1,626.59 1,511.95 1,515.26 2,380.00
Stores& Spares 504.20 574.23 623.53 504.00
Sundry Debtors 3,097.55 2,277.86 3,257.11 4,437.15
Cash& Bank Balance 133.44 130.02 136.02 142.99
Other Current Assets 140.20 123.58 125.94 127.45
Claims Receivables 3,851.18 5,858.83 5,716.48 3,752.30
Total Current assets 15,944.21 17,677.42 20,847.67 22,688.89
Current Liabilities and provisions
Trade payables 280.45 838.56 467.90 1,055.63
Other current liabilities 2,957.23 3,711.94 4,180.09 4,837.52
Provisions and other tax liabilities 411.38 318.65 223.06 181.12
Total Current Liabilities 3,649.06 4,869.15 4,871.05 6,074.27
Net Working Capital GAP 12,295.15 12,808.27 15,976.62 16,614.63
Working Capital facilities from Bank 11,528.17 11,583.40 14,200.00 14,200.00
Additional Working Capital Requirement 766.98 1,224.87 1,776.62 2,414.63
Funding Pattern
- Rights Issue proceeds 800.00
- Internal Accruals []
The Working capital assessment is made on the basis of following assumptions:
(in Days)
Particulars Mar-17 Mar-18 Mar-19 Mar-20
Actual Actual Estimates Projected
Creditors Turnover Period 6 8 8 6
Raw Material Holding Period 97 89 98 93
WIP Holding Period 29 38 40 26
Finished Goods Holding Period 24 22 19 17
Debtors Turnover Period 35 31 31 28
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2. General Corporate Purposes

We intend to deploy balance issue proceeds aggregating Rs [e] towards general corporate purposes including but
not restricted to entering into general maintenance, Capital expenditure, repayment of outstanding loans, meeting
expenditure in the ordinary course of business, administrative expenditure, Insurance related expenditure,
strengthening our marketing capabilities, tie-ups, joint ventures or acquisitions or contingencies in ordinary course
of business which may not be foreseen or any other purposes as approved by our Board of Directors. Our
management, in accordance with the policies of our Board, will have flexibility in utilizing the proceeds
earmarked for general corporate purposes. However, not more than 25% of the proceeds of the issue would be

deployed for the General Corporate purposes.

3. Expenses for the Issue

The Issue related expenses consist fees payable to the Lead Manager, Legal counsel, Registrar to the Issue,
stationery printing and distribution expenses, advertisement expenses, depositories fees, listing fees and all other
incidental and miscellaneous expenses in respect of Rights Issue and Listing of additional equity shares on the

Stock Exchange. We intend to use approximate Rs [*] Lakhs towards these expenses which are to be met out of

issue proceeds.

( in lakhs)
Particulars Estimated % of Estimated | % of Estimated
Expenses R in Lakhs) | Issue size Issue expenses
Fees payable to intermediaries including Lead [°] [-] [-]
Manager and Registrar to the Issue
Advertising, travelling and marketing expenses [] [] []
Printing, stationery expenses and dispatch [] [-] []
charges
Other expenses (including but not limited to [] [-] [-]
legal counsel fees, listing fee, depository fees,
auditor fees, out of pocket reimbursements, etc.)
Total [] [] []
Estimated Schedule of Deployment of Funds
As estimated by our management, the entire proceeds received from the issue would be utilized as under:
(Fin lakhs)
Particulars Funds already 2019-20 Total
deployed (upto March
14, 2019)

Additional Working Capital Requirements [] [] []

General Corporate Purposes [] [] []

Expenses for the Issue 3.81 [] []

Total 3.81 [] []

Deployment of Funds towards the Objects of the Issue

We have incurred Rs. 3.81 lakhs upto March 14, 2019 towards the Objects of the Issue which has been certified
by M/S Chevuturi Associates (Firm Registration No.: 000632S), Chartered Accountants, vide its certificate dated
March 15, 2019. The same has been incurred towards issue related expenses and have been financed through

internal sources.
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Interim Use of Proceeds

Pending utilization for the purpose described above, we intend to deposit the net proceeds only in
Scheduled Commercial Banks included in the second schedule of Reserve Bank of India Act 1934, as may be
approved by our Board.

Bridge Financing Facilities

Our Company has not raised any bridge loans from any bank or financial institution as on the date of this Draft
Letter of Offer, which are proposed to be repaid from the Issue Proceeds.

Monitoring of Utilization of Funds
Since the Issue size is less than Rs. 100 Crores, the appointment of Monitoring Agency is not applicable.

No proceeds from the Issue are proposed to be paid to the Promoters of our Company.
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STATEMENT OF TAX BENEFITS

STATEMENT OF TAX BENEFITS AVAILABLE TO THE COMPANY AND ITS SHAREHOLDERS UNDER
THE APPLICABLE LAWS IN INDIA

The Board of Directors,

Kallam Textiles Limited,

NH — 5, Chowdavaram

Guntur — 522019,

Andhra Pradesh,

Dear Sirs,

Sub: Statement of Special tax benefit (‘the Statement’) available to M/S Kallam Textiles Limited and its
shareholders prepared in accordance with the requirements under Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 as amended (the ‘Regulations’)

We hereby confirm that the enclosed Annexure, prepared by M/s. Kallam Textiles Limited (‘the Company”),provides the
possible tax benefits available to the Company and to the shareholders of the Company under the Income-tax Act, 1961
(‘the Act’), presently in force in India. Several of these benefits are dependent on the Company or its shareholders fulfilling
the conditions prescribed under the relevant provisions of the Act. Hence, the ability of the Company and its shareholders
to derive the tax benefits is dependent upon their fulfilling such conditions which, based on business imperatives the
Company faces in the future, the Company or its shareholders may or may not choose to fulfill.

The benefits discussed in the enclosed statement are not exhaustive and the preparation of the contents stated is the
responsibility of the Company’s management. We are informed that this statement is only intended to provide general
information to the investors and is neither designed nor intended to be a substitute for professional tax advice. In view of
the individual nature of the tax consequences and the changing tax laws, each investor is advised to consult his or her own
tax consultant with respect to the specific tax implications arising out of their participation in the issue.

We do not express any opinion or provide any assurance as to whether:

(i) the Company or its shareholders will continue to obtain these benefits, in future;
(ii) the conditions prescribed for availing the benefits have been/would be met with;
(iii) the revenue authorities/courts will concur with the views expressed herein.

The contents of the enclosed statement are based on information, explanations and representations obtained from the
Company and on the basis of their understanding of the business activities and operations of the Company.

No assurance is given that the revenue authorities/courts will concur with the views expressed herein. The views are based on
the existing provisions of law and its interpretation, which are subject to change from time to time. We would not assume
responsibility to update the view, consequence to such change.

We shall not be liable to Company for any claims, liabilities or expenses relating to this assignment except to the extent of
fees relating to this assignment, as finally judicially determined to have resulted primarily from bad faith of intentional
misconduct.

The enclosed annexure is intended for your information and for inclusion in the Draft Prospectus/ Prospectus in connection
with the proposed issue of equity shares and is not to be used, referred to or distributed for any other purpose without our
written consent.

Place: Guntur For Chevuturi Associates
Date: November 24, 2018 Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. : 000632S

Raghunadha Rao Balineni
Partner
ICAI Memb. No. : 28105
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ANNEXURE

Statement of Special Tax Benefits available to the Company & its Shareholder under the Income Tax Act, 1961

SPECIAL TAX BENEFITS
1. Benefits available to the Company
No special tax benefits are available to the Company under the provision of Income-tax Act, 1961.
11. Benefits available to the Shareholders
There are no special tax benefits available to the shareholders for investing in the proposed right issue of shares of the

Company.

Place: Guntur For Chevuturi Associates
Date: November 24, 2018 Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No. : 000632S

Raghunadha Rao Balineni
Partner
ICAI Memb. No. : 28105
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INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

The information presented in this section has been obtained from publicly available documents from various
sources including officially prepared materials from the Government of India and its various ministries,
industry websites/publications and company estimates. Industry websites / publications generally state that the
information contained therein has been obtained from sources believed to be reliable, but their accuracy,
completeness and underlying assumptions are not guaranteed and their reliability cannot be assured. Industry
and government publications are also prepared based on information as of specific dates and may no longer
be current or reflect current trends. Although we believe industry, market and government data used in the
Draft Letter of Offer is reliable, it has not been independently verified. Similarly, our internal estimates, while
believed by us to be reliable, have not been verified by any independent agencies.

Indian Economy

The Indian economy is the third largest economy in the world by purchasing power parity basis with an
estimated Gross Domestic Product (GDP) of approximately USD $9.447 trillion in 2017. (Source: CIA World
Factbook)

GDP of India grew by 7.1 per cent in 2016-17. GDP Growth in 2017-18 is estimated at 6.7 percent. India’s
GDP growth outlook for 2018-19 remains positive and growth is expected to firm up in 2018-19 and 2019-20
on the back of private consumption. As per RBI Survey results dated February 07, 2019, GDP of India is likely
to grow at 7.2% in 2018-19 and is expected to accelerate to 7.3% in 2019-20. Headline consumer price index
(CPI) inflation is expected at 3.1 percent in fourth quarter of 2018-19 and thereafter may increase gradually to
reach 4.4 percent by third quarter of 2019-20. CPI inflation excluding food and beverages, pan, tobacco and
intoxicants and fuel and light is expected at 5.6 percent in fourth quarter of 2018-19 and is likely to decrease
gradually thereafter, although remaining above 5.0 percent till second quarter of 2019-20.

In recent years, India’s external sector has benefited from lower current account deficit (CAD), robust foreign
direct investments (FDI) inflows, build-up of reserves and improvement in other vulnerability indicators.
India’s foreign exchange reserves stood at US$ 405.64 billion as of March 15, 2019. The CAD to GDP ratio
was 0.7 per cent in 2016-17. The CAD ratio increased to 1.9 percent for FY 2017-18. The CAD is expected at
2.5 percent of GDP in 2018-19 and may improve in 2019-20. Gross FDI inflows during FY 2017-18 stood at
US$ 60.97 billion compared with US$ 60.22 billion in 2016-17, US$ 55.56 billion in 2015-16 and US $ 45.15
billion in 2014-15. The UNCTAD (United Nations Conference on Trade and Development)’s survey of
multinational enterprises ranked India as the third most favorite host country for FDI for 2017-19 after the US
and China. The continuing thrust on liberalization in recent years has given India the unique status of the most
open economy in the world for FDI. The initiatives taken towards ease of doing business have started to bear
fruit. World Bank Doing Business (DB) Report, 2018 (released in October 2017), ranked India at a position of
100 among 190 countries, registering a leap of 30 ranks over its previous rank of 130 in the Doing Business
Report 2017. India improved its Rank by 23 places, as India was ranked 77 in the ease of Doing Business
Report 2019.

The Gross Fiscal Deficit (GFD) was brought down to 3.5 per cent in 2016-17 without sacrificing public
investment needs and social sector spending. Though 3.2 percent GFD was budgeted for FY 2017-18, this has
been revised upwards to 3.5 percent. The government has budgeted a lower order of GFD of 3.3 percent for FY
2018-19. Further, the government has resolved to achieve a target of 3 percent GFD by 2020-21.

The Goods and Services Tax (GST) system introduced with effect from July 01, 2017 has reformed the system
of indirect taxes of goods and services in one stroke. GST has simplified and streamlined payments and credits
and enhanced the efficiency of inter-state movement of goods. Linkage of AADHAR unique identity numbers
to Direct Benefit Transfer (DBT) have reduced leakages substantially, the government is incentivizing states
for their effort to reduce the outgo on subsidies.

Emphasis on the implementation of rural roads program, rural electrification and affordable housing projects
have added depth to growth and employment. Continuing the thrust on agriculture and rural sector, the central
budget 2018-19 increased allocation for creation of livelihoods and rural infrastructure with an objective to
provide maximum opportunities in the rural areas by substantially ramping up spending on agriculture and
allied activities and construction of irrigation and other rural infrastructure. The government has initiated

51



measures to double farmers’ incomes by 2022 through price support measures, better marketing infrastructure,
thrust on exports and enhanced private investments.

Overall growth is projected to recover in FY 2018/19 and strengthen in FY 2019/20 as stability-oriented
macroeconomic policies and progress on structural reforms continue to bear fruit. (Source: IMF Country Report
No. 18/254 India: 2018 Article 1V Consultation—Press Release; Staff Report, July 2018).

Indian Textile Industry

Overview

The Indian Textile Industry is one of the largest in the world with a large raw material base and manufacturing
strength across the value chain. The uniqueness of the industry lies in its strength both in the hand-woven sector
as well as in the Capital intensive mill sector. The mill sector, with 3,400 textile mills having installed capacity
of more than 50 million spindles and 8,42,000 rotors is the second largest in the world. Traditional sectors like
handloom, handicrafts and small scale power-loom units are the biggest source of employment for millions of
people in rural and semi urban area. The Indian textile industry has inherent linkage with agriculture, culture
and traditions of the country making for its versatile spread of products appropriate for both domestic and the
export markets.

The textile industry contributes to 7% of industry output in value terms, 2% of India’s GDP and 15% of the
country’s export earnings in 2017-18. With over 45 million people employed directly, the textile industry is
labour intensive and is one of the largest sources of employment generation in the country.

(Source: Ministry of Textile, Annual report 2017-18)

Market Size

The size of India’s textile market as of November 2017 was around US$ 150 billion, which is expected to touch
US$ 223 billion market by 2021, growing at a CAGR of 12.28 per cent between 2009-21.

India's Textile Market Size in USS Billion
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(Source: India Brand Equity Foundation)

Industry Structure
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The major sub section of the Indian textile Industry are- Silk, Cotton, Woolen, Jute and Man-made. The
following diagram shows the structure of textile industry in India. The textile industry in India is highly
fragmented. The organized sector consists of spinning mills and composite mills. The unorganized sector
consists of handlooms and power looms.
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Export / Import

Exports: The Indian Textile industry is the second largest manufacturer and exporter in the world, after China.
The Industry is of vital importance to the Indian Economy. The share of textile and clothing (T&C) in India’s
total exports stands at a significant 12.4% in 2017-18 (Apr-Nov). India has a share of 5% of the global trade in
textiles and apparel. The major textile and apparel export destinations for India are EU-28 and USA with 47%
total textile and apparel export. The industry holds importance form the employment point of view as well. It
employs 4.5 crore people directly and another 6 crore people in allied sectors, including a large number of
women and rural population. The sector has perfect alignment with Government’s key initiatives of Make in
India, Skill India, Women Empowerment and Rural Youth Employment. The export details of Textile &
Apparel is as under:

2015-16 2016-17 2016 (Apr-Nov) 2017 (Apr-Nov)
(US$ Mn) (US$ Mn) (US$ Mn) (US$ Mn)
India Textile & 36,257 36,007 22,201 23,030
Apparel
Handicrafts 3,410 3,657 1,324 1,149
Total T&C 39,667 39,664 23,525 24,224
including
Handicrafts
India’s overall 262,290 276,280 175,411 194,971
exports
% T&C Exports of 15.1 14.4 13.4 12.4
overall exports
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T&C exports including handicrafts (US$ billion)

Exports of T&A products including Handicrafts from India have remained at US$ 39.7 billion during
2015-16 and 2016-17. However, its share in the overall export basket of India decreased from 15.1% in
2015-16 to 14.4% in 2016-17.

During 2015-16, Readymade Garments (RMG) accounted for 41% of the total T&C exports, while in
2016-17, it increased to 43% of total T&C exports.

In 2016 (Apr-Nov), India’s total T&C export was US$ 23.5 billion with a share of 13.4% in India’s overall
export of around US$ 175 billion. In comparison, during 2017 (Apr-Nov), India’s total T&C export was
valued at US§$ 24.2 billion with a share of 12.4% in India’s overall export of around US$ 195 billion.
India’s T&C products, including handlooms and handicrafts, are exported to more than hundred countries.
However, the USA and EU, account for nearly half of these exports. Other major export destinations
include U.A.E, Bangladesh, China, Sri Lanka, Turkey, Pakistan, Saudi Arabia, Canada, Australia, Brazil,
Rep. of Korea, Hong-Kong and Egypt.

Imports: India is a major textile and apparel exporting country and enjoys trade surplus. Bulk of import takes
place for industry requirements of raw material. The import of textiles and apparel products in India increased
from US$ 4.5 billion during Apr-Nov, 2016 to US$ 4.9 billion during the same time period of the current fiscal
year. Import of textiles & Apparel products in India increased from US$ 6 billion during 2015-16 to US$ 6.3
billion during 2016-17.

2015-16 2016-17 2016 (Apr-Nov) 2017 (Apr-Nov)
(US$ Mn) (US$ Mn) (US$ Mn) (US$ Mn)
Total Textile &
Apparel import 6,025 6,312 4,470 4,918

Government Initiatives

In keeping with goal of making India’s development inclusive and participative, the Government’s central focus
has been on increasing textile manufacturing by building the best-in-class manufacturing infrastructure, up-
gradation of technology, fostering innovation, enhancing skills and traditional strengths in the textile sector.
Some of the major initiatives and highlights of 2017-18 are listed below:

1.

Labor Law Reforms: Government is now bearing 3.67 percent of Employee Provident Fund (EPF)
contribution for new workmen in addition to existing reimbursement of 8.33 percent employer contribution
under Pradhan mantra Rojgar Protsahan Yojana for three years. In order to boost investment, employment,
and exports in the garments and made-up sector, the government launched a special package of Rs. 6000
Cr. for Textiles and Apparel sector in June 2016 and December 2016.

Amended Technology Up-gradation Fund scheme (A-TUFS): To boost employment generation in the
textile sector, the government provides an additional 10% capital investment subsidy (CIS) for garmenting
and Made-ups units.

Enhanced Duty Drawback coverage: a new scheme was introduced to refund the state levies which were
not refunded so far.

Rebate on State Levis (RoSL) Scheme: Ministry of Textiles in August 2016, introduced RoSL scheme
to provide for the remission of State Levis on export of garments through the mechanism of rebate.
Enhancement of Rates under MEIS: The government has doubled the rates for incentives under
Merchandise Exports from India Scheme (MEIS) on readymade garments and made-ups from 2% to 4%
of value of exports for two subsectors of textile industry — readymade garments and made-ups with from
01.11.2017 till 30.06.2018.

Enhancing Scope of section 80JJAA of Income Tax Act: Considering at the seasonal nature of the
garment industry, the provision of 240 days under section 80JJAA of Income Tax Act has been relaxed to
150 days.

Scheme for Integrated Textile Parks:_The scheme provides financial support up to 40% of the project
cost subject to a ceiling of Rs. 40 Crores to develop common infrastructure and common facilities for the
Textile manufacturing units.

(Source: Ministry of Textile, Annual Report 2017-18)
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Cotton Industry in India

Overview

Cotton is one of the most important cash crops and accounts for around 25% of the total global fiber production
India is world’s largest producer of cotton. Production of raw cotton in India grew from 290 Lakh bales in
2008-09 to 345 Lakh bales in 2016-17. As per Cotton Association of India (CAl), in 2017-18, Cotton
production (including loose) in India was 365 Lakh bales, while estimated cotton production for 2018-19 is
325 Lakh bales of 170 kgs, as per February 2019 estimate released by CAl. Cotton yarn accounts for the largest
share in total yarn production.

(Source: Ministry of Textiles, Cotton Association of India)

Production and Consumption

In India, cotton is cultivated in three diverse agro-ecological zones, Northern zone, comprising the states of
Punjab, Haryana and Rajasthan, Central zone comprising the states of Madhya Pradesh, Gujarat, Maharashtra
and Orissa and Southern zone comprising the states of Telangana, Andhra Pradesh, Karnataka and Tamil Nadu.
Cotton is also cultivated in small areas of non-traditional states such as Uttar Pradesh, West Bengal and Tripura.
India has brought about a quantitative and qualitative transformation in the production of cotton since
Independence. Production and productivity of cotton in India have improved significantly during the past
decades. India is the largest producer and 2™ largest exporter of cotton in the world. India is also leading
consumer of cotton. The details of production and consumption of cotton during the last five years is given
below:

(In lakh bales of 170 Kg each)

Year Production Consumption
2012-13 370 283.16
2013-14 398 299.55
2014-15 386 309.44
2015-16 332 315.28

2016-17 (P) 345 306.36
2017-18 (E)* 377 334.00

Source: Cotton Advisory Board Meeting dated 19/08/17.

P-Provisional, (E)*-Estimated as per information received from trade source & feedback received from CCI
Branches.

(Source: Ministry of Textiles, Annual Report 2017-2018)

However, as per February 2019 estimate released by Cotton Association of India (CAl), in 2017-18, Cotton
production (including loose) in India was 365 Lakh bales, while estimated cotton production for 2018-19 is
325 Lakh bales of 170 kgs, CAL.

Acreage /Productivity

India has the largest acreage with 122.35 lakh hectares under cotton cultivation i.e. around 42% of the world
area of 293.29 lakh hectares. Approximately, 62% of India’s cotton is produced on rain-fed areas and 38% on
irrigated lands.

Global cotton production is estimated at 24,963 mn. Kgs. India is the largest producer of cotton accounting for

one-fourth of the global cotton production. However, India’s yield is much lower than other top cotton growing
countries.

55



Country wise Cotton Production and Yield (2017-18)
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(Source: Confederation of India Textile Industry)
Import/Export

Presently, Cotton is a freely exportable commaodity from India. India exports Cotton mainly to Bangladesh,
China, Vietnam, Pakistan, Indonesia, Taiwan, Thailand, etc. Even though China was the largest importer of
Indian Cotton fibre till 2013-14, it became the 2" largest importer from 2014-15 onwards with Bangladesh
becoming the largest importer of Indian cotton. Although India is a major producer and exporter of cotton, a
small quantity of long fibre variety of cotton which is not available in the Country, is imported. The following
table gives the import and export figures for the last 5 years:

(In lakh bales of 170 Kg each)

Year Import Export
2012-13 14.59 101.43
2013-14 11.51 116.96
2014-15 14.39 57.72
2015-16 22.79 69.07

2016-17 (P) 30.94 58.21
2017-18 (E)* 17.00 67.00

Source: Cotton Advisory Board Meeting dated 12/02/17.
P-Provisional, (E)*-Estimated as per information received from trade source

Minimum Support Price (MSP) Operation

Cotton Corporation of India (CCI) has been nominated by the Government of India for undertaking MSP
operations in the event when kapas prices of seed cotton (kapas) touch MSP level for procuring entire quantity
of kapas offered by the cotton farmers in various APMC market yards at MSP rates without any quantitative
limit. Every year before commencement of the Cotton Season (Oct. to Sept.), the Govt. of India, Ministry of
Agriculture based on the recommendations of its Advisory Board viz., Commission for Agriculture Costs and
Prices (CACP) fixes the Minimum Support Price (MSP) for two basic staple groups of cotton i.e., medium long
staple variety (staple length 24.5mm to 25.5mm and micronnaire 4.3 to 5.1) and long staple cotton (staple length
29.5mm to 30.5mm and micronnaire 3.5 to 4.3) with a view to give incentives to the Cotton farmers of the
Country.
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For cotton season 2018-19, Ministry of Agriculture & Farmers welfare had fixed MSPs of Cotton at Rs.5150/-
per quintal for medium staple and Rs.5350/- per quintal for long staple cotton. The MSP fixed by Ministry of
Agriculture for the last few years is given below:

Year Medium Staple Long Staple
(staple length 24.5mm to (staple length 29.5mm to
25.5mm and micronnaire 4.3 30.5mm and micronnaire 3.5

t0 5.1) t0 4.3)
2012-13 3,600 3,900
2013-14 3,700 4,000
2014-15 3,750 4,050
2015-16 3,800 4,100
2016-17 3,860 4,160
2017-18 4,020 4,320
2018-19 5,150 5,350

The seasonal price trend of Raw Cotton over the past three years is depicted below.

(Source: Ministry of Textiles website)

While higher cotton prices may incentivize cotton production, however, it may increase working capital
requirements of textile manufacturers.

Government Initiatives

Cotton plays a major role in sustaining the livelihoods of an estimated 5.8 million farmers and 40-50 million
people engaged in related activities such as cotton processing and trade. The government of India has been
taking various initiatives to support the cotton industry. Some of them are stated below:

e The Government has been implementing Cotton Development Programme with a focus on cropping system
approach under National Food Security Mission (NFSM) in major cotton growing states since 2014-15 to
enhance production and productivity. Thrust has been given on transfer of technology through frontline
demonstrations and training in order to extend benefits to farmers. In addition, States can support Cotton
Development Programme under Rashtriya Krishi Vikas Yojna.

e Further to provide remunerative prices to cotton cultivators in the country, Government has fixed the
Minimum Support Price (MSP) of Cotton for 2018-19 season at Rs. 5150/- per quintal for medium staple
and at Rs. 5450/- per quintal for long staple. This provides margin of 50 percent over all India paid out cost
including family labour.

As a result of various initiatives taken by the Government, India has become a major cotton producer in the
world and is also a net cotton surplus country. (Source: Press Information Bureau)
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Challenges faced by Textile Industry during the financial year 2017-18

Operating profit margins of textiles exporters were under pressure on account of lower export realizations. A
shift in the dynamics of US retail, and a reduction in incentives after the implementation of the Goods and
Services Tax (GST) led to the pricing pressure.

In FY18, the textile export sector was undergoing a sea-change. Many brick & mortal retailers in the US have
pruned inventories and downsized stores to offset profitability pressures caused by the e-retail boom. To
cushion the consequent fall in utilization levels, Indian exporters have been enhancing their share of the
business with US e-retailers, but at lower realizations. Domestic home textile firms have had a good run since
FY12, with India's share of US imports of cotton bed sheets and terry towels increasing from 34% to about
40% in FY'17 because of cost competitiveness compared with peers in China and Pakistan. US accounts for a
third of global home textiles market worth US$ 16 billion.

Almost 47% of India's home textile exports of US$ 5.3 billion last fiscal was to the US. Additionally,
competitiveness continues to be impacted in Europe - an equally large consumer of home textiles as the US —
with levies up to 10% duty on Indian products compared with free access to Bangladesh and Pakistan firms.

Future Prospects

e Debt being raised for capacity expansion (net of repayments) and lower operating margins (due to higher
raw material costs) are expected to result in lower profitability for the sector in the near term.

e The demand for Indian home textiles will continue to grow at 8% seen in the recent past, helped by exports
to traditional markets and better penetration in non-traditional markets such as Asia, Australia, South
America and Canada.

e The Trans-Pacific-Partnership (TPP) a duty-free trade agreement between 12 nations may impact the
Indian textile and garment export sector negatively and put Indian textile exports of around US$ 40 billion
at risk over the medium term.

e The TPP member nations led by the US account for 40% of world trade and the deal gives them duty free
access to each other, and makes imports from other countries uncompetitive.

FDI Policy:

100% FDI is allowed under automatic route in Textile sector.
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OUR BUSINESS

Our Company is primarily engaged in the business of Ginning of cotton, manufacturing of Cotton yarn and
weaving of grey and dyed fabrics. We produce cotton yarn through both Ring Spinning and Open End Spinning
(with 59,280 spindles and 2,912 rotors respectively). We also have facilities of yarn dyeing with a capacity of
around 3000 Kgs per day, and for woven fabric capacity of 80,000 meters per day. Our manufacturing facilities
comprising of Ginning, Spinning, Weaving and Dyeing Plants, are located in the state of Andhra Pradesh. We
also have three Hydel Power Plants of total capacity of 4 MW located in the state of Telangana.

Our products include Ring Spun combed yarn (from Ne.30s to Ne.80s combed warp / compact), TFO (Two
for one twisted yarn) ring spun yarn (from Ne.30/2 to Ne 80/2 combed warp/compact), Open End yarn from
Nel0Os to Ne20s, TFO open end yarn Ne OE 20s/2, BCI (Better Cotton Initiative) certified yarn and woven
fabric such as yarn dyed shirting and bottom weight fabric.

Majority of combed compact yarn produced by us is utilized in-house by our woven fabric unit. In Fiscal
2018 and Fiscal 2017, out of the total quantity of 64,29,493 Kgs and 59,53,917 Kgs of cotton yarn sold by us,
42,42,926 Kgs and 43,32,211 Kgs of cotton yarn, respectively, was transferred to our woven fabric unit. Further,
during the Fiscal 2018, we sold 2,46,12,847 mtrs of grey fabric and 33,41,032 mtrs of dyed fabric as against
2,53,84,238 meters of grey fabric and 29,78,595 mtrs of dyed fabric in Fiscal 2017.

We have received many accreditations such as ISO 9001: 2015 accreditation by TUV Nord CERT GmbH,
Germany for management system for manufacture and supply of cotton yarn, BCI (Better Cotton Initiative)
certification for our Company units since December 2015 for procuring Cotton from farmers with better cotton
practices who have been certified by the BCI as a registered farmers. Our Company is a One Star Export
House recognized by the Ministry of Commerce, Government of India in accordance with foreign trade policy,
2015-2020 which is valid for a period of five years till August 2022. We export Yarn and Fabric to various
countries including Bangladesh, China, Japan, Korea, Sri Lanka, Vietnam etc. In the financial year 2017-2018,
we exported our products aggregating Rs. 9115.70 lakhs and in financial year 2016-2017, aggregating Rs.
4,459.00 lakhs, which represented 29.05% and 15.00% of our revenue for the respective periods.

We started commercial production in 1995 with spinning of cotton yarn. We have chosen vertically integrated
value addition so that the raw material fluctuation will have least impact on the finished products and
profitability margins of the Company.

In Fiscal 2018 and 2017, our revenue from operations was Rs. 31,264.26 lakhs and Rs. 28,863.17 lakhs
respectively and net profit after extraordinary items and tax of Rs. 1,567.30 lakhs and Rs. 1,279.00 Lakhs
respectively. In the FY 2017-18, 33.48% of our revenue from operation was from sale of Cotton yarn and
Dyed Yarn and 59.41% was from Grey Fabric and Dyed Fabric.

Further, as per unaudited financial results for quarter and nine months ended December 31, 2018, our income
from operation is Rs. 22,652.85 lakhs and net profit after extra-ordinary items and tax is Rs. 625.15 lakhs. Our
revenue have grown during the last decade from Rs. 6,233.00 Lacs in FY 2007-08 to Rs. 31,377.49 Lacs in
FY 2017-18 at a CAGR of 17.54%.

OUR COMPETITIVE STRENGTHS:

Track record of operations in the spinning industry with manufacturing operations spanning across the
textile value chain.

We have over two decades of experience in the spinning industry, delivering steady growth over a period of
time. We have gradually expanded our operations to cover the textile value chain from manufacturing of yarn
to woven fabric using yarn produced in-house. The manufacturing operations were commenced from Cotton
ginning and Ring spinning in 1995, thereafter we had set up open end spinning division in 2009, weaving
division in 2014, and dyeing division in 2015. As on date, our operations include ginning, spinning (ring
spinning and open-end spinning), weaving and dyeing in the textile segment. Our longstanding presence has
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enabled us to understand the changing needs and demands of the textile industry and our customers, both in
India and internationally. This has helped us in getting repeat business from our customers.

Manufacturing facility with locational advantage and state-of-the-art machinery to deliver quality products.

We have two manufacturing facilities in the state of Andhra Pradesh. We have gradually expanded our
operations over a period of time. Today, we believe that we possess the scale, product offerings, presence,
quality and technology to cater to our end-use industries such as apparels and garments, woven fabrics, home
furnishing, industrial textiles and medical textiles, etc.

Our manufacturing facility located in Guntur, AP enjoys locational advantage since Guntur is a major and one
of the best quality cotton growing areas in India that produces MCUS5 which is long staple cotton and is suited
for fine counts. It is also a major centre for cotton breeding in southern zone. Our Guntur unit is located on
sixth lane NH16, Golden Quadrilateral connecting Chennai and Calcutta and in proximity to Krishnapatanam
port and Vishakhapatnam port which helps in saving logistics cost for export operations. Further, our weaving
and dyeing units are located near to trijunction with highway access to Chennai, Hyderabad and Calcutta. All
the manufacturing facilities are well equipped to deliver quality products. For further details of machinery,
please refer to the heading ‘Machineries and Equipments’ in this section.

Implementation of stringent Quality control measures

Our Company has implemented stringent quality control measures to produce superior quality yarn and fabric
for our domestic and international customers. As the quality of our products depends on the raw material
quality, so we source the superior quality raw material from farmers/suppliers. We believe cotton procurement
is crucial for our manufacturing operations and we have gained significant experience in cotton procurement
which helps us in producing superior and consistent quality yarn and also increases the efficiency of our
operations which in-turn contribute to profitability of our Company. We procure Cotton (Kapas) directly from
farmers. Our company is BCI (Better Cotton Initiative) certified for procuring Better Cotton from BCI
registered farmers.

We carry raw material inspection. Further to in process inspection system, our mill has adopted stringent final
inspection procedure before dispatching yarn to our customers.

Wide range of products across cotton yarn and woven fabrics businesses

We have continuously expanded our range of products to cater to the customized requirements of our
customers. Our product range includes Ring Spun combed yarn (from Ne.30s to Ne.80s combed warp / compact),
TFO ring spun yarn, Open End yarn (from Nel10s to Ne20s), TFO open end yarn,, BCI certified yarn and woven
fabric such as yarn dyed shirting and bottom weight fabric. Our yarn dyed shirting includes cotton range and
blended products.

Experienced management team with strong industry expertise

Our Promoter directors have long experience in Cotton and Textile industry. Our Managing Director, Mr.
Poluri Venkateshwara Reddy, has in-depth knowledge in selection of Kapas and Cotton lint. He has more than
40 years of experience in ginning business. Mr. Gurram Venkata Krishna Reddy, Joint Managing Director and
CEO, is a technocrat and is a highly qualified Engineer. He has more than 25 years of experience in cotton
and textile industry. He is actively involved in marketing and finance management of our Company. Further,
Mr. MV Subba Reddy has long experience in procurement of cotton from market / farmers and sale of cotton
waste. For further details, please see “Our Management” on page 71 of this Draft Letter of Offer.
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OUR STRATEGY
Enhancement in range of our Products:

We are focusing on development of more specialized and customized grades for specific applications in
conjunction with our Customers. For this purpose, we are also focusing on improving our technical expertise
to support customers and market development. We intend to develop more varieties of yarn and increase range
of cotton fabric.

Expansion of our operations:

We plan to further expand our operations by increasing the number of looms and yarn dyeing capacity
substantially. We also plan to set up dye cloth and printing process upto one Lakh meters per day. Our
Company also intend to increase captive power generation by setting up wind mills. Alongwith expansion of
our operations, our Company is continuously focusing on improving process operations, equipment and
quality related issues for higher yield. We seek to achieve this through periodical installations of spindles and
woven fabric machines. As a part of this strategy, we are also in the process of exploring further expansion
opportunities, to enhance our manufacturing capabilities for product diversification and manufacturing of
value added products; and in this regard, we have sufficient land of 130.29 acres at Kunkupadu at our Weaving
and Dyeing plants to accommodate our future expansion.

Develop and maintain relationships with major domestic and new overseas customers, expand our existing
distribution network and increase our export sales

In India, we have been selling our products mainly to customers in South and Western India. Furthermore, our
growth also depends on our ability to attract additional fabric and garment manufacturers, and distributors.
Accordingly, we intend to continue to focus on developing and strengthening our sales and distribution
network, and introducing integrated solutions for the benefit of our customers. As a part of our sales and
distribution strategy, we propose to penetrate the domestic market further by appointing new distributors and
strengthening our woven fabric sales. At the same time we propose to continue our endeavor to establish a
global presence for our products through the export market in the near future by further developing strategic
relationships with key clients.

MARKETING APPROACH AND MARKETING SET UP

Our team including Directors through their relevant experience and good rapport with our customers due to
the timely delivery of quality products has played an instrumental role in creating and expanding a work
platform for our Company. We have a dedicated teams of Marketing Personnel in our Ring Spinning and
Open End Division as well as Weaving and Dyeing Division. The Marketing division has well trained team
with six officials for spinning division and seven in weaving division. The marketing division is headed by an
official of the rank of Vice President and is directly under control of our executive Directors. The sales and
marketing of Yarn and fabric is based on factors such as quality, easy availability and competitive pricing of
the products. Our client base includes reputed corporate houses in the India textile industry and in the global
markets we export our products to a number of countries as well. Some of our major domestic corporate clients
include Universal Cottex, Gimatex Industries Limited to whom we sell our Yarn and Jhakaria Fabrics to whom
we sell fabric. We also export our products to Paramount Textiles Limited in Bangladesh, Zhejiang Zhongda
Group International Trading Co. and Xiamin ITG Group Co. Ltd. in China. Our Company has loyal and
committed customer base who keep buying company products from time to time.

MANUFACTURING FACILITIES:

The details of our manufacturing facilities are as given below:

Ginning, Ring Spinning & Open End Plants — Our Ginning, Ring Spinning and Open End plants are located
at NH 16, Chowdavaram, Guntur, Andhra Pradesh, spread in an area of 23.13 acres. We operate 59,280

spindles of Ring Spinning out of which 34,416 are compact & 24,864 are Non-Compact and 2,912 rotors for
manufacturing open end yarn. Ginning Division has a capacity to press 6,000 bales per month. Ring Spinning
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Division has a production capacity of 420 tons per month whereas our Open end Division has a capacity of
500 tons per month. The different kinds of yarns manufactured by us are detailed as follows:

e Ring spun Ne.30s to Ne.80s combed wrap / compact;

e TFO ring spun yarn Ne.30/2 to Ne.80/2 combed warp/

e open end yarns from Nel0Os to Ne20s;

e TFO open end yarns;

The yarn made by us cater to end-use industries such as apparels and garments, woven fabrics, home
furnishings, industrial textiles, and medical textiles.

Weaving & Dyeing Plants — Our weaving and dyeing divisions are located at Kunkupadu Village, Addanki
Mandal, District — Prakasam, Andhra Pradesh spread in an area of 130.29 acres. Our dyeing division has a
capacity of around 3,000 kgs per day. Our Company had commenced the Commercial Production of Yarn
Dyeing unit in September 2015. Subsequent to the R.F (Radiofrequency) Drying, the yarn cones are bundled,
weighed and checked for evenness of dyeing on Schlafhorst auto-coners, so that it is ready for warping or for
weft insertion in weaving section.

Our weaving capacity is 80,000 meters per day of woven fabric including 70% yarn dyed shirting and 30% of
bottom weight fabric. We have the state of art machineries in weaving preparatory, weaving loom shed and
sophisticated testing equipment and instruments.

Hydel Plants — Our Company has three hydroelectric plants with a total capacity of 4.0 MW, two with the
capacity of 1.6 MW each and one with 0.8 MW. The plants are located at Kotha Kothur Village,
Nelakondapalli Mandal, District - Khammam, Telangana spread in an area of 39.06 acres. These plants are
on 16th & 17th branch canal of Nagarjuna Sagar project left to main canal. The first two power plants of 0.8
MW and 1.6 MW were commissioned in January 2002 and third hydroelectric power plant of 1.6 MW was
commissioned in March 2011.

All the generators produce electricity at 6.6 KV voltage level. The generated voltage is enhanced to 33 KV by
a power transformer and fed to the state electricity grid. The hydel power generation is solely dependent on
the canal water flow. The canal flows for 7 to 8 months in a year. Typically the canal opens in August /
September and close by April end every year. We have employed experienced electrical and mechanical
engineering team at the hydroelectric plants.

During the Fiscal 2018 and 2017, we have generated 25,27,700 Units and 16,25,900 Units of power. Out of
the total generation, 70% of the units are sold to Sagar Cements Limited and 30% of the units are sold to
TSNPDCL (The Northern Power Distribution Company of Telangana Limited).

In the FY 2017-18, our revenue from sale of power was Rs. 116.57 Lacs constituting 0.37% of our total
revenue.

CAPACITY AND CAPACITY UTILISATION:

Manufacturing Fiscal 2018 Fiscal 2017 Fiscal 2016
facilit
d Installed Capacity | Installed Capacity | Installed Capacity
capacity Utilisation | Capacity Utilisation | Capacity Utilisation
Ginning Division 28 Gins 50% 28 Gins 50% 28 Gins 50%
Ring Spinning 59,280 94.79% 58,096 95.85% 56,400 95.80%
Division Spindles Spindles Spindles
Open End Division 2,912 Rotors 99.62% 2,912 99.55% 1,248 98.80%
Rotors Rotors
Weaving Division 80,000 97.52% 80,000 96.35% 80,000 96.71%
Meters/Day Meters/Day Meters/Day
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Dyeing Division 10,08,000 55.19% 10,08,000 69.14% 8,10,000 10.50%
KG/P.A KG/P.A KG/P.A
Hydel Plant AMW 14.67% 4AMW 9.43% 4AMW 1.76%

MANUFACTURING PROCESS:
Ginning

Our operations starts from procurement of cotton. We procure cotton directly from the farmers. The farmers
bring kapas to Chowdavaram spinning cum ginning plant. The kapas is first checked for quality, quantity and
accounts will prepare the payment slip. Cotton cultivation is started in July every year with onset of monsoon.
Cotton packing from the fields start in November and continues till February. Best quality kapas is available
in the months of November - March only. Procurement of good quality cotton at economical value is very
crucial for our manufacturing operations.

Ginning is the first mechanical process involved in processing cotton. The process involves
separating cotton fibers from the seed bolls and dust particles. In this process, Raw seed Cotton undergoes
Ginning and Cotton Lints are obtained. These Cotton Lints are processed through Bale Press and Cotton Bales
are produced. Cotton seeds separated in Ginning process are sold to oil mills. The Ginning Division has 28
high production Ginning Machines. The Division has modernized Automatic bale pressing unit.

Ring Spinning

Ring Spinning is a process in which fibers is converted by passing through certain processes like Blow room,
Carding, Drawing, Combing, Simplex, Ring Frame and finally winding into yarns. These yarns are then wound
onto the cones.

Open End Spinning

Cotton Lint & Ring Spinning waste is used as Raw Material to prepare OE yarn. Around 10% of the OE yarn
is used in weaving and yarn dyeing, and approximately 70% of OE yarn is exported.

Weaving

Weaving is a method of textile production in which two distinct sets of yarns or threads are interlaced to form
a fabric or cloth. We have the state of art machinery from various leading manufacturers around the world.
We use machineries from various recognized vendors such as Karl Mayer, Germany for Weaving preparatory,
Picanol, Belgium Air-Jet and Rapier Looms, Toyota airjet looms, Japan, for Weaving machines, and
Humidification System from Luwa, Switzerland. Humidification air changes are provided, so that fluff is
going into the return trench and not flying around in the winding area.

Dyeing

Dyeing is the application of dyes or pigments on textile materials such as fibers, yarns, and fabrics with the
objective of achieving desired color. After the R.F.(Radiofrequency) Drying, the yarn cones are bundled,
weighed and checked for evenness of dyeing and are rewounded as soft packages on Schlafhorst auto-coners,
so that it is ready for warping or for weft insertion in weaving section. We have 5 machines of 60 spindles
each and keep machines at a distance to each other in order to avoid fluff contamination from one shade onto
the other. We have yarn dyeing machine from Fongs, Hong Kong and automatic dye dispensing system from
Tecnorama, Italy.
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Manufacturing Process Flowchart:

The Manufacturing process flow from Procurement of Seed Cotton to Finished fabric and Garmenting is
given below:
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MACHINERIES AND EQUIPMENTS:
Given below are the division wise major machineries and equipment used in our manufacturing plants:

Ginning Division
Major Machineries & equipment in Ginning division includes Ginning Machines, Automatic Bale Pressing unit,
Bulk Flow Conveyor, Lattice feeder, Cotton Conveying & Seed Blowing System etc.

Ring Spinning Division
Major Machineries & equipment in Ring Spinning division includes Blow room, Ring frame machine, Auto
coner machine, Humidification Plant, Carding machine, Draw Frames, etc.

Open End Division
Major Machineries & equipment in Open End division includes OE machine, Humidification System, Draw
Frames, Blow room, Carding machines, etc.

Weaving Division

Major Machineries & equipment in Weaving division includes Direct Warping machines, Airjet Looms, Sizing
machine, Auto Coner, Compressor, Boiler, Humidification Plant, Winding machine, Sectional Warpers, Rapier
Looms, Inspection Machines etc.

Dyeing Division
Major Machineries & equipment in Dyeing division includes Dyeing machine, RF dryer, Effluent Treatment
plant, Bulk machinery chemical dosing system etc.

Hydel Plants
Major Machineries & equipments in our Hydel Plants includes Turbines, Sluice Gates, Generator, Control
Protection & Switch Gear etc.

QUALITY CONTROL

Quality is of prime importance in any aspect of our business. As the quality of product depends on the raw
material quality, so we must be provided with the best quality raw material with an economical consideration.
We have an inbuilt Quality Control Lab in our Guntur Plant where Raw Material inspection is carried out on
Uster HVI (High Volume Instrument) Spectrum and Uster Afis Pro -2.

Better Cotton Initiative (BCI) — Our Company has been BCI Certified in December 2015 for procuring of
Better Cotton from the farmers who have been certified by the BCI as a Registered Farmers. The better cotton
initiative exists to make global cotton production better for the people who produce it, better for the
environment it grows in and better for the sector’s future. Yarn produced from BCI Cotton has high market
demand when compared to yarn produced from other cotton.

We follow Bale Management system for consistent superior yarn quality and for this cotton stock is maintained
for 5-6 months. Carding and combing process is optimized for NRE of 75% to 85% and 65% to 70%
respectively. RIETER D35 / D40 / D45 draw frames are maintained for less than 0.50%. In ring frame,
breakages are maintained below 5 to 6 breaks per 100 spindle hour. In auto coner, utmost care is taken for
achieving 85% splice strength with defect-free packages. Some of the major Quality check Equipments /Tests
used are:

For Ginning Division - HVI Instrument from Uster Inc., Switzerland

For Ring Spinning Division - Tenso Jet, Tenso Rapid, TPI tester, Bursting strength Tester etc.

For Dyeing Division — Tecnorama Sample Dyeing Washing Fastness tester, Infrared Color Machine
For Weaving Division — TPI tester, GSM Tester, Sampling cutter, Warp Reel etc.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Our Company has CSR policy and CSR committee. The CSR expenditure incurred by our Company during
the financial year 2017-18 was Rs. 29.37 Lakhs which was higher than the statutory requirement of 2% of the
average net profits (Rs. 14.09 Crores) for the last three financial years. The CSR initiative of our Company
was in the area of improvement of Roads in Addanki, Andhra Pradesh.

EXPORTS

We export Yarn and Fabric to various countries including Bangladesh, China, Japan, Korea, Sri Lanka,
Vietnam etc. In the financial year 2017-2018 our export revenue was Rs. 9115.70 lakhs, which comprised of
469% from export of yarn and 54% from export of fabric.

HUMAN RESOURCE

We have a structured policy to strengthen our human resources. The table stated below provides details of the
employees of our Company as on January 31, 2019:

Category of Employees Managerial Staff Workers Total
Employees on the payroll of our Company

Corporate and Registered Office 5 20 2 27
Spinning & Ginning Division 29 90 145 264
Open End Unit 2 9 29 40
Weaving Division 30 94 197 321
Dyeing Division 2 10 8 20
Hydel Division 3 6 1 10
Total 71 229 382 682

INSURANCE

Our operations are subject to risk inherent in the manufacturing such as work accidents, fire or explosion,
including hazards that may cause injury and loss of life, severe damage to and destruction of property and
equipment and environmental damage. We maintain insurance for a variety of risk including standard fire and
special perils policy, burglary policy, vehicle insurance, marine export import open policy etc. which covers
insurance of building including stocks, machinery and equipment used in our factory.

The summary of major insurance policies as on January 31, 2019 are as under:

(Rs. In lakhs)
Policy Head Total Sum Insured
Marine Export Import Insurance Open Policy 33,000.00
Burglary Insurance for Hydel Power Plants 1,200.00
Director & Officer Liability 815.62
Fire Insurance —Plant [Spinning Division] 29,500.00
Fire Insurance -Plant [Ginning Division] 750.00
Fire Insurance -Plant [Dyeing Division] 2,880.00
Fire Insurance -Plant [Weaving Division] 26,500.00
FLOP-Plant [Spinning Division] 5,000.00
FLOP-Plant [Weaving & Dyeing Division] 5,300.00
Machinery-Plant [Power Division] 600.00
Vehicle Insurance 37.29
Office & Quarters (Spinning & Ginning Division) 1,700.00
Quarters (Weaving & Dyeing Division) 1,600.00
Grand Total 1,08,882.91
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COLLABORATIONS

We have not entered into any collaborations with respect to our business.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

We have no trademarks registered in our name.

OUR MANUFACTURING FACILITIES AND OTHER IMMOVABLE PROPERTIES

DETAILS OF PROPERTIES OWNED BY US

Following is the details of Lands on which our Factories are located:

Area Area of
S. | Division Documents | Name of | Details of Property of Plant/Man | Considerat
No Executed the Land | ufacturing | ion
Seller (In Facility/To | Amountin
Acres) | wnships Rs.
(in acres)
1. Corporate | 18 Sale From NH 16 Chowdavaram, | 23.13 23.13 17,68,895
Office, Deeds various Guntur -522 019,
Ginning & owners Andhra Pradesh
Spinning
Division
2. Weaving | 39 Sale From Kunkupadu - 523265, | 130.29 52.00 | 1,90,47,638
& Dyeing | Deeds various Addanki, District —
Division owners Prakasam, Andhra
Pradesh
3. Hydel 3 Sale Deeds | From Singareddypalem (V), 5.43 5.43 5,41,198
Power various Khammam including
Plant owners District ,Telangana canals
4, Hydel 13 Sale From . Nelakondapalli (V), 21.30 21.30 28,58,427
Power Deeds various Khammam including
Plant owners District , Telangana canals
5. Hydel 6 Sale Deeds | From Bhiravunipalli (V), 12.33 12.33 16,69,211
Power various Khammam including
Plant owners District , Telangana canals
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1.

HISTORY AND CERTAIN CORPORATE MATTERS

Our Company was incorporated as a Public Limited Company on February 18, 1992 in the name of Kallam
Agros Limited vide Certificate of Incorporation No. 01-13860 of 1991-92 issued by the Registrar of Companies,
Andhra Pradesh. The name of our Company was changed to Kallam Spinning Mills Limited and fresh
Certificate of Incorporation dated September 22, 1994 was issued by the Registrar of Companies, Andhra
Pradesh. The name of our Company was once again changed to Kallam Textiles Limited and fresh Certificate
of Incorporation dated April 09, 2018 was issued by the Registrar of Companies, Hyderabad. Our registered
office is presently situated at N.H 5, Chowdavaram, Guntur, Andhra Pradesh — 522 019. The Corporate
Identification Number of our Company is L18100AP1992PL.C013860.

The Equity shares of our Company are presently listed on BSE Limited with Security ID: Kallam and Scrip
Code: 530201. The ISIN of our Company is INE629F01025.

Major events in the History of our Company since inception

Financial Year Key events, milestones and achievements
1992 Incorporation of our Company
1994-1995 - Spinning Mill was inaugurated and 3,024 spindles were commissioned
- IPO of Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each aggregating to Rs. 310 Lakhs
1995-1996 -Our Company was listed in April 1995 on Hyderabad Stock Exchange, Coimbatore

Stock Exchange and Bombay Stock Exchanges
- Commercial Operation increased with 12,096 spindles

1998-1999 -3 Hydro power plants of 4.0 MW sanctioned by the Government of Andhra Pradesh.
-Spindle Capacity increased to 18,144 spindles

1999-2000 -Spinning Division was awarded 1SO 9002 certification by TUV Germany

2001-2002 2 Power plants were commissioned and Power generated above 24 lakhs units

2004-2005 - Declared first maiden dividend of 7%

2008-2009 Total spindleage increased to 50,256.

2009-2010 - Open End unit commenced with 1,248 rotors

- A new TMC (Technology Mission on Cotton) Ginning unit with 24 High Production
Nipha Ginning Machines were commissioned with a capacity of 200 bales per day

- Civil works for Third 1.6 MW Hydro Electric plant at Biravunipalli were started

2010-2011 Third Mini Hydel Power Plant of 1.6 MW capacity was commissioned

2014-2015 Weaving unit commissioned on September 2014 with 248 airjet rapier looms

2015-2016 Awarded BCI certification

Dyeing Unit commissioned on September 2015

2017-2018 -Bonus shares issued in the ratio of 1 Equity share for every 4 Equity Shares

-Obtained 1SO 9001-2017 accreditation for Weaving & Dyeing Unit

2018-2019 Spindleage further increased to 59,280 spindles

Main Objects

The main objects as per the Memorandum of Association of our Company are as under:
To carry on the business of Ginning, Spinning, Doubling, Knitting, Merciding, Weaving or Manufacturing
or Dealing in Cotton or Other Fibrous substances and the preparation, Dyeing or Coloring of any of the said
substances and the Sale of Cotton Yarn, Cloth or other Manufactured Fibrous Products.
To extract Manufacture, Refine, Prepare, Treat, Purchase, Sell, Import, Export, Store Distribute or other-wise
deal in either as principals or as Agents or in collaboration with others all or any of the following viz, Cotton
Seed, Rice Bran, Oil Cakes and Seeds, Nuts, soaps, De-oiled Brans and Cakes and all other types and kinds
or Ingredients including manufacturing of Crude Oil, Refined Oil, Perfumed and all other types of Oils and
extracting by Products thereof.
To acquire by purchase take on Lease of Land or otherwise and to carry on the business of Estate Owners,
Cultivators, Planters, Growers and Manufactures for their own and or for and on behalf of others or Sellers
and Dealers in Coconuts, Paddy, Cotton, Vegetables, Plantations of teak, Soap Nuts, Tamarind, Agricultural,
Seri cultural and Horticultural Products and to Manufacture dispose of, by and deal to the said products.

69



To carry on all or any of the businesses as Timber Merchants, Saw Mill proprietors and Timber Growers and
to Buy, Sell, Grow, prepare for market, manipulate import, Export and Deal in Timber and Wood of all kinds
and any Goods or Articles in the Manufacture of which Timber or Wood is either wholly or partly used.

To Produce and Supply power by conventional and non-conventional sources of energy.

Number of Shareholders
As on December 31, 2018, there are 4,706 shareholders in our Company.

Subsidiary companies
Our Company does not have any subsidiary company in terms of Regulation 16 (1) (c) of SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015.

Shareholders Agreement
There are no Shareholders’ Agreements existing as on the date of this Draft Letter of Offer.

Other Agreements

Except the contracts / agreements entered in the ordinary course of the business carried on or intended to be
carried on by our Company, we have not entered into any other agreement / contract as on the date of this Draft
Letter of Offer

Non-Compete Agreement
As on date of filing of this Draft Letter of Offer, we have not entered into any Non-Compete Agreement

Joint Venture
As on date of filing of this Draft Letter of Offer, we do not have any Joint Ventures.

Strategic Partners
As on date of filing of this Draft Letter of Offer, we do not have any Strategic Partners.

Financial Partners
As on date of filing of this Draft Letter of Offer, we do not have any Financial Partners.

Except as above and “Material Contracts and Documents for Inspection” mentioned on page 187 of the Draft

Letter of Offer, there are no other material agreements or contracts, which have been entered into by us within
a period of 2 years prior to the date of the Draft Letter of Offer, and which are subsisting as on date.
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OUR MANAGEMENT

Our Company functions under the Control of Board of Directors. The day-to-day affairs of our Company are
looked after by qualified key personnel under the supervision of Mr. Poluri Venkateshwara Reddy, Managing
Director and Mr. Gurram Venkata Krishna Reddy, Joint Managing Director and CEO. Presently, we have 8
Directors on our Board. The constitution of the Board is as under:

Sr.
No

Name, Designation, Date of Birth, Address,
Occupation, DIN, Date of Appointment and
Tenure

Age
(in
years)

Nationality

Directorship / Partnership
in other entities (including
foreign companies)

1.

Mr. Poluri Venkateshwara Reddy
Managing Director

Date of Birth: August 14, 1951

Address: Flat No. 401, 402, Lakshmi Grand,
Syamala Nagar, 4th Line, Guntur 522 006
Andhra Pradesh

Occupation: Business

DIN: 00018677

Date of Reappointment: June 29, 2018
Date of Expiration of Current Term: June
28, 2021

67 Indian

e Nil

Mr. Gurram Venkata Krishna Reddy
Joint Managing Director & CEO

Date of Birth: September 11, 1957
Address: Flat.No. 406, Krisals County, 12th
Line, Syamala Nagar, Pattabhipuram, Guntur
522 006 Andhra Pradesh

Occupation: Business

DIN: 00018713

Date of Reappointment: June 29, 2018
Date of Expiration of Current Term: June
28, 2021

61 Indian

e Andhra Pradesh
Spinning Mills
Association

Mr. Movva Venkata Subba Reddy

Whole Time Director

Date of Birth: August 09, 1957

Address: Flat N0.202, Lakshmi Grand, Near
Santhosh Matha Temple, 4th Line, Main Road,
Syamala Nagar, Guntur 522 006 Andhra
Pradesh

Occupation: Business

DIN: 00018719

Date of Reappointment: June 01, 2017
Date of Expiration of Current Term: May
31, 2022

61 Indian

e Nil

Mr. Suryanarayana Murty Vaddadi
Nominee Director

Date of Birth: November 30, 1939

Address: 1-1, Essar Apartments, West
Maredpally, Secunderabad 500 026 Telangana
Occupation: Retired CGM APIDC

DIN: 00021952

Date of Appointment: October 27, 2001
Date of Expiration of Current Term: Upto
Repayment terms of IREDA

79 Indian

e  Sarvaraya Textiles
Limited

e Alkali Metals Limited

e  Shree Papers Limited

e Raj Packaging
Industries Limited

e Janapadu Hydel Power
Projects Private Limited

e Kallam Brothers
Cottons Private Limited
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Sr.
No

Name, Designation, Date of Birth, Address,
Occupation, DIN, Date of Appointment and
Tenure

Age
(in
years)

Nationality

Directorship / Partnership
in other entities (including
foreign companies)

Mr. Ajeya Kallam

Independent Director

Date of Birth: March 11, 1957

Address: 3 -7 —405/Dc/18 & 19, Nalanda
Nagar, Hyderabad 500 048 Telangana
Occupation: Retired Chief Secretary of
Government of Andhra Pradesh

DIN: 00278595

Date of Appointment: September 29, 2017
Date of Expiration of Current Term:
September 28, 2022

Indian

Sajjan Broadcasting
Private Limited

Mr. Pulla Rao Swargam

Independent Director

Date of Birth: June 10, 1945

Address: D.No. 29-14-57, Flat. No.002, Sai
Prema Residency, Prakasam Road,
Suryaraopet, Vijayawada 520 002 Andhra
Pradesh

Occupation: Retired Joint Commissioner of
Income Tax

DIN: 02360239

Date of Reappointment: September 27, 2014
Date of Expiration of Current Term;
September 26, 2019
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e Nil

Mr. Ramagopal Varanasi

Independent Director

Date of Birth: December 19, 1951
Address: Flat No.105, Tranquil Towers,
Whitefield, Sree Tirumala Construction,
Kondapur, Serilingampally, K V Rangareddy
Hyderabad - 500 084, Telangana
Occupation: Retired Executive Director of
Indian Bank

DIN: 02889497

Date of Appointment: September 29, 2017
Date of Expiration of Current Term;
September 28, 2022

67

Indian

e Nil

Mrs. Bhargavi Vangala

Independent Director

Date of Birth: July 07, 1986

Address: D.N0.5-13-13, 2/12 Brodipet,
Guntur 522 002, Andhra Pradesh
Occupation: Practicing Chartered Accountant
DIN: 06950741

Date of Appointment: September 27, 2014
Date of Expiration of Current Term:
September 26, 2019

32

Indian

e Nil
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Brief Biography of our Directors:

Mr. Poluri Venkateshwara Reddy, aged 67 years is the Managing Director of our Company since September
28,2002. He is overall responsible for purchase of Raw Cotton, Ginning, Civil Construction and Administration
of Spinning Unit at Chowdavaram. He had been instrumental in setting up and developing Ginning Business
and has in depth knowledge in selection of Kapas and Cotton Lint. Mr. Poluri Venkateshwara Reddy has more
than 45 years of rich experience in cotton trading, Ginning and Spinning.

Mr. Gurram Venkata Krishna Reddy, aged 61 years, is Joint Managing Director & CEO of our Company.
He is a graduate in Mechanical Engineering from Andhra University and completed his M.Sc (Marine
Engineering) from Royal Naval Engineering College, Plymouth, UK. He is a fellow member of Institute of
Engineers and Institute of Marine Engineers.

Mr. GVK Reddy has served in Indian Navy for over fifteen years in a number of positions, before joining our
Company in 1993. He was instrumental in commissioning of three Hydro Electric plants of our Company.
Currently, he looks after day to day administration of Weaving and Dyeing Units, Marketing Management of
our Company. He has more than 25 years of experience in Cotton Yarn and Fabric industry.

Mr. Mowva Venkata Subba Reddy, aged 61 years, is Whole Time Director and Chief Financial Officer of
our Company. He is associated with our Company since 1996. He is responsible for overall finance, accounts
and taxation functions of our Company. He is also involved in raw material procurement and looks after day to
day administration of Spinning and Ginning Unit at Chowdavaram.

Mr. Suryanarayana Murty Vaddadi, aged 79 years is the Nominee Director of our Company from IREDA.
He is a Post Graduate in Commerce from Andhra University, Visakhapatnam. He joined Andhra Pradesh
Industrial Development Corporation Ltd (APIDC) and was actively associated in various diversification
programmes of APIDC. In 1997, he retired as Chief General Manager in APIDC.

Mr. Ajeya Kallam, aged 62 years is the Independent Director of our Company. He is a 1983 batch IAS officer
and a post graduate in Agriculture with a Masters in Business Administration from Australia. Mr Kallam had
handled many important assignments in his career both in State and Central governments. On 31st March, 2017,
He retired as Chief Secretary to Government of Andhra Pradesh.

Mr. Pulla Rao Swargam, aged 73 years is the Independent Director of our Company. He is a graduate in B.Com
from Andhra University and Bachelor of Law from Nagarjuna University. He joined in Income Tax Department
in 1966 and retired as Joint Commissioner of Income Tax in June 2005 on superannuation. Mr. S Pulla Rao is
also the founder of “Padmasali International Welfare Association”, an NGO.

Mr. Ramagopal Varanasi, aged 67 years is the Independent Director of our Company. He has a Master’s
Degree in Bio-Chemistry. He joined as Probationary Officer in Indian bank in 1973. He later joined Andhra
Bank in 1976. He was appointed as Executive Director in Indian Bank in 2009 and retired in 2011.

Mrs. Bhargavi Vangala, aged 32 years, is the Independent Director of our Company. She graduated in B.Com
and isalso F.C.A, DISA (Diploma in Information System Audit). She is a practicing Chartered Accountant. Mrs.
Bhargavi qualified as a CA in the year 2011 and is practicing in Guntur, in the areas of Taxation, Auditing &
Banking. Her Area of Specialization is Indirect Taxes. She is a Managing Committee member for the Guntur
Branch of SIRC (Southern India Regional Council) of ICAI.

Relationship between Directors

None of our Directors are related to each other, in terms of Companies Act 2013. We further confirm that we
have not entered into any arrangement or understanding with our major shareholders, customers, suppliers or
others, pursuant to which our Directors were selected as Director or member of Senior Management except that
Mr. Suryanarayana Murthy Vaddadi was appointed as nominee director from IREDA.

Further none of our Directors are or were either director on board of listed companies that have been delisted

from any Stock Exchanges during his/her tenure in the past ten years or hold any current and past directorship(s)
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during the preceding five years in listed companies whose shares have been or were suspended from being
traded on any Stock Exchanges.

Further, none of our Directors are associated with the securities market, in any manner and there is or has been
no action taken by SEBI against our Directors or any entity in which our Directors are involved in as promoters
or directors.

Borrowing Powers of our Board of Directors

The members of our Company has passed a resolution through Postal Ballot the results of which were declared
on March 14, 2011, authorizing the Board of Directors of our Company to mortgage and/or charge, in addition
to the mortgages/charges already created or to be created by our Company upto an aggregate limit of Rs. 500
Crores (Rupees Five Hundred Crores only).

Remuneration of the Directors

The Salient terms of the remuneration of our Managing Director, Mr. Poluri Venkateshwara Reddy as approved
by Shareholders in AGM held on September 22, 2018 are:

Salary Rs. 2,75,000 per month

Commission Commission is payable 0.5% on profits computed under section 198 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

House Rent Allowance House Rent Allowance (HRA) of 10% of Salary

Car & Telephone A car and telephone at residence and further one mobile phone.

Insurance premium Health Insurance premium for self and family for a value of Rs. 20 Lakhs per

person. Accidental Insurance premium will be paid for self-covering a risk of
Rs. Five Crores and beneficiary being the Spouse.

Medical expenses Incurred and not reimbursed by Health insurance Company, to be reimbursed
for self and family all together to a limit of one month's salary in a year or
three months salary over a period of three years.

Gratuity Payment of Gratuity at the end of the tenure shall not exceed 15 days salary
for each completed year of continuous service rendered in the company i.e
Since September 2002 or at the rate as may be notified by the government from
time to time.

Other Annual subscription to a club/ Health centre / Gym excluding Life time
allowances/reimbursement | membership/ Lump sum deposit.

Reimbursement of Leave Travel Assistance with in India or abroad for self
and family once in a year subject to a maximum of one month salary.

The Salient terms of the remuneration of our Joint Managing Director & CEO, Mr. Gurram Venkata Krishna
Reddy as approved by Shareholders in AGM held on September 22, 2018 are:

Salary Rs. 2,75,000 per month

Commission Commission is payable 0.5% on profits computed under section 198 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

House Rent Allowance House Rent Allowance (HRA) of 10% of Salary

Car & Telephone A car and telephone at residence and further one mobile phone.

Insurance premium Health Insurance premium for self and family for a value of Rs. 20 Lakhs per

person. Accidental Insurance premium will be paid for self-covering a risk of
Rs. Five Crores and beneficiary being the Spouse.

Medical expenses Incurred and not reimbursed by Health insurance Company, to be reimbursed
for self and family all together to a limit of one month's salary in a year or
three months salary over a period of three years.

Gratuity Payment of Gratuity at the end of the tenure shall not exceed 15 days salary
for each completed year of continuous service rendered in the company from
21% June 1993 or at the rate as may be notified by the government from time
to time.
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Other Annual subscription to a club/ Health centre / Gym excluding Life time
allowances/reimbursement | membership/ Lump sum deposit.

Reimbursement of Leave Travel Assistance with in India or abroad for self
and family once in a year subject to a maximum of one month salary.

Except the terms as mentioned above and statutory benefits available upon termination of their employment as per
the policy of our Company, there are no service contracts executed between our Company and any of our Directors
providing for benefits upon termination of employment.

Interest of Directors

All of our directors may be deemed to be interested to the extent of their shareholding, remuneration / fees, if
any, payable to them, for attending meetings of the Board or a committee thereof as well as to the extent of other
remuneration paid in their professional capacity and / or reimbursement of expenses, if any, payable to them
and the shares held by them in our Company and their dividend and bonus entitlement. Further, except as
disclosed under the heading “Interest of Promoters™ in the Chapter titled ‘Our Promoters and Promoter Group’
on page 81, our Directors do not have any other interest in our business.

Corporate Governance

Our Company has complied with the Regulations of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Companies Act, 2013, in respect of corporate governance including
constitution of the Board and committees thereof.

In terms of the SEBI Listing Regulations and the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, our Company has
constituted the following Board-level committees:

1. Audit Committee
The Audit Committee was reconstituted by our Board in their meeting held on November 13, 2014. The
Audit Committee presently comprises of:

Name of Member Designation
Mr. Pulla Rao Swargam Chairman
Mrs. Bhargavi Vangala Member
Mr. Surya Narayana Murthy Vaddadi Member

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee was reconstituted by our Board in their meeting held on
September 29, 2017. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee presently comprises of:

Name of Member Designation
Mr. Ajeya Kallam Chairman
Mr. Surya Narayana Murthy Vaddadi Member
Mr. Ramagopal Varanasi Member

3. Stakeholders Relationship Committee
The Stakeholders Relationship Committee was reconstituted by our Board in their meeting held on
September 29, 2017. The Stakeholder Relationship Committee presently comprises of:

Name of Member Designation
Mr. Ajeya Kallam Chairman
Mr. Gurram Venkat Krishna Reddy Member
Mr. Movva Venkata Subba Reddy Member
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4. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee was reconstituted by our Board in their meeting held on
September 29, 2017. The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee presently comprises of:

Name of Member Designation
Mr. Gurram Venkat Krishna Reddy Chairman
Mr. Movva Venkata Subba Reddy Member
Mr. Ramagopal Varanasi Member

5. Share Transfer Committee
The Share Transfer Committee was reconstituted by our Board in their meeting held on June 28, 2008. The

Share Transfer Committee presently comprises of:

Name of Member Designation
Mr. Gurram Venkat Krishna Reddy Chairman
Mr. Movva Venkata Subba Reddy Member
Mr. Poluri Venkateshwara Reddy Member

6. Rights Issue Committee
The Rights Issue Committee was constituted by our Board in their meeting held on September 29, 2018.
The Rights Issue Committee presently comprises of:

Name of Member Designation
Mr. Gurram Venkat Krishna Reddy Chairman
Mr. Pulla Rao Swargam Member
Mrs. Bhargavi Vangala Member

Shareholding of our Directors as on December 31, 2018:

Sr. Name of the Directors Number of Equity % of holding
No. Shares
1. | Mr. Poluri Venkateshwara Reddy 11,51,250 2.69
2. | Mr. Gurram Venkata Krishna Reddy 35,13,723 8.21
3. | Mr. Movva Venkata Subba Reddy 4,28,125 1.00
4. | Mr. Suryanarayana Murty Vaddadi Nil Nil
5. | Mr. Ajeya Kallam Nil Nil
6. | Mr. Pulla Rao Swargam Nil Nil
7. | Mr. Ramagopal Varanasi Nil Nil
8. | Mrs. Bhargavi Vangala Nil Nil
Changes in the Board of Directors in the last 3 years
Sr. Name of the Directors Designation Date of Date of Cessation
No. Appointment
1. | Mr. Ajeya Kallam Director 29.09.2017 -
2. | Mr. Ramagopal Varanasi Director 29.09.2017 -
3. | Mr. M R Naik Director - 29.09.2017
4. | Mr. A Krishna Murthy Director - 29.09.2017

Key Managerial Personnel

The details of the Key Management Personnel of our Company, in addition to Mr. Poluri Venkateshwara Reddy,
Managing Director; Mr. Gurram Venkata Krishna Reddy, Joint Managing Director and CEO; and Mr. Movva
Venkata Subba Reddy, Whole Time Director and CFO, are set out below.
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Brief Profile of Key Managerial Personnel:

Mr. Nandan Bisoi, aged 35 years, is the Company Secretary of our Company. He was appointed as Company
Secretary and Compliance Officer on September 29, 2018. He is a member of Institute of Company Secretaries
of India (ICSI) and holds Post Graduate Degree in Master of Finance and Control (MFC). He is having 7-years
of experience in accounts and finance roles. He is having 1.5 years of Post qualification experience as a Qualified
Company Secretary.

Other Senior Managerial Personnel

The following are Senior Managerial Personnel of our Company.

Name Designation Age Qualification Experience Date of
(years) (years) Joining

Mr.SV Vice President — 56 MBA 35 02.02.2002
Govindraj Spinning Mills
Mr. Durgadas General Manager — 58 Diploma in 34 17.07.2000
Krishnahari Ginning, Spinning & Textile
Yemul Open End Division Technology
Mr. Rajiv Kumar | General Manager — 54 B.Tech 32 13.06.2016
Bhatt Weaving & Dyeing Unit

All our Key & Senior Managerial Personnel are permanent employees of our Company.
Relationship between Key Managerial Personnel

None of our KMPs are related to each other, in terms of Companies Act, 2013. We further confirm that the
service contracts entered into with our Key Management Personnel does not provide for any benefit upon
termination of employment except statutory benefits, the retirement benefits payable to them as Provident
Fund, Superannuation and Gratuity as per the policies of our Company. Except the normal incentive scheme
of our Company, there is no specific incentive sharing plan for the Key Managerial Personnel.

Shareholding of Key Managerial Personnel as on December 31, 2018

Sr. Name of the Directors Number of Equity % of holding
No. Shares

1. | Mr. Poluri Venkateshwara Reddy 11,51,250 2.69

2. | Mr. Gurram Venkata Krishna Reddy 35,13,723 8.21

3. | Mr. Movva Venkata Subba Reddy 4,28,125 1.00

4. | Mr. Nandan Bisoi Nil Nil

Changes in Key Managerial Personnel in the last 3 years

Sr. Name of the Directors Designation Date of Date of
No. Appointment Cessation
1. | Mr. Nandan Bisoi Company Secretary 29.09.2018 -

Interest of Key Managerial Personnel

Except as disclosed under the heading “Interest of Promoters” in the Chapter titled ‘Our Promoters and Promoter
Group’ on page 81, none of the key Managerial Personnel have any interest in our Company other than to
the extent of the remuneration or benefits to which they are entitled to as per their terms of appointment and
reimbursement of expenses incurred by them during the ordinary course of business.

Employee Stock Option Scheme

The Shareholders of our Company, in its AGM held on September 22, 2018 have approved two Employee Stock
Option Plan, i.e, Kallam Textiles Limited Employees stock option Plan 2018 | (ESOP-I 2018) and Kallam
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Textiles Limited Employees stock option Plan 2018 Il (ESOP-II 2018). A total of 4,28,194 (Four Lakh twenty

eight thousand one hundred ninety four) Stock Options equivalent to 4,28,194 equity shares of the Company are
proposed to be granted through each scheme.

Payment or benefit to officers of our Company
Except for the payment of salaries and perquisites, our Company does not make any payments to its officers.
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OUR PROMOTERS AND PROMOTER GROUP

The Promoters of our Company are:
1. Mr. Poluri Venkateshwara Reddy
2. Mr. Gurram Venkata Krishna Reddy
3. Mr. Kallam Mohan Reddy
4. Mr. Movva Venkata Subba Reddy

Details of our Promoters are as follows:

1. Mr. Poluri Venkateshwara Reddy
PAN: ADNPP4574E
Date of Birth: August 14, 1951
Aadhaar No.:644625511256
Passport No.: M0932238
Driving License No. : 1619/1974
Residential Address: Flat No. 401, 402, Lakshmi Grand Apartment, Syamala
Nagar, 4" Lane, Guntur, Andhra Pradesh -522006

Mr. Poluri Venkateshwara Reddy, aged 67 years is the Managing Director of our Company since September
28,2002. He is overall responsible for purchase of Raw Cotton, Ginning, Civil Construction and Administration
of Spinning Unit at Chowdavaram. He had been instrumental in setting up and developing Ginning Business
and has in depth knowledge in selection of Kapas and Cotton Lint. Mr. Poluri Venkateshwara Reddy has more
than 45 years of rich experience in cotton trading, Ginning and Spinning.

He is holding 11,51,250 Equity Shares of our Company in his individual capacity.

Other Directorships:
e Nil

2. Mr. Gurram Venkata Krishna Reddy

PAN: ABWPR2278L

Date of Birth: September 11, 1957

Aadhaar No.:644729915222

Passport No.: 22488514

Driving License No.: 1027/1980 OD

Residential Address: Flat No. 406, Krisals County, 121 Line, Syamala Nagar,
Pattabhipuram, Guntur, Andhra Pradesh —522006

Mr. Gurram Venkata Krishna Reddy, aged 61 years, is Joint Managing Director & CEO of our Company.
He is a graduate in Mechanical Engineering from Andhra University and completed his M.Sc (Marine
Engineering) from Royal Naval Engineering College, Plymouth, UK. He is a fellow member of Institute of
Engineers and Institute of Marine Engineers.

Mr. GVK Reddy has served in Indian Navy for over fifteen years in a number of positions, before joining our
Company in 1993. He was instrumental in commissioning of three Hydro Electric plants of our Company.
Currently, he looks after day to day administration of Weaving and Dyeing Units, Marketing Management of
our Company. He has more than 25 years of experience in Cotton Yarn and Fabric industry.

Presently, he holds 35,13,723 Equity Shares in his individual capacity.

Other Directorship:
e Andhra Pradesh Spinning Mills Association
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3. Mr. Kallam Mohan Reddy
PAN: ADVPK3586F
Date of Birth: March 16, 1962
Aadhaar No.:764537236037
Passport No.: J0648567
Driving License No. : DLFAP007330102007
Residential Address: Door No. 2-14-464, 2" Line, Syamala Nagar Guntur,
Andhra Pradesh — 522 006

Mr. Kallam Mohan Reddy, aged 56 years, is a promoter of our Company. He is son of Mr. Kallam Harinadha
Reddy. He is having good experience in Textile Sector. He is holding 26,79,625 Equity Shares of our Company
in his individual capacity.

Other Directorships:

e Kallam Agro Products and Oils Private Limited (Managing Director)
e Kallam Cold Storage Private Limited

e The Solvent Extractors Association of India

He is also the Secretary of Kallam Haranadhareddy Institute of Technology.

4. Mr. Movva Venkata Subba Reddy
PAN: AHNPM3567G
Date of Birth: August 09, 1957
Aadhaar No.:347676649401
Passport No.: K3157296
Driving License No: AP00720120037802
Residential Address: Flat No. 202, 4™ Lane, Syamala Nagar, Guntur, Andhra
Pradesh — 522006

Mr. Movva Venkata Subba Reddy, aged 61 years, is Whole Time Director and Chief Financial Officer of
our Company. He is associated with our Company since 1996.

He is responsible for overall finance, accounts and taxation functions of our Company. He is also involved in
raw material procurement and looks after day to day administration of Spinning and Ginning Unit at
Chowdavaram.

Presently, he is holding 4,28,125 Equity Shares in his individual capacity.

Other Directorships:
e Nil

OUR PROMOTER GROUP

In addition to our Promoters, the following 15 individuals and 1 Corporate entity forms part of the Promoter
Group of our Company in terms of Regulation 2(1)(pp) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, 2018.

Mr. Kallam Harinadha Reddy
Dr. Umasankara Reddy Movva
Dr. Ranga Reddy Anumula
Ms. Nalli Prathibha Rani

. Prabhakara Rao Nalli

Mr. Nagireddy Kallam

Mr. N. Rajendra Prasad

Ms. Poluri Sivanagendramma
Ms. Prathyusha Kallam

e 6 o o o o o o o
<
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Ms. Kallam Annapurna

Ms. Movva Kavitha

Ms. Subbayamma Poluri

Ms. Sureddy Malleswari

Mr. Poluri Goverdhan Reddy

Mr. Poluri Venu Gopala Reddy

Kallam Agro Products and Oils Private Limited

Other confirmation

We confirm that the details of the permanent account numbers, bank account numbers and passport number of
our individual promoters have been submitted to the Stock Exchange at the time of filing the Draft Letter of
Offer with the Stock Exchange. Our Promoters have informed that they have not been declared as willful
defaulters by the RBI or any other Governmental authority and there are no violations of securities laws
committed by them in the past or are pending against them.

No disciplinary action / investigation has been taken in the last five years by the Securities and Exchange Board
of India (SEBI) / Stock Exchange against our individual promoters or any company where they are associated as
a Director / Promoter / Partner / Proprietor. Further, our promoters, members of our promoter group or any
company where they are associated as promoter or director are not debarred from accessing the capital market
by SEBI.

Common Pursuits

Our Promoters have no interest in any venture that is involved in activities similar to those conducted by our
Company, as on the date of this Draft Letter of Offer. However, one of our member of the Promoter Group
namely Mr. Nagi Reddy is Managing Director of Kallam Brothers Cottons (Private) Limited which is also
engaged in cotton ginning business.

Interest of Promoters

Our Promoters shall be deemed as interested to the extent that they have promoted our company and to
the extent of equity shares held by them or by the companies / firms / ventures promoted by them, if any
and dividend or other distributions payable to them in respect of the said equity shares. For further details
of shareholding of our promoters and promoter group, please refer to the chapter “Capital Structure” on
page 34 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

Further, our promoters namely Mr. Poluri Venkateshwara Reddy, Mr. Gurram Venkata Krishna Reddy
and Mr. Movva Venkata Subba Reddy are also directors on the Board of our Company and may be deemed
to be interested to the extent of fees, if any payable to them for attending meetings of the board of directors
or a committee thereof as well as to the extent of remuneration, commission and reimbursement of
expenses payable to them as per the terms of their appointment. For further details of terms of appointment,
please see the section titled “Our Management” beginning on page 71 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

One of our promoter, Mr. Kallam Mohan Reddy is also director on the Board of our Group Company namely,
Kallam Agro Products & Oils Private Limited and he may be deemed to be interested to the extent of the
payments made or received by our Company, if any, to or from this Promoter Company.

Further, three of our Promoters namely Mr. Poluri Venkateshwara Reddy, Mr. Gurram Venkata Krishna
Reddy and Mr. Movva Venkata Subba Reddy have also extended unsecured loans for Rs. 171.55 Lakhs,
Rs. 85.40 Lakhs and Rs. 38.50 Lakhs respectively as on January 31, 2019. For details on Unsecured Loans
please refer to chapter on Financial Indebtedness on Page 140.
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Our Promoters, Directors and Group Companies have no interest, whether direct or indirect, in any property
acquired by our Company within the preceding three years from the date of this Draft Letter of Offer or
proposed to be acquired by it as on the date of this Draft Letter of Offer, or in any transaction by our Company
for acquisition of land, construction of building or supply of machinery.

Payment or Benefits to Promoters or Promoter Group

Except as disclosed in this section or stated otherwise in “Financial Statements” beginning on page 86 about
the related party transactions, there has been no payment or benefit to our Promoters or Promoter Group
during the two years prior to the filing of this Draft Letter of Offer nor is there any intention to pay or give
any benefit to our Promoters or members of the Promoter Group as on the date of this Draft Letter of Offer.
For details of related party transactions refer to “Financial Statements” on page 86 of this Draft Letter of
Offer.

Outstanding Litigation

There are no outstanding litigation against our Promoters except as disclosed in the section titled “Risk
Factors” and chapter titled “Outstanding Litigations and Material Developments” beginning on page nos.
12 and 145 of the Draft Letter of Offer.

Disassociation by Promoters in the last three years

None of our Promoters have disassociated themselves from any company or firm during the preceding three
years from the date of this Draft Letter of Offer.

Material Guarantees

Our Promoters have not given any material guarantee to any third party with respect to the Equity Shares as
on the date of this Draft Letter of Offer.
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OUR GROUP COMPANIES

In terms of Regulation 2(t) of SEBI ICDR Regulations, our Company has the following two Group Companies:

e Kallam Agro Products & Oils Private Limited
e Kallam Brothers Cottons Private Limited

Kallam Agro Products & Oils Private Limited (KAPOPL)

Kallam Agro Products & Oils Private Limited is part of our Promoter Group holding 54,65,043 shares. It was
incorporated on April 19, 1983 under the Companies Act, 1956 with the Registrar of Companies, Andhra Pradesh.
Presently its registered office is situated at S.No. 278, Dokiparru, Medikonduro Mandal, Guntur, Andhra Pradesh-
522438. The Corporate Identification Number (CIN) of the Company is U01119AP1983PTC003913. The
Company has more than 30 years of expertise in manufacturing of edible oil and de-oiled cake and hydel

generation. The equity shares of the Company are not listed on any stock exchange in India.

The Authorised Share Capital of KAPOPL is Rs. 4,00,00,000 (Rupees Four Crores only) comprising of 4,00,000
equity shares of Rs. 100/- each. The Issued, Subscribed and Paid up share capital is Rs. 3,75,00,000 (Rupees
Three Crores Seventy Five Lakhs only) comprising of 3,75,000 equity shares of Rs. 100/- each.

Board of Directors:
e Mr. Kallam Mohan Reddy (Managing Director)
e Mr. Poluri Venu Gopala Reddy (Whole Time Director)

Shareholding Pattern (As on February 28, 2019)

Sr. No. Name of the Shareholder No. of Equity Shares | % of holding
1. Kallam Harinadha Reddy 1,02,100 27.23
2. Kallam Mohan Reddy 87,600 23.36
3. Poluri Venkateshwara Reddy 67,250 17.93
4. Kallam Prathusha 36,000 9.60
5. Poluri Venugopal Reddy 26,600 7.09
6. Kallam Venkata Subbayamma 21,500 5.73
7. Poluri Govardhana Reddy 19,950 5.32
8. Poluri Siva Nagendramma 10,000 2.67
9. Kallam Hari Mohan Madhur 3,000 0.80
10. Poluri Venugopal HUF 1,000 0.27

Total 3,75,000 100.00

Financial performance
The audited financial results of Kallam Agro Products & Oils Private Limited for the financial years ended March
31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 are set forth below.

(Rs. in Lakh wherever applicable)

Particulars March 31,2018 March 31,2017 March 31, 2016
Equity Share Capital 375.00 375.00 375.00
Reserves & Surplus (excluding revaluation 2,540.68 3,128.83 2,950.30
reserve)
Net Worth 2,915.68 3,503.83 3,325.30
Total Revenue 15,090.63 16,595.16 21,569.95
Net profit / (loss) after tax (588.15) 178.67 346.68
EPS (in Rs.) of face value Rs. 10/- each
Basic (156.84) 47.65 92.45
Diluted (156.84) 47.65 92.45
Net Asset Value per share 777.51 934.36 886.75
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Kallam Brothers Cottons Private Limited (KBCPL)

Kallam Brothers Cottons Private Limited was incorporated on March 27, 2003 under the Companies Act, 1956
with the Registrar of Companies, Hyderabad. The CIN of KBCPL is U17111AP2003PTC040726. The registered
office of KBCPL is located at D.NO.160B, Dhulipalla (Village), Sattenapalli, Andhra Pradesh 522 414. KBCPL
is involved in the business of manufacturing of Cotton Yarn.

The Authorised Share Capital of KBCPL is Rs. 7,50,00,000 (Rupees Seven Crores Fifty Lakhs only) comprising
of 75,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each. The Issued, Subscribed and Paid up share capital is Rs. 4,00,22,070
(Rupees Four Crores Twenty Two Lakh Seventy only) comprising of 40,02,207 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each.

Board of Directors

Nagi Reddy Kallam

Srinivasa Reddy Kallam
Sambi Reddy Poluri

Praveen Kumar Reddy Poluri
Suryanarayana Murty Vaddadi

Shareholding Pattern (As on February 28, 2019):

Sr. No. Name of the Shareholder No. of Equity Shares | % of holding
1. Kallam Agro Products & Oils Private Limited 17,61,880 44.02
2. Kallam Annapoorna 2,58,376 6.46
3. Kallam Siva Kumari 2,57,180 6.43
4, Kallam Nagi Reddy 2,49,813 6.24
5. Poluri Sambi Reddy 2,06,985 5.17
6. Poluri Praveen Kumar Reddy 1,80,000 4.50
7. Kallam Srinivasa Reddy 1,62,625 4.06
8. Kallam Prudhvidhar 1,22,625 3.06
9. Kallam Harshavardhan 1,20,937 3.02
10. Gurram Vijaya Lakshmi 1,04,316 2.61
11. Gurram Venkata Krishna Reddy 61,429 1.53
12. Poluri Subbayamma 60,453 1.51
13. Gurram Nitin 33,750 0.84
14, Kallam Venkata Subbayamma 33,314 0.83
15. Poluri Venkateswara Reddy 31,501 0.79
16. Kallam Mohana Reddy 31,040 0.78
17. Adapa Nagi Reddy 30,937 0.77
18. Kallam Chandrakanth Reddy 30,375 0.76
19. K.V.S Koteswara Rao 28,125 0.70
20. Kallam Prathyusha 27,267 0.68
21, Kallam Haranadha Reddy 26,375 0.66
22. Poluri Sivanagendramma 23,063 0.58
23. Adapa Venugopal Reddy 22,500 0.56
24. K. Anjanta Devi 22,500 0.56
25. K. Hari Kishan 22,500 0.56
26. Nalli Rajendra Prasad 20,757 0.52
217. Adapa Sambrajyam 19,687 0.49
28. Poluri Papi Reddy 10,380 0.26
29. Movva Sujatha 10,380 0.26
30. Nalli Prabhakara Rao 6,919 0.17
31. Movva Uma Sankara Reddy 6,919 0.17
32. Nalli Prathibharani 6,919 0.17
33. Gaddam Rajiv Kumar 3,460 0.09
34. Kusam Srinivasa Reddy 3,460 0.09
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35. Kusam Jyothi 3,460 0.09
Total 40,02,207 100.00

Financial performance
The audited financial results of KBCPL for the financial years ended March 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 are set forth
below.

(Rs. in Lakh wherever applicable)

Particulars March 31,2018 March 31,2017 March 31, 2016
Equity Share Capital 400.22 400.22 400.22
Reserves & Surplus (excluding revaluation 2,997.87 2,379.48 1,991.79
reserve)
Net Worth 3,398.09 2,779.70 2,392.01
Total Revenue 16,329.37 18,668.00 16,703.17
Net profit / (loss) after tax 618.39 387.69 243.51
EPS (in Rs.) of face value Rs. 10/- each
Basic 15.45 9.69 6.08
Diluted 15.45 9.69 6.08
Net Asset Value per share 84.91 69.46 59.77

Litigation

As on the date of this Draft Letter of Offer, there are no outstanding litigation involving our Group Companies
which have a material impact on our Company.

Group Company which is a sick industrial company

None of our Group Companies have become a sick company under the erstwhile Sick Industrial Companies
(Special Provisions) Act, 1985.

Group Companies under winding up/insolvency proceedings

None of our Group Companies are under winding up/insolvency proceedings.

Defunct Group Company:

During the five years immediately preceding the date of this Draft Letter of Offer, none of our Group Companies
have remained defunct and no application has been made to the relevant Registrar of Companies for striking off
the name of any of our Group Companies.

Common Pursuits:

The objects of our Group Companies allows them to carry on business activities which are similar to activities
being carried out by our Company. Our Group Company Kallam Brothers Cottons Private Limited is involved in
the business of manufacturing of Cotton Yarn. Accordingly, there are some Common Pursuits between our Group
Companies and our Company. In the past, there have not been any instances of conflict of interest between our
Company and Group Companies. We will adopt the necessary procedures and practices as permitted by law to
address any conflict situation as and when they arise.

Business interest of our Group Companies in our Company

For details of related business transactions between our Company and Group Companies, please refer to the
Chapter on “Financial Statements” on page 86.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR FY 2017-18

CHEVUTURI ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT A PORT

To the Members of
KALLAM TEXTILES LIMITED
(Formeriy known as Kallam Spinning Mills Limited)

Report on the ind AS financial statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of KALLAM TEXTILES
UMITED (Formerly known as Kallam Spinning Mills Limited) (‘the Company’) which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including other comprehensive income), the Statement of changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) with respect to the preparation and presentation of
these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the
Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records In accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting of frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that are
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our
audit. In conducting our audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the
accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the
audit report under the provisions of the Act and Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to ob BT
assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements are fred

misstatement.

No.33-2§-33/B. Govindarajulunaidu Sr&iﬁaryaraopet, Vijayawada -~ 520 002, Andhra bo
Phones: (91-866) 2444593, 7444594 - Fax: 2444592
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CHEVUTURI ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
the disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the
Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the crcumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting
estimates made by the Company’s board of directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in confarmity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2018, its profit, total comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the
year ended on that date.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (‘the Order’), issued by
the Central Government of India In terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Act, we give in the Annexure-A, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3
and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as appears from our examination of those books;

c) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss Including other comprehensive
Income, the Statement of changes in equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt
with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with SeEoNOting
standards specified under section 133 of the Act.

NO.33-25.33/8, GOVWQMMl&u Strect, Suryaraopet, Vijayawads - 52-5'662, Andhra
fhones: (91-B66) 2444593, 2444504 - Fax: 2444592
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e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31,

g)

Place:Camp: Guntur

2018 and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2018 from being appointed as a director In terms of sub-
section (2) of section 164 of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate report in Annexure-B. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on
the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the company’s internal financial
controls over financial reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with the Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the basis of our information and according to the explanations
given to us:

i. The company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position.

ii. The company did not have any long term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

lii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education Protection Fund by the company.

For Chevuturi Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.0006325

- Aol o
(Ra, nadha Rao Balin
Partner
(Membership No: 028105)

Date : 28.5.2018

No.33-25-33/B, Govindarajulunaidyu Strest, Suryarsopet, Vijayawada - 520 002, Andhra Prodest, Indis
Phones: (91-866) 2444593, 7444594 - Fax; 2444592
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NN - EPORT

The Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” section of our report to the members of KALLAM TEXTILES LIMITED
(Formerly known as Kallam Spinning Mills Limited) for the year ended March 31, 2018.

We report that:
1. In respect of its fixed assets:

a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars Including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

b) According to the information and explanations furnished to us, the Company has not
physically verified its fixed assets during the year., However, the Company has
adopted a phased programme of verification which, in our opinion, Is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, the title deeds of immovable properties
are held in the name of the company.

2. In respect of its inventories:

a) According to the information and explanations furnished to us, the Company has
physically verified its inventories during the year and no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is
reasonable,

3. The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or
other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act
Consequently, clauses (iii){(a),(b) and (c) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable.

4. The company has not advanced any loans or made any Investments or provided any
guarantees during the year. Hence the reporting requirements in terms of clause (lv) of
paragraph 3 of the Order regarding reporting on compliance with the provisions of
section 185 and 186 of the Act with respect to the loans, investments and guarantees
does not arise.

5. The company has borrowed interest free loans from directors and their relatives in
pursuance of the stipulation imposed by Andhra Bank at the time of lending and the
amount outstanding against such borrowings on 31" March, 2018 was Rs.320.55 lakhs.
Apart from the sald amounts, the company has not accepted any deposits from the public
or members. Hence the question of compliance with the directives ed by Reserve
Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any othe By
the Act and the rules framed there under does not apply. Accg

gto
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10.

11.

12.

13.

CHEVUTURI ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

furnished to us, no order has been passed on the Company by the Company Law Board or
National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any other
Tribunal for non-compliance with the provisions of sections 73 to 76 of the Act.

Woe have broadly reviewed the books of account and records maintained by the Company
pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost
records under section 148(1) of the Act and we are of the opinlon that prima facie the
prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. However, we have not
carried out a detailed audit of the same.

a) According to the Information furnished to us, the Company Is regular in depositing with
appropriate authorities, the undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Value added tax, Service tax, Customs duty,
Excise duty, Cess, GST and any other statutory dues applicable to it. There were no
undisputed statutory dues in arrears as at the date of the Balance Sheet under report, for
a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

b) According to the information furnished to us and records of the company examined
by us, there were no amounts of Income tax, Value added tax, Customs duty, Excise duty,
GST and Service tax etc, have been disputed by the Company, and hence were not
remitted to the authorities concerned at the date of the Balance Sheet under report.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations furnished to us by the
Company, there were no defaults in repayment of dues to banks or government.
However, the company has not borrowed any loans from financial institutions, or raised
any funds by way of issue of debentures.

The company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year. In respect of term loans borrowed during
the year from banks, the proceeds were applied for the purpose for which the said loans
were raised.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the company or
any fraud on the company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported
during the year.

According to the information and explanation given te us and based on examination of
the records of the company, the company has provided remuneration for managerial
personnel in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of
section 197 read with schedule V of the Act.

The company Is not a nidhi company. Accordingly reporting under provisions of para 3({xii)
of the Order is not applicabie.
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14.

15.

16.

Place:Camp: Guntur
Date : 28.5.2018

CHEVUTURI ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

provisions of section 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations glven to us and based on our examination
of the records of the company, the company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures of the company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the company, the company has not entered into non-cash transactions
with directors or persons connected with them, Accordingly paragraph 3(xv) of the Order
is not applicable.

The company Is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934,

For Chevuturi Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reglstration No.000632S
Ao AAn_

Partner
(Membership No: 028105)

No.33-25-33/B, Govindarajulunaidy Street, Suryaraopet, Vijayawada - $20 002, Andhra Pradesh, Indis
Phones: (91-866) 2444503, 2444554 - Fax: 2444592
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CHEVUTURI ASSOCIATES
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Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of KALLAM TEXTILES
LIMITED (Formerly known as Kallam Spinning Mills Limited ("the Company") as of 31" March
2018 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the
year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of directors of the company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
"Guidance Note") issued by ICAI and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial centrols over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, Including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

No.33-253§fi Govindarsjulunaldu Street, S\;‘;;uraopet, Vhayawada - 526. 005, Andgsa F
Phones: (91-866) 2444593, 24445594 - Fax; 2444592
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of Ind AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary
to permit preparation of Ind AS financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31 March 2018, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financlal Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Chevuturi Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.000632S
: s @w
(Raghurfatha Rao Balineni}—
Partner
(Membership No: 028105)

Place:Camp: Guntur
Date : 28.5.2018
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KALLAM TEXTILES LIMITED
{Formerly known as Kallam Spinning Mills Limited)

Balance Sheet as at 31" March, 2018

{Amount in Rs.)
- Neo As at As at As at
e N1 31 march, 2018 | 31%March, 2007 | 1% april, 2016
ASSETS
1 Non-Current Assets
{a) |Property, Plant and Equipment 1 4,15,68,45,036 3,57,37,55,113 3,56,49,33,448
{b) |Capital Work-in-progress 4 5,90,36,453 4,48,31,391 4,60,36,613
{d) |Financial Assets
(1) Loans S 6,45,05,945 6,25,02,865 4,91,18,583
(ii}Other financial assets 6 - -
(e} |Other Non-current Assets 7 14,64,073 2,24,60,945 8,02,296
Total Non-Current assets 4,28,18,51,507 3,70,35,50,314 3,66,08,91,340
2 Current Assets
h(a) Inventories 8 92,87,11,656 87,21,84,559 75,70,79,176
(b) |Financtal Assets
(i} Trade Receivables ] 22,77,96,003 31,06,24,716 24,34,57,242
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 10 75,99,878 78,14,521 17,889,545
(ili) Other Bank balances 10 54,01,676 55,29,125 29,61,514
(iv) Loans s 512,161 19,03,078 22,73,9%4
(v) Other financial assets 6 4,500 17,390 17,350
(c) |Other Current assets 7 415,64,26,550 29,56,40,549 16,11,92,349
Total Current assats 1,62,64,52,464 1,45,37,13,978 1,16,87,71,210
Total Assets 5,90,83,03,971 5,19,72,64,292 4,82,96,625
For cuf'ypn"u ASSOCIATES For TEXTHH }(TD.’ S/
a Pptel o, 1] /
AND U R ” Uaers b
A- A (P VENKATESW, “}
< . ARA REDDY): }
)‘,V ty Share Capit4]] RO UNAGHA RAQ SALINE 8,56,38,750 | -+~ o, R 6,85, 1%
Other Equity ICAl memb ne: 2810 2,03,76,16,494 1,40,15,12,462 1,28,70,96,483
2,12,32,55,244 1,47,00,23,462 1,35,06,07,483
Liabllities
2 Non-current liabilities
H(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Long-term borrowings 13 1,75,60,68,613 1,94,30,40,847 1,84,14,49,955
(ii) Other financial liabilities 14 - -
(b) |Provisions 15 1,24 81,130 1,03,49,650 71,41,210
(¢} |Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 16 28,38,06,725 15,80,40,824 12,31,39,662
(d) JOther non-current liabilities 17 8,74,37,870 9,80,86,333 9,00,49,460
Total Non-current liabilities 2,13,97,54,338 2,20,55,17,654 2,06,27,80,327
3 Current liabilities
{a) |Financial Liabilities
(1) Short-term borrowings 18 1,16,09,40,476 1,15,28,17,033 1,06,25,27,641
(1) Trade payables 19 8,38,55,898 2,80,45,069 5,60,91,310
(iif) Other financial liabilities 14 35,08,37,434 28,50,43,044 26,92,35,305
(b) |Other current llabilities 17 1,81,56,070 1,06,79,980 97,82,392
(c) |Provisions 15 6,32,691 41,322 31,027
(d) JCurrent tax Liabiiities {Net) 20 3,12,31,820 4,10,96,728 1,86,06,065
Total Current liabilities 1,64,52,54, 388 1,51,77,23,176 1,41,62,74,740
Total Liabilities 3,78,50,48,728 3,72,72,40,830 3,47,90,55,067
Total Equity and Liabllities 5,90,83,03,971 5,19,72,64,292 4,82,96,62,550
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KALLAM TEXTILES LIMITED
(Formerly known as Kallam Spinning Mills Limited)

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31" March, 2018

(Amount in Rs.)
Particulars Note No. oz Xonrdnond
31" March, 2018 31" March, 2017
| | Revenue from Dperations Fal 3,12,64,26,542 2,88,63,17,329
Il | Other Incoma 22 1,13,22,728 1,01,23,693
" Total Income (I+11] 3,13,77,49,270 2,89,64,41,022
V| Expgnses
Cost of Material Consumed 23 1,70,28,44, 603 1.58,01.38 922
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 24 - -
Changes in inventories of Finished goads and wark-in-progress 25 -3,84,98,18S% (11,81,21,634)
Implayee benefits expense 26 20,86,36,897 18,04,95,661
Finance costs 27 21,88,33,106 21,98,66,793
Depraciation and Amertization expense 28 14,19,46,220 13,64,89,377
Other expenses 29 69,33,02,560 68,57,71,056
Total Expenses (IV) 2,92,70,65,297 2,68,46,40,175
V | Profit before exceptional items and tax {-v) 21,06,83,973 21,18,00,847
VI | Exceptionai ltems - .
Vil | Profit before tax {V-v1) 21,06,83,973 21,18,00,847
VIl | Tax expense: 20
Current tax 4,60,26,739 5,00,00,000
Deterrod tax (Nat of MAT Credit Entitlement) 79,27,680 3,39,01,162
X | Profit for the year (ViI-v1)) 15|61£.554 57%
X | Other Comprehensiva Income
A. tems that will not be re-classified to statement of
Profit and loss (Net of 1ax)
&) Remeasurement of tand at falr value 28,43,38,71%
b) Revaluation surplus on measurement of bulldings at fair value 33,72,20,182 -
] Remeasurement of defined employwe banefit pians 5.27.375 +2,37,883,
d) Deferred Tax charge on above 11,78,38,2 -
Total Other comprehensive income 50,47,48,052 -2,37,883
X | Total Comprehensive | for the year (IX+X) 66,14,77,606 12,76,
Xil | Eamings per Share - Baske and Diluted 43 3.66 295
(Profit after tax and before OCI/Wt. average numbaer of shares)
for CHEVUTUR} ASSOCIATES
Chartared Accountamts
Firm Regn No:00O5328
Y, &= &nm &—n
(RAG RAC BALINEN— -
Partner
ICAl memb ne: 28106 o
For KALLAM TE)}TILES LTB.
M
(R %‘WARA REDDY)
e T WS mmo’

95



KALLAM TEXTILES LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENOED 31.03.2018

2017-18 2016-17
PARTICULARS Rs. Rs.
Net Profit before tax 21,06,83,973 21,18,00,847
Add/Less: Adiustments for
Depreciation 14,19.46,320 13,63,89,377
Interest exponse 21,88,33,106 21,98,66,793
interast income (42,73,465) (32,24, 480)
isation of Govt. grants (45,91,242)| (@4,05,796)
Remeasurement of emplayee defined benefit plans 98,27,375 (2,37,883)
Profit on sale of assets . (1,43,785)
Loss on sale of assets 4,64 4565 3.42,081
Operating profit before working capital changes 56,39,90,532 56,04,87,154
- r
Invenlocies (5,65,27,057) (11,51,05,423)
rade and other receivables (5,75,59,729) (23,62,87,289)
rade and other payebles 5,24,22,697 (3,99,71,955
Cash generated from opearations 51,23,26,442 16,91,22,487
Less: Direct taxes paid 5.98,64 908 2,75,09,337
Net cash from operating activities 45,24,61,535 14,16,13,150
Furchase of fixed assets and Capital WIP (Net of subsidy) (11,61,28,193) 113,91,92,436)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 26,26,683 76,172,720
Margin Money deposit with banks and other balances 1,27,445 (25,67,611)
interest received 42,713,465 32,724,480 I
Net cash used in Investing activities (10,91,0C,596) {13.05,17,797)
Proceeds from/{Repayment of} barrowings (12,04,36,653) 22,3842,238
Dividend and tax paid (82,45,823) (82,45,823)
Intecest and finance charges (21,48,33,106, {21,98,66,793)
Net cash used in financing activities (34.35,75,582) (46,70,378)
Nut Increase/(Decrease) in cask and cash equivalents (2,184,643} 60,24,975
#n and cash equivalents a: the baginning of the Year 78.14,521 17,893,545
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the Year (Nate.10) 75,99,878 78,14,521
Net incroase in cash and cash equivalonts {2,14,643) 60,24,975
Changes in Liability arising from Financing acthities
Opening balance Non- | Closing balance &s
Particulars ason 1st April i '": “; /10wt Cash on 31st March
2017 changes 2018
Long term borrowings (Refer Note 13) 2,13,79,55,659 (12,82,20,096)| - 2,00,97,35,563
Short term borrowings (Refer Note 18) 1,15,28,17,033 7723443 - 1,16,05,404786
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dement of Changes |n Euity 4y o1 35° March, 2018

Fruity shaee caphnl

Pacriculars Na's INR

2 91 2™ Aell, 2016 BESL100 ©,4%,11,000
Chramges in nquity durieg the year.

Sub-dvizon of 1 equity of RE 30/ wach it

S equity of RS2/ each 1 A2.3%.30C

ins ot 31% March, 2007 247,45,500 SA5,11,000
Changas n equity Guing the yzar-

Bonus shares ued Juceg Uhe yua 85.63,87% 4,71,27,750
(A wt 13" March, 2018 220.09.75]  esesersa)

Other Lquity
Resarves sond Surplus s of Other Com prehensive Incomw
Pardoulans Total
investment AR = arphes | PCTuaniasl
Subsigy - !
wt the heginning of reporting periad - 1*
2016 - wx ot IGAAF 1.47,00,000 1,601, 46, 486 54,52 18088 - $7.55,45,343
% pwr e AS 108 -
IMvestieas subndy traetad 5 Gowartmment grant AATOM = 44,14 617 . - «2 0263 %3
Onidend and Dividend 1an - - A2 ,8% £33 - - A2 45825
ineraess in cervying value of Lnd on adsction of
evaluation medel cn bansivon dite transfered 1
and wirplus - . %0,81,86.602 00,01.95,603
#1 the beginning of reporting pesied - Ixt
A, 2016 - As per ind 3 2 L I Y : 2
Adit: Eeodi for the year 16-37 ) 12,78.50,08% - 1,
Cnhar PO me - - <3 97 ny *2,37
Todel Comprahanslee Inccome for e pear 14 76.09 685 - +2,37 8RN 13.76,51,802
[ Less: Aoprapristiont:
Fing! Divedend (or the yedr 301310 GE.51.100 - 54,651,100
Oryarbend Dutriiutom tas 1854733 - 33,88 128
o
Sioe 041 the and of sopdrting Saklol < 31" Matk: - 160,365,488 rrsanas £0,82.85,002 | 140,15,03 462
Asa: #rofit b the ywar i)-18 : 3 155739554 15,07.79.558
Other ecome . 406,358,897 ST 6225 71
Lesa, Dederied tox o7 OC) *31,78 38,7 0] 1 -1 780022
Tatal Comprebansion income for the yeor _Sa.3830877 072, 14,77,006
3,73.37.75) 171221
e w4552
- . o v
. 160,30, 485 | 90.53,83.292 64,81,86,602 50.88,20677 w&l 2AITEIE 44
=K
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KALLAM TEXTILES LIMITED

FIRST TIME ADOPTION OF IND AS: Note no:3

Thecompany has aoptediodan AccoatingStandards I A5 asnotfied b the Minstry of Crporate Afes wth effcted fom 1* Aol 2017 whh ransitin dateof 1° g, 2015. These fineal tterments for the

yearended 31" March, 3018 are the irst nd A6 francialstaterments. foe al periods upto and induding the vear ended 31" March, 2017, the company orepsred s Srancial statements In accordance with the accounting
mmmmuwummdmmmmmsmwmmmhmmmmm(mummqmw;.

YheldwtbnofIM&Sl\ukananhdulinmﬁmvhldﬁlﬂl,&!ﬁmldﬂmdwmmm requines that all Ind A5 staeards and interpretations that a7 issied and effactive for the fist
ind AS finarvcal statements be appied retrospectively and consstenty for al financal yesrs presented. Accandingh, the company has pregared financialstataments which comply withind S for the yer ended 31" March,
2018 togethes wih the comgarative Information as at and for the year ended 31" March, 2017 and the opasing nd AS bafance sheet as at 1° Aprl, 2015, the date of transition to lnd A5,

|nmmmwmmammnmwmwummummandmminm'emmmsm The resubling difference between the carmying values of the assets and the
fiahifties in the financiai statemants as at the trasstion date under Ind AS and srevieus GAAP have been recaznized cirecty n sqaty.

A, Exceptions from retrospective application.

WWananmdthewmsmmmeﬁousw.NConoanvhasmadmduuhemwummmmmmwmmwmmswmwmwm
required by ind AS end not required by Previous GAAP,

{il) Cagsif

tats

Ra5ure ngal ‘ﬂnwrwhuwnedﬂuchssﬁuhufhﬂmhmdmmemm:m&edmm«ﬁuhknkemo&u
campiehessive income creteria based on the facts 20 dircumstancas that existed
2 of the transion date,

(STig, O

(i} Dae o B0 Land sauipmen rmmwwhaﬁmdbummmmmmﬂﬂm”wmmadequ‘mmm,andmwbbmmizdmfm
1, 2016 {transition data) measured a¢ per the previous GAA? and useﬂntwrmn\uumhmmaddnmmdanwmhmeofhndwmhmhewadmd. The excess smount of faie
v&nanrtsamﬁ‘mmmmmmmmmmwmhsandmuddummssrius.

mewmdlﬁﬁnwmfawmGandDudmudGmmmMrummmo}ﬁwﬁlmmmmpmdwﬁu
sdnmnmdmmfreehmmmmmMBw{obnpphdmspeuwﬂmdgmmhdmmandmmmlmsW&M.ﬂzmmmmdmm
hebmaswmfm:hlsumndthemmwdmrmwmnm{nrmnmmmwnhhmm

B, Transition to Ind AS - Reconcitations.
mmmme&amammuwmmﬂmwmmwmmmmmwmmsmmmmmmm:

“M}ummmlhbylumwhmmhﬁmmmmmw.hduﬂrgmbnhne#wmml"lprl.mumwwas;zandbrmmm
32" March, 2017,

1) Reconcliation of Equity as at 1" Aprd, 2018 a0t 31* March, 2017
) Recomcation of Total Comprehenshee ncome for the year ended 31™ March, 2617
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Reconcifiation of Equity as previoushy reported under IGAAP to Ind AS

: IGAAP s ot Ind AS asat FOAAP &5 at IndAs IndASasat
31" Masch, 2017 N s 31" March, 2017 1" Agri, 2016 ad]ustments 1" pril, 216
1 hggets
i} ry, Mast and Equipment 1514471 1,23,30.400 33375103 IBETASE| 60818660 35643338
b JCapital Workén-progress 442.31,391 4483139 46035513 480,386,613
0 [Finascial Assens
1) Laens 25,00 268 £25,02,468 118,83 451,18,%83
i} Other Enanclal assets . . .
] Jother Non-cumem Aswts 22£0565 . 2,0650.548 802,196 402,295
3691219914 12330400| 3703550314 SUMTB| 608146602 3,66,08,31,340
3 |Current Assets
ia) Jewentones 87,2084, 559 §1,21,84 5% ,20.79,10 .0.05,17¢
Firancl Asets
F1) Trade Recahables 31,050,116 11,06,04,726 MMM LT
i Cash and cash squbalents 78,1450 18,1452 1748545 185,545
[ Other Bank basoces §5,18,125 $5,19,125 961,514 5L
(V) Loans 19307 190300 p7RER] PREL
v] Gther financial assars 3% 1730 17,39 - 123%
e} [Other Current assets 38,728,101 10,187,580 2,56,405¢ DASTH) 6255478 16,11,52.349
T 1,5852,91,53( RUAL LY 1483703304 1333598 62564Mm9) L1682, 71,00
wfms 528,865,114 45247152 5,19,72,6429 4280040557  54,56,21.84 482,96,6255
EQUITY AND LIABILITES
a) ﬁzmnum P\ s . 645,31,000 £45.1,000 £85,11,00
) Jorses Enuty v LALLM 9598457 1A0,15,1462 a5 ] 6015100 125,20 95483
~ / 1% a1 BIwE L0 23460 Taseml 8065100 L3,050783)
ol
1% 3040847 1,94 30,40.847 154 14,49 595 1B430 45,595
) 10348 650 . 103,48 650 7141210 5 1,1,210
lm %1810 20,15.77,852 15,60,40,824 weMan| 526000 124139661
(d) 5,508,331 9.40,66,333 9,00,45 460 40045450
231,109,206 10,15,77,552 220,%,17,65¢ LUSG0E 62568005 2062180321
2
1)
LIS, 115287,031 106.25,21,641 10825,27,641
2804569 18045 0% 55051310 56051310
78,50,43,044 . 25043044 26236305 76,32.36,305
& L8 219,29.08 1,06,75,980 4,58 99 10281383 §782392
i(«) 3 .30 43,756,850 828580 07
(] Jurran ta Liablibies [Net! 4,109 28 4,109 .728 186,06, 065 1.86,06,065
145,57, 9414 2190905 181 14423318 2035560 1AL 790
Tote! Lishikities 3,80,68,85,330 -7,36,48,500 3NRA80 3SR5MA| 6052818 347,90,55,06)
Total Equity and Liabiities 5,28,65,11484 324,152 5,18,72,64. 29 A28,8040,857|  54,56,21,893 48,562,550
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Reconclliation of Statement of Profit and Loss reported under IGAAP to Ind AS

IGAAP for the Ind AS for the
Particulars year ending Ind AS adjustments year ending
31™ March, 2017 31" March, 2017
I | Revenue from Operations 2,88,63,17,329 2,88,63,17,329
Il | Other Income 90,41,912 10,81,781 1,01,23,693
1l | Totzl Income (1+11) 2,89,53,59,241 10,81,781 2,89,64,41,022
IV | Expengas
Cast of Materizl Consumed 1,58,01,38,922 1,58,01,38,922
Purchase of Stock In Trade - 3‘&
(Incraase)/Decrease in Inventories of Finished goods, -11,81,21,63 -11,81,21.6
Employ=e benefits expense 18,07,33.544 -2,37,883 18,04,95,661
Finance costs 21,98,66,793 21,98,66,793
Dapreciation and Amortization expensse 13,60,90,327 3,959,050 13,64,85,377
Other expenses 68,57,71,056 68,57,71.056
Total Expenses (IV) 2,68,44,79,008 1,61,167 2,68,46,40,175
V | Profit before exceptional items and tax (111-1V) 21,08,80,233 9,20,614 21,18,00,847
VI | Exceptional ltems -
VIi | Profit before tax {(Vil-Vill) 21,08,80,233 9,20,614 21,18,00,847
VIl | Tax expense:
Current tax 5,00,00,000 - 5,00,00,000
Deferred tax charge ( Net of MAT Credit ) 3,39,01,162 3,39,01,162
X | Profit for the year (VII-VIlI) 12,69,79,071 9,20,614 12,78,99,685
% | Other Comprehensive Income *
A, Items that wlll not be re-classified to
statement of Profit and loss (net of tax)
a) Acturial Loss on remeasurement - -2,37,88 -2,37,883]
Tota! Other comprehensive income - -2,37.!!{ -2,37,883|
Xl | Total Comprehensive Income for the year {IX+X) 12,69,79,071 5,82,731 12,76,61,802

* Under the previous GAAP, there was no concept of Other Comprehensive Income . Under Ind As, specified items of Income, expense , gains
or losses are required to be presented in Other Comprehensive Income .
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KALLANM TEXTILES UMITED

Recandiliation between Previous GAAP and Ind AS Note No.3
(i) Reconciliation of Equity
As at As at
s N | 31% march, 2017 | 1 apeir, 2016
Total Equity as per Previous GAAP {a) 1,47,96,22,114 74,44,56,441
) Treatmant of Investment subsidy as per Ind AS 20 1 -1,02.31,383 -1,02,81,383
b) Amartisation of Deferred govornment grant over the useful life of the
Jasset to which such grant is sanctioaud 10,831,781 .
¢} Depreciation on assets for which grant is treated as per Ind AS 20 -3,99,050 -
d) Proposed Dividend and tax 2 - 82,45823
&) Revaluation of Land on adoption of fair value model on first tima
adoption of ind AS transitlan provisions under Ind AS-201 a - 60.81,86,602
Total adjustment w Equity (8} -95,98,652 60,61,51,042
Total Equity as per Ind AS (C=A+8) 1,47,00,23,462 1,35,06,07,4831

Year ended 31"

Particul Na
s s March, 2017

Not Profit after tax under Previous GAAP 12,69,79,074
2} Amortisation of Deferred government Frant over the usoful life

of the assat, 1 10,81,781
b} Depreciation on assets for wiich grant s treated as per

Ind AS 20 -3,99,050
<} Remeasurement benwfits on defined benafit obligations 3 237,883
Net Profit after tax before OCI as por Ind AS M
Othar Comprehensive Income
4} Remeasurement benelits on defined benefit obligations 3 -2,37,883
Total Comprehensive Income for the year as reported under ind AS 12,76,61,802

Undar previaus GAAP, government grants recelived in the nature of FRCG and other subsidies are deducted in the value of
tha asset and the net amount Is capitalised in the books of accounts. Under Ind AS, government grants raceived have Soen
recognised separately in the fiaancial statements with the name Deferred Gavernment grants under Other cutrent
labilities. The deferred grant is rocognised In the Statement of Profit and Loss in proportion of depreciation charsged on
such assets,

. Rividend and Tax on Dividend

Under previous GAAP, dividend payablo is recorded as a liabifity in the periad to which It relates and vnder Ind AS dividend
I recogrised as a Bability in the period in which the obligation to pay Is established.

3.Remeasurament of net defined benefit plans
Under previous GAAP, actuarial gains and losses were recognised In the staternant of profit and loss, Under ind AS, the
actuarial gains and losses form part of re-maesirement of net cefined benefit liability which is recognited in other
comprehensive incame in respective years. However, such a change does not have any wffect on total comprehensive
Income Or total equity.

4, Cost of Property, plant and equipment
The company bas electad Lo measure all its peoperty, plant and equipment and Intangible assets at the previous GAAR
carrying amount as its deemed cost at the date of transition to Ind AS except in case of land where falr value was acopted
The excess amount of fair value aver its carrying amount was transfersrad to revaluation surplus and grouped under
Reserves and Surplus -

5. Interest free sales tax loan
In the finandiai statements preparad undar Pravious GAAPR, the carrying value of Interest frée Inan was recogrised at the
principal amounts payable by the company. Under Ind AS, interest free barrowing being a financial liability Is requirec
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to be recognised initiaily at fair value and suasequently measured at amortised cost wsing the effective interest mathod,
The difference betwonn such fair value and the carrying value is recosnisod 35 deferred income disclosed under Other
liabilities,

On the date of transition, there is no chunge in the amount of Intaress free koan since the Company has optad for
exemption from retrospective application for fai valuation of such fimancial instr uments. Howaver, the company

has not received any such loans sulsequent to the date of transition,

6.Deferred Tax :

Undor pravious GAAP, deferred tax was accounted using the income statement approach, on the timing differences batween the taxsble
profit and sccounting profits for the period. Under IND AS, defarrad tax s recognized following balance sheet soproach an the temporary
differences between the carrying amount of asset or liability in the barancs theet and Its Lax Base. in addition, varous transitonal
adpustmaents has also lead to recognition of deferred taxes on new porary differ L Minimum Alternate Tax {MAT) paid In accordance
with the tax laws, which gives future economic banefits In the form of adjustment to future income tax llabdlity, Is considered as deferred tax

assat if thare |s convincing avidence that the company will pay normal Income Tax,
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WALLAM TEXTRES (IMITED

Mot ¥ the Finandal Statemants
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Capital Work-in-Progress

Particulars Amount

Carrving value - At Cost/Deemed Cost
As at 1° April, 2016 4,60,36,613

Additions 14,03,97,658

Capitalised during the year 14,15,02 830
As at 31 March, 2017 4,48,31,391

Additions 10,87,60,647

Capitalised during the year 9,45,55,585

As at 31" March, 2018 5,90,36,453

Unallocated Capital Expenditure *

Interest on
Nature of Expenditure Bank Charges Total
Borrowings
at 1" April, 2016 42,411 15,15,700 15,58,111
Additions 57,184 . 57,184
Capitalisec during the year - 15,15,700 15,15,700
[As at 31" March, 2017 93,595 - 99,545
Additions . . =
Capitalised during the year 99,555 99,595
at 31" March, 2018 : x

*Note : The above expenditure was included under capital work In progress in respective yaars
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KALLAM TEXTILES LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements
LOANS Note No.5
Non-Larvant Currant
Particalars Asat Asat Az at As at Aot As at
31" March, 2018 | 31 March, 2017 | 1" April, 2006 | 315t March, 2038 | 31* March, 2007 | 1% 2016
Unsecuted, Considerso Good
a) Securty depoaits with Gove. suthacities and sthars 45,053,545 6,25,00, 565 49118383 - -
| bl Employee reated sdvarnices - - 4 BOSES 814,627 1976845
<} Other advancesy 11,156 10,78,441 297 62y
Total ﬁm % &55’!’! 161 205.0“ 22,71, 998
Nate: 1} N loans sre dus frony directors o othor officars of the campany sither sevarally ol jairtay with ary other person nor
any other loans are due from Firms & which urvy divectar 15 A paetner, o direcror or & member,
OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS Note No.6
Non-Current Clerremn
Particulars Az at As at Asm As ot Asm As ut
317 March, 2038 | 31 March, 2m7 | 1 2018 | 31" 2018 | 837 March, 2047 | 1% aprit, 2016
3] Depesits flecovernbls - - 17390 17,350
b} Gihwe recemvables A5 - -
Total - - - 4,500 17, 17,
OTHER ASSETS
Note No.J
Non-Currant Current
Pariculars As ot As ot As ot As ot #a ut Az at
" 2018 | 31" March, 2017 | 1% Apewt 20108 | 31 tdaret, 2018 | 1% March, 2037 | 1% 2010
Umacured, Considered Good
} Advances for Copital goods 1462075 2,74,50,545% 802,296 - - .
) Aguances to crecitons against supplies . - 12353858 1,40,20,450 B7.28087
©) Prepakd expenses . 33,749,830 21,7406 10,112,539
d} Balances with Statutory Authodting:
Exthe Duzy recoivabie (Tron-1} 24,4395
¥G51 recelvable 16,00,352 - -
CGST Recelvalie 05.58 244 - .
SGST raceivatile 1.59.54,700
VAT Credit . 1,21,759
€] BPCG Tomingd Excne Duty rfund recrivnble - 87,318,820 §6,26,125 6734554
1} Duty draw back rafund recetvabile 1),47.861 32.90,645 2,017
#) terest rebace receivadiie undes TN schemy 5.64.29.593 4L18.01,799 A5 617
i idy recenable fram AP g sant . E 1684,77,796 265,231,396 <
1l Pawer Subidy fereivanle 19,11.24,397 15.24,54 665 £,32 06,459
[ Accrued Intere - 26,22, 782 9,27 459 32.62.607
Totsl &ﬁWJ _w 2,02,296 45,64,26,590 19,56,40,539 16,11.92.349
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KALLAM TEXTILES UMITED

Notes to the Financial Stataments
INVENTORIES Nota No.8
As at As at As at
Pciividers 31" March, 2018 31" Masch, 2017 1" April, 2038

Splmning/Powor:

Raw malncisly 41,43,20,340, 39,71,75.447 ALS500427

Work An pragress 8,78,10,959 8,08,08.273 £12.88593

Finkshad goods 6,54,19,600| 10,26,35,629 7.25,08,156

Stores and spares 3.7549.590 3,2532,023 2,68,29,333

Weaving/Dyeing unit:

Row materals 99,935,200 1,3350978 96,92,750

Vorkin-progress 20,72,69,574 16,77,73 412 #71,25.550

Firished goocle 3,57,75,29: $,00,13.583 7,93,32.042

Stores ard spares 1.28,53,223/ 131 3 1,45,92,145
Total 92|B7.11‘556 87 21,84 599 75,70,79,17%

Nota
(2) The mode of vuluation of mventories bow been stated in slgnifican! acooemting Pobicies.

(17} The cost of #a0d as an

(1) Al the sbaye mventorics are offercd as security

B D fox the
(for the yowr caded 3 sz March, 2017: Ra 1,7727.9328

/ey

year endod 3151 Masch, 20158 wan Rs. | $%.20,92 825/~

i respectof working capital Joars uvailed by the company

fiomn ul) the henke,
(V) Ther ane no invenlorics sxpected 10 be recovered sitsr more than twelve months.
TRADE RECETVABLES Note No.9
Asat As at Asat
ey 31" March, 2018 | 35" Moarch, 2007 | 1™ Ageir, 2015
Unsecured, Considered Good
Cutstanding foc a period sxceeding six tnanths 10,248 569 567 3,52,37.3_11
Others 22,77 85,755 30,97,54,849 20,8750, 4238
RM ilﬁ&’ll Zla‘ﬂﬁ
Unsacured, Considered Doubtiu
Oulslndhlg 3 penad eaceeding six months - 1,13 51% 1,33.51%
Less: Provision far essipctod Credt Losses 1.33.519 1,33819
Total 22,77,96.003 !M‘m 24, 7,

Notes:

) The average cowdit period of trade receivables vares from 1545 days.

b} The abave does not iInclude sy amount gue from related parties.

¢} The campany has uved practical axpedient by camputing the expocted tredt ks fne
daubrii trade cocclvabios Bnsed on the aguing of receivanles, Istory of Facovers bty fram

the ¢ » Cradit worth of the o

T,

) During the year, the compay has recognised loss allowance of fs,Nil unter 1Z months expecied

cregit o model
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KALLAM TEXTILES UMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Note No.10
As at Asat As at
Particulars
31" March, 2018 | 31" March, 2017 | 1% April, 2016
i) Balances with banks in Current accounts
a. In Current accounts 23,75,637 48,27,326 3,52,255
it} Cash on hand 52,24,241 29,87,195 14,37,250
Total 75,99,878 7&1‘,521 17,89,545
Other bank balances Note No.10
As at As at As at
Particulars
31" March, 2018 | 31" March, 2017 | 1" April, 2016
a. Earmarked balances with banks held as margin money
against LC and guarantees falls due for maturity within
12maonths from the date of Balance sheet. 40,00,881 40,70,196 14,83,462
b. Earmarked balances with banks towards
unclaimed dividends 14,00,795 14,58,929 14,78,052
Total 54£1‘676 55,29,125 29,61,514
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VALLAM TEXTILES LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements
SHARE CAPITAL Note No.11
Authorised Share Capital
Equity
Particulars No's Ty
As at 1% April, 2016 1,00,00,000 10,00,00,000
Changas during the year (Refer note) - -
As ot 31 March, 2017 5,00,00,000 10,00,00,000
Changes during the yesr .
As at 31" March, 2018 5,00,00,000 10,00,00,000

Note: During the year 2016-17, the company has sub divided one oquity share
of Rs.10/- each into 5 equity shares of Rs.2/- exch.

Issued Share Capital
Particulars No's INR
As at 1 April, 2016 68,51,100 6,85,11,000
Sub-division of one Equity sheres of * 10/
leach into 5 Equity shares of © 2/ pach 2,74,04,200 -
As at 31 March, 2017 3,47,55,500 6.85,11,000
Bonus shares issued during the year 85,63,875 1,71,27,750
A5 at 31 March, 2018 4,28,15,375 B,56,38,750

Nate: During the year 2016-17, the company has sub divided one equity share
of Rs.10/- each into 5 equity shares of Rs.2/- each.

During the year 2017-18, the company has issued and alloted Nos.85,63,875 of Equity shares as fully paid up bonus shares in the ratio
of 1:4 one (1) equity share far every four (4) equity shares helc by capitalizing retained earnings.

Rights, Preferences and restrictions attached to Equity shares
The Company has only ane class of Equity shares having a face value of Rs.2/- each, Each holder of eguity share is entitled 10 one vote per share an poll
and have one vote on show of hands. in the event of iiquidation of Company, the aquity share holders are eligible to recaive the remaining assets of the
company in proportion to their shareholding after distribution of payments to preferential creditors.

Detalls of share holders holding more than 5% of total number of shares

As at 31" March, 2018 As at 31" March, 2017 As at 1% April, 2016
% out of total % out of total % out of total
Name of the Share Holder hares Shares Shares

a ﬁd number of shares o of ' numbar of shares Noof - number of shares

of the Company of the Company of the Company
Kallam Haranadha Reddy 22,45,625 5.24% 17,596,500 5.24% 3,59,300 5.24%
Gurram Venkats Krishna Reddy 35,13,723 B.21% 27,715,325 B.10% 5,55.065 £.10%
Kallam Agro products and Gils Pvt. Ltd 54,65,043 12.76%| 43,72,03% 12.76%] 8,774,057 12.76%
T. Lakshminaraysn 1565819 459%] 26,56,873 7.76% 7.80,125 11.39%
1,32,90,210 30. 1,16,00,/33 33.87% 25,68,547 37.49%

Out of last five financial years, during the financial year 2017-18, the company has issued bonus shares Nos. 85,563,875 in ratio of 1:4
|2 one equity share for every four shares held by capitalizing part of retained eamings.

None of the shares were alloted in pursuant 1o contract without payment being received In cash.
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KALLAM TEXTILES UIMITED
L 410 the Financial Statemants

OTHER EQUITY Note No.12
Investment Salisidy

el —Ameui ]
(A wt 17 Apeil, 2008 ws v IGRAN 1.47,00,000

ASEIIONN] Il AY il sBiryents
Iweshinent subsicty recerved o fleed asssts trams ferred 16 Deler rud Gove . grant
~ per Ing AS 20 -1 A7 00,000
s #t X" Apelt, 2040 s par tnd AR -
Changes during 1w yee
(As ot 31" Mareh, 2017 .
Changes during the year .
(A3 »t 31" earch, Jats .

Goneral Reserve

[As o0 17 Apeit, 2010 160,36 280
Trarsfnes during the yeas -

A5 ot 31 Mareh, 2017 1,060,968, 585
Traonaburs durtng the ypes
A% ot 52" Mrarch, 2008 |

Rovaluation Surplus
Particutars Armount
[R5 % 17 Apeil, J01% ny por FOAAD -
Add/{Lesx) (v AS adpatments
Measurnment of land at faly vaise an 13t tene sdoption of nd AS €O N1 R 602

(A3 wt 1™ Apefl, 20106 os pur (nd AS LR TR
Chiangrs thaing tha yuar -
[As an 21" March, 2017 50,81, 88,002
Lhanges during the year

= Hommemurwmment of fand ot tab waluw AN AL ST VAN

= Meesurarnnt af buiktings ot falr velus ER72,30,182

- Defurred tax o whown -5
As 0t 82" March, 2018 s
Mo

*) The shhowes amaunt Encludes e GON, 188,602/ Baing mausurernns of Lamd 3t Talr Matue mnd the umlue Tesmecrnts
excers of falr valuw aver 15 Corrying ameunt. The Ny walum el was sdapted for lend o 1ot Uit adaption w

W0dAS 5 L2010 woud the was mparrent VR Sl by
B The al; Ao ther ke wt Ind AS, M lare and sevabsad ity bulldings on 31,3 7014
wrd the dittermncs smoont of Rs. SO8ENLET 7/ [Nt of dafs tes) was ndar Other commprsdinmeiv
monme
Rotalned Earnings
—ECER

#1017 Agril, 2018 - As par IGAAS

0t AN 203
Akt Mmawanvﬁmhhmndmohdmmvmum
Al vwdund proposed bar e FY 2034-1% ta hie arcniunted i the yuse of paymwy

[As w1 1" Apeil 2018 whter S y bnd AS
Ada: ot comprubemive intome for thn ywar transterrad fram statament of prodit sl sy
s Pl umwn-wmammx»wwh-mnmuwm

J D T on DV P Suring the year

An 9t 31" March, 2017
A, Totai et efansive Mot for Ihe pariod tranatered Troe statmenent of Beofi o Soss
Loss Utllised for liswe Of banws shuras
Firel devidend and duidend (stribution tas tor e yesr JO18-1%
(45 st 31 March, 2018

Sumenary of Other Equity
Pertcuh As s Asat
AT vAvech 2018 BT sarch 2027

Bavaliationn vt pius Liv007. 270 a0.n1 00 02
Gonecal Resorve LS00, A 1,80, 50,900
Ratubredd Cormmngs V095,12 129 TIIT RN IT4

d0T626838) 1401512 03]
Haturnof resedvea,
alNeanluatioo wurlus
The Marprhus rmpr h o land by the conrpeery ue ot 1at Agrd, 000 St 18 fair ket valie sod the

svaultant mmm-mnlhﬂﬁuhmummumwnmmwomn

Durting the yuar wnded an 31,3 200K, the CEMDANVY honiing I viesw of chamges # Tair valie of luned, sespusured the Land ar

e value and Bl " BT Tonigh DLhRE COmmgm e eEve NGO,
Dorimng 1 puse wradbed om 31,3, 2070, suts " ©of B ihdi e cont an Ist Apell, 2010, beang the date i
sennaition e od AS the ) vali, odel bor s Buillings and comauguent 1o that dedisiun, walome 8

hesldings at thedr tulr valuw, Th-'mmm Iermmse w2 carrving walue was transbortmd tu Ravaluation gy thruugr
Othey Commpr wheritive o

) Germral reserve
The goneral ruserys b sranutod by way of bandor o part ot the profite Befoce deociaring thidend pursuet 1o he
uamdm»ﬂnmmm-umuwdvmunu Under the C Act, 2008

<] Nwtutnimet Larrsings.
mu—lnnm--nn-mmumwcmmuuwmnmwmumm
disidands peivd 10 vhare holders
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LONG TERM BORROWINGS Note No.13
fom Current Curent
Particulars As at A As ot As at Asat Aamt
31" March, 2018 | 31" 2017 | 1"sedl 016 | 31" 2018 | 31" March, 2017 | 1 aprit, 2016
LA Secared
L Term loans

») Feom Financial msttubons *
) REDA 22.90,670 4859170 52.00.534 18,159,252 16,19.252 28,5899

b} From tenks
1} Andhen flank 55,50, 7R.040 58,18,65,450 42,33,21 853 5.80.00,000 2,34,45,000 34830508
11} IneSian Bunk 1,08,56,4%,000 1.2457,52 209 1.30,54,30,718 10,77,48,798 15,54,19,201 12.08,20,000
1) Bank of Becods A.60,00,000 §,20,00,000 £0,00,000 40,00,000 201,00,000

Total (a)

) Deferred swyemant (aointes

7.50,00,000
72000808} 13z2assone| 1823060318 ] 353353050 | 19Iamasa3 | i6i03aaw7 ]

I \rreraat from Sales tax Celorrrannt 77813 17,09 000 303 %00 12,3126 2wy
bi Othver Loans
1) Luuns frem and thwir mi, 25,10,000 13,10,000 33,10.000 .
#) Laans from Divectors 2,9%.45,000 1.19,0%, 000 1,53,70,000 .
Toeal () 355000 ) Fpamamia | iasmsowo| 303800 1331268 EERTYTY
Total fasb) [0 YT L) VTN M) X0
1) NMYDEL POWEN PLANT:
0 1mEDA
ll'mblmmkhmhmdnmm‘mm&-.m’IMMdWMWIMdmdQlWMMmeﬂ 16 " 817" waneh
caniel et mile M 5 Nele Koode pulll Villags & Kb st Tl Further guarantaed by six di of the ey and Kuarantss of Lwo
Companins.
1) The above loan carry interest @10%
) The abave luan 5 n ol W
201930 T 1615252/ | J020-21: € 16,320,418/

o] Tharw sre mo defauits in repayment of 350Vo kasel.
1) ANDHRA BANK:
&) Turm inar from Andhve Rack l-mwond:hmunmwmmm-uumamlu-mu Al and Bk el oof Kb Dist, Tk

Wi thosa pysets harged 1o IREDA which are waclusively Creuted out nf saicl ioan. The said foan i further by two | thair g it
b} The stowe ison carry witerest @ 12 39K
) The abowm ionn i n Tl L 3

2016200 € 3,11.00,000/

o) There smw no defuults in repaymant of sbove loan.
() SPANNING UNIT :
1) ANDHRA BANK
.Il‘-rmmmmwnkdhnm-nmwmmnwmwmdlmmmmnlm L A ble seswts af i divivion (8l sers ot Chowd \

Guntur Dt ) of the Purthar Byt el In thair persces! capecities.

0] The sbove isans carry interest @ 12.29%, 1150, 11,000, 11,50, 11,25%, 17.25% and 10.8%

€) Thas abeve isans are topwyabie in following menner.

2019-20 € 4,98,00.000/. ; 2000.31: ¢ 9.92,00,000/ . 202322 ® 10,02,67,040/- ; 2022.23, ¢ 7,88,65.500/- . 203534 € 9,28 10.00% : 2038-25 € 2,01,506,508/- ; 2025-26° €
7,56,39,339/-

o} Therw are no defautts in repuymmant of shove nant.

W) INDUAN nane

n) Yoern loane from Wndian Baek wre decurad on pat sessu beals by way of fest charge on ol the
Cuantar Dist.) of the Further g By two cvectoes In their persana! capanties
1) Thar abowe foans carry intersss @0 12,500, 15.50% and 13508,

) Thu sbave bsans see repaystie in following ranne:.

2019-20F 5,00,00,000/+ ; 2020-21: ¥ 6,25,00,000/

d) Thern are no defautts in regayment of above loans

vty of g o (ol enits at Chowd

WL WEAVING UNIT |

1) INOWAN BaANK
l]fmtnuhullnﬂuhuknmlbvm:hmmwh
uf the camgmnry. Furthur guer of try two o In thek p d
b) The abowe loars cotry intarmst ©11.90%, 11 90K, 1140% and 13 10%.
€} The abowe loars am n fol w 3

201%.30: T 16,80,00,000/- : J020-21 ¥ 21,00,00,000/- ; 202122 T 14.90,00,000/+ : 2022/ 2%: € 10,00,00,000/ ; 202434, ¥ 20,50 95900/ wnt 202435 T £,30,00,000/-
&) Thure are ra defuults in ropayment oF above koeme.

“rewis of ing div ot Xunviedu Villsge, Aadend) Mandal, Prakessm Ol

IV, DYEING UNIT ¢

1| BANK OF BARDDA =

o)'.mbu-m!unlolomdo-mwmdhnmmmﬁ-‘-—udmm‘ah—nmnu k Viliage, Aditank Pr Disr. of the
Further guarantsed by two » in their

B] Tha sbave loan carry irtersst @11.30%.

€} The sbove Joan s i I fol

201920 € 2,00.00,000/ , 3050-71 ¥ 2,75,00,000/- and 2071-22 3,15,00,000/-
) Yhete arw na mdeuilts - repeyment aof above lean.

V. INTENREST FREE SALES TAX LOAN |

-)thmm-wmhnumnuhnhmmm;mm 00800 aguregating o € 2,53,75 997/ The said kaan is regpayable within & pesiod of 10/14 yeses

Mmmrdm.mwﬂ-wmmmmd € 2,010,500/~ as.0n 32-08-3010 snd yntire I due for durang M | ywar 2008-19,
Wi, Lowes from p 3, % A their e frum andd wre o &2 zmr the of of teerm loars Searm Danks and shall not be
bin duving the of tarm lnans
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KALLAM TEXTILES LUMITED

Notes to the Financial Statament:
OTHER FINANCIAL UABIUITIES Note No.14
Non-Current Current
Particulars Asat Asat Asat Asat As at As at
31" March, 2018 | 31" March, 2007 | 1% a0ri, 2016 | 31" March, 2018 | 31 March, 2017 1" Apcll, 2015
9 CHvent mehattive of oy farve debt : 5365690  1wamuen| 183580
(Refer note no.13)
b) Creditars for capital goods . 27,856,617 40.59.245 1,03,21377
¢) Interest accrued and due 1,29,51,142 15258972 2.05,80,580
) Unclaimed dividend 14,01,425 14,58,929 14,78.252
@) Employee related payments 2,57,71,830 2,10,00,447 197,88806
1] Other Labilities - 54287470 4,83,50,639 53713872
Totsl - - 35,08,37,434 28,50,43,044 26,92,36,305
PROVISIONS Note No.15
Non-Current Current
Particulars At Asat Arat Asat Asat Asat
31" March, 2018 | 33" March, 2007 | 1" agril, 2016 | 31" Maech, 2008 | 31" March. 2007 | 1 Aprd, 2015
a} Provision for employes benelits
- Groug gratuity (Unfunded) 1,484,140 1,03,49,650 141,210 592,967
Lewee Encashment (Unfunded) 2 39,724 41,322 31,027
Total 1,24,81,13) 1,03,49,550 714,210 632,691 4130 31027
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

a, Defined contribution plans

The Company makes Provident Fund and Employees’ State Insurance Schame cantributions which ace defined contribution plam, for qualifying employees. The Company
recognised Rs, 41,53,321)- (Year ended March 31, 2017: Rs,29,56,720/- } for providant fund contribsions, and R, 7,00.580/- (Year ended March 31, 2017: Ry,
5.37.453(-} towards Employess” State Wsurance Scheme contributions in the Statsment of Profll and Loss.

b, Defined benefit plans

The Company provides 1o tha eliglble employees defined benefly plans in the form of gratuity. The gratuity plan provides for fump sum payment to vested employess at
retiverment, death while in emplopment or an termination of employment of an amoant equivalent to 15 days” salacy paysble for each completed yeur of service. Vesting

occurs apon comipletion of five continuuus years of service. The measuwsement date wved for cetermining retleement benefits for gratuily is March 31,

(1) Balance Sheet
The assets, liablities and surplus / {deficit) position of he defined benefit plans at the Batance Sheet date ware
Particulars Asat Asat As 3t
31" March, 2018 | 11" Mareh, 3917 | 03" Maish 2020
Present value of obiigation 1,30,74,097 10343¢ MALL
Fair Valoe of plan assaty
WLiabBity recognises In the Batance Sheet 1,40, 4097 1008 05| ALY

1
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KALLAM TEXTILES LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements
DEFERRED TAX Note No.16
The following & the analysis of deferred tax (assets)/fabifties presented in the Balance Sheet
Componants
Particulars As ot As Asat
31" March, 2018 | 31" March, 2017 | 1" Apeil, 2026
Uabihty:
Towards depreciation 58,29,97,323 A1,55,90487 38,84,47,126
Asset:
On allowances under Income tax [3.96,11,612) {36,28.015) {25,21,239)
Unabsorbed losses as per income tax Act (11,82,84,899)| (16,23,44,056) 119,92.21.516)
MAT Credit Entitlernont (14,12 94 087) (10,15,77.552) (6,25,64,708)
Total 28.38,06,725 15,80,40.824 12,41,39,662
Movement in Deferrad Tax Assets/Usbilities
Asat Charge/(Credit) in As at Charge/(Credit) in Asat
i 1" Aprll, 2016 | Statement of PRL | 31" March, 2017 | Statement of P&L | 31" March, 2018
Deferred tax Nabilities/(xssets) In relation to:
Depreciation 38.88.47.126 37143361 42,55,90,487 15,74,06,836 S825497323
Expenses allowable undes income tax whan pakd (25,21,239) {11,06,776) (36,28 015) {3,59.83,597) (3.96,11,612)
Unabsorbed Depreciation as per Income Tax Act (19,92,21,516 3,88,77,420 {16,23 .44 095) 4,40,59157 (11,82,84,899)
MAT Credit Entitiement (6,25,64,709 [3,90,12.843) (10,15,77,552) (3,97,16,535) 114,12,94 087)
11,41,39,662 33901162 15,80,80,824 12,57,65,901 28.38,06,725
OTHER UABILITIES Note No.17
Non-Current Current
Particulars As at As 3t Asat As ot As ot A at
31" March, 2018 | 31" March, 2037 | 1" April, 2026 | 33" March, 2012 | 31" Morch, 2017 1" Aprit, 2016
3) Advances recelved from customers agalnst
supplies 10,21,800 19,60,786 18,25,246
b) Statutory Uabilities 42,530,329 4145154 36,69 887
) Teak Plantstion Deposits 58,500 58,500 58,500
d| Deferred government grants (Refer note) 8,74 37 863 9,80,86,3313 9,00,49,460 1,28,45.441 45,1550 42,28,758
Total 5,74,37 863 9,80,86,333 QM 1,81,56,070 1,06,79 880 97,82,392
Note: The company recalved governement grants in the nature of export incentives. During the yaar, the pany received | under EPCG

Schamas and same i utilised against Import of capital goods and capitalised to Proparty, plant and equipment.

The defarred government grant will be recognised In statement of profit and loss over the period in proportion in which depreciation expense on the

assets 5 recognised
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KALLAM TEXTILES LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements

SHORT TERM BORROWINGS Note No.18
As at As at As at
Particula
" 31" March, 2018 | 31" March, 2017 | 1% April, 2016
|A. Secured
Loans repayable on demand :
Working Capital Loans :
a) Cash Credit from banks
i) From Andhra Bank 59,69,13,211 59,93,83,064 59,37,67,924
ii) From Indian Bank 51,15,98,903 52,08,30,478 46,87,59,717
1) From Bank of Baroda 4,94,28,362 - -
b) Buyers Credit Facilites:
I} From Andhra Bank - 1,74,19,468 -
ii) From Indian Bank 1,51,84,023 -
B. Unsecured:
Loans repayble on demand;
From a Director 22,00,000 -
Total 1,16,05,40,476 1,15,28,17,033 1,06,25,27,641
Note:
A.Secured

a) Working Capital Loan from Andhra Bank is secured by way of exclusive charge on current assets of spinning division of

all units at Chowdavaram Village , Guntur Dt. This loan carries interest @ 9.5% ,

b) Working Capital loan from Indian Bank is secured by way of Hypothecation of stocks of cotton, stock in process
Finished Goods, Stares and Spares, Book Debts , Goods in Transit .This loan is also secured by way of Extension of EM/
Secondand exclusive charge by way of EM of Land admeasuring AC 25.72 at Weaving Division of the Company at
kunkupadu and Hypothecation of Plant&Machinery, Spares and Other assets Acquired ( Existing and Future). This Loan

carries interest @ 9% .

c} Working Capital Loan from Bank of Baroda is secured by way of Hypothecation of Stocks and Baok debts and further
secured by way of personal guarantee of 2 Directors .This Loan carries interest @ 12.15%.

B. Unsecured

a} Loan from Directors is Interest free and no specific terms of repayment were defined for the same , hence

categorised as short term |
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Notes to the Finandial Statements

TRADE PAYABLES Note No.19
As at As at As at
Particulars
31" March, 2018 | 31" Macch, 2017 1 2016
Dues to : Small and Micro Enterpeises 146,363 -
Other than Small and Micro Enterprises 8.38,55,838 2,78,98,706 5,60,91,310
Toral | ssassmoal  280asoes] 56091510

Disclosure required under the Micro, Small and Medium Fnterprisas Development Act, 2006,

Based on and to the extant of information obtained and avallable with the Company, with regard to the status of thoir suppliers under
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 {MSMED ACT}, on which the auditors have relied, the disclosure
requirament with regard to the payment made/ cue to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises are given Datow:

- = As at As ot As at
s 31" March, 2028 | 31 march, 2017 | 1" April, 2016
1A tr 15 unpald, Goyond the appointed / agseed day
#t the end of the year -
(a] Principal amount of bills to be pald -
{b) Interesx due there on - -
2. (3} Payment mado to supplers, during the year, but beyond
sppointed / agroed date nterest there on in terms of Sec 16
of the Act -
(b} Interest paid slong with such payments during the yem
[€) Interest due and payabic at the ena of the yoar on such
payments made during the year, -
3. Amount of Interest for the year u/s 16 of the Act accrued ang
remaming un-paic at the end ol the year
& Total amoant of interest u/e 16 of the Act Including that arsing in
earlier years, accrued and remaining unpaid at end of the year, - -
CURRENT INCOME-TAX LIABILITIES {Net) Note No.20
As ot AS at As at
P
SR 31" March, 2018 | 31" March, 2017 | 1* Apeil, 2016
Provision for Income-tax 18,81,60,000 13,81,60,000 #,81,60,000
Lesa: Advance income- tax and TDS 15,69,28 180 2.70,63,272 ©6,95,53.93%
312,313,830 1096728 ___13.8606,065
The current income- tax expense for the year can be r iled to the Ing prefit as follows:
Yoar anded Year ended
Particulars 315t March, 2018 | 313t March, 2017
Profit belore tax 21,06,83,973 21,18,00.447
Enacted Tex Rates in India { Under MAT] 21.3416% 21.3416%]
Computed Tax expense 4,45,63,331 4,52,01,690
Add: Tax effects of expenses which are not deductible in
determining taxable profit
- Depreciation d*fference =
Expensas(net of Income | not deductiole for tax purposes -
- Interest on Income Tax 10.36,669 45,94,784
Tax on Ind AS sdjustments - <1,96,474
Excess provision of income tax relating lo earlier years 26,739 -
Current Tan Provision (A) 4,60,26,739 5,00,00,000
Inerease of Ouferred tax liabibty on sccount of FHixed Assets 1%,74,06,836 3.71.43,361
Increase of Deferved tax Assel on account of expenses and losses 80, 75,600 1,57,70,643
MAT Credit Entitlement -3,97,16,535 3,90,12,643
Deferred Tax Charge { Including Charge 1o OCI) (B) 12,57.65,901 3,39,01,162
Total Tax Expense (ArB) 17.17,92,640 £,39,01,162
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KALLAM TEXTILES LIMITED

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS Note No.21
Year ended Year ended
PARTICULA
- o 21" March, 2038 | 31" March, 2017
Kevenue from Opurstiong
Sale of goods 3,10,71,21.01% 2,86,81,12 822
Other Operating Revenue
lob work charges 3,190 164573
Export Incentive 3, B9,86,527 1.80,39,533
!gzluagaz 63.17,329
R from O inciude:
PARTICU Zaxr ancled diet March, 2018 Yearended 317 March, 2017
LARS |
QIy(l-ﬂ.l Revenus Oryllgs) Revenuw
i) Cotton Yarn 64,260,493 1,51,08,97.417 59,53.8917 1,38,84.78,419
Wp OE Yam 60,265,546 78,42,55,542 56,70,818 05,37,29,286
1) Cottor Waste 2353Nn 68,03,459 2,46,335 98,41.216
v} OF Waste 10,580,815 1,74,97,843 925,247 1,43,18,866
v) Catton Seed 92,291,564 16,03,54,101 54,90,059 15,1305 433
vi) Cotton Lint . - 83,604 1,12,41,280
wil) Damagod Kappas 52,900 2,18,213 - -
viii) Sale of Gray Fabric (Mtrs) 246,12 847 1,53,99,60,020 253,84 238 1.52,64,34 706
Ix) Ssle of Fabric Waste 1,68 248 59,013,630 1.56,601 A2.53,183
x) Sale of Dyed Faoric {Mtrs) 33,421,032 31,73,05,733 29,78,595 26,77,59,165
X1} Sale of Dyed Yarn (Kgs) 5,598,820 20,79,95,581 2,32,310 7,8545173
i) Sa'e of cut plecos cioth and shirts - 7.68,299 - 546,129
Xili) Gray Yorn 7,33,538 17,86,76,908 - -
wv) Sate of Power [KWH) 24,53,066 1,16,57,377 15,71,728 73,95,506
4,74,22 94,123 4,11,38,48,562
Less Inter divisionsl transfors
Catton Yarn 42,842,926 1,10,95,57,267 4332011 L09.07,40,136
OE yam 10,53,411 14,31,56,005 6,10,460 7.69,20,131
Dyed yarn 5,54,920 20,37,52,928 2,305, 7,80,75,413
Gray Yarm 7,323,538 17,86,76,908 - -
1,63,51,73,108 L.24,57,35,700
TOTAL !.10,71.2}‘915 2,86,81,12,822
OTHER INCOME Note No.22
Yanur ended Year anded
P
im gl 31" March, 2018 | 31" March, 2017
Intorest from banks and others (ot amortised cost 42,73,465 32.24,480
Defarred Gowt, grants credited back 45,091,242 44,053,796
Crodit Beances Written back 52,633 23,847
Profit oo sale of assets - 143,785
Gain on exchange Muctuations 551,577
Macelaneous recespts 18,47 811 2325785
ToTAL KETRZL) YT ¥ YT
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COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED Note No.23
Year ended Yeoar anded
PARTICULA
g 31" March, 2018 | 317 March, 2017
Opening Stock 41,05,26,421 42,52,02177
Add: Purchase of Raw Materis) 1,71,66,321,724 1,56,54,62.166
2,12,71,58,145 1,99,06,65,343
Less < Closing Stock 41,43 13,542 41,05,26,4721
TOTAL 1, é!,ﬂ,m 1,58,01,38,922
PURCHASE OF STOCK-IN-TRADE Note No.24
Yoar ended Year ended
PARTICULARS 31st March, 2018 31" march, 2017
Quy(Kgs) Amourit Qty(Xgs) Amount
OF yvam > = v v
TOTAL - -
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CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF WORK -IN- PROGRESS Note No.25
Yesr ended Year ended
PARTICULA
. 31" March, 2018 | 317 March, 2017
Ogening woek:In-progres: 24,48 99,557 13,85,14,283
Opening Finished goods 16,35, 77,558 15,18,41,198
40,84,77,115 29,03,55,481
Closing work-In-progress 29,57,80,513 24,38,99.557
Closing Finisked goods 15,11,94,7461 16,35,77,558
44,69,75,104 40,84,77,115
Increase in Inventories 3,84,98,189 11,81,21,634
EMPLOYTE RENEFIT EXPENSES Note No.26
Yoar anded Yeur ended
PARTICULARS
21" March, 2018 | 31" March, 2017
Salaries and Wages 16,91, 80 914 16,93,06,571
Cantribution to provident and other fund: 48,54 301 14,%3,173
S1all welfare expenses 13,38 804 19,148,929
Contnbution towsrds group gratuity 32,62 858 22,45,188
TOTAL 20,86.36 897 18,04,95,661
FINANCE COSTS Note No.27
Year ended Year anced
PARTICULARS
31" march, 2018 | 31 March, 2017
interest pald 1o banks and othen { At Amaortised Cost | 36,51,45 966 36,90,17,259
Otber Borrowing Cods 55,64,533 83,589,168
Total interest Cost 37,11,10,499 37,74,06,427
Less: Subsdy under TUF Schome 6,596,40,963 7,42,35,008
Interest subsidy from AP Governimen| 8,26,36,400 43304626
TOTAL 21,88,33,106 21,98.66,793
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DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION Note No.28
Year anded Year ended
PARTICULARS
31" March, 2038 | 31" March, 2017
Deprecistion and Amartization 14,19.46,320 13.64 89,377
TOTAL ialxi,cs,m 13, 77
OTHER EXPENSES Notwa No.29
Yoo ended Year anded
PARTICULARS
31" March, 2038 | 31" March, 2017

Consumption of Stores and Spares 17,92,48222 19,26,54 365
Processing charges pad 26,55,720 2,71.555
Powest ond Fuel [Net of power subsidy) 14.47,29,085 32.82,27 OB2
Repairs and Maintenance: Buildings 131, 58,036 22,01,499
tMachinery 5,50,02,614 b.43.96,636
Others 10,70,606 41,080
Inssrance 40,23,651 3964, 7%
Loading and Unloading < harges 3,34,77,707 2,69,18,797
Commission on Sales 3,07,38.838 2,54,65.691
Rents - Office 1,33,910 47 800
Ratems and taxes 76.56,767 47,44, 620

Payments 16 auditors
- Statutory sudit 2.75,000 258750
Tan audit and taation mattves 50,000 64,500

Tawards cortication and other matters -

- Cost aucit 30,000 34,500
Directors Sitting Fee 4,50,000 705,198
Donations 35,000 26,116
CSR expeases 29,36,041 3274929
Miscellangous axpanses 2.89,58,078 28116203
Lass on sale of assers 4,64,465 342081
Debit Balances writtenaft 8,180 10,866

TOTAL $5,33,02,560 68,57,71,056
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KALLAM SPINNING MILLS LIMITED,
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS: (Amount in Rs.)
30. CIF VALUE OF IMPORTS MADE DURING THE YEAR: Yeur ended Year cnded
31-03-2018 31-03-2017
i) Stores & Spares 2.64,06,803 221, 10,180
it} Capital goods 1,27,92,938 33,32,545

31. COMPARISION BETWEEN CONSUMPTION OF IMPORTED AND INDIGENOUS RAW MATERIALS
SPARES AND COMPONENTS DURING THE YEAR:

Year ended %  Year ended Yo

31-03-2018 31-03-2017
a2) Raw material;
Imported 2,32,19.631 1.36 5.73.54,121  3.63
Indigenous 167,96,24,972  98.64 152.27.84,801 9637
Total 170,28,44,603 100 158,01.38,922 100
b) Spares & Compuonents:
Imported 2,03.07.805 11.33 275,153,168 14.28
Indigenous 158940417 88.67 16,51,41,197 85.72
Total 17,92,48,.222 100 19,26,54,365 100

32. EXPENDITURE INCURRED IN FOREIGN CURRENCY DURING THE YEAR:

Year ended Year ended
31-03-2018 31-03-2017
a) Commission On Yarmn & Fabric Sales 39,64,067 55,53,580
b) Foreign Travel 7,38,687 4,84,590
33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES NOT PROVIDED FOR: As at As at
31-03-2018 31-03-2017
4) Estimated amounts of contracts remaiming to be
Executed on Capital accounts, and not provided for 6,45,300 0. 00
b) State levies on Electricity 37,20,543 99,67.810
¢} Income-~tax 0.00 15,21,758
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KALLAM SPINNING MILLS LIMITED,
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS

34. Balances in personal accounts of various parties are subject to confirmation by and reconciliation with

the said parties.

35. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES:
A) List of Related Parties:

1) Key Managerial Personnel:

1. P.Venkateswara Reddy, Managing Director

2. G.V Krishna Reddy, Joint Managing Director

3. M.V.Subba Reddy, Whole Time Director

2) Relatives of Key managerial Personnel;

I. Kallam Venkata Subbayamma

2, Polun Siva Nagendramma
3. Movva Uma Sankara Reddy
4. Poluri Govardhana Reddy

5. Poluri Venugopal Reddy

6. Gurram Nitin

7. Movva Kavitha

8. M.Srinvivasa Nagarjuna Reddy

9. M.Murali Sairam Krishns Reddy

Sister of P.Venkateswara Reddy

Wife of P.Venkateswara Reddy

Brother of MLV, Subba Reddy

Son of P.Venkateswara Reddy

Son of P.Venkateswara Reddy

Son of G.V.Krishna Reddy

Wife of M. V. Subba Reddy

Son of M.V.Subba Reddy

Son of M.V.Subba Reddy

3) Companies controlled by Key managerial personnel/Relative of Key Managerial Personnel;

1. Kallam Agro products & Qils Private Limited, Guntur

2. Kallam Brothers Cottons Pyt Lid, Guntur

B) Transactions with the related parties:

{(Amount in Rs.)
Nature of Transaction Key Relative of Key | Companies controlled by
Managerial key Managerial
personnel personnel/Relative of Key
Managerial personnel
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KALLAM SPINNING MILLS LIMITED,

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS

I. Details of T'ransaction:
a. Remuneration Paid:

b.

1. P.Venkateswara Reddy, MD
2. 3.V .Krishna Reddy, TMD
3. M.V.Subba Reddy, WTD

Total

Salary paid:
P. Govardban Reddy
M. Srinivas Nagarjuna Reddy

c. Sale of Goods and Services:
1. Kallam Brothers Cottons Pvt Ltd- Testing & Sale of Fabric

2. Kallam Agro products and Oils Pvt. Ltd Seed Sales

d. Purchases of Goods and Services:

B

49,33,911
49,29,920
10,35,417

1,08,99.248

4,99.845
191,132

1. Kallam Brothers Cottons Pvt Ltd- Lint & Waste purchase

1L Balance as at 31-03-2018:
a) Share Capital of the Company held by;

P Venkateswara Reddy, MD

2. G.V.Krishna Reddy, IMD
3.

M.V Subba Reddy, WTD

Total

. K.Venkata Subbayamma Sister of

P.Venkateswars Reddy

. P.Siva Nagendramma, W/o

P_Venkatcswara Reddy

. P.Govardhan Reddy, S/o

P.Venkateswara Reddy

. M, Uma Sankar Reddy, Brother of

M.V.Subba Reddy

- P.Venugopal Reddy, Sfo

P.Venkateswara Reddy

. G.Nitin, S/o

G.V Krishna Reddy

. Movva Kavitha, W/o

M.V.Subba Reddy

. M.Srinvivasa Nagarjuna Reddy S'o

M.V.Subba Reddy

23,02,500
70,27,446
8,56,250

1,01,86,196
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14.65,500

3,75,000

21,86.910

13,35.300

19,42,366

14,79,290
1,55,000

2,18,750

2,66,396
10,32,54,115
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KALLAM SPINNING MILLS LIMITED,
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS

9. M. Murili Sairam Krishna Reddy S/o 1,25,000
M, V.Subba Reddy
Total 92,83,116
1. Kallam Agro Products and Oils Pvt Lid Guntur 1,09,30,086
b) Unsccured loans from:
1. P.Venkateswara Reddy, MD 1,71,55,000
2. G.V . Krishna Reddy, J]MD 83.40,000
3. MLV.Subba Reddy, WTD 38,50,000
Total 2.95,45,000
1. P.Siva Nagendramma 10,000
Total 10,000

¢) Amount Due to:

1. P.Venkateswara Reddy, MD 22,61,107
2. G.V Krishna Reddy, TMD 22.61,107
3. M.V.Subba Reddy, WTD 1,85.440

Total 47,07,654

————————

d)Trade dues from:

1. Kallam Brothers cottans pvt Ltd., Guntur 36,992
2. Kallam Agro Products and Oils pvt Lid., Guntur 83,37.109
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KALLAM SPINNING MILLS LIMITED,
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS

36. Segment Information:
(Amount in Lacs)
Particulars Year 2017-18 Year 2016-17
Segment Revenue:
1. Spinning 24,782.25 22,266.72
2. Weaving 18654.10 18,010.71
3. Dyeing 3869.91 1002 83
3. Power 116.67 73.95
47.423.03 41,444.21
Less: Inter segment Revenue 16351.72 12,763.08
Net Revenue from Operation 3107121 28,681.13
Segment Results (Profit before Tax and Interest)
1. Spinning 2655.36 2861.23
2. Weaving 1618.51 1498.99
3. Dyeing 33.84 17.87
3. Power -12.55 -61.41
4,295.16 4,316.68
Less: Interest (net) 2,188.33 2.198.67
Net Profit Before Tax 2,106.83 2,118.00
Capital Employed:
(Segment Assets-Segment Liahilitics)
1. Spinning 25460.89 22,986.86
2. Weaving 15883.63 12324.79
3. Dyeing 1270.65 852.04
4. Power 1432.32 1,647.31
Total 44047.49 37.811.00
Capital Expenditure:
1. Spinning 611.10 661.07
2. Weaving 42583 738.73
3. Power 246
4. Dyeing 1.71

124



00E'98°90'TT'Z | 168'c8°08'22'7 | £00'90°69°01°z | 00e'98'90' 11’z | 169'e0°08'z2'2 | Lp0"00%69°0T'Z SB{yjge)) (230
{8V'ER'BS'0T | ZET'82'T0'6 PEFOLTL'S LBVER'RSOT ETBTI06 PEV'OLTL'S setyiqey| (eoueuly 0 (I}
ET8'Z0'8Y'00'T | 6S9'SE'AL'ET'T | €95°SE'L6'00'T | €18°20'8v'00'7 | 655'sS6L'eTT | E95'SE L6002 (sBuimossog uuay Buo jo
SINUMEL 1 LND Bupn|auy) sButmoniog ()

OWE J€
TEWige]) [epueug
L9E0T'PT'S EEE'EL VY9 90922059 L9E°0T'VT'S EEE'ET' VY9 809'72'05°9 s)asse (e3o)
LI6'T6'ET'S Ev6'50't'e 90T'BI'05"9 LIGTE'ET'S E76'50'7H'9 901'81°05°9 SIUBAPE pue sueo? (|l)
06E'LT 06E'LT 005"y 06E'LL 06E'LT 005t 51955€ [epueuy 3030 (1)
507 PasTIOWY 18 painseapy
[EDUEU

910z ‘dv T [£T0Z ‘waew TE|STOZ ‘Yew 16| 9oz ‘mdy T | L10Z ‘paew T€ | 8T0Z ‘e 1€
e sy sy 185y sy ® sy sy sie|moiued
anjEA Jje4 anjea Buidue)

"SM0jj0} 52 3.8 9TOZ ‘Y 1 PUe LT0Z ‘WPIRI ,TE' STOZ 2Ie , TE 1€ S€ saoBated Aq Sjuawn.su| [epueuy JO anjea Jiej pue siunowe BujAue) au)

0p :3j0N

USWNSUT [EPUETT] 6 S3i07a1E)

125



"pRuasad 5183 Y1 40 OB U] eI 10U S| 1500 PaSUOWE JE paInseall
Anuanbasgns saiyjjiqel [erousuy pue s1asse [eoueuy JAYI0 ‘sBuIMo.LOG Jueq Jo SanjEA J1ej pue siunowe JujAuied Uaamag S3UBIALIQ
DMy WLIS1 Uoys JI3y} 40 35neasq anjen Jiej ay) aewnosdde sjunowe SuiAue Jiay) 3snedaq angea Burkised 18 sBuMoLIOog waa) Loys pue
sa|qeded ape.) ‘53|QeA@I21 3peL) ‘S33ue|Eq YUBQ PO 'QUIBAIND3 YSEI PUE YSED SE YINS SUBWNASUL [BINUEUY PISOSI Sely Auedwiod ay|

"Polsad Buiuodd) YIes Jo pus a4 18 aNeA I 3y | pRINSeaW e 51asse lepueuy) s Auedwo?) ay) o awos
siseq BuLLINDAS & UC BN[EA JIB) JE PAINSEILL 318 18yl SINNIGR) [EDURLY PUE S13SSE [RouRLY S Aupdiwo) BY3 JO anjen Jjey
‘SIAU|IGEY| POUELL PUE S3AS5E |2QURLI| SNOURA JO S3N(2A JIE) Saujiwsalap Auedwo) sy MOY JN0Ge uoREWLIOJU| S3pInc)d J10U iy

"EIEP 13YJEW 3|qeAIFSG0 UO PASE 10U Aue YIJum sindu) i [ann

PuE fsIndu) T A7 UBYL SO ‘Sindu; 1 pew 3qRAISGO ARI2.IpUL J0 ARdaug 12 jAd)
1L IARDE UR U] SIUBWINIISY] PAYIUBP] 10} S20Ud PIIOND) IT (A

1$MO||0) 58 3R pasn sauod3ied sy

[siuawainseaw £ @As7] sindu; alqearasgoun o) Ajoud
1IN0 pUe [uawanseaw T [2n21] SNIIGRIF S0 SISSE PalyIIuaP| Joj S1aseu anfide ui sadud pajonb o) Aoud 1saydiy ay3 san8 Ayesay ayl anbiuyasy

uopen|ea ay ui pasn sindu) 3yt uo Bujpuadap sap03313 3aAR 0JU) PILISSE)) UDIQ ALY 310U BAOQE 0) PALIGEI §7 SIUIUNIISY| [BRUBUL |0 INRA IRy Y]

910N KGETET3[q SneA 1]

126



'SIISSE [euRUY JO SS2p
42ea jo anjea Burhued ay) s1 9107 ‘T iy pue £107 T€ YISeW ‘8107 "TE Y2UR 18 58 )51 MPR23 JO Unsodxa wnwixew s Auedwo?) 3y

" S{ueq Wi sysodap Auow uidrew pue S1ua|eAINba YSED PUB YSeD Ul 3INS0aX3 SUIRYUIBW Auedwoy ayy

S1sse |eueuy 2240

‘51asse
[B1oUBUY 40 SSE 3{3UIS @ 3q 03 PUIPISUOD 1€ Sa|eAII3) IPRI] ‘DU ‘MO 5| ¥SL 1P JeYY Si SaIqeAIadas BRI JO AduaLiadxa [e03sIY uQ

'S15EQ A|YIUOW e UO Y NeJap Joj PAsSISSe PUE PIM3IAAL Bse S9|qeAlEIN
apen ||y 3s1aMp pue 3die| Sulag aseq JawoIsna s AuRdwoy o} anp ‘PANWNK e SIGENRII 3pes3 03 10adsas Y YSL JPas JO LOjIRIUIU0)
SIBUW0ISND LWOY SI|qRA|3FY

‘A{BUIp2000R 135 BJR SHWI| §SH ENPIAIPY] 'S31qeAR2D1 1UN0IIe
34} jo SujaBe pue S1GaP PEq [EIVOIEY JO SISAIEUE PUE SPUB)] JILUOUGIB WD LIND ‘U0IpUOD [eURLY A UNOIE oyl Bupye) ‘S1aweisna Jo AujgelR) [EPUEY
3y sassasse Ajjeaipouad Auedwiod a1 ‘s aBeuew o vonedqo [enyeNUo) 1133w 0) Steg Jatuoisn2 e ji Auedwo?) 8y) 03 SSOf [RIDUBUY J0 Y51 341 S ¥5U J1pa)

5IH Upe) Y

‘Auedwo) au} o s101380Q Jo pIeog a3 2J0jaq pasejd

os{e ae suone BugeSiu pue sysy Asy 3y ‘ABuipsoade Aagod ay3 uj saduey ayy 1581533 pue SUDRIPU0d J3)Y1ewW U sadueyd Ay MaIA Ajledipoliad
'5{0:3u0) pue syl ysia ajeudosdde Joyuow pue 13s 0) ‘Auedwor) ag) Ag Pade) sys|d aly) ashjeue pue Ayjuapl 0} paysnqelsa e sapod Juawadeueiu
35U s Auediwo) ay| yiomawey wawaSeuew ysu 5 Auedwo? 33 Buiwanod pue Buiysy|gessa Joj Aljiqisuodsal (21340 ay) sey JuawaSeuew Jojuas

s Auedwo) 8y | “ysu Asuanina uBiaio) pue ysu Aypinb| s upasd Ajaweu sysu jepueuy jo Aauea e 03 pasodxa aie Saiade ssauisng s Auedwe) 3y

'$3|qea1@dal Jay)o pue apes) 'sjuajeanba ysed
pue ysed jo fuew ssudwos siasse epueuy Auedwo ay sajqeded J3yi0 pue sajgeded apen ‘shuimo.iog jo Ajutew asudwo sanyigey| [epury Auedwo) ayy

Juawaleuep) ysiy |epuLY
(A0

127



‘51580 Aep 0} Aep e U0 Sana|qEY ROUBLY 3L NAIIS 0) SPUNY AL Saproud salpagoe Fupesado woy moy

4SD " 9T0Z {140 ISTO UO PUR £107 “TE WK ‘ BTOZ ‘TE Y24eW papua seak a3 1noyBnong aauejeq ysed aausod e yum ‘A8ajens Apindij snoanes e paujejuew
Aueduso) a1 "SYeq Yl SIY 1P3D Pafieas ey Auedwo) 3u) ‘OSTY "IND LBYM SaIIGE]| SI1 139 03 APIADY] WRIKNS dney sheme s 1) 38y ‘Hqissod

) se jey se ‘Bupnsua Ag ysu Aupinb|| syl saBevew Aupdwon sy "siuawainbal 1ad se asn J0) 3qe(ieAe 3Je Spunj 1ey3 3Unsua pue APINDI| JUIPRNS LIBILIEW
#. 0351 s iwaBeuew ysur Aypinbi] 50 aniaaiqo 3y “anp awodag Asy) se suoneBqo FeRURLY ) 19aw 03 2GR 3G 30U (1M Auzdwo) SULIEYI N1 A2 S| ysk Aypinbn

w51 Aupinbp 5

“Paya apsoddo 1nq jenba
UE 01 P3f 3ARY PINOM SARUSLINI 353U JsuleBe Y| ay3 Jo Tujuaneam %S ¥ ( SSOT -/EH0'EZ'ET'SY 1LT-9T0Z) SSOT PUB 11§0Jd JO WAWNEIS 3y} Ul ured
-/866'60'8€E "Sy|euonippe ue Aiewixosdde 0} pa) ansy pinosm pasodxa 5| Auedwo) 3y) yaIym 01 $8RUBLND Az 1sujede Y| 241 Jo SuiuayiBuans %S v

§ISK[EUE KijAT35UBS ASUaLINg usjaio]
- | I8 [ SZZOR'ET'T | 689'ST'ii | 196'96'v2 | 05 'ETE9'L {sanunqen) / siassy 3oy
TIT86T ZL6'T00T 689°ST'Ty | 6£2'60'00'c | 959269 s8|qeAey J3ya0 pue apes]
* Saingen
- - . = Sysjeanbl ysed pue yse)
= . LBT'VR'ETT RLTTLSTT | Z6I'ST0LYL SA)qeARDY 3pesL
| SISy

3 4HD S iH $ . $ siemnseq

9T0Z'90'10 Lo sy LIOT'E0'TE uO sy B10L°E0'LE VO SY

("sy w1 Syunowy | | SM0Jj0) 52 e SWBY AIRJAUCW PajeuIIoUap AdUaLInd uBiauof s Auedwod ay) jo siunowe Suikues sy

5 1ENPIS3 [RUIANEW OU LM Auedwio) ayy
3Aea| 0} 1 s Aualind Jo Wwawadeuew 01 Yoeasdde s Auedwon 343 J0 wie ay| sy pagquasad uiim seansodxa Auauiny safeuew Auedwo) au

“¥51 Aduauna 3suiede aBpay o) 1aeuod aBueyaxa piemi0} Aue DUl paJalud Jou sey Auedwo) ay|
390N, UBPUI UBY) J3Y10 SIIUSLINT U1 PIILUILOUIP I8 YDIyM SALUIGE] PUE SIISSE SNOLIEA J0 JUNDIIE UO 3SUIE Led saunsodx] “s3res Adualind uSialo)
Ul s3dueya 01 3N AENINY |1/ 3NSOUXS UB JO SMOJJYSED 21NIN4 10 anjeA 11y 343 18y ¥S 243 5t ysu Aduawind uHasog

wawafeuew ysu Auauny ullaio4 ‘g

128



66T 99't aeys Jad Suiuses painy|p pue Jseg
SBY'GE'BL'ZT | pSS6Z'LAST $507 pUe 104d JO TUDWANRIS Jad SE 10 3J0J2q XET 1R 1401d 18N
SLE'GT'STY | SLE's1'sey (se3 3527 up anss)|
SN0 1504 | S43 PaYNJIQ pue Jjseq Bue|ndje) 10 J01EU|WOUSP SE PASN SaJEYS JO SqUINY 3BesIAe PaIYSPM 12301
00S'SS2V'E | SLE'6T'RT'Y 4034 341 40 PUS YT 18 SEIEYS JO Jaquinu a8RsaAe PAINBiaM [B10)
- - Jeah ay) Buunp Aynba vy a8usy)
- §18'€9's8 #N5%) SNUOE JO JUNCIIE L0 FSEIU|
0at'vo'L'e . 4R /7'SY OF 14383 - /0T “SY JO SAURYS JO UOKEIZAUGY uodn Saseys may
DOT'TS'89 005'SSTY'E Jeak oy jo BujuuiBaq ayl 1e saleys jo oN
aeys Jad Bujuse3 panga pue siseg T
L1-910Z 81-L102 SIefOfUed | ON'(S
£b: 20N ‘aseys Jad sBujuses Jo uonejndje)
ananls jende sy ysnfpe ‘Aessacau ¢ 1o ‘vjejuew 0 JapIo W sdays
ateudoadde axel Aew Auedwo) sy "S:ap10uaseys 01 SPUIPIMP JO [3A3] 3Y) Se |AM 2 [=1(deD UO UINYa 341 520710 SI0J22U( JO PIROR FY) PUE uBwaleuepy ay|
0UAPLYUOD
194421 pue SI0Ypan ‘J0jsanuy uielusew 03 s 05 AND3 210} UO SND0J @ Yim Spasu Aep-o1-hep JiBalesss $)t Jo WawSpni s,Juawafeur iy uo paseq s) Auedliod
34 JU SIMINAS LD 34| “SIapIoyRIeYS 03 Swingas asrundo oF pue wiaduod Buiod e se anuauwos o) Auyige sy psendajes 03 se os jeisden s saBeurw Avedwo) ay|
‘uslwadevew [ended s Auedwo) jo asedsnd ay Joj pasapisuod ase Aynba ylo pue endes aseus Aunbg
wawaBeueyy jende) g

€1 "0U 10N Japun uaald uaag sey ussiied Alinyel sy; “syuea woly sBuimaLIog j0 353 uj

'SIIEP AN 343 U|yiw SUONEB(Q0 $11 153 01 Bqe 5| Auedwad By U JESA U0 UIYLM 2np S|jE} Sapgeked 3pe 0 3Np SJUNOWeE 3yl |y

DIEP AN Sy puokRg BIVENILSI 10§ Bu|puSd SeM JUNDWE 0U puk JuaLARCA 4O 3iNPaLIS 343 Jad sk sBuimoLioq ) Suakedas si Auedwos sy

'SHSOO3P U Fulieaq 15B1a3U1 U PalsRAL S| 'AUE §) SS3R AUR pue (pasmbal usixs 243 01) Siuajeamba

USEI PUE YSEI SE PAUIEY3I ST *SIaWaIIND3) jeuniielado Jsyio pue wawadeuew jended Bupjiom 10§ paanbas Junowe @) aroge pue Jano ‘pajelaual yses
snydins wusi-uoys Auy spaau [euonelade 1aaw o) siseq S108-uo e Lo yses JUIPNS SBY 11 2INSUS 61 SISIRI05 FUL0) 33 sufeew Apeindas Auedwios 3yz

129



KALLAM SPINNING MILLS LIMITED,
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS

Depreciation:
1. Spinning 618.47 587.34
2, Weaving 663.77 640.46
3, Dyeing 63.34 6197
4. Power 73.87 7512
37. Dividend:

The Board of directors at its meeting held on 28.05.2018 have recommended a dividend Rs. 0,20/ share

of face value of Rs. 2/- each (ie 10% dividend) for the financial year ended 31.03.2018. The above subject

to approval at the ensuing Annual gemeral meeting of the compuany and hence not recognised as a

liability.
38. Corporate Social Responsibilities:

31.03.18 31.03.2017
Amount required to spent during the yvear 28,18,112 28,28,957
Amount actaally spent 29,36,681 32,74,929
Short Fall NIL NIL

39.Forelan exchange earnings on exports during the year calculated on FOB basis Rs.89,04,12,531(Previous

year Rs. 41,79,26,429.
44. General: Previous year figures have been regrouped where ever necessary.
45. Paise have been rounded off to the nearest rupee.

As per our report of even date

For CHEVUTURI ASSOCIATES., For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn no. 0006325

RAGHUNADHA RAO.BALINEN]I P.VENKATESWARA REDDY

Partner Managing Director
Membership No: 028105

Place : Guntur
Datc ; 28.05.2018

G.V. KRISHNA REDDY
Joint Managing Dirccior,

Place : Guntur
Date : 28-05-2018
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LIMITED REVIEW REPORT FOR QUARTER AND HALF YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Chevuturi Associates
Chartered Accountants

AUDIT . VIEW REPORT Vv INT FINAN S

Review Report to
The Board of Directors
KALLAM TEXTILES LIMITED

We have reviewed the accompanying statement of unaudited financial results of KALLAM TEXTILES LIMITED
(‘the company’) for the quarter ended 30™ September, 2018 (the ‘Statement’) being submitted by the company
pursuant to the requirements of Regulation 33 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, read with SEBI circular No.CIR/CFD/FAC/62/2016 dt.5" July, 2016. This statement is the
responsibility of the Company’s Management and has been approved by the Board of Directors at their meeting
held on 2™ November, 2018, This statement has been prepared In accordance with the recognition and
measurement principles lald down in the Indian Accounting Standard 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”
prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant rules issued thereunder and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India. Our responsibllity is to issue a report on the Statement based
on our review,

We conducted our review in accordance with the Standard on Review Engagement (SRE) 2410, Review of
Interim Financial Information performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. This standard requires that we plan and perform the review to obtain moderate
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. A review is limited primarily
to inquiries of company personnel and analytical procedures applied to financial data and thus provides less
assurance than an audit. We have not performed an audit and accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion,

Based on our review conducted as above, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the
accompanying statement of unaudited financial results prepared In accordance with recognition and
measurement principles laid down In the applicable Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133
of the Companles Act, 2013, read with relevant rules issued thereunder and other recognized accounting
practices and policies has not disclosed the information required to be disclosed in terms of Regulation 33 of the
SEB! (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with SEBI circular
No.CIR/CFD/FAC/62/2016 dt.5" July, 2016 including the manner In which it Is to be disclosed, or that it contains
any material misstatement.

Place: Guntur
Date: 2,11.2018

For Chevuturi Associates
Chartered Accountants

Fjrm Regn. No. 0006325
Mo, 0006328 Vis %ﬂ‘ b '(,4@ —
Rag! v

adha Rao Balineni—
Partner
Membership Number: 028105

VIAYAWADA-2
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KALLAM TEXTILES LIMITED

(Formerly Known as Kallam Spinning Mills Limited)
Statement of assets and Liabllities as at 30th September, 2018

As at As at 31st
Particulars 30th Sept. 2018 March,2018
(Un Audited) (Audited)
ASSETS
1 Non-Current Assets
(a) |Property, Plant and Equipment 41,013 41569
(b) |Capital Work-Iin-progress 709 590
(¢) |Financial Assets
(1) Loans 646 645
(ii)Other financial assets -
(d) |Other Non-current Assets 9 15
Total Non-Current assets 42,376 42,818
2 Current Assets
(a) |Inventories 8,146 9287
(b) |Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivables 2,467 2278
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 112 76
(iil) Other Bank balances 161 54
(iv) Loans 8 5
(v) Other financial assets - -
{¢) |Other Current assets 5,163 4,564
Total Current assets 16,057 16,264
Total Assets 58,4324 59,083
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Equity
(a) |Equity Share Capital 856 856
(b) |Other Equity 20,834 20376
21,690 21,232
Liabilities
2 Non-current liabilities
{(a) |Financial Liabllities
(i) Long-term borrowings 16,461 17561
(ii) Other financlal liabllities =
{b) |Provisions 138 125
(c ) |Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 2,999 2838
(d} |Other non-current liabilities 855 874
Total Non-current liabilities 20,454 21,398
3 Current liabllities
(a) |Financial Liabilities
(1) Short-term borrowings 10,941 11606
(i) Trade payables 1,480 839
(iii) Othear financial liabilities 3,519 3508
(b) JOther current liabilities 199 182
(c ) |Provisions 6 6
(d) |Current tax Liabilities (Net) 138 312
Total Current liabllities 16,290 16,453
Total Liabilities 36,744 37,851
Total Equity and Liabilities 58,434 59,083
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KALLAM TEXTILES LIMITED
(Formerly Known as Kallam Spinning Mills Limited)

CIN : L18100AP1992PLC013860 & GSTIN: 37TAAACKI36IMI1ZY
Chowdavaram, GUNTUR - 522 019 AP, INDIA
Ph 0863-2344010,1& Fax: 0091 - 883 - 2344000
E-mail: cop@ksmlin & accsp@ksmlin

STATEMENT OF UNAUDITED FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR THE QUARTER AND HALF YEAR ENDED S0TH SEPTENRBER, 2018

(Rs.In Lakhs, except per shire data)]

QUARTER ENDED Holf Year Ended YEAR ENDED
SN0 AR 30,08.2018 30.06.2018 30092017 | 30092018 | 30092017 | 31.03.2018
UnAudited UnAudited UnAugited | UnAudited | UnAudited Audated
1  |mncome
(8) Ravenue from Operations 7507 67 702448 652640 1462218 13054.03 3107121
(b) Other Operating income 4024 2017 6198 74 41 83.14 163,08
Total Revenue from operations 7637.91 7058.85| 658838 1469656 1403797 31264.28|
2 |Other income 3043 3852 3551 avot 54.90 113.29)
Total Income (143) 7660.40 7087.47 652387 1476587 14082.07 2137748
Expenses
a) Coat of Malesias Consumed 4000.19 4250 64 wam07s] 434113 8e4573 17028 45
b) Purchase of Stock-in-Fade 21263 0.00 0.00f 212.69 000 040
5 :l’_’;q;.“".'m e 23818 72042 -592.99 054 54 1023 52 <384 a5
4) Employee benefits exp 525,63 52880 800,01 1055 53 1022.04 2086.97
) Dopraciation and ) 378 44 306,82 364,72 76726 706.38] 1419 46
1) Finance costs (Refer note n0.2) 58308 45467 51018 100775 103538 2188.33
9) Other expanses 1743 43 1674 42 1577.94 341705 232002 oes3 2
Total expenses 726654 577.01 s515.01| 1384357 13807.53 20270.85
4 |Profit before Tax and exceptional items (1+2-3) 401.98 52014 104.88 922,00 0454 2106.84
Add/Less: Exceptional iterms 0.00 0.00/ 0.00) 0.00 0.00| 0.00|
Profit before tax and after exceptional fioma 401,88 520.14 104,96, 922.00 504,54 210684
5 |Tax expenses
) Current Tas #5.00 115.00 0.00 200,00 12429 460 2
b) Deterred Tax (Nt of MAT credit enstisment) 8156 9822 6868 17979 112,00 79.20)
& |Net Profit for the period after tax (4-5) 23530 308 62 3620 54224 240.24) 1567.30
7 |Other comprahensive Income (Net of tax sxpense)
a) Remeasuremant of land ot tair value 0.00 0.00) 0.00| 0.00] 0.00f 2044.39)
b) Revikiation of Bulkdings (Net of Defurred Tax) 060 w.00| .00 19.20| 000 2193.687]
o of defined smployee benefit 000 o.00f 0.00 0.00 0.00 927
Total comprehensive income 9.0 ve0| 000| 19.20] a.00 5047 48
8 | Total comprehensive income for the year 244,90 31652} 38.20 58141 348.25 o914.78)
o |Pmd-up Equty Share Gaptal £56.38 856,38 56,98 #45.28 856,38 85638
ace Vakse of Ihe Bhare € 25)
L e S e 9256.09)
1 |E 19 per equity Shace (Face vakie 2 24 each)
- Basic & Dited 0es 072 008 127 na 3.0:1
{Adjusted EPS on squty for all periods|
| consideving bonus rause)
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|Kaliam Textiles Ltd.,

Segment Results for the Quarter and Half Year ended 30th September, 2018

Quarter ended Half Year Ended Year Ended
|S-No. Particulars 30002018 | 30.06.2018 | 30.09.2017 | 30.09.2018 | 30.09.2017 31.03.2018
unaudited | Unaudited | __mmm_,_u_mmm__mm__m_
1 |Segment Revenue:
a) Spinning 5796.66| 5900.25 6001.78 11696.91 11069.66 24834 56|
b) Weaving 4960.17 401477 3077.59 897494 8612.80 1879494
¢) Dyeing 1615.12 1572.63| §18.24 318774 1238.36 3869.91
d) Power 39.12 25.91 255 65.04 1.9 116,57,
Total 12411.07 11513.66)  10600.16 23924.63) 2183273 47615.98)
Less: Inter Segment Revenue 4773.16 4454.91 4011.80 9228.07 779556 16351.72
Net salos /income from operations 7637.91 7058.65 6588.38 14696.56 14037.17 31264,26]
2 |Segment Results Profit:
Before tax and interest from Each segment
a) Spinning 587,81 642.30 45558 1230.11 1137.54 2665.37
) Weaving 35358 320.81 183.03 £83.29| 51215 1616.51
<) Dyeing 18,00 11.23 242 29.23 6.09 3384
d) Power -4.45 -853 2115 -12.98 -35.86 12,56
Tots! 054,94 a74.81 615,04 1,929.75 1,619.92 429517
Less ; Finance costs 553.08 454 67 510.18 1,007.75 1,035.38 2.188.33
Total Profit Before Tax 401.86 520.14 104.86 922.00 584,54 2.106.84
3 |Captal Employed
(Segment Assets - Segment Liabilities)
3} Spinning 2417247 25008.01| 2288366 2417247 2288366 zmasl
b} Weaving 1558350 165746.94) 1214286 15583.50 1214286 15883.63
¢) Dyeing 1170.77 1257.53 819.33 1M70.77 819.33| 1270.65
d) Power 1217.21 1386.48 1485.58 1217.21 148556 1432.32
Total 42143,95 44310.96) 3733143 4214395 37331.41 42630.43)
Notes:

The above Financial Results were reviewed and recommended by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board of Directors at their
respective meeting held on 02nd November’ 2018. The statutory auditors have carried out a limited review of the financial results for the

half year ended September 30, 2018,

The finance costs for the Half Year ended 30,09.2018 is net after adjusting subsidy received under TUF scheme and interest subsidy claimed
from AP govemment under IDP scheme 2015-20 aggregating to Rs.3.59 crores (Previcus Quarter ended 30.06.2018 Rs.3.28 croves).

The results are as per Regulation 33 of the SEBI {Listing Obligations ana Disclosure Requiraments} Regutations, 2015,

The figures for the pravious parods have been regrouped to conform 1o the current periods classification.

For Kallam Textdes Ltd
P.\:%w
( Director)

DIN:- 00018677

Place : Chowdavaram
Date - 02.11.2018 oLy
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UNAUDITED FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR QUARTER AND NINE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018:

Chevuturi Associates
Chartered Accountants

EPEND AUDITORS’ REVIEW ORT ONR W OF INTERIM FINANCIAL RESULT:

Review Report to
The Board of Directors
KALLAM TEXTILES LIMITED

We have reviewed the accompanying statement of unaudited financial results of KALLAM TEXTILES LIMITED
(‘the company’) for the quarter ended 31% December, 2018 (the ‘Statement’) being submitted by the company
pursuant to the requirements of Regulation 33 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, read with SEBI circular No.CIR/CFD/FAC/62/2016 dt.5™ July, 2016. This statement is the
responsibility of the Company’s Management and has been approved by the Board of Directors at their meeting
held on 11™ February, 2019. This statement has been prepared in accordance with the recognition and
measurement principles laid down in the Indian Accounting Standard 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”
prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant rules issued thereunder and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India. Our responsibility is to issue a report on the Statement based
on our review,

Vo conducted our review in accordance with the Standard on Review Engagement (SRE) 2410, Review of
Interim Financial Information performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. This standard requires that we plan and perform the review to obtain moderate
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. A review is limited primarily
to inquiries of company personnel and analytical procedures applied to financial data and thus provides less
assurance than an audit. We have not performed an audit and accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

Based on our review conducted as above, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the
accompanying statement of unaudited financial results prepared in accordance with recognition and
measurement principles laid down in the applicable Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133
of the Companies Act, 2013, read with relevant rules issued thereunder and other recognized accounting
practices and policies has not disclosed the information required to be disclosed in terms of Regulation 33 of the
SEB! (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with SEBI circular
No.CIR/CFD/FAC/62/2016 dt.5" july, 2016 including the manner in which it is to be disclosed, or that it contains
any material misstatement.

Place: Camp: Guntur
Date: 11.2.2019

For Chevuturi Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 0006325
L. Kmphin v lha (W
::(Zmadha Rao Balineni
Partner
Membership Number:028105
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KALLAM TEXTILES LIMITED

(Formerly Known as Kallam Spinning Mills Limited)
CIN : L18100AP1992PLC0O13860 & GST No. 37AAACKS363M12ZY

ram, GUNTUR - 8522 019. A P, INDIA.

Chowdava
Ph: 0663-2344010 18 le 0091 - 863 - 2344(!)0

E-malil’ corp@kaml.in & accsp@ksmi.in

STATEMENT OF UNAUDITED FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR THE QUARTER AND NINE MONTHS PERIOD ENDED 3157 DECEMBER , 2010

{R=. In Lakhs, oxcept par share

QUARTER ENDED Nine Months Ended YEAR ENDED
o AR AR 31.12.2018 | 30002018 | 31122007 | 31122018 | 31122017 31.03.2018
UnAudited | UnAudited | UnAudited | UnAudited | UnAudited Audited
1 [income
(2) Revenus from Operntions 7634 08} 7507 67 sesaoo| 2255713 22038 63 2107121
(1) Other Opoarating Income 21.30 a0.24 71.01 96.72| 154,23 193
Totat Re from oper 79586.28/ 7637.91 8755.01 22792.06 31264.26]
2 |Othar come 46.27 3049 5333 118.29 108.13 1 1:.25]
Total Income (1+2) 8005.56 7668.40 ssoe.94| 227714 22900.99 31377,48|
Expanses
&) Cost of Material Consumad 4627.75 4060 18 as3420] 1200088 12881 03 2 roen 4n|
b) Purchase of Stock-inarade 12.38 21283 000 224.99) 0.00 0.00
5 a&‘m"m&m Jp 348 -238.18 534.70 992.03 48883 384 s8]
d) Empioyes benefits exparsos 506,45 526.93 847.90] 1564.98) 1570.00 208647
0} Do ard amontisation sxpenses 417,30 7844 356,71 1184.61 1083 50 1419.46
) Fironce costs (Refer note no 2) 58224 553 08| 509, 1589 99 1545 27 218833
[9) Other experses 173692 1743 43 1712 05| 5154.78 8092 94 €631 02
Total expenses res2.62| 7266.54 8096.50|  21696.20 21604.00 25270.68|
4 |Profit bafore Tax and exceptional itoma (182-3) 152.93 401.86 712,44 1074.54 1296.99 210684
Add/Lesa: Exceptionsl ftems 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00| 0.00|
Profit before tax and after exceptional items 152, 401, 712.44| 1074.94 1296.99 2106.84)
§ |Tax expenses
) Currort Tax 3200 85.00 0.00 232.00 027 460 26
b) Deferred Tax (Net of MAT cradit enitlement) 37.99 8150 200.80 21779 438.82 79 28]
6 |Net Profit for the period after tax (4-5) 82.94 235,30 51164 625.15| 856 90} 1567,
Other o (Net of tax expense)
) Remeasuremart of fand at fai viskue 0.00) 0.00} 0.00 0,00} 0. 2844
b) Revaluation of Bulidings (Net of Deforrad Tax) 0.61 9. 0.00] 28,63} 2.00 2163,
&) Remeasuremant of defined amployss benett 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00| 0.00 0.27
Total compr i 0.61 9.60 0.00 28.83 0.00 5047
8 [Total comprehansive | for the year 02 58 244,60 51184 663.08] 850,90 6614 78|
o |Pa%-up Eauty Srar Capial 856,38 maﬂ 85638 maﬂ aso.3s] 85638
(Face Value of the Share € 2/-)
10 ;um E;::)llv Revaluation resorves as 9250.00'
11 [Earning per equity Share (Face valoe 2 2/- sach)
- Basic & Ditutwd .19 058 119 1.48| 2,01 x;!
(Adjusted EPS on ertanced equity ke ail periods
conskiering bonus 1ssue)
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[Kailam Texties Ltd,,

Segment Resuits for the Quarter and Nine Months period ended 31st December, 2018

Quarter ended Nine Months Ended Year Endod
WS-M Particulars 31122018 | 30.092018 | 31122017 | 31.12.2018 | 31.42.2017 31.03.2018
_Unaudited | unaudited | unaudited | unaudited |  Audited |
1 |Segment Revanue:
a) Spinning 635845 5796.66 6368 65 18055.36 18338.29 24834
b) Weaving 461487 496017 5280.74 13549 81 13893.54 18794 94
¢) Dyeing 918.58 1615.12 1028.89 4106.33 2261.2% 3669.91
d) Power 103.87 39.12 4250 168.90 54.41 1165
Total 11995.77 12411.07]  1272078]  35820.40 34553 60 47615.98
Less: Infer Segment Revenue 4039.49 4773.16 3965.17 1326755 11760.74 16351,72)
I""““' fincome from operations 7956.28 763791 875561 2285288 227192, 31264.26
2 |Segment Results Profit:
Before tax and inferest from Each segmant
a) Spinning 426.05 557.31L 654.90 1656.17 1796.76 265537
b) Weaving 255.79) 36358 555.32 939.17 1067.48| 1618.51
¢) Dyeing 13.26 18.00 6.81 4249 12.92 :mal
d) Power 40,07 4,45 5.30 27.40 -33.90 1255
Total 73517 06494 | 122233 2664.93 2,842.26 4.295.17
Less : Finance costs 582.24 553.08 500,89 1,589.99 1,545.27 2,188.33
Total Profit Before Tax 152,93 401,86 71244 1,074.94 1,296.99 2,106.84
3 |Capital Employed
(Segment Assets - Segment Liabiifles)
a) Spinning 2372489 2417247 23165.94 2372499 23165.94 24043,
b) Weaving 15169.27 1568350|  12120.37 16169.27 12130.37 15883.63
c) Dyeing 1122.38 1170.77) 79583 1122.38 795,83 1270.65
d) Power 1246.88 1217.21 154374i 1245 88 1543.74 1432.32
Total 4126352  4214395] 37644 88| 4126052 37644.88| 42630.49
Notes: | |

1 TMabovaﬁnanddRmRsmmﬂewedmdmmndedbyﬂnAudltC«nmmmdmvedbymesomol Directors at their
respective meeting held on 11th February' 2019, The slalutory auditors have carried oul 8 imited review of the financial resulls for the
nina months December 31, 2018,

2 The finance costs for the Nine Months ended 31.12.2016 s net after adjusting subsidy received under TUF scheme and interest subsidy claimed
from AP gevemment under IDP scheme 2015-20 aggregating to Rs.3.12 ¢rores {Previous Quarter endad 30.09.2018 Rs.3.59 crores).

3 The results ara as per Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,

4 'lheﬁqmuforlhepreviwspenodshavabeenregmwedtocurdovmtoihaumntpenodsdaﬁiﬁewon.

Place : Chowdavaram For Kallam Texties Lid
[h‘ﬁ oL 11.02.2019 ﬁ
P.VmX\\A Raddy
(Managing Director)
DIN: 00018577
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ACCOUNTING RATIOS AND CAPITALISATION STATEMENT
The following tables present certain accounting and other ratios derived from our Company’s audited financial
statements for the year ending March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017 included in the financial statements on page
86 of the Draft letter of Offer.

ACCOUNTING RATIOS

Particulars For the year ended March, 31
2018 2017

Return on Net worth (%) 15.59 14.81
Earnings per Share (in Rs.)

Basic 3.66 2.99
Diluted 3.66 2.99
Net asset Value per share (in Rs.) 23.62 25.16
EBITDA (in Rs. Lakhs) 5,714.62 5,681.56

Return on Net worth (%0):

(Net Profit or (loss) after Tax/Net worth at the end of the year) x 100

(Net profit includes OCI but excludes surplus on revaluation of assets net of deferred tax)
Earnings per share Basic & Diluted:

Net profit or (loss) as attributable for equity shareholders/Weighted average humber of equity shares
(Nos.)

Net asset Value per share:

Net Worth/No. of ordinary Shares

Net worth:

Equity Share Capital + Other Equity (Excl. surplus on revaluation of assets net of deferred tax)
EBITDA:

Earnings before interest, taxes, Depreciation and Amortization

For CHEVUTURI ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn No: 000632S
(RAGHUNADHA RAO BALINENI)
Partner

ICAI memb no: 28105
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CAPITALISATION STATEMENT

The capitalization statement of our company as at March 31, 2018, as at September 30, 2018 and as adjusted post issue

is as under:

Summary Statement of Capitalisation

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs

Particulars Asat March | ASOnSeptember | aq adjusted for
31, 2018 30, 2018 the Issue
Borrowings:
Long term borrowings (inc Current maturity ) 20,097.35 18,974.45 -
Short-term borrowings (inc Bill Discounting) 11,605.40 10,940.85 -
Total (A) 31,702.75 29,915.30 -
Shareholders' funds:
Equity share capital 856.38 856.38 -
g&srsslr:se)s and Surplus (Excluding Revaluation 9.256.09 9,695.05 -
Total (B) 10,112.47 10,551.43 -
Long term Debt / Equity ratio (A)/(B) 1.99 1.80 -
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Partner
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FINANCIAL INDEBTEDNESS

Set forth below is a brief summary of our significant credit facilities as on January 31, 2019:

(Amount in Rs. lakhs)

Name of the Nature of Amount Amount Date of Rate Of | Terms of
Lender the Loan Sanctioned | availed/ Agreement / Interest | Repayment
outstanding | Sanction letter
TERM LOAN
Term Loan 480.00 364.99 03.10.2009 | 11.50% | Quarterly
Term Loan 1350.00 1255.42 03.09.2011 | 10.75% | Quarterly
Term Loan 600.00 562.15 16.04.2013 | 10.25% | Quarterly
Term Loan 1300.00 1225.69 06.09.2014 | 10.75% | Quarterly
Term Loan 980.00 971.69 20.01.2016 | 10.50% | Quarterly
Corporate
Andhra Bank Term Loan 1000.00 680.00 21.10.2016 | 11.50% | Monthly
Term Loan 720.00 476.72 20.07.2017 | 10.30% | Quarterly
Term Loan 893.00 419.21 03.10.2009 | 11.50% | Half Yearly
Total 7323.00 5955.87

Security — Term Loans from Andhra Bank are secured on parri passu basis by way of first
charge on all the movable and immovable assets of the spinning division (all units at the
Chowdavaram, Guntur District) and Power plants at Nelakondapalli and Bhairavanipalli of
Khammam District, Telangana.

Term Loan 995.00 101.26 07.11.2008 12.70% | Quarterly
Term Loan 1350.00 1164.80 06.12.2010 10.50% | Quarterly
Term Loan 10692.00 7838.11 10.08.2011 10.00% | Quarterly
Term Loan 960.00 897.57 30.10.2013 10.00% | Quarterly
Term Loan 990.00 963.13 23.05.2015 10.00% | Quarterly
Indian Bank Corporate 600.00 44421 | 19.11.2016 11.10% | Monthly
Term Loan
Total 15587.00 11409.08
Security - Term loans from Indian Bank are secured on pari passu basis by way of first charge
on all the movable and immovable assets of spinning division (all units at Chowdavaram,
Guntur Dist.) and weaving division at Kunkupadu Village, Addanki Mandal, Prakasam
District.
Term Loan 990.00 805.00 27.02.2012 10.95% | Quarterly
ga”kdOf Total 990.00 805.00
aroda
Security - Secured by way of first charge on fixed assets of Dyeing Unit at Kunkupadu
Village, Addanki Mandal, Prakasam District.
IREDA Term Loan 45.33 25.50 20.03.2017 10.00% | Quarterly
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NCEF
Component

19.43

10.93

20.03.2017

2.00%

Quarterly

Total

64.76

36.43

Security - Secured by first charge on all the movable and immovable assets of our Company’s
power division of 0.8 MW small hydro project at 16th & 17th branch canal at Nelakondapalli
Village & Mandal, Khammam Dist., Telangana

FUND BASED - Security — i) All the inventories are offered as security in respect of working capital loans
availed by our Company. ii) Working Capital Loan from Andhra Bank is secured by way of exclusive charge
on current assets of spinning division of all units at Chowdavaram, Guntur. iii) Working Capital loan from
Indian Bank is secured by way of Hypothecation of stocks of cotton, stock in process, Finished Goods, Stores
and Spares, Book Debts, Goods in Transit .This loan is also secured by way of Extension of EM/ Second and
exclusive charge by way of EM of Land admeasuring Acre 25.72 at Weaving Division of the Company at
Kunkupadu and Hypothecation of Plant & Machinery, Spares and Other assets Acquired (Existing and Future).
iv) Working Capital Loan from Bank of Baroda is secured by way of Hypothecation of Stocks and Book debts.

Andhra Bank
OCC/PC/PCF 7700.00 7988.99 20.07.2017 9.50%
c (1750.00) (504.33)
(FDBP/FUB
D/AACB/DU
BD) (2000.00) (Nil)
FLC/ILC/CA
PEX-DA/DP
Basis/ Buyers
Credit
IndianBank | 5ccpc/BG 6000.00 589163 | 09.02.2018 9.00%
Bank of occ 500.00 496.75 | 19.03.2018 11.15%
Baroda
Total 14200.00 14,377.37
NON FUND BASED
Andhra Bank B.G 100.00 20.65 | 20.07.2017
Total 100.00 - -
(Amount in Rs. lakhs)
Name of the | Nature of the | Amount Ampunt Date of Rate Of | Terms  of
. availed/outs | Agreement /
Lender Loan Sanctioned . . Interest Repayment
tanding Sanction letter
BILL DISCOUNTING
Andhra Bank FUBD/DUB 1000.00 508.44 20.07.2017 Upto 180
D days -
8.65%
Above
180 Days
— as per
HO
Guidelin
es
Indian Bank FUBD/DUB 2000.00 763.90 | 09.02.2018 8.55%
D
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Total

| 3000.00 |

1272.34 |

UNSECURED LOAN (From Promoters/Promoter Group)

Poluri Unsecured NA 171.55 08.12.2017 NA 15 days
Venkateshwar | Loan from

a Reddy demand
notice

Gurram Unsecured NA 85.40 28.06.2017 NA 15 days
Venkata Loan from

Krishna Reddy demand
notice

Movva Unsecured NA 38.50 03.04.2017 NA 15 days
Venkata Subba | Loan from

Reddy demand
notice

N Rajendra Unsecured NA 15.00 05.08.2017 NA 15 days
Prasad Loan from

demand

notice

N Prabhakara | Unsecured NA 10.00 04.08.2017 NA 15 days
Rao Loan from

demand

notice

Poluri Unsecured NA 0.10 08.12.2017 NA 15 days
Sivanagendra Loan from

mma demand
notice

Total NA 320.55

142




STOCK MARKET DATA

The Equity shares of our Company are presently listed and traded on BSE. The Rights Equity Shares will be listed
on the BSE pursuant to the Issue. The share trading data for the equity shares of our Company is as under:

Stock Market Data for BSE
The Board of our Company has approved the Issue at their meeting held on September 29, 2018. The closing market
price of the equity shares of our Company on the first business day after the Board approved the Issue i.e. on October

01, 2018 was ¥ 21.35 per equity share on the BSE.

The high and low prices and associated volumes of securities traded during last 3 years recorded on BSE is as follows:

Calendar High Date of Volume Low Date of Volume Weighted
Year ® High on date ® Low on date Average
of high of low Price )
(no. of (no. of
shares) shares)
2018 33.25 08.03.2018 53,951 16.70 30.10.2018 27,382 27.35
2017* 135.40 27.01.2017 43,264 19.55 05.12.2017 13,131 31.38
2016 139.90 01.11.2016 23,728 51.00 24.02.2016 11 96.96

*During the Calendar Year 2017, the following Corporate Actions have taken place, which have also impacted the
price of our Equity Shares. However, the impact of such Corporate Actions cannot be quantified separately.

(i) On February 02, 2017, the face value of the Equity Shares of our Company was split from Rs. 10 each to face value
of Rs. 2 each.

(ii) On October 14, 2017, our Company made an Issue of 85,63,875 Equity Shares of Rs. 2 each as fully paid up bonus
shares out of free reserves in the ratio of 1 Equity Shares for every 4 Equity Shares.

The high and low price, and associated volume of securities traded during the last 6 months on BSE is as follows:

Period High Date of Volume on Low Date of Volume on Weighted
® High date of high ® Low date of low Average
(no. of shares) (no. of shares) Price )
February 18.80  11.02.2019 5,697 14.05  21.02.2019 5,233 15.89
2019
January 19.45  08.01.2019 17,961 16.45  31.01.2019 405 17.92
2019
December  20.75  03.12.2018 9,524 17.65  28.12.2018 8,442 18.76
2018
November 2345  07.11.2018 20,057 19.30 05.11.2018 26,921 20.28
2018
October 2345  01.10.2018 20,409 16.70  30.10.2018 27,382 19.91
2018
September  27.70  03.09.2018 14,299 20.05  26.09.2018 29,850 22.54
2018

Latest Stock Market Data for the four weeks preceding the date of this Draft Letter of Offer is as follows:

Week Week High Low Week’s Total Traded
Starting ending on Closing guantity
From Price during the
(in® period
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Amount Date Amount Date

(in%) (in%)
18.03.2019 22.03.2019 17.15 22.03.2019 16.45 22.03.2019 16.65 77,619
11.03.2019 15.03.2019 18.50 14.03.2019 16.00  14.03.2019 17.25 12,116
04.03.2019  08.03.2019 18.00 07.03.2019 16.35 08.03.2019 17.05 9,949
25.02.2019  01.03.2019 16.95 01.03.2019 15.00 27.02.2019 16.90 13,024

The Closing market price of the Equity shares as on one day prior to the date of this Draft Letter of Offer, i.e, on March
26, 2019 was Rs. 15.80.

The Issue Price of Rs. [*] per Rights Equity Share has been arrived at in consultation between our Company and the
Lead Manager.

For the purpose of this chapter:

e A Year isacalendar year

e Average price is the weighted average share price of the Equity Shares traded during the respective period

e High price is the maximum of the daily high prices and Low price is the minimum of the daily low prices of the
Equity Shares of our Company for the year, or the month, as the case may be
In case of two days with the same high / low / closing price, the date with higher volume has been considered
Source: www.bseindia.com
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OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS AND MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS

Our Company and our Promoters or Directors, from time to time, have been and continues to be subject of legal
proceedings, arising in the ordinary course of its businesses. Except as disclosed below, there are no outstanding
litigations involving our Company and our Promoters or Directors, including suits, criminal or civil prosecutions and
taxation related proceedings that would have a material adverse effect on the operations and the financial position of
our Company. In this regard, please note the following:

Except as disclosed below, there is no outstanding litigation against our Company and our Promoters or Directors
involving issues of moral turpitude, criminal liability, material violations of statutory regulations or economic offences
and no such litigation had arisen against our Company in the preceding ten years. Our Company has no outstanding
defaults in relation to, dues payable to holders of any debentures and interest thereon, and in respect of deposits and
interest thereon, defaults in repayment of loans from any bank or financial institution and interest thereon as on
February 28, 2019. Further, except as disclosed below there are no outstanding litigations which may have any impact
on the future revenues of our Company, involving financial liability, to the extent quantifiable, exceeding Rs. 300
Lakhs.

All terms defined in a particular litigation are for that particular litigation only.
LITIGATIONS INVOLVING OUR COMPANY
I. LITIGATIONS AGAINST OUR COMPANY

A) DETAILS OF PENDING CIVIL AND CRIMINAL LITIGATIONS, INCLUDING CASES UNDER
NEGOTIABLE INSTRUMENT ACT, 1881

S. No. Name of the Parties | Case Number/ | Brief Facts of the Case Amount Present
Court/ Involved Status
Authority (In)
M/s. Visram Criminal case CC | This is a case filed by M/s. | 41,280 The case is
1. Financial Services 278/2017 in the | Visram Financial Services pending for
Criminal | Private Limited court of Special | Private Limited U/s 124(7) of disposal
Case Judge Economic | the Companies Act, 2013 before the
Vs. Offence against our Company and our honourable
Nampallay, executive Directors Mr. P court. The
Kallam Textiles Ltd | Hyderabad Venkateswara Reddy, G V complainan
(formerly Kallam Krishna Reddy, Mr Movva t having
Spinning Mills Venkata Subba Reddy and realized
Limited) then Company Secretary that he has
& alleging that the complainant no right to
3 Executive is the Power of Attorney file the case
Directors and Holder of 14 individual has
Company Secretary shareholders of  Kallam proposed to
Spinning Mills Limited (our withdraw
former name) and that the same.
Company denied the payment
of unpaid dividend to the
POA of the Shareholders and
committed offence
punishable under Section
124(7) of the Companies Act
2013.
Our Company has not acted
upon the request of the
Complainant duly directing
the Complainant to cause
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production of Original Power
of Attorney and confirmation
from the principal about the
fact that, the power of
attorney is in force and also to
furnish necessary information
about the complainant etc so
as the enable the complainant
to receive the amount in its
name and the case is pending
disposal before the honorable
court. The Complainant has
not been able to produce the
original Power of Attorney
which is still in force.

Further all the four have also
filed petition before the
Honorable High court to
quash the proceeding of
lower court and the same is
pending disposal.

Civil
Case

M/s Money Market
Services India Pvt.
Ltd.
V/s

Kallam Textiles Ltd

0.541 0f 2018 in
the Court of
Additional City
Civil Court,
Secunderabad

The Suit is filed by M/s
Money Market Services India
Pvt. Ltd. against our
Company and Others for a
declaration that the plaintiff is
entitled to shares set out in
schedule A-1 & 2 of the plaint
and to pass consequent order
of Mandatory injunction
against Defendant- 1 i.e.,
Kallam  Spinning  Mills
Limited, not to transfer any of
the Share certificates in
respect of shares set out in 1
to 9 of Schedule A 1 owned
by Defendant- 46 and 54 and
to issue duplicate share
certificate in  favour of
plaintiff etc.

Our contention is that the Suit
is not Maintainable and the
plaintiff is put to strict proof
about his right to claim relief
as prayed in the suit.

Not
Applicable.
However,
4128 equity
shares  of
our
Company
are
involved in
the case.

The
stand
posted for
filing the
written
Statement

case

B) DETAILS OF CASES AGAINST OUR COMPANY ARISEN OR PENDING IN PROCEEDINGS

RELATING TO ECONOMIC OFFENCES (E.G. INCOME TAX ACT, EXCISE /VAT/GST CASES)

Nil

C) LABOUR CASES

Nil
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D) CRIMINAL CASE AGAINST OUR DIRECTORS & PROMOTERS

Our three Executive Directors, who are also our Promoters, are party in the Criminal case filed against our Company
and them as per details given at paragraph 1 of | (A) above.

1. LITIGATIONS BY OUR COMPANY

A) DETAILS OF PENDING CIVIL AND CRIMINAL LITIGATIONS, INCLUDING CASES UNDER

NEGOTIABLE INSTRUMENT ACT, 1881

presently known
as T S Transco

Instead of abiding by the
undertaking A.P. Transco
committed breach of contract
and reduced the tariff with
effect from  2004-2005.
Questioning the validity of
the same the Association filed

writ  petition before the
Honorable High Court of
Andhra Pradesh.

S.No. | Name of the | Case Number/ | Brief Facts of the Case Amount Present Status
Parties Court/ Authority Involved
(Ing)
1. Kallam Textiles | CC 305/2018 Our Company supplied Gray | 9,75,919 CC 305/2018
Crimin | Limited CC 306/2018 Fabric to Shri Jai Gurudev CC 306/2018
al Case Vs CC 307/2018 Textiles Agencies represented CC 307/2018
Shri Jai Gurudev | CC 309/2018 by proprietor Mr. Sanjay Avre posted for
Textiles Pandey. Towards payment of return of
Agencies, IVAdd.JFCM the sale consideration, the Notice to
Proprietor Mr. (Judicial First customer has issued post- 27.03.2019
Sanjay Pandey, | Class Magistrate) | dated cheques which were
New Delhi Court, GUNTUR | dishonored by banker of the InCC
customer on account of 309/2018 the
“insufficient of funds.” When court has Non
presented for Collection by Bailable
the Complainants through the Warrant
banker. Consequently after against
following due procedure we accused for
filed above four cases before their failure to
the 4" Addl. JFCM, Guntur attend the
under section 138 of N.I. Act court after
which were pending disposal. receipt of the
summons.
2. Small Hydro Based upon the undertaking About The rate of
Civil Power Civil Appeal No. given by A.P. Transco to interest
Case Developers 1376-1385 of 2013 | purchase the Power generated | 50,00,000 | payable is
Association (for at Hydro Electric Power subject matter
which Kallam CA 10448/2014 in | Projects @ Rs. 2.25 / Unit which is
Textiles Ltd. is Supreme Court with escalation of 5% every pending before
one of the year with 1994-95 as base Supreme
member) year and to be revised 1% April Court.
atevery year up to 2003-2004,
V/s our Company has
commissioned Power projects
A.P. Transco, at Three places in the state.
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The High Court passed
interim orders in W.P.M.P
No. 16621 of 2004 directing
the AP. Transco to
implement the revised tariff
subject to the result of the
final orders in writ petition.
However, the Hon’able Court
further directed that in
addition to the rates payable
under the revised tariff, the
A.P. Transco shall also pay
50% of the differential
amount between old and
revised tariff for the actuals.

Against the said orders passed
by the High Court. A.P.
Transco preferred appeal to
Hon’able Supreme Court. The
Hon’able Supreme Court
disposed the case holding that
neither the High Court nor the
Supreme Court were having
the jurisdiction to entertain
the case, in view of the
availability of the alternative
remedy available before the
Appellate Tribunal of the
Electricity (APTEL), New
Delhi which were constituted
for disposal of case of like
nature. As per the direction of
the Supreme Court, the cases
were transferred to the
Tribunal.

The Hon’able Appellate
Tribunal partly allowed the
appeal preferred by the
Association. The Tribunal
fixed the parameters and
directed the A.P. Electricity
regulatory Commission to fix
tariff to be payable to Non-
Conventional Energy
developers for the Period
from 2004 to 2009 and further
directed to pay the difference
of the amount together with
interest @ 12% p.a with
quarterly rests.

Accordingly, the A.P.
Electricity Regulatory
Commission fixed a Tariff
and A.P.Transco paid the
differential amount between
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the old and revised tariff.
Accordingly, the amount to be
paid alongwith interest was
calculated around Rs. 110
Lakhs out of which the
Principal was paid by AP
Transco.

However  A.P.  Transco
preferred appeal before the
Supreme Court questioning
the validity of granting of
interest @ 12% p.a with
quarterly rests and the same is
pending disposal before the
Hon’able Supreme Court.

B) DETAILS OF CASES FILED BY OUR COMPANY ARISEN OR PENDING IN PROCEEDINGS
RELATING TO ECONOMIC OFFENCES

The details of such cases are as follows:

1. INCOME TAX - Amount involved Rs. 95,10,885

Commissioner
of Income
Tax, Guntur

on March 21, 2016 Under the
A.0-143(3) of the IT Act
admitting the income of Rs.
4,10,18,260 after claiming
deduction of Rs 31,56,722 in
respect of power division. The
assessment order dated
21.03.2016 was passed by the
competent authority arriving at
the total income of Rs.
4,16,08,350. The Income Tax
officials raised query and
questioned the validity of the
order passed U/s-143(3) of IT
Act 1961.

Taking into considerations of
the Audit objections, the
appellate authority (Pr.
Commissioner) passed order
dated 23.03.2018 against
which we preferred appeal
before Income Tax Appellate
Tribunal which is Pending
Disposal.

Sl. Name of the | Case number/ Brief Facts of the Case Amount Present Status
No. authority Assessment  year Involved

where matter | (A.Y.) (inRs.)

is pending
1. Kallam ITA No. 152/V/18, | Our Company filed returns for | 95,10,885 Appeal is

Textiles Visakhapatnam Assessment  Year 2013-14 pending before

Limited Tribunal admitting the total income of Honorable

Rs 4,10,18,000. The ITAT,
Vs assessment order was passed Visakhapatnam
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2. COMMERCIAL TAX — Amount Involved Rs. 2,68,326

Sl Name of the | Case number/ Brief Facts of the Case Amount Present Status
No. authority Assessment  year Involved
where matter | (A.Y.) (inRs.)
is pending
1&2 Kallam Appeal No. 40/2018-| The Commejrcial Tax | 39,780 Both the_appeals
Textiles 19/GNT Department Levied the tax on | & are pending
Limited And Appeal No. the cement brought from other | 2,28,546
41/2018-19/GNT states during the period 2014-
Vs 15 and 2015-16 and also for
Assistant period of 2016-17.
Commissioner, i )
State Tax |, Our Company is contesting the
Guntur matter on the ground that our

Company is carrying on the
business of manufacture of the
yarn for which installation of
machinery is required. For
installation of machinery, the
cement is required. As such the
cement, machinery and other
raw material such as raw cotton
etc shall be treated as input for
the purpose of manufacture of
other goods.

1. LITIGATIONS INVOLVING OUR PROMOTERS
Except as mentioned above, there are no other litigations involving our Promoters.
IV. LITIGATIONS INVOLVING OUR GROUP COMPANIES

At present, there are no pending Litigations involving our Group Companies having material adverse effect on our
Company.

OUTSTANDING DUES TO CREDITORS

As on December 31, 2018 our Company has 469 creditors with total outstanding dues amount of Rs. 1,663.06 Lakhs.
However, there are no creditors including small and medium enterprises with dues exceeding Rs. 300 Lakhs.

OTHER DISCLOSURES

Except as disclosed above, our Promoters, Directors of our Promoter, and our Directors are not declared as wilful
defaulters by RBI/ government authorities and there are no violations of securities laws committed by them in the past
or pending against them. Our Company, Promoters, and Directors have not been prohibited from accessing the capital
markets under any order or direction passed by SEBI and no penalty has been imposed at any time by any of the
regulators in India or abroad. Further, except as above no regulatory action has been initiated / taken against our
company, our Promoters or Directors by any regulatory bodies.

Further, Our Rights Issue Committee of the Board in its meeting on September 29, 2018 also adopted a ‘Materiality
Policy for our Company’ in relation to outstanding litigations/ legal proceedings. This policy states that legal
proceedings which may have impact on the future revenues of our Company will be treated as material if these involve
financial liability to the extent quantifiable exceeding Rs. 300 Lakhs.
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MATERIAL DEVELOPMENT AFTER THE DATE OF THE AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS ON
MARCH 31, 2018

In the opinion of our Board, there have not arisen since the date of the last audited financial statements, i.e, March 31,
2018, any circumstances that materially or adversely affect or are likely to affect our profitability taken as a whole or
the value of our assets or our ability to pay our material liabilities within the next twelve months.
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GOVERNMENT AND OTHER APPROVALS

Our Company has obtained all material consents, licenses, permissions, registrations and approvals, from various
governmental, statutory and regulatory authorities in India, which are necessary for undertaking our current business
activities and operations. Some of the approvals may be required to be renewed periodically in the ordinary course
and applications for renewal of such approvals are submitted in accordance with applicable requirements and
procedures.

The main objects clause of the Memorandum of Association of our Company and the objects incidental thereto, enable
our Company to carry out its present business activities.

|. Approvals for the Issue

e The Board of our Company has, pursuant to resolutions passed at its meeting held on September 29, 2018
authorized the Rights Issue.

Stated below are the details of the approvals applied for as on the date of this Draft Letter of Offer, but not yet
received:

I1. Pending Government & Requlatory approvals

As on date, our Company has obtained all material consents, licenses, permissions, registrations and approvals, from
various governmental, statutory and regulatory authorities in India, which are necessary for undertaking our current
business activities and operations. As on the date of this Draft Letter of Offer, there are no material pending Government
and Regulatory approvals to be obtained by our Company and no pending renewals of material licenses or approvals
upon expiry, in relation to the activities undertaken by our Company.
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OTHER REGULATORY AND STATUTORY INFORMATION
Authority for the Issue

The Issue has been authorized by our Board by a resolution passed at its meeting held on September 29, 2018 pursuant
to Section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Issue Price of X [+] per Rights Equity Share and the Rights Entitlement of [+] Rights Equity Share for every [°]
fully paid-up Equity Shares held on the Record Date, i.e. [*] has been determined by the Board in its meeting held on
[*]. The Issue Price has been arrived at in consultation with the Lead Manager, prior to determination of the Record
Date.

Our Company has received in-principle approval from the BSE in accordance with Regulation 28 of the SEBI LODR
Regulations, 2015 for listing of the Rights Equity Shares to be allotted in the Issue pursuant to its letter [+] dated [].

Prohibition by RBI, SEBI or other governmental authorities

Our Company, our Promoters, our Directors, and members of our Promoter Group have not been or are not prohibited
from accessing or operating in the capital markets or restrained from buying, selling or dealing in securities under any
order or direction passed by SEBI or any other regulatory or governmental authority.

The companies with which our Promoters, or our Directors or the persons in control of our Company are or were
associated as promoter or directors have not been debarred from accessing the capital market under any order or
direction passed by SEBI or any other regulatory or governmental authority.

Neither our Promoter nor our Directors are declared as Fugitive Economic Offenders.

None of our Company, our Promoters or our Directors, are or have been classified as a wilful defaulter.
None of our Directors are associated with the securities market in any manner.

Confirmation under Companies (Significant Beneficial Ownership) Rules, 2018

Our Company, Promoters and members of our Promoter Group are in compliance and undertake to comply with the
requirements of the Companies (Significant Beneficial Ownership) Rules, 2018, as amended ( “SBO Rules” ), to the
extent applicable, as on the date of the Draft Letter of Offer.

Under the Companies (Significant Beneficial Ownership) Rules, 2018, certain persons who are ‘significant beneficial
owners’ (“SBO”), are required to intimate their beneficial holdings to the Company in Form no. BEN-1 within 90 days
from February 8, 2019 (the date of notification of the Companies (Significant Beneficial Owners) Amendment Rules,
2019). Upon receipt of a declaration by an SBO, the company is required to, within 30 (thirty) days of receiving such
declaration, file a return in Form No. BEN-2 with the relevant registrar of companies in respect of each such declaration
received by the reporting company. Further, each company is required to maintain a register of SBOs in Form No.
BEN-3 which shall be available for inspection to the shareholders the company, is also required to give notice in Form
No. BEN-4 to all its members (who are not individuals) who hold more than 10% of the shares asking the members
to, inter alia, disclose information of the respective SBO of such member.

Eligibility for the Issue

The Equity Shares of our Company are presently listed on the BSE. This issue is being undertaken in terms of Chapter
111 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations

Our Company is in compliance with Regulation 62(1)(a) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, our Company undertakes to
make an application to the BSE for listing of the Rights Equity Shares to be issued pursuant to this Issue. BSE is the
Designated Stock Exchange for the Issue.
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Compliance with Part B of Schedule VI of SEBI Regulations

Our Company is in compliance with the provisions specified in Clause (1) of Part B of Schedule VI to the SEBI ICDR

Regulations as explained below:

(@) Our Company has been filing periodic reports, statements and information in compliance with the Listing
Agreements and the SEBI Listing Regulations, to the extent applicable for the last three years immediately
preceding the date of filing of this Draft Letter of Offer with SEBI;

(b) The reports, statements and information referred to in sub-clause (a) above are available on the website of BSE,
which is the recognised stock exchanges with nationwide trading terminals.

(c) Our Company has an investor grievance-handling mechanism which includes meeting of the Share Transfer
Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee at frequent intervals, appropriate delegation of power by the
Board as regards share transfer and clearly laid down systems and procedures for timely and satisfactory redressal
of investor grievances.

Our Company satisfies the conditions specified in Clause (1) of Part B of Schedule VI of SEBI ICDR Regulations, and
is not covered under the conditions specified in Clause (3) of Part B of Schedule VI of SEBI ICDR Regulations,

Disclaimer clauses from our Company and the Lead Manager

Our company and the lead manager accept no responsibility for statements made otherwise than in this Draft Letter of
Offer/Letter of Offer or in any advertisement or any other material issued by or at the instance of our company and that
anyone placing reliance on any other source of information would be doing so at his own risk.

Investors who invest in the issue will be deemed to have been represented to our Company and the Lead Manager and
their respective directors, officers, agents, affiliates and representatives that they are eligible under all applicable laws,
rules, regulations, guidelines and approvals to acquire the Rights Equity Shares of our Company, and are relying on
independent advice / evaluation as to their ability and quantum of investment in this issue.

Caution

Our Company and the Lead Manager shall make all information available to the Eligible Equity Shareholders and no
selective or additional information would be available for a section of the Eligible Equity Shareholders in any manner
whatsoever including at presentations, in research or sales reports etc. after filing of this Draft Letter of Offer with BSE.

No dealer, salesperson or other person is authorized to give any information or to represent anything not contained in
this Draft Letter of Offer. You must not rely on any unauthorized information or representations. This Draft Letter of
Offer is an offer to sell only the Rights Equity Shares and rights to purchase the Rights Equity Shares offered hereby,
but only under circumstances and in jurisdictions where it is lawful to do so. The information contained in this Draft
Letter of Offer is current only as of its date.

Disclaimer with respect to jurisdiction

This Draft Letter of Offer has been prepared under the provisions of Indian Laws and the applicable rules and regulations
thereunder. Any disputes arising out of the Issue will be subject to the jurisdiction of the appropriate court(s) in Guntur,
Andhra Pradesh only.

Designated Stock Exchange
The Designated Stock Exchange for the purposes of the Issue will be BSE.

Disclaimer Clause of the BSE

As required, a copy of this draft letter of offer has been submitted to BSE (the designated stock exchange). The
disclaimer clause as intimated by the BSE to us, post scrutiny of this Draft Letter of Offer, shall be included in the Letter
of Offer prior to filing with the stock exchange.

Filing
As the Issue Size is less than Rs. 10 Crores, the Draft Letter of Offer has not been filed with SEBI. However, the Draft

Letter of Offer has been filed with BSE Limited for their observations and in principle approval. The Letter of Offer
will simultaneously be filed with SEBI for its information as per the provisions of the SEBI ICDR Regulations.
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Listing

The existing Equity Shares are listed on the BSE. The Equity Shares to be issued through the Letter of Offer are proposed
to be listed on the BSE. We have received in-principle approval from the BSE vide its letter [e] dated [e] in respect of
the Equity Shares being offered in terms of the Issue. The application for obtaining permission for listing and trading of
the Equity Shares will be made to the BSE, the Designated Stock Exchange.

If the permission to deal in and for an official quotation of the securities is not granted by the Stock Exchanges mentioned
above, we shall forthwith repay, without interest, all monies received from applicants in pursuance of the Draft Letter
of Offer.

We will issue and dispatch Allotment advice / share certificates / demat credit and / or letters of regret along with refund
order or credit the allotted Equity Shares to the respective beneficiary accounts, if any, within a period of 15 days from
the Issue Closing Date.

In the event that there is a delay of making refunds beyond such period as prescribed by applicable laws, our Company
shall pay interest for the delayed period at rates prescribed under applicable laws.

Consents

Consents in writing of the Promoter, Directors, Compliance Officer, Lead Manager to the Issue, Legal Counsel,
Registrar to the Issue, Bankers to the Company, and Statutory Auditors to act in their respective capacities have been
obtained, and consent of Banker to the Issue / Refund Bank to act in their respective capacity will be obtained before
filing the Letter of offer with BSE and such consents have not been withdrawn up to the date of the Draft Letter of Offer.

Expert opinion

Except for (i) the reports of the Statutory Auditors on the audited Financial Information and Limited Review Report,
and (ii) the Statement of Tax Benefits available to our Company and its Shareholders included in this Draft Letter of
Offer, we have not obtained any expert opinions.

Issue related expenses

The expenses of the Issue payable by our Company include fee and reimbursement to the Lead Manager, Legal Advisors
to the issue, Registrar to the Issue, Printing and distribution expenses, publicity, listing fee, stamp duty and other
expenses and will be met out of the Issue proceeds. For further details, see “Objects of the Issue” beginning on page 45.

Public or rights issues by our Company during the last five years
Our Company has not made any public or Rights issue in last 5 years.

Previous issues of securities otherwise than for cash
Except as disclosed in “Capital Structure” on page 34, our Company has not made any issue of securities for
consideration otherwise than cash.

Commission or brokerage in previous issue of Equity Shares
No sum is payable as commission or brokerage for any of our previous issue(s) of Equity Shares.

Previous capital issue during the previous three years by Group Companies and Subsidiaries of our Company
None of our Group Companies have made any public or rights issue during the last three years. Further, we do not have
any Subsidiary Company.

Outstanding debentures, bonds, redeemable preference shares or other instruments
Our Company does not have any outstanding debentures, bonds, redeemable preference shares or other instruments as
of the date of this Draft Letter of Offer.

Investor Grievances and Redressal System
We have adequate arrangements for the redressal of investor complaints in compliance with the corporate governance
requirements under the Listing Regulations.

Our Company’s investor grievances arising out of the Issue will be handled by Bigshare Services Pvt Ltd, the Registrar
to the Issue. The Registrar to the Issue will have a separate team of Personnel handling only post — Issue correspondence.
All grievances relating to the Issue may be addressed to the Registrar or the SCSB in case of ASBA Applicants giving
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full details such as folio no., name and address, contact telephone/cell numbers, e-mail id of the first Applicant, number
and type of Equity Shares applied for, CAF serial number, amount paid on application and the name of the bank and the
branch where the application was deposited, along with a photocopy of the acknowledgement slip. In case of
renunciation, the same details of the Renouncee should be furnished. The average time taken by the Registrar for
attending to routine grievances will be seven to 10 days from the date of receipt of complaints. In case of non-routine
grievances where verification at other agencies is involved, it would be the endeavor of the Registrar to attend to them
as expeditiously as possible. Our Company undertakes to resolve the investor grievances in a time bound manner.

Bigshare Services Private Limited

SEBI Regn. No.: INR000001385

1%t Floor, Bharat Tin Works Building,

Opp. Vasant Oasis, Makwana Road, Marol,
Andheri East, Mumbai — 400 059

Tel.: +91 22 6263 8200

Fax: +91 22 6263 8299

E-mail: rightsissue@bigshareonline.com
Investor Grievance e-mail id: investor@bigshareonline.com
Website: www.bigshareonline.com
Contact Person: Ashish Bhope

Investors may contact the Compliance Officer at the below mentioned address and/ or Registrar to the Issue at
the above mentioned address in case of any pre-Issue/ post -Issue related problems such as non receipt of
allotment advice / share certificates / demat credit / refund orders etc.

Mr. Nandan Bisoi

Compliance Officer & Company Secretary
Kallam Textiles Limited

N.H 5, Chowdavaram,

Guntur, Andhra Pradesh — 522 019

Tel. No.: + 91 863 2344016

Fax No.: + 91 863 2344000

E-mail: corp@ksml.in

Our Board has constituted the Stakeholders Relationship Committee. This committee currently comprises of 3 members,

namely Mr. Ajeya Kallam, Mr. Gurram Venkata Krishna Reddy and Mr. Movva Venkata Subba Reddy. Our

Stakeholders Relationship Committee oversees the reports received from the registrar and transfer agent and facilitates

the prompt and effective resolution of complaints from our shareholders and investors. Its broad terms of reference

include:

e Redressal of Equity Shareholder and Investor complaints including, but not limited to non-receipt of share
certificates, transfer of Equity Shares and issue of duplicate share certificates, non-receipt of balance sheet, non-
receipt of declared dividends, etc. and

e Monitoring transfers, transmissions, dematerialization, rematerialization, splitting and consolidation of shares
issued by our Company.

Status of Shareholders Complaints
(a) No. of shareholders complaints outstanding as on December 31, 2018: Nil
(b) Status of the pending complaints: Not applicable

Change in auditors during last three years
In the AGM held on September 29, 2017 shareholders have approved the appointment of M/S Chevuturi Associates.,
Chartered Accountants as the Statutory Auditor for five years.

Capitalisation of reserves or profits

Our Company has not capitalised reserves or profits during last five years except that the reserves were capitalized for
issuance of Bonus shares for Rs. 1,71,27,750 in FY 2017-18.

156


http://www.bigshareonline.com/
mailto:corp@ksml.in

Revaluation of assets
Our Company has not revalued its assets during last five years. However, our company has adopted IND AS from April

1, 2017. Accordingly assets have been recognized at fair value with effect from April 1, 2016 (transition date) in
accordance with option given under IND AS 101 and impact of the same has been considered as a part of retained
earnings.

Minimum Subscription

If our company does not receive the minimum subscription of ninety percent of the Issue, our Company shall refund
the entire subscription amount within fifteen days from the date of closure of the issue. In the event that there is a
delay of making refunds by more than the prescribed time after our Company become liable to pay the subscription
amount, our Company shall pay interest for the delayed period at rates prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.
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OFFERING INFORMATION

This section is for the information of the ASBA Investors and Non-ASBA Investors proposing to subscribe to the Issue
through the ASBA process and non-ASBA process, respectively. Our Company and the Lead Manager is not liable for
any amendments or modifications or changes in applicable laws or regulations, which may occur after the date of the
Letter of Offer. Investors who are eligible to apply under the ASBA process or non-ASBA process, as the case may be,
are advised to make their independent investigations and to ensure that the CAF is correctly filled up.

In accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the option to receive the Rights Equity Shares in physical form is
available only for a period of six months from the date of coming into force of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, i.e., until
May 10, 2019. In case, Allotment in the Issue occurs subsequent to May 10, 2019, the Terms of the Issue will be
modified to this extent in the Letter of Offer.

The Equity Shares proposed to be issued are subject to the terms and conditions contained in the Letter of Offer, the
Abridged Letter of Offer, the CAF enclosed with the Letter of Offer, the Memorandum and Articles of Association,
the provisions of the Companies Act, FEMA, the SEBI Regulations, any other regulations, guidelines, notifications
and regulations for issue of capital and for listing of securities issued by SEBI, RBI and/ or other statutory authorities
and bodies from time to time, and the terms and conditions as stipulated in the Allotment advice or letters of Allotment
or share certificate and rules as may be applicable and introduced from time to time. All rights/ obligations of Equity
Shareholders in relation to Applications and refunds pertaining to the Issue shall apply to Renouncee(s) as well.

ASBA Facility

Please note that, in accordance with Regulation 76 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and subject to the conditions
prescribed under SEBI circular SEBI/CFD/DIL/ASBA/1/2009/30/12 dated December 30, 2009 and SEBI circular
CIR/CFD/DIL/1/ 2011 dated April 29, 2011, all Eligible Equity Shareholders who (a) hold Equity Shares in
dematerialized form, (b) have not renounced their Rights Entitlement in part or in full, and (c) are not Renouncees,
shall participate in the Issue only through the ASBA process.. Eligible Equity Shareholders who have renounced their
Rights Entitlement in part, Renouncees and Eligible Equity Shareholders holding shares Equity Shares in physical
formare not eligible ASBA investors and must only apply for the Rights Equity Shares through the non ASBA process
irrespective of the application value or category of applicant. ASBA Investors should note that the ASBA process
involves application procedures that may be different from the procedure applicable to non ASBA process. ASBA
Investors should carefully read the provisions applicable to such applications before making their application through
the ASBA process. For details, see “Procedure for Application through the Applications Supported by Blocked
Amount (“ASBA”) Process” on page 168 of the Letter of Offer.

Further, in terms of the SEBI circular CIR/CFD/DIL/1/2013 dated January 2, 2013, it is clarified that for making
applications by banks on own account using ASBA facility, SCSBs should have a separate account in own name with
any other SEBI registered SCSB(s). Such account shall be used solely for the purpose of making application in public
issues/rights issues and clear demarcated funds should be available in such account for ASBA applications.

Renouncees
All rights/obligations of the Eligible Equity Shareholders in relation to application and refunds pertaining to the Issue
shall apply to the Renouncee(s) as well.

Authority for the Issue
The Issue has been authorized by our Board by a resolution passed at its meeting held on September 29, 2018 pursuant
to Section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Basis for the Issue

The Equity Shares are being offered for subscription for cash to those existing Eligible Equity Shareholders of our
Company whose names appear, as beneficial owners as per the list to be furnished by the Depositories in respect of
the Equity Shares held in the electronic form, and on the register of members of our Company in respect of Equity
Shares held in the physical form at the close of business hours on the Record Date, i.e., [e], fixed in consultation with
the Designated Stock Exchange.
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Ranking of Equity Shares
The Equity Shares shall be subject to the Memorandum and Articles of Association. The Equity Shares allotted in the
Issue shall rank pari passu with the existing Equity Shares in all respects, including payment of dividends.

Mode of Payment of Dividend
We shall pay dividends (in the event of declaration of such dividends) to our equity shareholders as per the provisions
of the Companies Act and our Articles of Association.

Our Company will dispatch the Letter of Offer and CAF (the “Offering Materials”) to the Eligible Equity
Shareholders who have provided an address in India for service of documents. The Offering Materials will not
be distributed to addresses outside India on account of restrictions that apply to circulation of such materials in
various overseas jurisdictions. In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 our Company will serve
documents at the addresses, including email addresses which have been provided by the members. Though our
Company has requested all the Shareholders to provide their updated addresses for the purpose of distribution
of Offering Materials, still despite all efforts, some Eligible Equity Shareholders may neither receive the original
CAF nor may be in a position to obtain the duplicate CAF. Such Shareholders are being advised that they may
make an Application to subscribe to the Issue on plain paper.

Any person who acquires Rights Entitlements or the Equity Shares will be deemed to have declared, warranted
and agreed, by accepting the delivery of the Letter of Offer, that it is not and that at the time of subscribing for
the Equity Shares or the Rights Entitlements, it will not be, in the United States and in other restricted
jurisdictions.

PRINCIPAL TERMS OF THE EQUITY SHARES ISSUED UNDER THE ISSUE

Face Value
Each Equity Share shall have the face value of ¥ 2 each.

Issue Price
Each Equity Share is being offered at a price of ¥ [e] (including a premium of T [e] per Equity Share). The Issue Price
has been arrived at by us in consultation with the Lead Manager.

Rights Entitlement Ratio
The Equity Shares are being offered on a rights basis to the existing equity shareholders of our Company in the ratio
of [e] Equity Share for every [e] Equity Shares held as on the Record Date.

As your name appears as a beneficial owner in respect of Equity Shares held in the electronic form or appears in the
register of members as an equity shareholder of our Company as on the Record Date, you are entitled to the number
of Equity Shares as set out in Part A of the CAF enclosed with the Letter of Offer.

An Eligible Equity Shareholder who has neither received the original CAF nor is in a position to obtain the duplicate
CAF may make an Application to subscribe to the Issue on plain paper. For further details, see the section titled
“Offering Information - Application on Plain Paper” on page 167 and 170 respectively.

Terms of payment

The entire amount of T [e] per Equity Share is payable on application. Where an applicant has applied for additional
Equity Shares and is allotted lesser number of Equity Shares than applied for, the excess Application Money paid shall
be refunded. Our Company shall refund the excess Application Money within the prescribed time. In the event that
there is a delay of making refunds beyond such period as prescribed by applicable laws, our Company shall pay interest
for the delayed period at rates prescribed under applicable laws.

Fractional Entitlements

For Equity Shares being offered on a rights basis under the Issue in the ratio of [ e] Equity Shares for every [e] Equity
Shares held as on the Record Date. For the Equity Shares being offered on rights basis under this Issue, if the
shareholding of any of the Eligible Equity Shareholders is equal to or less than [e] Equity Shares or is not in multiples
of [e], the fractional entitlement less than 0.5 of such Eligible Equity Shareholders shall be ignored and more than 0.5
of such Eligible Equity Shareholders shall be rounded off to the next integer for computation of the Rights Entitlement.
However, Eligible Equity Shareholders whose fractional entitlements are being ignored earlier will be given preference
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in the Allotment of one additional Equity Share each, if such Eligible Equity Shareholders have applied for additional
Equity Shares over and above their Rights Entitlement, if any.

An illustration stating the rights entitlement for number of Equity Shares is set out below:

Those Eligible Equity Shareholders having fractional entitlement of less than 0.5 Equity Share will be entitled to zero
Equity Shares under the Issue shall be dispatched a CAF with zero entitlement. Such Eligible Equity Shareholders are
entitled to apply for additional Equity Shares. However, they cannot renounce the same in favors of any third parties.
CAF with zero entitlement will be non-negotiable/ non-renounceable.

Arrangement for Odd Lot Equity Shares

Our Equity Shares are traded in dematerialised form only and therefore the marketable lot is one Equity Share.
Accordingly, our Company is not required to make any arrangements for the disposal of odd lot Equity Shares arising
out of the Issue. Our Company will issue certificates of denomination equal to the number of Equity Shares being
allotted to the Equity Shareholder.

Listing and trading of Rights Equity Shares proposed to be issued

Our existing Equity Shares are currently listed and traded on BSE (Scrip Code: 530201) under the ISIN —
INE629F01025. The fully paid-up Rights Equity Shares proposed to be issued pursuant to the Issue shall, in terms of
SEBI Circular No. CIR/MRD/DP/21/2012 dated August 2, 2012, be Allotted under a temporary ISIN shall be frozen
till the time final listing and trading approval is granted by the Stock Exchange. Upon receipt of such listing and
trading approval, the Rights Equity Shares proposed to be issued pursuant to the Issue shall be debited from such
temporary ISIN and credited in the existing ISIN and thereafter be available for trading.

The listing and trading of the Equity Shares shall be based on the current regulatory framework applicable thereto.
Accordingly, any change in the regulatory regime would affect the listing and trading schedule. Upon Allotment, the
Equity Shares shall be traded on Stock Exchanges (BSE) in the demat segment only.

The Rights Equity Shares allotted pursuant to this Issue will be listed as soon as possible and all steps for completion
of the necessary formalities for listing and commencement of trading of the Rights Equity Shares shall be taken within
seven Working Days of finalization of Basis of Allotment. We have made an application for “in-principle” approval
for listing of the Equity Shares to the BSE and have received such approval from the BSE pursuant to the letter number
[e] dated [e].

Our Company will apply to the BSE for final approval for the listing and trading of the Rights Equity Shares. No
assurance can be given regarding the active or sustained trading in the Rights Equity Shares or that the price at which
the Rights Equity Shares offered under the Issue will trade after listing on the Stock Exchanges.

Rights of the Equity Shareholder

Subject to applicable laws, Equity Shareholders shall have the following rights:

e Right to receive dividend, if declared,;

Right to attend general meetings and exercise voting powers, unless prohibited by law;

Right to vote on a poll either in person or by proxy;

Right to receive offers for rights shares and be allotted bonus shares, if announced,;

Right to receive surplus on liquidation;

Right of free transferability of shares; and

Such other rights, as may be available to a shareholder of a listed public company under the Companies Act and
the Memorandum and Articles of Association.

GENERAL TERMS OF THE ISSUE
Market lot

The Equity Shares of our Company is tradable only in dematerialized form. The market lot for Equity Shares in
dematerialised mode is one Equity Share.
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Joint-Holders

Where two or more persons are registered as the holders of any Equity Shares, they shall be deemed to hold the same as
joint-holders with benefits of survivorship subject to provisions contained in the Articles of Association. In case of joint
holders, the CAF would be required to be signed by all the joint holders to be considered as valid for allotment of Equity
Shares offered in the Issue. In case such Eligible Shareholders who are joint holders wish to renounce their Rights
Entitlement, all such Eligible Shareholders who are joint holders would be required to sign Part B of the CAF. In absence
of signatures of all joint holders, the CAF would be liable for rejection.

Nomination facility
In terms of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, nomination facility is available in case of Equity Shares. An
applicant can nominate any person, by filling the relevant details in the CAF in the space provided for this purpose.

A sole Eligible Equity Shareholder or first Eligible Equity Shareholder, along with other joint Eligible Equity
Shareholders being individual(s) may nominate any person(s) who, in the event of the death of the sole holder or all
the joint-holders, as the case may be, shall become entitled to the Equity Shares. A Person, being a nominee, becoming
entitled to the Equity Shares by reason of the death of the original Eligible Equity Shareholder(s), shall be entitled to
the same advantages to which he would be entitled if he were the registered holder of the Equity Shares. Where the
nominee is a minor, the Eligible Equity Shareholder(s) may also make a nomination to appoint, in the prescribed
manner, any person to become entitled to the Equity Share(s), in the event of death of the said holder, during the
minority of the nominee. A nomination shall stand rescinded upon the sale of the Equity Share by the person
nominating. A transferee will be entitled to make a fresh nomination in the manner prescribed. When the Equity Share
is held by two or more persons, the nominee shall become entitled to receive the amount only on the demise of all the
holders. Fresh nominations can be made only in the prescribed form available on request at our Registered and
Corporate Office or such other person at such addresses as may be notified by our Company. The applicant can make
the nomination by filling in the relevant portion of the CAF.

Only one nomination would be applicable for one folio. Hence, in case the Eligible Equity Shareholder(s) has already
registered the nomination with our Company, no further nomination needs to be made for Equity Shares to be allotted
in the Issue under the same folio. However, new nominations, if any, by the Eligible Equity Shareholder(s) shall
operate in supersession of the previous nomination, if any.

In case the Allotment of Equity Shares is in dematerialised form, there is no need to make a separate nomination
for the Equity Shares to be allotted in the Issue. Nominations registered with respective Depository Participant
of the applicant would prevail. If the applicant wants to change the nomination, they are requested to inform
their respective Depository Participant.

Notices

All notices to the Eligible Equity Shareholders required to be given by our Company shall be published in one English
National Daily and one Hindi National Daily with wide circulation and one Telugu language daily newspaper with
wide circulation (Telugu being the regional language at the place where our Registered Office is situated) and/ or will
be sent by ordinary post or registered post or speed post to the registered address of the Equity Shareholders in India
as updated with the Depositories/ registered with the Registrar and Transfer Agent from time to time. However, the
distribution of the Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer and the issue of Rights Equity Shares on a rights basis,
including pursuant to the Issue, to persons in certain jurisdictions outside India may be restricted by legal requirements
prevailing in those jurisdictions.

Subscription by the Promoter/Promoter Group

One of our Promoter, Mr. Poluri Venkateswara Reddy, in his capacity as a Promoter and as representative of the
Promoter Group, vide his letter dated March 16, 2019 has given an undertaking that he alongwith the Promoter Group,
and/or through one or more investors will subscribe to the total entitlement of the entire Promoter Group. The same is
proposed to be ensured by way of subscription and application for additional shares and/or by renouncing their Rights
Entitlement in part.

In such an event, the shareholding of Promoter and Promoter Group in the Company may accordingly stand modified.
Further, they reserve the right either through themselves or through investors to additionally subscribe for any
unsubscribed portion in the Issue. Such subscription to additional Equity shares and the unsubscribed portion of the
Issue, if any shall be in accordance with Regulation 10(4) of SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares & Takeovers)
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Regulations, 2011. Their entitlement to subscribe to the Issue would be restricted to ensure that the public shareholding
in the Company after the Issue does not fall below the permissible minimum level as specified in the applicable laws.

PROCEDURE FOR APPLICATION

The CAF for Rights Equity Shares offered as a part of the Issue would be printed for all Eligible Equity Shareholders
and shall be sent only to their registered address provided in India. In case the original CAFs are not received by the
Eligible Equity Shareholders or is misplaced by the Eligible Equity Shareholders, the Eligible Equity Shareholders
may request the Registrar to the Issue, for issue of a duplicate CAF, by furnishing the registered folio number, DP ID,
Client ID and their full name and Indian address. In case the signature of the Eligible Equity Shareholder(s) does not
match with the specimen registered with us or the DP, the application is liable to be rejected.

Please note that neither our Company, nor the Lead Manager nor the Registrar shall be responsible for delay in the
receipt of the CAF/ duplicate CAF attributable to postal delays or if the CAF/ duplicate CAF are misplaced in the
transit. Eligible Shareholders should note that those who are making the application in such duplicate CAF should not
utilize the original CAF for any purpose, including renunciation, even if the original CAF is received or found
subsequently. If any Eligible Shareholder violates any of these requirements, he/she shall face the risk of rejection of
both applications.

Please note that, in accordance with Regulation 76 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations all Eligible Equity Shareholders
who (a) hold Equity Shares in dematerialized form, (b) have not renounced their Rights Entitlement in part or in full,
and (c) are not Renouncees, shall participate in the Issue only through the ASBA process.. Eligible Equity Shareholders
who have renounced their Rights Entitlement in part, Renouncees and Eligible Equity Shareholders holding shares
Equity Shares in physical form are not eligible ASBA investors and must only apply for the Rights Equity Shares
through the non ASBA process irrespective of the application value or category of applicant.

Offer to Non Resident Eligible Shareholders/Investors

In terms of Regulation 6 of Notification No. FEMA 20(R)/2017-RB dated November 7, 2017, the RBI has given
general permission to Indian companies to issue equity shares on rights basis to non-resident shareholders including
additional rights Equity Shares, subject to certain conditions laid down therein. Further, as per the Master Direction
on Foreign Investment in India dated January 4, 2018 issued by the RBI, non-residents may, inter alia, (i) subscribe
for additional shares over and above their rights entitlement; (ii) renounce the shares offered to them either in full or
part thereof in favour of a person named by them; or (iii) apply for the shares renounced in their favour. Applications
received from NRIs and non-residents for allotment of Rights Equity Shares shall be inter alia, subject to the conditions
imposed from time to time by the RBI under the FEMA in the matter of refund of Application Money, allotment of
Rights Equity Shares and issue of letter of allotment. The Abridged Letter of Offer and CAF shall be dispatched
to non-resident Eligible Shareholders at their Indian address only. If an NR or NRI Investors has specific approval
from RBI, in connection with his shareholding, he should enclose a copy of such approval with the Application Form.
The Board may at its absolute discretion, agree to such terms and conditions as may be stipulated by RBI while
approving the allotment of Rights Equity Shares. The Rights Equity Shares purchased by non-residents shall be subject
to the same conditions including restrictions in regard to the repatriation as are applicable to the original shares against
which Rights Equity Shares are issued on rights basis. CAFs will be made available for eligible NRIs at our Registered
Office and with the Registrar to the Issue.

In case of change of status of holders i.e. from Resident to Non-Resident, a new demat account must be opened.

Details of separate collecting centres for non-resident applications shall be printed on the CAF.

Please also note that by virtue of the circular No. 14 dated September 16, 2003 issued by the RBI, erstwhile Overseas
Corporate Bodies (“OCBs”) have been derecognized as an eligible class of Investors and the RBI has subsequently
issued the Foreign Exchange Management (Withdrawal of General Permission to Overseas Corporate Bodies (OCBSs))
Regulations, 2003. Any Eligible Shareholder being an erstwhile OCB is required to obtain prior approval from RBI
for applying to the Issue.

Abridged Letter of Offer and Composite Application Form (CAF)

The Registrar will dispatch the Abridged Letter of Offer and the CAF to all Eligible Equity Shareholders as per their
Rights Entitlement on the Record Date by registered post / speed post / by courier service to their Indian address and/or
by electronic transmission. The CAF will clearly indicate the number of Rights Equity Shares that the Eligible Equity
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Shareholder is entitled to. Eligible Equity Shareholders who have neither received the original CAF nor are in a
position to obtain the duplicate CAF may participate in the I1ssue by making plain paper Applications.

The Eligible Equity Shareholder shall submit the CAF to the SCSB for authorising such SCSB to block an amount
equivalent to the amount payable on the Application in the said bank account maintained with the same SCSB.

Please note that no more than five Applications (including CAF and plain paper) can be submitted per bank account
in the Issue. ASBA Investors are also advised to ensure that the CAF is correctly filled up, stating therein the bank
account number maintained with the SCSB in which an amount equivalent to the amount payable on Application as
stated in the CAF will be blocked by the SCSB.

The CAF consists of four parts:

e Part A: Form for accepting the Rights Equity Shares offered as a part of this Issue, in full or in part, and for
applying for additional Rights Equity Shares;

e Part B: Form for renunciation of Rights Equity Shares;

e Part C: Form for application of Rights Equity Shares by Renouncee(s);

e Part D: Form for request for split Application forms.

Procedure for Application through Non-ASBA Process:

Please note that in accordance with Regulation 76 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and subject to the conditions
prescribed under the ASBA Circulars, all Eligible Equity Shareholders who (a) hold Equity Shares in dematerialized
form, (b) have not renounced their Rights Entitlement in part or in full, and (c) are not Renouncees, shall use the ASBA
process to make an application in the Issue. Eligible Equity Shareholders who have renounced their Rights Entitlement
in part, Renouncees and Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form are not eligible ASBA
Investors and may apply for Rights Equity Shares only through the non-ASBA process, irrespective of the application
amounts/applicant category.

In accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the option to receive the Rights Equity Shares in physical form is
available only for a period of six months from the date of coming into force of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, i.e., until
May 10, 2019. In case, Allotment in the Issue occurs subsequent to May 10, 2019, the Terms of the Issue will be
modified to this extent in the Letter of Offer.

Option available to the Eligible Equity Shareholders

The CAFs will clearly indicate the number of Rights Equity Shares that the Shareholder is entitled to. An Eligible

Equity Shareholder can:

e  Apply for his Rights Entitlement of Rights Equity Shares in full;

e Apply for his Rights Entitlement of Rights Equity Shares in part (without renouncing the remaining part);

e Apply for his Rights Entitlement of Rights Equity Shares in part and renounce the remaining part of the Rights
Equity Shares;

e Apply for his Rights Entitlement in full and apply for additional Rights Equity Shares;

e Renounce his Rights Entitlement in full.

Acceptance of the Issue

You may accept the offer to participate and apply for the Rights Equity Shares, either in full or in part without
renouncing the balance by filling Part A of the respective CAFs and submit the same along with the application money
payable to the collection branches of the Banker to the Issue as mentioned on the reverse of the CAFs before the close
of the banking hours on or before the Issue Closing Date or such extended time as may be specified by our Board in
this regard. Investors at Centres not covered by the branches of the Banker to the Issue can send their CAFs together
with the cheque drawn at par on a local bank at Mumbai or demand draft payable at Mumbai to the Registrar to the
Issue by registered post/ speed post so as to reach the Registrar to the Issue prior to the Issue Closing Date. Please note
that neither our Company nor the Lead Manager nor the Registrar to the Issue shall be responsible for delay in the
receipt of the CAF attributable to postal delays or if the CAF is misplaced in transit. Such applications sent to anyone
other than the Registrar to the Issue are liable to be rejected.
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Additional Rights Equity Shares

You are eligible to apply for additional Rights Equity Shares over and above your Rights Entitlement, provided that
you are eligible to apply under applicable law and have applied for all the Rights Equity Shares offered without
renouncing them in whole or in part in favour of any other person(s). Applications for additional Rights Equity Shares
shall be considered and allotment shall be made at the sole discretion of our Board, subject to sectoral caps and
prescribed limits as per applicable laws and in consultation if necessary with the Designated Stock Exchange.

If you desire to apply for additional Rights Equity Shares, please indicate your requirement in the place provided for
additional Rights Equity Shares in Part A of the CAF. Renouncee(s) applying for all the Rights Equity Shares
renounced in their favour may also apply for additional Rights Equity Shares by indicating the details of additional
Rights Equity Shares applied in place provided for additional Rights Equity Shares in Part C of CAF. In case of NRI
applicants, as per terms of Regulation 6 of Notification No. FEMA 20 12000-RB dated May 3, 2000, as amended from
time to time, only the existing Non-Resident shareholders may subscribe for additional equity shares over and above
the equity shares offered on rights basis by our Company.

Where the number of additional Rights Equity Shares applied for exceeds the number of Rights Equity Shares available
for Allotment, the Allotment would be made on a fair and equitable basis in consultation with the Designated Stock
Exchange.

Renunciation

This Issue includes a right exercisable by you to renounce the Rights Equity Shares offered to you either in full or in
part in favour of any other person or persons. Non-ASBA investors who are Renouncees cannot further renounce their
entitlement. Your attention is drawn to the fact that we shall not Allot and/ or register the Rights Equity Shares in
favour of the following Renouncees (i) more than three persons (including joint holders), (ii) partnership firm(s) or
their nominee(s), (iii) minors (except applications by minors having valid demat accounts as per the demographic
details provided by the depositories), (iv) HUF, or (v) any trust or society (unless the same is registered under the
Societies Registration Act, 1860 or the Indian Trust Act, 1882 or any other applicable law relating to societies or trusts
and is authorized under its constitution or bye-laws to hold Equity Shares, as the case may be).

Additionally, existing Eligible Equity Shareholders may not renounce in favour of persons or entities in the U.S., or
to, or for the account or benefit of a “U.S. Person” (as defined in Regulation S), or who would otherwise be prohibited
from being offered or subscribing for Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement under applicable securities laws.

In terms of FED Master Direction Number 11/2017-18 dated January 04, 2018 (updated as on April 06, 2018)
issued by RBI, a person resident in India and a person resident outside India may subscribe for additional
shares over and above the shares offered on rights basis by the company and also renounce the shares offered
either in full or part thereof in favour of a person named by them. However, such facility is not available to
Investors who have been allotted shares of the Company as Overseas Corporate Bodies (OCBSs).

Part ‘A’ of the CAF must not be used by any person(s) other than those in whose favour this Issue has been made. If
used, this will render the application invalid. Submission of the CAF to the Banker to the Issue at its collecting branches
specified on the reverse of the CAF with the form of renunciation (Part ‘B’ of the CAF) duly filled in shall be
conclusive evidence for us of the fact of renouncement to the person(s) applying for Rights Equity Shares in Part ‘C’
of the CAF for the purposes of Allotment of such Rights Equity Shares. The Renouncees applying for all the Rights
Equity Shares renounced in their favour may also apply for additional Rights Equity Shares. Part ‘A’ of the CAF must
not be used by the Renouncee(s) as this will render the application invalid. Renouncee(s) will have no further right to
renounce any Rights Equity Shares in favour of any other person. In terms of Regulation 6 of Notification No. FEMA
20 12000-RB dated May 3, 2000, as amended from time to time, only the existing Non-Resident shareholders may
subscribe for additional equity shares over and above the equity shares offered on rights basis by our Company.

The right of renunciation is subject to the express condition that our Board shall be entitled in its absolute discretion
to reject the application from the Renouncees without assigning any reason thereof.

Procedure for renunciation

The following procedure applies to renunciation by the Eligible Equity Shareholders of their Rights Entitlement.
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To renounce all the Rights Equity Shares offered to an Equity Shareholder in favour of one Renouncee

If you wish to renounce the Rights Entitlement indicated in Part ‘A’, in whole, please complete Part ‘B’ of the CAF.
In case of joint holding, all joint holders must sign Part ‘B’ of the CAF. The person in whose favour renunciation has
been made should complete and sign Part ‘C’ of the CAF. In case of joint Renouncees, all joint Renouncees must sign
Part ‘C’ of the CAF.

To renounce in part/ or renounce the whole to more than one person(s)

If you wish to either (i) accept this offer in part and renounce the balance, or (ii) renounce the entire Rights Entitlement
under this Issue in favour of two or more Renouncees, the CAF must be first split into requisite number of SAFs.
Please indicate your requirement of SAFs in the space provided for this purpose in Part ‘D’ of the CAF and return the
entire CAF to the Registrar to the Issue so as to reach them latest by the close of business hours on the last date of
receiving requests for SAFs as mentioned herein. On receipt of the required number of SAFs from the Registrar, the
procedure as mentioned in paragraph above shall have to be followed.

In case the signature of the Eligible Equity Shareholder(s), who has renounced the Rights Equity Shares, does not
match with the specimen registered with us/ Depositories, the application is liable to be rejected.

Renouncee(s)

The person(s) in whose favour the Equity Shares are renounced should fill in and sign Part ‘C’ of the CAF and submit
the entire CAF to the Banker to the Issue or to any of the collection branches of the Bankers to the Issue as mentioned
in the reverse of the CAF on or before the Issue Closing Date along with the application money in full. The Renouncee
cannot further renounce.

Change and/ or introduction of additional holders

If you wish to apply for the Rights Equity Shares jointly with any other person(s), not more than three (including you),
who is/ are not already a joint holder with you, it shall amount to renunciation and the procedure as stated above for
renunciation shall have to be followed. Even a change in the sequence of the name of joint holders shall amount to
renunciation and the procedure, as stated above shall have to be followed.

However, this right of renunciation is subject to the express condition that our Board shall be entitled in its absolute
discretion to reject the request for Allotment from the Renouncee(s) without assigning any reason thereof.

Instructions for Options
The summary of options available to the Eligible Equity Shareholder is presented below. You may exercise any of the
following options with regard to the Rights Equity Shares offered, using the CAF:

S. Option Available Action Required
No

Accept whole or part of your Rights Entitlement Fill in and sign Part A (All joint holders must sign in
(i) | without renouncing the balance. the same sequence)

Accept your Rights Entitlement in full and apply Fill in and sign Part A including Block 111 relating to
(if) | for additional Rights Equity Shares the acceptance of Rights Entitlement and Block IV
relating to additional Equity Shares (All joint holders
must sign in the same sequence)

Accept a part of your Rights Entitlement and Fill in and sign Part D (all joint holders must sign in
(iii) | renounce the balance to one or more Renouncee(s) | the same sequence) requesting for SAFs. Send the CAF

OR to the Registrar to the Issue so as to reach them on or

Renounce your Rights Entitlement of all the Rights | before the last date for receiving requests for SAFs.

Equity Shares offered to you Splitting will be permitted only once.

to more than one Renouncee On receipt of the SAF take action as indicated below.

o For the Equity Shares you wish to accept, if any, fill
in and sign Part A.

o For the Rights Equity Shares you wish to renounce,
fill in and sign Part B indicating the number of Equity
Shares renounced and hand it over to the Renouncee.

o Each of the Renouncee should fill in and sign Part C
for the Equity Shares accepted by them.
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(iv) | Renounce your Rights Entitlement in full to one | Fill in and sign Part B (all joint holders must sign in the
person (Joint Renouncees are considered as one) same sequence) indicating the number of Equity Shares
renounced and hand it over to the Renouncee. The
Renouncee must fill in and sign Part C (All joint
Renouncees must sign)

(v) | Introduce a joint holder or change the sequence of | This will be treated as a renunciation. Fill in and sign
joint holders Part B and the Renouncee must fill in and sign Part C.

In case of Rights Equity Shares held in physical form, the applicants must apply through Non-ASBA process and
such applicants must provide information in the CAF as to their respective bank account numbers, name of the
bank, to enable the Registrar to print the said details on the refund order. Failure to comply with this may lead
to rejection of application. In case of Rights Equity Shares held in demat form, bank account details furnished
by the Depositories will be printed on the refund order.

All applicants holding shares in physical form are requested to note that in accordance with the SEBI ICDR
Regulations, the option to receive the Rights Equity Shares in physical form is available only for a period of six
months from the date of coming into force of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, i.e., until May 10, 2019. In case,
Allotment in the Issue occurs subsequent to May 10, 2019, the Terms of the Issue will be modified to this extent
in the Letter of Offer.

Further, pursuant to the SEBI Listing (Fourth Amendment) Regulations, 2018 dated June 08, 2018 and SEBI
press release PR No.: 51/2018 dated December 03, 2018, transfer of securities shall not be processed unless
securities are held in dematerialized form with a depository, except in case of transmission or transposition of
securities.

Please note that:

e Part ‘A’ of the CAF must not be used by any person(s) other than the Eligible Equity Shareholder to whom this
Letter of Offer has been addressed. If used, this will render the application invalid.

e Request for SAF should be made for a minimum of one Equity Share or, in either case, in multiples thereof, and
one SAF for the balance corresponding Rights Equity Shares, if any.

e Request by the Eligible Equity Shareholder for the SAFs should reach the Registrar on or before [¢].

e  Only the Eligible Equity Shareholder to whom the Letter of Offer has been addressed shall be entitled to renounce
and to apply for SAFs. Forms once split cannot be split further.

o  SAFs will be sent to the Eligible Equity Shareholder(s) by post at the Applicant’s sole risk.

e Eligible Equity Shareholders may not renounce in favour of persons or entities in the restricted jurisdictions
including the U.S. or to or for the account or benefit of a “U.S. Person” (as defined in Regulation S), or who would
otherwise be prohibited from being offered or subscribing for Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement under
applicable securities laws.

e Submission of the CAF to the Banker to the Issue at its collecting branches specified on the reverse of the CAF
with the form of renunciation (Part ‘B’ of the CAF) duly filled in shall be conclusive evidence for us of the person(s)
applying for Rights Equity Shares in Part ‘C’ of the CAF.

e  While applying for or renouncing their Rights Entitlement, joint Equity Shareholders must sign the CAF in the same
order as per specimen signatures recorded with us or the Depositories.

e Non-resident Eligible Equity Shareholders: Application(s) received from Non-Resident/ NRIs, or persons of
Indian origin residing abroad for allotment of Rights Equity Shares allotted as a part of this Issue shall, inter alia,
be subject to conditions, as may be imposed from time to time by the RBI under FEMA in the matter of refund of
application money, allotment of Rights Equity Shares, subsequent issue and allotment of Rights Equity Shares,
interest, export of share certificates, etc. In case a Non-Resident or NRI Eligible Equity Shareholder has specific
approval from the RBI, in connection with his shareholding, he should enclose a copy of such approval with the
CAF. Applications not accompanied by the aforesaid approvals are liable to be rejected.

e  Applicants must write their CAF number at the back of the cheque / demand draft.

e The RBI has mandated that CTS 2010 compliant cheques can only be presented in clearing hence the CAFs
accompanied by non-CTS cheques could get rejected.
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Availability of duplicate CAF

In case the original CAF is not received, or is misplaced by the Eligible Equity Shareholder, the Registrar to the Issue
will issue a duplicate CAF on the request of the Eligible Equity Shareholder who should furnish the registered folio
number/ DP and Client ID number and his/ her full name and address to the Registrar to the Issue. Please note that the
request for duplicate CAF should reach the Registrar to the Issue at least 7 days prior to the Issue Closing Date. Please
note that those who are making the application in the duplicate form should not utilize the original CAF for any purpose
including renunciation, even if it is received/ found subsequently. If the Eligible Equity Shareholder violates such
requirements, he/ she shall face the risk of rejection of either original CAF or both the applications.

Neither the Registrar nor the Lead Manager or our Company, shall be responsible for postal delays or loss of duplicate
CAFs in transit, if any.

Application on Plain Paper (Non - ASBA)

An Eligible Equity Shareholder who has neither received the original CAF nor is in a position to obtain the duplicate
CAF may make an application to subscribe to the Issue on plain paper, along with account payee cheque drawn on a
bank payable at par, pay order/demand draft (after deducting banking and postal charges) payable at Mumbai which
should be drawn in favour of “Kallam Textiles Limited — Rights Issue - R” in case of resident shareholders and non-
resident shareholders applying on non-repatriable basis and in favour of “Kallam Textiles Limited — Rights Issue —
NR” in case of non-resident shareholders applying on repatriable basis and send the same by registered post directly
to the Registrar to the Issue so as to reach Registrar to the Issue on or before the Issue Closing Date. The envelope
should be super scribed “Kallam Textiles Limited — Rights Issue - R” in case of resident shareholders and Non-
resident shareholders applying on non-repatriable basis, and “Kallam Textiles Limited — Rights Issue — NR” in case
of non-resident shareholders applying on repatriable basis.

e The application on plain paper, duly signed by the applicant(s) including joint holders, in the same order as per
specimen recorded with us or the Depositories, must reach the office of the Registrar to the Issue before the Issue
Closing Date and should contain the following particulars:

Name of Issuer, being Kallam Textiles Limited;

Name and address of the Equity Shareholder including joint holders;

Registered Folio Number/ DP and Client ID no.;

Number of Rights Equity Shares held as on Record Date;

Number of Rights Equity Shares entitled to;

Number of Rights Equity Shares applied for;

Number of additional Rights Equity Shares applied for, if any;

Total number of Rights Equity Shares applied for;

Total amount paid at the rate of Rs. [e] per Rights Equity Share;

Particulars of cheque/ demand draft;

Savings/ current account number and name and address of the bank where the Eligible Equity Shareholder will

be depositing the refund order. In case of Rights Equity Shares allotted in demat form, the bank account details

will be obtained from the information available with the Depositories;

e  Except for applications on behalf of the Central or State Government and the officials appointed by the courts,
PAN of the Eligible Equity Shareholder and for each Eligible Equity Shareholder in case of joint names,
irrespective of the total value of the Rights Equity Shares applied for pursuant to the Issue; Documentary evidence
for exemption to be provided by the applicants;

e Share certificate numbers and distinctive numbers of Rights Equity Shares, if held in physical form;

e If the payment is made by a draft purchased from NRE/ FCNR/ NRO account, as the case may be, an account
debit certificate from the bank issuing the draft confirming that the draft has been issued by debiting the NRE/
FCNR/ NRO account;

e Signature of the Applicant to appear in the same sequence and order as they appear in our records / Depositories;
and

e Additionally, all such applicants are deemed to have accepted the following:

"l am/we are entitled to subscribe for and acquire the Rights Equity Shares under the laws of all relevant jurisdictions
that apply to me/us and I/we have fully observed such laws and complied with all necessary formalities to enable
me/us to subscribe for the Rights Equity Shares.
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I was/we were outside the United States (within the meaning of Regulation S) under the Securities Act, at the time the
offer of the Rights Equity Shares was made to me/us and | was/we were was outside the United States when my/our
buy order for the Rights Equity Shares was originated.

I/we did not purchase the Rights Equity Shares as a result of any “directed selling efforts” (as defined in Regulation
S).

The Rights Equity Shares have not been and will not be registered under the Securities Act or the securities law of any
state of the United States and I/we will not offer or sell the Rights Equity Shares except in an offshore transaction
complying with Rule 903 or Rule 904 of Regulation S or pursuant to any other available exemption from registration
under the Securities Act and in accordance with all applicable securities laws of the states of the United States and
any other jurisdiction, including India.

If 1/we acquired any of the Rights Equity Shares as fiduciary or agent for one or more investor accounts, l/we have
sole investment discretion with respect to each such account and I/we have full power to make the foregoing
representations, warranties, acknowledgements and agreements on behalf of each such account.

I/we shall indemnify and hold Kallam Textiles Limited harmless from any and all costs, claims, liabilities and expenses
(including legal fees and expenses) arising out of or in connection with any breach of these representations, warranties
or agreements. l/we agree that the indemnity set forth in this paragraph shall survive the resale of the Rights Equity
Shares.

I/we acknowledge that Kallam Textiles Limited and others will rely upon the truth and accuracy of the foregoing
representations, warranties and acknowledgements.”

Please note that those who are making the application otherwise than on original CAF shall not be entitled to renounce
their rights and should not utilize the original CAF for any purpose including renunciation even if it is received
subsequently. If the Eligible Equity Shareholder violates such requirements, he/ she shall face the risk of rejection of
both the applications. We shall refund such application amount to the Eligible Equity Shareholder without any interest
thereon and no liability shall arise on part of our Company, Lead Manager and our Directors. In cases where multiple
CAFs are submitted, including cases where an investor submits CAFs along with a plain paper application, such
applications shall be liable to be rejected.

Last date for Application

The last date for submission of the duly filled in CAF is [e]. Our Board may extend the said date for such period as it
may determine from time to time, subject to the Issue Period not exceeding 30 days from the Issue Opening Date
(inclusive of the Issue Opening Date).

If the CAF together with the amount payable is not received by the Banker to the Issue/ Registrar to the Issue on or
before the close of banking hours on the aforesaid last date or such date as may be extended by our Board or any
authorized committee thereof, the invitation to offer contained in this Letter of Offer shall be deemed to have been
declined and our Board or any authorized committee thereof shall be at liberty to dispose of the Rights Equity Shares
hereby offered.

PROCEDURE FOR APPLICATION THROUGH THE APPLICATIONS SUPPORTED BY BLOCKED
AMOUNT (“ASBA”) PROCESS

This section is for the information of the ASBA Investors proposing to subscribe to the Issue through the ASBA Process.
The Lead Manager and we are not liable for any amendments or modifications or changes in applicable laws or
regulations, which may occur after the date of this Letter of Offer. Investors who are eligible to apply under the ASBA
Process are advised to make their independent investigations and to ensure that the CAF is correctly filled up.

The Lead Manager, we, our Directors, Affiliates, Associates and their respective directors and officers and the
Registrar to the Issue shall not take any responsibility for acts, mistakes, errors, omissions and commissions etc. in
relation to applications accepted by SCSBs, applications uploaded by SCSBs, applications accepted but not uploaded
by SCSBs or applications accepted and uploaded without blocking funds in the ASBA Accounts. It shall be presumed
that for applications uploaded by SCSBs, the amount payable on application has been blocked in the relevant ASBA
Account.
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Further, in terms of the SEBI circular CIR/CFD/DIL/1/2013 dated January 2, 2013, it is clarified that for making
applications by banks on own account using ASBA facility, SCSBs should have a separate account in own name with
any other SEBI registered SCSB(s). Such account shall be used solely for the purpose of making application in
public/rights issues and clear demarcated funds should be available in such account for ASBA applications. SCSBs
applying in the Issue using the ASBA facility shall be responsible for ensuring that they have a separate account in
their own name with any other SCSB having clear demarcated funds for applying in the Issue and that such separate
account shall be used as the ASBA Account for the application, in accordance with the applicable regulations.

Self-Certified Syndicate Banks

The list of banks which have been notified by SEBI to act as SCSBs for the ASBA Process is provided on
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes and/or such other website(s) as may be
prescribed by the SEBI or Stock Exchange(s) from time to time. For details on Designated Branches of SCSBs
collecting the CAF, please refer the above mentioned SEBI link.

Eligible Equity Shareholders who are eligible to apply under the ASBA Process
The option of applying for Rights Equity Shares through the ASBA Process is available only to the Eligible Equity
Shareholders on the Record Date.

To qualify as ASBA Applicants, Eligible Equity Shareholders:

e are required to hold Rights Equity Shares in dematerialized form as on the Record Date and apply for: (i) their
Rights Entitlement; or (ii) their Rights Entitlement and Rights Equity Shares in addition to their Rights Entitlement
in dematerialized form;

should not have renounced their Right Entitlement in full or in part;

should not have split the CAF and further renounced it;

should not be Renouncees;

should apply through blocking of funds in bank accounts maintained with SCSBs; and

are eligible under applicable securities laws to subscribe for the Rights Entitlement and the Rights Equity Shares in
the Issue.

CAF

The Registrar will dispatch the CAF to all Eligible Equity Shareholders as per their Rights Entitlement on the Record
Date for the Issue. Those Eligible Equity Shareholders who must apply through the ASBA will have to select for this
ASBA payment mechanism in Part A of the CAF and provide necessary details.

Eligible Equity Shareholders applying through the ASBA Process are required to submit their applications by selecting
the ASBA option in Part A of the CAF. Application in electronic mode will only be available with such SCSBs who
provide such facility. The Eligible Equity Shareholder shall submit the CAF to the Designated Branch of the SCSB
for authorising such SCSB to block an amount equivalent to the amount payable on the application in the ASBA
Account.

Acceptance of the offer under the ASBA process

ASBA Investors may accept the Issue and apply for the Rights Equity Shares either in full or in part, by filling Part A
of the respective CAFs sent by the Registrar, selecting the ASBA option in Part A of the CAF and submit the same to
the Designated Branch of the SCSB before the close of the banking hours on or before the Issue Closing Date or such
extended time as may be specified by our Board or any committee thereof in this regard.

More than one ASBA Investor may apply using the same ASBA Account, provided that SCSBs will not accept a total
of more than five CAFs with respect to any single ASBA Account as provided for under the SEBI Circular dated
December 30, 2009.

Mode of payment under the ASBA process
The Eligible Equity Shareholder applying under the ASBA Process agrees to block the entire amount payable on
application with the submission of the CAF, by authorizing the SCSB to block an amount, equivalent to the amount
payable on application, in an ASBA Account.
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After verifying that sufficient funds are available in the ASBA Account details of which are provided in the CAF, the
SCSB shall block an amount equivalent to the amount payable on application mentioned in the CAF until it receives
instructions from the Registrar. Upon receipt of instructions from the Registrar to the Issue pursuant to the finalization
of the Basis of Allotment as approved by the Designated Stock Exchange, the SCSBs shall transfer amount to the
extent of Rights Equity Shares allotted in the Rights Issue as per the Registrar’s instruction from the ASBA Account.
This amount will be transferred in terms of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, into the separate bank account maintained by
our Company for the purpose of the Issue. The balance amount remaining after the finalisation of the Basis of
Allotment shall be unblocked by the SCSBs on the basis of the instructions issued in this regard by the Registrar and
the Lead Manager to the respective SCSB.

The Eligible Equity Shareholders applying under the ASBA Process would be required to give instructions to the
respective SCSBs to block the entire amount payable on their application at the time of the submission of the CAF.

The SCSB may reject the application at the time of acceptance of CAF if the ASBA Account, details of which have
been provided by the Equity Shareholder in the CAF, does not have sufficient funds equivalent to the amount payable
on application mentioned in the CAF. Subsequent to the acceptance of the application by the SCSB, we would have a
right to reject the application only on technical grounds.

Options available to the Eligible Equity Shareholders applying under the ASBA Process
The summary of options available to the Eligible Equity Shareholders is presented below. You may exercise any of
the following options with regard to the Rights Equity Shares, using the respective CAFs received from Registrar:

Option Available Action Required

1. | Accept whole or part of your Rights | Fill in and sign Part A of the CAF (All joint holders must sign in
Entitlement without renouncing the | the same sequence)
balance

2. | Accept your Rights Entitlement in full and | Fill in and sign Part A of the CAF including Block 111 relating to
apply for additional Rights Equity Shares | the acceptance of entitlement and Block 1V relating to additional
Rights Equity Shares (All joint holders must sign in the same
sequence)

The Eligible Equity Shareholders applying under the ASBA Process will need to select the ASBA process option
in the CAF and provide required necessary details. However, in cases where this option is not selected, but the
CAF is tendered to the designated branch of the SCSBs with the relevant details required under the ASBA
process option and the SCSBs block the requisite amount, then that CAF would be treated as if the Eligible
Equity Shareholder has selected to apply through the ASBA process option.

Renunciation under the ASBA Process
ASBA Investors can neither be Renouncees, nor can they renounce their Rights Entitlement.

Application on Plain Paper under the ASBA process

An Eligible Equity Shareholder who has neither received the original CAF nor is in a position to obtain the duplicate
CAF and who is applying under the ASBA Process may make an application to subscribe to the Issue on plain paper.
The Equity Shareholder shall submit the plain paper application to the Designated Branch of SCSB for authorising
such SCSB to block an amount equivalent to the amount payable on the application in the said bank account maintained
with the same SCSB. Applications on plain paper from any address outside India will not be accepted.

The envelope should be super scribed “Kallam Textiles Limited — Rights Issue- R” or “Kallam Textiles Limited —
Rights Issue- NR”, as the case may be. The application on plain paper, duly signed by the Eligible Equity Shareholder
including joint holders, in the same order as per the specimen recorded with us or the Depositories, must reach the
office of the Designated Branch of the SCSB before the Issue Closing Date and should contain the following
particulars:
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Name of Issuer, being Kallam Textiles Limited;

Name and address of the Equity Shareholder including joint holders;

DP and Client ID no.;

Number of Rights Equity Shares held as on Record Date in dematerialized form only;

Number of Rights Equity Shares entitled to;

Number of Rights Equity Shares applied for;

Number of additional Rights Equity Shares applied for, if any;

Total number of Rights Equity Shares applied for;

Total amount to be paid at the rate of Z[e] per Rights Equity Share;

Details of the ASBA Account such as the account number, name, address and branch of the relevant SCSB;

In case of non-resident investors making an application from an Indian address, details of the NRE/ FCNR/ NRO

account such as the account number, name, address and branch of the SCSB with which the account is maintained;

o Except for applications on behalf of the Central or State Government and the officials appointed by the courts
(subject to submitting sufficient documentary evidence in support of their claim for exemption, provided that such
transactions are undertaken on behalf of the Central and State Government and not in their personal capacity), PAN
of the Investor and for each Investor in case of joint names, irrespective of the total value of the Rights Equity
Shares applied for pursuant to the Issue;

e Authorization to the Designated Branch of the SCSB to block an amount equivalent to the Application Money in
the ASBA Account

e Signature of the Shareholders to appear in the same sequence and order as they appear in our records or depositories
records;

e Any approval obtained from the RBI, as may be applicable, and

e Additionally, all such applicants are deemed to have accepted the following:

"l am/we are entitled to subscribe for and acquire the Rights Equity Shares under the laws of all relevant jurisdictions
that apply to me/us and I/we have fully observed such laws and complied with all necessary formalities to enable
me/us to subscribe for the Rights Equity Shares.

I was/we were outside the United States (within the meaning of Regulation S) under the Securities Act, at the time the
offer of the Rights Equity Shares was made to me/us and | was/we were was outside the United States when my/our
buy order for the Rights Equity Shares was originated.

I/we did not purchase the Rights Equity Shares as a result of any “directed selling efforts” (as defined in Regulation
S).

I/ we understand that the Rights Equity Shares have not been and will not be registered under the Securities Act or
the securities law of any state of the United States and I/we will not offer or sell the Rights Equity Shares except in an
offshore transaction complying with Rule 903 or Rule 904 of Regulation S or pursuant to any other available
exemption from registration under the Securities Act and in accordance with all applicable securities laws of the states
of the United States and any other jurisdiction, including India.

If I/'we acquired any of the Rights Equity Shares as fiduciary or agent for one or more investor accounts, I/we have
sole investment discretion with respect to each such account and I/we have full power to make the foregoing
representations, warranties, acknowledgements and agreements on behalf of each such account.

I/we shall indemnify and hold Kallam Textiles Limited harmless from any and all costs, claims, liabilities and expenses
(including legal fees and expenses) arising out of or in connection with any breach of these representations, warranties
or agreements. |/we agree that the indemnity set forth in this paragraph shall survive the resale of the Rights Equity
Shares.

I/we acknowledge that Kallam Textiles Limited and others will rely upon the truth and accuracy of the foregoing
representations, warranties and acknowledgements.”

Please note that those who are making the application otherwise than on original CAF shall not be entitled to renounce
their rights and should not utilize the original CAF for any purpose including renunciation even if it is received
subsequently. If the Investor violates such requirements, he/she shall face the risk of rejection of both the applications.
We shall refund such application amount to the Investor without any interest thereon.
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Option to receive Rights Equity Shares in Dematerialized Form

ELIGIBLE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS APPLYING UNDER THE ASBA PROCESS MAY PLEASE NOTE
THAT THE RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES UNDER THE ASBA PROCESS CAN BE ALLOTTED ONLY IN
DEMATERIALIZED FORM AND TO THE SAME DEPOSITORY ACCOUNT IN WHICH THE RIGHTS
EQUITY SHARES ARE HELD BY SUCH ASBA APPLICANT ON THE RECORD DATE.

General instructions for Eligible Equity Shareholders applying under the ASBA Process

1

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

7

8)

9)

10)

11)

12)

13)

Please read the instructions printed on the CAF carefully.

Application should be made on the printed CAF only and should be completed in all respects. The CAF found
incomplete with regard to any of the particulars required to be given therein, and/ or which are not completed in
conformity with the terms of this Letter of Offer and the Abridged Letter of Offer are liable to be rejected. The CAF
must be filled in English. No correction of name, folio/DP client id etc., should be made in the printed CAF sent.

ASBA Applicants are required to select this mechanism in Part A of the CAF and provide necessary details,
including details of the ASBA Account, authorizing the SCSB to block an amount equal to the Application Money
in the ASBA Account mentioned in the CAF, and including the signature of the ASBA Account holder if the ASBA
Account holder is different from the Applicant.

The CAF/plain paper application in the ASBA Process should be submitted at a Designated Branch of the SCSB
and whose ASBA Account/ bank account details are provided in the CAF and not to the Banker to the Issue/
Collecting Banks (assuming that such Collecting Bank is not a SCSB), to us or Registrar or Lead Manager to the
Issue.

All applicants, and in the case of application in joint names, each of the joint applicants, should mention his/ her
PAN allotted under the IT Act, irrespective of the amount of the application. Except for applications on behalf of
the Central or State Government and the officials appointed by the courts, CAFs without PAN will be considered
incomplete and are liable to be rejected.

All payments will be made by blocking the amount in the ASBA Account. Payments through any other mode is not
acceptable.

Signatures should be either in English or Hindi or in any other language specified in the Eighth Schedule to the
Constitution of India. Signatures other than in English or Hindi and thumb impression must be attested by a Notary
Public or a Special Executive Magistrate under his/ her official seal. The Eligible Equity Shareholders must sign
the CAF as per the specimen signature recorded with us and/ or Depositories.

In case of joint holders, all joint holders must sign the relevant part of the CAF in the same order and as per the
specimen signature(s) recorded with the depository/ us. In case of joint applicants, reference, if any, will be made
in the first applicant’s name and all communication will be addressed to the first applicant.

All communication in connection with application for the Rights Equity Shares, including any change in address
of the Eligible Equity Shareholders should be addressed to the Registrar to the Issue prior to the date of Allotment
in this Issue quoting the name of the first/ sole applicant Equity Shareholder, folio numbers and CAF number.

Only the person or persons to whom the Rights Equity Shares have been offered and not renouncee(s) shall be
eligible to participate under the ASBA process.

Only persons outside restricted jurisdictions and who are eligible to subscribe for Rights Entitlement and Rights
Equity Shares under applicable securities laws are eligible to participate.

Only the Eligible Equity Shareholders holding shares in demat are eligible to participate through ASBA process.

Eligible Equity Shareholders who have renounced their entitlement in part/ full are not entitled to apply using ASBA
process.
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14) Please note that subject to SCSBs complying with the requirements of SEBI circular No. CIR/CFD/DIL/13/2012
dated September 25, 2012 within the periods stipulated therein, ASBA Applications may be submitted at all
branches of the SCSBs.

15) In case of non - receipt of CAF, application can be made on plain paper mentioning all necessary details as
mentioned under the heading “Application on Plain Paper”.

16) Eligible Equity Shareholders are required to ensure that the number of Rights Equity Shares applied for by them do
not exceed the prescribed limits under the applicable law.

Do’s:

1) Ensure compliance with eligibility conditions mentioned above.

2) Ensure that the ASBA Process option is selected in part A of the CAF and necessary details are filled in.

3) Ensure that the details about your Depository Participant and beneficiary account are correct and the beneficiary
account is activated as Rights Equity Shares will be allotted in the dematerialized form only.

4) Ensure that the CAFs are submitted with the Designated Branch of the SCSBs and details of the correct bank account
have been provided in the CAF.

5) Ensure that there are sufficient funds (equal to {number of Rights Equity Shares as the case may be applied for} X
{Issue Price of Rights Equity Shares, as the case may be}) available in the ASBA Account mentioned in the CAF
before submitting the CAF to the respective Designated Branch of the SCSB.

6) Ensure that you have authorized the SCSB for blocking funds equivalent to the total amount payable on application
mentioned in the CAF, in the ASBA Account, of which details are provided in the CAF and have signed the same.

7) Ensure that you receive an acknowledgement from the Designated Branch of the SCSB for your submission of the
CAF / plain paper application.

8) Ensure that the Demographic Details such as address and bank account details are updated.

9) Ensure that the account holder in whose bank account the funds are to be blocked has signed authorising such funds
to be blocked.

10) Apply under ASBA process only if you comply with the definition of an ASBA Investor.

Don’t’s:

e Donotapply if you are not eligible to participate in the Issue under the securities laws applicable to your jurisdiction.

e Do not apply on duplicate CAF after you have submitted a CAF or the plain paper application to a Designated
Branch of the SCSB.

¢ Do not pay the amount payable on application in cash, by money order, by pay order or by postal order.

e Do not send your physical CAFs to the Lead Manager/ Registrar/ Collecting Banks (assuming that such Collecting

Bank is not a SCSB)/ to a branch of the SCSB which is not a Designated Branch of the SCSB/ Company; instead

submit the same to a Designated Branch of the SCSB only.

Do not submit the GIR number instead of the PAN as the application is liable to be rejected on this ground.

Do not apply if the ASBA account has already been used for five Eligible Equity Shareholders.

Do not apply through the ASBA Process if you are not an ASBA Investor.

Do not instruct the SCSBs to release the funds blocked under the ASBA Process.

Grounds for Technical Rejections under the ASBA Process

In addition to the grounds listed under “Grounds for Technical Rejections for non-ASBA Investors” on page 181,
applications under the ASBA Process are liable to be rejected on the following grounds:

e  Application on a SAF

e Application for allotment of Rights Entitlements or additional Rights Equity Shares which are in physical form.

e DP ID and Client ID mentioned in CAF not matching with the DP ID and Client ID records available with the
Registrar.

e Submission of an ASBA application on plain paper to a person other than the Designated Branch of a SCSB.

e Sending CAF to a Lead Manager/ Registrar/ Collecting Bank (assuming that such Collecting Bank is not a SCSB)/
to a branch of a SCSB which is not a Designated Branch of the SCSB/ Company.

e Insufficient funds being available with the SCSB for blocking the amount.

e Funds in the bank account with the SCSB whose details have been mentioned in the CAF / Plain Paper Application
having been frozen pursuant to regulatory order.
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e ASBA Account holder not signing the CAF or declaration mentioned therein.

CAFs which have evidence of being executed in/ dispatched from a restricted jurisdiction or executed by or for the

account or benefit of a U.S. Person (as defined in Regulation S).

Renouncees applying under the ASBA Process.

Submission of more than five CAFs per ASBA Account.

Multiple CAFs, including cases where an Investor submits CAFs along with a plain paper application.

Submitting the GIR number instead of the PAN.

An investor, who is not complying with any or all of the conditions for being an ASBA Investor, applies under the

ASBA process.

e Applications by persons not competent to contract under the Contract Act, 1872, as amended, except applications
by minors having valid demat accounts as per the demographic details provided by the Depaositories.

e Failure to mention an Indian address in the Application. Application with foreign address shall be liable to be
rejected.

e If an Investor is (a) debarred by SEBI and/or (b) if SEBI has revoked the order or has provided any interim relief
then failure to attach a copy of such SEBI order allowing the Investor to subscribe to their Rights Entitlement.

e ASBA Bids by SCSBs applying through the ASBA process on own account, other than through an ASBA Account
in its own name with any other SCSB.

Depository account and bank details for Eligible Equity Shareholders applying under the ASBA Process

IT IS MANDATORY FOR ALL THE ELIGIBLE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS APPLYING UNDER THE
ASBA PROCESS TO RECEIVE THEIR RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES IN DEMATERIALISED FORM AND
TO THE SAME DEPOSITORY ACCOUNT IN WHICH THE RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES ARE HELD BY
THE EQUITY SHAREHOLDER ON THE RECORD DATE. ALL ELIGIBLE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS
APPLYING UNDER THE ASBA PROCESS SHOULD MENTION THEIR DEPOSITORY PARTICIPANT’S
NAME, DEPOSITORY PARTICIPANT IDENTIFICATION NUMBER AND BENEFICIARY ACCOUNT
NUMBER IN THE CAF. ELIGIBLE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS APPLYING UNDER THE ASBA
PROCESS MUST ENSURE THAT THE NAME GIVEN IN THE CAF IS EXACTLY THE SAME AS THE
NAME IN WHICH THE DEPOSITORY ACCOUNT IS HELD. IN CASE THE CAF IS SUBMITTED IN
JOINT NAMES, IT SHOULD BE ENSURED THAT THE DEPOSITORY ACCOUNT IS ALSO HELD IN
THE SAME JOINT NAMES AND ARE IN THE SAME SEQUENCE IN WHICH THEY APPEAR IN THE
CAF / PLAIN PAPER APPLICATIONS, AS THE CASE MAY BE.

Eligible Equity Shareholders applying under the ASBA Process should note that on the basis of name of these Eligible
Equity Shareholders, Depository Participant’s name and identification number and beneficiary account number
provided by them in the CAF / plain paper applications, as the case may be, the Registrar to the Issue will obtain from
the Depository demographic details of these Eligible Equity Shareholders such as address, bank account details for
printing on refund orders and occupation (“Demographic Details”). Hence, Eligible Equity Shareholders applying
under the ASBA Process should carefully fill in their Depository Account details in the CAF.

These Demographic Details would be used for all correspondence with such Eligible Equity Shareholders including
mailing of the letters intimating unblocking of their respective ASBA Accounts. The Demographic Details given by
the Eligible Equity Shareholders in the CAF would not be used for any other purposes by the Registrar. Hence, Eligible
Equity Shareholders are advised to update their Demographic Details as provided to their Depository Participants.

By signing the CAFs, the Eligible Equity Shareholders applying under the ASBA Process would be deemed to have
authorized the Depositories to provide, upon request, to the Registrar to the Issue, the required Demographic Details
as available on its records.

The Allotment advice / letters intimating unblocking of ASBA Account or refund (if any) would be mailed at
the address of the Investor applying under the ASBA process as per the Demographic Details received from the
Depositories. The Registrar will give instructions to the SCSBs for unblocking funds in the ASBA Account to
the extent Rights Equity Shares are not allotted to such Investor. Investors applying under the ASBA process
may note that delivery of letters intimating unblocking of the funds may get delayed if the same once sent to
the address obtained from the Depositories are returned undelivered. In such an event, the address and other
details given by the Investor in the CAF would be used only to ensure dispatch of letters intimating unblocking
of the ASBA Accounts.
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In case no corresponding record is available with the Depositories that matches three parameters, (a) names of the
Eligible Equity Shareholders (including the order of names of joint holders), (b) the DP ID, and (c) the beneficiary
account number, then such applications are liable to be rejected.

Issue Schedule

Issue Opening Date: [e]
Last date for receiving requests for Split | [e]
Application Forms (SAFs):
Issue Closing Date: [e]

The Board may however decide to extend the Issue period, as it may determine from time to time, but not exceeding
30 days from the Issue Opening Date.

Basis of Allotment

Subject to the provisions contained in this Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer, CAF, the Articles of Association
and the approval of the Designated Stock Exchange, our Board will proceed to allot the Rights Equity Shares in the
following order of priority:

i. Full Allotment to those Eligible Equity Shareholders who have applied for their Rights Entitlement either in full
or in part and also to the Renouncee(s) who has/ have applied for Equity Shares renounced in their favour, in full
or in part.

ii. Investors whose fractional entitlements are being ignored and Eligible Equity Shareholders with Zero entitlement
would be given preference in allotment of one additional Equity Share each if they apply for additional Equity
Share. Allotment under this head shall be considered if there are any unsubscribed Equity Shares after allotment
under (i) above. If number of Equity Shares required for Allotment under this head are more than number of Equity
Shares available after Allotment under (i) above, the Allotment would be made on a fair and equitable basis in
consultation with the Designated Stock Exchange, as a part of Issue and will not be a preferential allotment.

iii. Allotment to the Eligible Equity Shareholders who having applied for all the Equity Shares offered to them as part
of the Issue and have also applied for additional Equity Shares. The Allotment of such additional Equity Shares
will be made as far as possible on an equitable basis having due regard to the number of Equity Shares held by
them on the Record Date, provided there is an unsubscribed portion after making full Allotment in (i) and (ii) above.
The Allotment of such Equity Shares will be at the sole discretion of our Board/Committee in consultation with
the Designated Stock Exchange, as a part of the Issue and will not be a preferential allotment.

iv. Allotment to Renouncees who having applied for all the Equity Shares renounced in their favour, have applied for
additional Equity Shares provided there is surplus available after making full Allotment under (i), (ii) and (iii)
above. The Allotment of such Equity Shares will be at the sole discretion of our Board/ Committee of Directors in
consultation with the Designated Stock Exchange, as a part of the Issue and will not be a preferential allotment.

v. Allotment to any other person that the Board as it may deem fit provided there is surplus available after making
Allotment under (i), (ii), (iii) and (iv) above, and the decision of the Board in this regard shall be final and binding.

One of our Promoter, Mr. Poluri Venkateswara Reddy, in his capacity as a Promoter and as representative of the
Promoter Group, vide his letter dated March 16, 2019 has given an undertaking that he alongwith the Promoter Group,
and/or through one or more investors will subscribe to the total entitlement of the entire Promoter Group. The same is
proposed to be ensured by way of subscription and application for additional shares and/or by renouncing their Rights
Entitlement in part.

In such an event, the shareholding of Promoter and Promoter Group in the Company may accordingly stand modified.
Further, they reserve the right either through themselves or through investors to additionally subscribe for any
unsubscribed portion in the Issue. Such subscription to additional Equity shares and the unsubscribed portion of the
Issue, if any shall be in accordance with Regulation 10(4) of SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares & Takeovers)
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Regulations, 2011. Their entitlement to subscribe to the Issue would be restricted to ensure that the public shareholding
in the Company after the Issue does not fall below the permissible minimum level as specified in the applicable laws.

After taking into account Allotment to be made under (i) to (iv) above, if there is any unsubscribed portion, the same
shall be deemed to be ‘unsubscribed’.

Upon approval of the Basis of Allotment by the Designated Stock Exchange, the Registrar to the Issue shall send to
the Controlling Branches, a list of the ASBA Investors who have been allocated Equity Shares in the Issue, along with:

1) The amount to be transferred from the ASBA Account to the separate bank account opened by our Company for
the Issue, for each successful ASBA Investors;

2) The date by which the funds referred to above, shall be transferred to the aforesaid bank account; and

3) The details of rejected ASBA applications, if any, to enable the SCSBs to unblock the respective ASBA Accounts.

Underwriting
The issue is not to be underwritten.

Allotment Advices/ Refund Orders

Our Company will issue and dispatch allotment advice/ share certificates/ demat credit and/ or letters of regret along
with refund order or credit the allotted Equity Shares to the respective beneficiary accounts, if any, within 15 days
from the Issue Closing Date. In case of failure to do so, our Company shall pay interest at such rate and within such
time as specified under applicable law.

Investors residing at centres where clearing houses are managed by the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”), payment of
refund would be done through NACH except where Investors have not provided the details required to send electronic
refunds.

In case of those Investors who have opted to receive their Rights Entitlement in dematerialized form using electronic
credit under the depository system, advice regarding their credit of the Rights Equity Shares shall be given separately.
Investors to whom refunds are made through electronic transfer of funds will be sent a letter through ordinary post
intimating them about the mode of credit of refund within 15 days of the Issue Closing Date.

In case of those Investors who have opted to receive their Rights Entitlement in physical form and our Company issues
letter of allotment, the corresponding Rights Equity Share certificates will be kept ready within two months from the
date of Allotment thereof under section 56 of the Companies Act or other applicable provisions, if any. Investors are
requested to preserve such letters of allotment, which would be exchanged later for the Rights Equity Share certificates.

The letter of allotment/ refund order would be sent by registered post/ speed post to the sole/ first Investor’s registered
address in India or the Indian address provided by the Eligible Equity Shareholders from time to time. Such refund
orders would be payable at par at all places where the applications were originally accepted. The same would be
marked ‘Account Payee only” and would be drawn in favour of the sole/ first Investor. Adequate funds would be made
available to the Registrar to the Issue for this purpose.

Our Company shall ensure at par facility is provided for encashment of refund orders or pay orders at the places where
applications are accepted.

As regards allotment/refund to Non-residents, the following further conditions shall apply:

In the case of Non-resident Shareholders or Investors who remit their Application Money from funds held in
NRE/FCNR Accounts, refunds and/or payment of interest or dividend and other disbursements, if any, shall be credited
to such accounts, the details of which should be furnished in the CAF. Subject to the applicable laws and other
approvals, in case of Non-resident Shareholders or Investors who remit their application money through Indian Rupee
demand drafts purchased from abroad, refund and/or payment of dividend or interest and any other disbursement, shall
be credited to such accounts and will be made after deducting bank charges or commission in US Dollars, at the rate
of exchange prevailing at such time. Our Company will not be responsible for any loss on account of exchange rate
fluctuations for conversion of the Indian Rupee amount into US Dollars. The Share Certificate(s) will be sent by
registered post / speed post to the address in India of the Non-Resident Shareholders or Investors.
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The Letter of Offer/ Abridged Letter of Offer and the CAF shall be dispatched to only such Non-resident
Shareholders who have a registered address in India or have provided an Indian address.

Payment of Refund
Mode of making refunds

The payment of refund, if any, including in the event of oversubscription, would be done through any of the following
modes:

1 NACH - National Automated Clearing House is a consolidated system of electronic clearing service. Payment of
refund would be done through NACH for Applicants having an account at one of the centres specified by the RBI,
where such facility has been made available. This would be subject to availability of complete bank account
details including MICR code wherever applicable from the depository. The payment of refund through NACH is
mandatory for Applicants having a bank account at any of the centres where NACH facility has been made
available by the RBI (subject to availability of all information for crediting the refund through NACH including
the MICR code as appearing on a cheque leaf, from the depositories), except where applicant is otherwise
disclosed as eligible to get refunds through NEFT or Direct Credit or RTGS.

2 National Electronic Fund Transfer (“NEFT”) - Payment of refund shall be undertaken through NEFT wherever
the Investors' bank has been assigned the Indian Financial System Code (IFSC), which can be linked to a MICR,
allotted to that particular bank branch. IFSC Code will be obtained from the website of RBI as on a date
immediately prior to the date of payment of refund, duly mapped with MICR numbers. Wherever the Investors
have registered their nine digit MICR number and their bank account number with the Registrar to our Company
or with the Depository Participant while opening and operating the demat account, the same will be duly mapped
with the IFSC Code of that particular bank branch and the payment of refund will be made to the Investors through
this method.

3 Direct Credit - Investors having bank accounts with the Banker to the Issue shall be eligible to receive refunds
through direct credit. Charges, if any, levied by the relevant bank(s) for the same would be borne by our Company.

4 RTGS - If the refund amount exceeds ¥2,00,000, the Investors have the option to receive refund through RTGS.
Such eligible Investors who indicate their preference to receive refund through RTGS are required to provide the
IFSC code in the CAF. In the event the same is not provided, refund shall be made through NACH or any other
eligible mode. Charges, if any, levied by the refund bank(s) for the same would be borne by our Company. Charges,
if any, levied by the Investor's bank receiving the credit would be borne by the Investor.

5 For all other Investors the refund orders will be dispatched through Speed Post/ Registered Post where the amount
to be refunded is Rs. 1,500 or more. Such refunds will be made by cheques, pay orders or demand drafts drawn
in favour of the sole/first Investor and payable at par. In other cases the refund may be made under certificate of
posting (subject to Postal rules).

6 Credit of refunds to Investors in any other electronic manner, permissible under the banking laws, which are in
force, and is permitted by SEBI from time to time.

Refund payment to Non- resident

Where applications are accompanied by Indian rupee drafts purchased abroad and payable at Mumbai, refunds will be
made in the Indian rupees based on the U.S. dollars equivalent which ought to be refunded. Indian rupees will be
converted into U.S. dollars at the rate of exchange, which is prevailing on the date of refund. The exchange rate risk
on such refunds shall be borne by the concerned applicant and our Company shall not bear any part of the risk.

Where the applications made are accompanied by NRE/FCNR/NRO cheques, refunds will be credited to
NRE/FCNR/NRO accounts respectively, on which such cheques were drawn and details of which were provided in
the CAF.

Printing of Bank Particulars on Refund Orders
As a matter of precaution against possible fraudulent encashment of refund orders due to loss or misplacement, the
particulars of the Investor’s bank account are mandatorily required to be given for printing on the refund orders. Bank
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account particulars, where available, will be printed on the refund orders/ refund warrants which can then be deposited
only in the account specified. We will in no way be responsible if any loss occurs through these instruments falling
into improper hands either through forgery or fraud.

Allotment advice/ Share Certificates/ Demat Credit

Allotment advice/ Share Certificates/ demat credit or letters of regret will be dispatched to the registered address of
the first named Investor or respective beneficiary accounts will be credited within the timeline prescribed under
applicable law. In case our Company issues Allotment advice, the respective Share Certificates will be dispatched
within one month from the date of the Allotment. Allottees are requested to preserve such allotment advice (if any) to
be exchanged later for Share Certificates.

Investors shall be allotted the Equity Shares in dematerialized (electronic) form at the option of the Investor.

We have signed tripartite agreements both with NSDL and CDSL and the Registrar to the Issue which enables the
Investors to hold and trade in Equity Shares in a dematerialized form, instead of holding the Equity Shares in the form
of physical certificates.

The Allottees will receive their Rights Equity Shares in the form of an electronic credit to their beneficiary account as
given in the CAF, after verification with the depository participant. Investor will have to give the relevant particulars
for this purpose in the appropriate place in the CAF. Allotment advice, refund order (if any) would be sent directly to
the Investor by the Registrar to the Issue but the Investor’s depository participant will provide to him the confirmation
of the credit of such Equity Shares to the Investor’s depository account.

INVESTORS MAY PLEASE NOTE THAT THE EQUITY SHARES CAN BE TRADED ON THE STOCK
EXCHANGE ONLY IN DEMATERIALIZED FORM.

The procedure for availing the facility for Allotment of Equity Shares in this Issue in the electronic form is as under:

e Open a beneficiary account with any depository participant (care should be taken that the beneficiary account
should carry the name of the holder in the same manner as is registered in our records. In the case of joint holding,
the beneficiary account should be opened carrying the names of the holders in the same order as registered in our
records). In case of Investors having various folios with different joint holders, the Investors will have to open
separate accounts for such holdings. Those Eligible Equity Shareholders who have already opened such
beneficiary account(s) need not adhere to this step.

e For Eligible Equity Shareholders already holding Equity Shares in dematerialized form as on the Record Date,
the beneficiary account number shall be printed on the CAF. For those who open accounts later or those who
change their accounts and wish to receive their Equity Shares by way of credit to such account, the necessary
details of their beneficiary account should be filled in the space provided in the CAF. It may be noted that the
Allotment of Equity Shares arising out of this Issue will be made in dematerialized form even if the original Equity
Shares are not dematerialized. Nonetheless, it should be ensured that the depository account is in the name(s) of
the Eligible Equity Shareholders and the names are in the same order as in our records.

e The responsibility for correctness of information (including Investor’s age and other details) filled in the CAF
vis-a-vis such information with the Investor’s depository participant, would rest with the Investor. Investors
should ensure that the names of the Investors and the order in which they appear in CAF should be the same as
registered with the Investor’s depository participant.

e Ifincomplete / incorrect beneficiary account details are given in the CAF, the applications are liable to be rejected.

e The Rights Equity Shares allotted to applicants, would be directly credited to the beneficiary account as given in
the CAF after verification. Allotment advice, refund order (if any) would be sent directly to the applicant by the
Registrar to the Issue but the applicant’s depository participant will provide to the applicant the confirmation of
the credit of such Equity Shares to the applicant’s depository account. It may be noted that Equity Shares in
electronic form can be traded only on the Stock Exchanges having electronic connectivity with NSDL and CDSL.

e Renouncees will also have to provide the necessary details about their beneficiary account for Allotment of Equity
Shares in this Issue. In case these details are incomplete or incorrect, the application is liable to be rejected.
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Non-transferable allotment advice/refund orders will be directly sent to the Investors by the Registrar.

Dividend or other benefits with respect to the Equity Shares held in dematerialized form would be paid to those
Eligible Equity Shareholders whose names appear in the list of beneficial owners given by the Depository
Participant to our Company as on the date of the book closure.

General instructions for non-ASBA Investors

(i) Please read the instructions printed on the CAF carefully.

(ii) Eligible Equity Shareholders who have renounced their entitlement (in full or in part), Renouncees and

(iii)

(iv)

Applicants holding Equity Shares in physical form and/or subscribing in the Issue for Allotment in physical form
may participate in the Issue only through the non-ASBA process. Please note that in accordance with Regulation
76 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and subject to the conditions prescribed under the ASBA Circulars, all Eligible
Equity Shareholders who (a) hold Equity Shares in dematerialized form, (b) have not renounced their Rights
Entitlement in part or in full, and (c) are not Renouncees, shall use the ASBA process to make an application in
the Issue..

Application should be made on the printed CAF, provided by us except as mentioned under the head
“Application on Plain Paper” should be completed in all respects. The CAF found incomplete with regard to
any of the particulars required to be given therein, and/ or which are not completed in conformity with the terms
of this Letter of Offer or Abridged Letter of Offer are liable to be rejected and the money paid, if any, in respect
thereof will be refunded without interest and after deduction of bank commission and other charges, if any. The
CAF must be filled in English and the names of all the Investors, details of occupation, address, father’s/
husband’s name must be filled in block letters.

Eligible Equity Shareholders participating in the Issue other than through ASBA are required to fill Part A of
the CAF and submit the CAF along with Application Money before close of banking hours on or before the
Issue Closing Date or such extended time as may be specified by our Board in this regard. The CAF together
with the cheque/ demand draft should be sent to the Banker to the Issue/ Collecting Bank or to the Registrar to
the Issue and not to us or Lead Manager to the Issue. Investors residing at places other than cities where the
branches of the Banker to the Issue have been authorized by us for collecting applications, will have to make
payment by demand draft payable at Mumbai of an amount net of bank and postal charges and send their CAFs
to the Registrar to the Issue by registered post/speed post. If any portion of the CAF is/ are detached or separated,
such application is liable to be rejected. CAF’s received after banking hours on closure day will be liable
for rejection.

Applications where separate cheques/demand drafts are not attached for amounts to be paid for Equity Shares
are liable to be rejected. Applications accompanied by cash, postal order or stockinvest are liable to be rejected.

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Except for applications on behalf of the Central and State Government and the officials appointed by the courts,
all Investors, and in the case of application in joint names, each of the joint Investors, should mention his/ her
PAN allotted under the Income Tax Act, irrespective of the amount of the application. CAFs without PAN will
be considered incomplete and are liable to be rejected.

Investors, holding Equity Shares in physical form, must apply through Non-ASBA process, such applicants are
advised that it is mandatory to provide information as to their savings/current account number, the nine digit
MICR number and the name of the bank with whom such account is held in the CAF to enable the Registrar to
the Issue to print the said details in the refund orders, if any, after the names of the payees. Application not
containing such details is liable to be rejected.

All payment should be made by cheque / demand draft only. Application through the ASBA process as
mentioned above is acceptable. Cash payment is not acceptable. In case payment is effected in contravention
of this, the application may be deemed invalid and the application money will be refunded and no interest will
be paid thereon.
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(viii)

(ix)

)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)
(xiv)
(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

Signatures should be either in English or Hindi or in any other language specified in the Eighth Schedule to the
Constitution of India. Signatures other than in English or Hindi and thumb impression must be attested by a
Notary Public or a Special Executive Magistrate under his/ her official seal. The Eligible Equity Shareholders
must sign the CAF as per the specimen signature recorded with us/ Depositories.

In case of an application under power of attorney or by a body corporate or by a society, a certified true copy
of the relevant power of attorney or relevant resolution or authority to the signatory to make the relevant
investment under this Issue and to sign the application and certified true a copy of the Memorandum and Articles
of Association and/ or bye laws of such body corporate or society must be lodged with the Registrar to the Issue
giving reference of the serial number of the CAF. In case the above referred documents are already registered
with us, the same need not be a furnished again. In case these papers are sent to any other entity besides the
Registrar to the Issue or are sent after the Issue Closing Date, then the application is liable to be rejected. In no
case should these papers be attached to the application submitted to the Banker to the Issue.

In case of joint holders, all joint holders must sign the relevant part of the CAF in the same order and as per the
specimen signature(s) recorded with us or the Depositories. Further, in case of joint Investors who are
Renouncees, the number of Investors should not exceed three. In case of joint Investors, reference, if any, will
be made in the first Investor’s name and all communication will be addressed to the first Investor.

Application(s) received from NRs/ NRIs, or persons of Indian origin residing abroad for Allotment of Equity
Shares shall, inter alia, be subject to conditions, as may be imposed from time to time by the RBI under FEMA,
including regulations relating to QFI’s, in the matter of refund of application money, Allotment of Equity Shares,
subsequent issue and Allotment of Equity Shares, interest, export of share certificates, etc. In case a NR or NRI
Eligible Equity Shareholder has specific approval from the RBI, in connection with his shareholding, he should
enclose a copy of such approval with the CAF. Additionally, applications will not be accepted from NRs/ NRIs
in the U.S. or its territories and possessions, or any other jurisdiction where the offer or sale of the Rights
Entitlements and Equity Shares may be restricted by applicable securities laws.

All communication in connection with application for the Equity Shares, including any change in address of
the Eligible Equity Shareholders should be addressed to the Registrar to the Issue prior to the date of Allotment
in this Issue quoting the name of the first/ sole Investor, folio numbers and CAF number. Please note that any
intimation for change of address of Eligible Equity Shareholders, after the date of Allotment, should be sent to
our Registrar and Transfer Agent, in the case of Equity Shares held in physical form and to the respective
depository participant, in case of Equity Shares held in dematerialized form.

SAFs cannot be re-split.
Only the Equity Shareholder(s) and not Renouncee(s) shall be entitled to obtain SAFs.
Investors must write their CAF number at the back of the cheque/ demand draft.

Only one mode of payment per application should be used. The payment must be by cheque/ demand draft
drawn on any of the banks, including a co-operative bank, which is situated at and is a member or a sub member
of the Bankers Clearing House located at the centre indicated on the reverse of the CAF where the application
is to be submitted.

A separate cheque/ draft must accompany each CAF. Outstation cheques/ demand drafts or post-dated cheques
and postal/ money orders will not be accepted and applications accompanied by such outstation cheques/
outstation demand drafts/ money orders or postal orders will be rejected.

No receipt will be issued for application money received. The Banker to the Issue/ Collecting Bank/ Registrar
will acknowledge receipt of the same by stamping and returning the acknowledgment slip at the bottom of the
CAF.

The distribution of this Letter of Offer and issue of Equity Shares and Rights Entitlements to persons in certain

jurisdictions outside India may be restricted by legal requirements in those jurisdictions. Persons in such
jurisdictions are instructed to disregard this Letter of Offer and not to attempt to subscribe for Equity Shares.
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(xx)

Investors are requested to ensure that the number of Equity Shares applied for by them do not exceed the
prescribed limits under the applicable law.

Don’ts for non-ASBA Investors:

Do not apply if you are not eligible to participate in the Issue under the securities laws applicable to your
jurisdiction;

Do not apply on duplicate CAF after you have submitted a CAF to a collection branch of the Banker to the Issue;
Do not pay the amount payable on application in cash, by money order or by postal order;

Do not submit the GIR number instead of the PAN as the application is liable to be rejected on this ground;

Do not submit Application accompanied with Stock invest;

Grounds for Technical Rejections for non-ASBA Investors

Investors are advised to note that applications are liable to be rejected on technical grounds, including the following:

Amount paid does not tally with the amount payable;

Bank account details (for refund) are not given and the same are not available with the DP (in the case of
dematerialized holdings) or the Registrar (in the case of physical holdings);

Submission of CAFs to the SCSBs;

Submission of plain paper Applications to any person other than the Registrar to the Issue;

Age of Investor(s) not given (in case of Renouncees);

Except for CAFs on behalf of the Central or State Government and the officials appointed by the courts, PAN not
given for application of any value;

In case of CAF under power of attorney or by limited companies, corporate, trust, relevant documents are not
submitted;

If the signature of the Equity Shareholder does not match with the one given on the CAF and for Renouncee(s) if
the signature does not match with the records available with their Depositories (in the case of dematerialized
holdings) or the Registrar (in the case of physical holdings);

CAFs are not submitted by the Investors within the time prescribed as per the CAF and this Letter of Offer;
CAFs not duly signed by the sole/ joint Investors;

CAFs/ SAFs by OCBs not accompanied by a copy of an RBI approval to apply in this Issue;

CAFs accompanied by Stockinvest/ outstation cheques/ post-dated cheques/ money order/ postal order/ outstation
demand draft;

In case no corresponding record is available with the Depositories that matches three parameters, namely, names
of the Investors (including the order of names of joint holders), the Depositary Participant’s identity (DP ID) and
the beneficiary’s identity (in the case of dematerialized holdings) or the Registrar (in the case of physical
holdings);

CAFs that do not include the certifications set out in the CAF to the effect that the subscriber is not a “U.S. Person”
(as defined in Regulation S) and does not have a registered address (and is not otherwise located) in the U.S. or
other restricted jurisdictions and is authorized to acquire the Rights Entitlements and Equity Shares in compliance
with all applicable laws and regulations;

CAFs which have evidence of being executed in/ dispatched from restricted jurisdictions;

CAFs by ineligible non-residents (including on account of restriction or prohibition under applicable local laws)
and where the registered addressed in India has not been provided;

CAFs where we believe that CAF is incomplete or acceptance of such CAF may infringe applicable legal or
regulatory requirements;

In case the GIR number is submitted instead of the PAN;

CAFs submitted by Renouncees where Part B of the CAF is incomplete or is unsigned. In case of joint holding,
all joint holders must sign Part ‘B’ of the CAF;

Applications by persons not competent to contract under the Contract Act, 1872, as amended, except bids by
minors having valid demat accounts as per the demographic details provided by the Depositories.

Applications by Renouncees who are persons not competent to contract under the Indian Contract Act, 1872,
except minors having valid demat accounts / documents;

Multiple CAFs, including cases where an Investor submits CAFs along with a plain paper application; and
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e Applications from Investors eligible to apply through ASBA process, applying in the Issue for Rights Shares,
through Non-ASBA process.

e Failure to mention an Indian address in the Application. Application with foreign address shall be liable to be
rejected.

e IfanInvestor is debarred by SEBI and if SEBI has revoked the order or has provided any interim relief then failure
to attach a copy of such SEBI order allowing the Investor to subscribe to their Rights Entitlement.

[ ]

Please read this Letter of Offer or Abridged Letter of Offer and the instructions contained therein and in the CAF
carefully, before filling the CAF. The instructions contained in the CAF are an integral part of this Letter of Offer and
must be carefully followed. The CAF is liable to be rejected for any non-compliance of the provisions contained in
this Letter of Offer or the CAF.

Investment by FPIs, Flls and QFls

SEBI, On January 07, 2014, notified the SEBI FPI Regulations pursuant to which Flls, its sub-accounts and QFIs
categories of investors were merged to form a new category called ‘Foreign Portfolio Investors’. Prior to the
notification of the SEBI FPI Regulations, portfolio investments by Flls and sub-accounts were governed by SEBI
under the FI1 Regulations and portfolio investments by QFIs were governed by various circulars issued by SEBI from
time to time (QFI Circulars). Pursuant to the notification of the SEBI FPI Regulations, the FII Regulations were
repealed and the QFI Circulars were rescinded.

In terms of the SEBI FPI Regulations, the issue of Equity Shares to a single FPI or an Investor group (which means
the same set of ultimate beneficial owner(s) investing through multiple entities) is not permitted to exceed 10% of our
Company’s post-Issue Equity Share Capital. Further, in terms of the FEMA Regulations, the total holding by each FPI
shall be below 10% of the total paid-up Equity Share Capital of our Company and the total holdings of all FPIs put
together shall not exceed 24% of the paid up Equity Share Capital of our Company. The aggregate limit of 24% may
be increased up to the sectoral cap by way of a resolution passed by the Board followed by a special resolution passed
by the Eligible Equity Shareholders of our Company.

FPls are permitted to participate in the Issue subject to compliance with conditions and restrictions which may be
specified by the Government from time to time.

The existing individual and aggregate investment limits for Eligible QFIs in an Indian company are 5% and 10% of
the paid-up capital of an Indian company, respectively. In terms of the FEMA Regulations, a QFI shall not be eligible
to invest as a QFI upon obtaining registration as an FPI. However, all investments made by a QFI in accordance with
the regulations, prior to registration as an FPI shall continue to be valid and taken into account for computation of the
aggregate limit.

Investment by NRIs

Investments by NRIs are governed by the Portfolio Investment Scheme under Regulation 5(3)(i) of the Foreign
Exchange Management (Transfer or Issue of Security by a Person Resident Outside India) Regulations, 2000, as
amended. Applications will not be accepted from NRIs in restricted jurisdictions.

NRI Applicants may please note that only such Applications as are accompanied by payment in free foreign exchange
shall be considered for Allotment under the reserved category. The NRI Applicants who intend to make payment
through NRO accounts shall use the Application Form meant for resident Indians and shall not use the Application
Forms meant for reserved category.

In terms of FED Master Direction Number 11/2017-18 dated January 04, 2018 (updated as on April 06, 2018)
issued by RBI, a person resident in India and a person resident outside India may subscribe for additional
shares over and above the shares offered on rights basis by the company and also renounce the shares offered
either in full or part thereof in favour of a person named by them. However, such facility is not available to
Investors who have been allotted shares of the Company as Overseas Corporate Bodies (OCBSs).

In terms of Regulation 6 of Notification No. FEMA 20(R)/ 2017-RB dated November 07, 2017, as amended from time

to time, only the existing non resident shareholders may subscribe for additional equity shares over and above the
equity shares offered on Rights Basis by our Company.
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Procedure for Applications by Mutual Funds

A separate application can be made in respect of each scheme of an Indian mutual fund registered with SEBI and such
applications shall not be treated as multiple applications. The applications made by asset management companies or
custodians of a mutual fund should clearly indicate the name of the concerned scheme for which the application is
being made.

Procedure for Applications by AlFs, FVCls and VCFs

The SEBI (Venture Capital Funds) Regulations, 1996, as amended (“SEBI VCF Regulations™) and the SEBI (Foreign
Venture Capital Investor) Regulations, 2000, as amended (“SEBI FVCI Regulations™) prescribe, amongst other things,
the investment restrictions on VCFs and FVCls registered with SEBI. Further, the SEBI (Alternative Investments
Funds) Regulations, 2012 (“SEBI AIF Regulations™) prescribe, amongst other things, the investment restrictions on
AlFs.

As per the SEBI VCF Regulations and SEBI FVCI Regulations, VCFs and FVVCls are not permitted to invest in listed
companies pursuant to rights issues. Accordingly, applications by VCFs or FVClIs will not be accepted in this Issue.

Venture capital funds registered as Category | AlFs, as defined in the SEBI AIF Regulations, are not permitted to
invest in listed companies pursuant to rights issues. Accordingly, applications by venture capital funds registered as
category | AlFs, as defined in the SEBI AIF Regulations, will not be accepted in this Issue. Other categories of AlFs
are permitted to apply in this Issue subject to compliance with the SEBI AIF Regulations.

Such AlFs having bank accounts with SCSBs that are providing ASBA in cities / centres where such AlFs are located
are mandatorily required to make use of the ASBA facility. Otherwise, applications of such AlFs are liable for rejection.

Mode of payment for Resident Eligible Equity Shareholders/ Investors other than ASBA applicant

e  All cheques/ drafts accompanying the CAF should be drawn in favour of “Kallam Textiles Limited — Rights Issue
- R” crossed ‘A/c Payee only’ and should be submitted along with the CAF to the Banker to the Issue or to the
Registrar to the Issue;

e Investors residing at places other than places where the bank collection centres have been opened by us for
collecting applications, are requested to send their CAFs together with Demand Draft for the full application
amount, net of bank and postal charges favouring the Banker to the Issue, crossed ‘A/c Payee only’ and marked
“Kallam Textiles Limited — Rights Issue - R” payable at Mumbai directly to the Registrar to the Issue by registered
post so as to reach them on or before the Issue Closing Date. We, the Lead Manager or the Registrar to the Issue
will not be responsible for postal delays or loss of applications in transit, if any.

Applications through mails should not be sent in any other manner except as mentioned above. The CAF along with
the application money must not be sent to our Company or the Lead Manager. Applicants are requested to strictly
adhere to these instructions.

Mode of payment for Non-Resident Eligible Equity Shareholders/ Investors
As regards the application by non-resident Eligible Equity Shareholders/ Investors, the following conditions shall

apply:

e Applications will not be accepted from non-resident from any jurisdiction where the offer or sale of the Rights
Entitlements and Equity Shares may be restricted by applicable securities laws.

e All non-resident investors should draw the cheques/ demand drafts for the full application amount, net of bank
and postal charges and which should be submitted along with the CAF to the Banker to the Issue/ collection
centres or to the Registrar to the Issue.

e Non-resident investors applying from places other than places where the bank collection centres have been opened
by our Company for collecting applications, are requested to send their CAFs together with Demand Draft for the
full application amount, net of bank and postal charges, and marked “Kallam Textiles Limited — Rights Issue -
NR” payable at Mumbai directly to the Registrar to the Issue by registered post so as to reach them on or before
the Issue Closing Date. Our Company or the Registrar to the Issue will not be responsible for postal delays or loss
of applications in transit, if any.

e Payment by non-residents must be made by demand draft payable at Mumbai /cheque payable drawn on a bank
account maintained at Mumbai or funds remitted from abroad in any of the following ways:
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(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)
v)

(vi)

(i)

(i)

Application with repatriation benefits
By Indian Rupee drafts purchased from abroad and payable at Mumbai or funds remitted from abroad (submitted

along with Foreign Inward Remittance Certificate);

By local cheque / bank drafts remitted through normal banking channels or out of funds held in Non-Resident
External Account (NRE) or FCNR Account maintained with banks authorized to deal in foreign currency in India,
along with documentary evidence in support of remittance;

By Rupee draft purchased by debit to NRE/ FCNR Account maintained elsewhere in India and payable in
Mumbai.

FPIs registered with SEBI must remit funds from special non-resident rupee deposit account;

Non-resident investors applying with repatriation benefits should draw cheques/ drafts in favour of ‘Kallam
Textiles Limited — Rights Issue - NR’ and must be crossed ‘account payee only’ for the full application amount;

Investors may note that where payment is made by drafts purchased from NRE/ FCNR accounts, as the case may
be, an Account Debit Certificate from the bank issuing the draft confirming that the draft has been issued by
debiting the NRE/ FCNR account should be enclosed with the CAF. Otherwise the application shall be considered
incomplete and is liable to be rejected.

Application without repatriation benefits

As far as non-residents holding Equity Shares on non-repatriation basis are concerned, in addition to the modes
specified above, payment may also be made by way of cheque drawn on Non-Resident (Ordinary) Account
maintained in India or Rupee Draft purchased out of NRO Account maintained elsewhere in India but payable at
Mumbai. In such cases, the Allotment of Equity Shares will be on non-repatriation basis.

All cheques/ drafts submitted by non-residents applying on a non-repatriation basis should be drawn in favour of
‘Kallam Textiles Limited — Rights Issue — R’ and must be crossed ‘account payee only’ for the full application
amount. The CAFs duly completed together with the amount payable on application must be deposited with the
Collecting Bank indicated on the reverse of the CAFs before the close of banking hours on or before the Issue
Closing Date. A separate cheque or bank draft must accompany each CAF.

(iii) Investors may note that where payment is made by drafts purchased from NRE/ FCNR/ NRO accounts, as the

case may be, an Account Debit Certificate from the bank issuing the draft confirming that the draft has been issued
by debiting the NRE/ FCNR/ NRO account should be enclosed with the CAF. Otherwise the application shall be
considered incomplete and is liable to be rejected.

(iv) New demat account shall be opened for holders who have had a change in status from resident Indian to NRI.

Any application from a demat account which does not reflect the accurate status of the Applicant are liable to be
rejected.

Notes:

In case where repatriation benefit is available, interest, dividend, sales proceeds derived from the investment in
Equity Shares can be remitted outside India, subject to tax, as applicable according to the I.T. Act.

In case Equity Shares are allotted on a non-repatriation basis, the dividend and sale proceeds of the Equity Shares
cannot be remitted outside India.

The CAF duly completed together with the amount payable on application must be deposited with the Collecting
Bank indicated on the reverse of the CAFs before the close of banking hours on or before the Issue Closing Date.
A separate cheque or bank draft must accompany each CAF.

In case of an application received from non-residents, Allotment, refunds and other distribution, if any, will be
made in accordance with the guidelines/ rules prescribed by RBI as applicable at the time of making such
Allotment, remittance and subject to necessary approvals.
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Impersonation

Attention of the Applicants is specifically drawn to the provisions of sub-section (1) of section 38 of the
Companies Act which is reproduced below:

“Any person who:

(a) makes or abets making of an application in a fictitious name to a company for acquiring, or subscribing for, its
securities; or

(b) makes or abets making of multiple applications to a company in different names or in different combinations of
his name or surname for acquiring or subscribing for its securities; or

(c) otherwise induces directly or indirectly a company to allot, or register any transfer of, securities to him, or to any
other person in a fictitious name, shall be liable for action under section 447”.

Section 447 of the Companies Act provides for punishment for fraud which inter alia states punishment of
imprisonment for a term which shall not be less than six month but which may extend to ten years and shall be liable
to a fine which shall not be less than the amount involved in the fraud, but which may extend to three times the amount
involved in the fraud.

Disposal of application and application money

No acknowledgment will be issued for the application moneys received by us. However, the Banker to the Issue/
Registrar to the Issue/ Designated Branch of the SCSBs receiving the CAF will acknowledge its receipt by stamping
and returning the acknowledgment slip at the bottom of each CAF. Our Board reserves its full, unqualified and absolute
right to accept or reject any application, in whole or in part, and in either case without assigning any reason thereto.

In case an application is rejected in full, the whole of the application money received will be refunded. Wherever an
application is rejected in part, the balance of application money, if any, after adjusting any money due on Rights Equity
Shares allotted, will be refunded to the Investor within the timelines prescribed under applicable law. In case of failure
to do so, our Company shall pay interest at such rate and within such time as specified under applicable law For further
instructions, please read the CAF carefully.

Utilisation of Issue Proceeds

The Board of Directors declares that:

(a) All monies received out of the Issue shall be transferred to a separate bank account referred to in the Companies
Act, 2013;

(b) Details of all monies utilized out of the Issue shall be disclosed under an appropriate separate head in our balance
sheet indicating the purpose for which such monies have been utilised till the time any of the Issue Proceeds
remained unutilised,;

(c) Details of all unutilized monies out of the Issue, if any, shall be disclosed under an appropriate separate head in
our balance sheet indicating the form in which such unutilized monies have been invested; and

(d) We may utilize the funds collected in the Issue only after finalisation of the Basis of Allotment.

Our undertakings

We undertake the following:

1. The complaints received in respect of the Issue shall be attended to by us expeditiously and satisfactorily.

2. All steps for completion of the necessary formalities for listing and commencement of trading at all Stock
Exchanges where the Equity Shares are to be listed will be taken within seven working days of finalization of
basis of allotment.

3. The funds required for making refunds to unsuccessful applicants as per the mode(s) disclosed shall be made
available to the Registrar to the Issue by us.

4. Where refunds are made through electronic transfer of funds, a suitable communication shall be sent to the
Investor within 15 days of the Issue Closing Date, giving details of the banks where refunds shall be credited
along with amount and expected date of electronic credit of refund.

5. The allotment of Equity Shares and dispatch of refund orders / share certificate and demat credit is completed

within 15 days from the Issue Closing Date.

The demat credit / refund orders to the non-resident Indians shall be dispatched within the specified time.

7. No further issue of securities affecting equity capital of our Company shall be made till the securities
issued/offered through the Draft Letter of Offer Issue are listed or till the application money are refunded on
account of non-listing, under-subscription etc.

o
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8. Adequate arrangements shall be made to collect all ASBA applications and to consider them similar to non-ASBA
applications while finalising the Basis of Allotment.

9. Atany given time there shall be only one denomination of Equity Shares.

10. We accept full responsibility for the accuracy of information given in the Draft Letter of Offer and confirm that
to the best of its knowledge and belief, there are no other facts the omission of which makes any statement made
in the Draft Letter of Offer misleading and further confirms that it has made all reasonable enquiries to ascertain
such facts.

11. All information shall be made available by the Lead Manager and the Issuer to the Investors at large and no
selective or additional information would be available for a section of the Investors in any manner whatsoever
including at road shows, presentations, in research or sales reports etc.

12. We shall comply with such disclosure and accounting norms specified by SEBI from time to time.

Minimum Subscription

If our company does not receive the minimum subscription of ninety percent of the Issue, our Company shall refund
the entire subscription amount within fifteen days from the date of closure of the issue. In the event that there is a
delay of making refunds by more than the prescribed time after our Company become liable to pay the subscription
amount, our Company shall pay interest for the delayed period at rates prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

Important

o Please read the Letter of Offer carefully before taking any action. The instructions contained in the CAF are an
integral part of the conditions of the Letter of Offer and must be carefully followed; otherwise the Application is
liable to be rejected.

e Itis to be specifically noted that the Issue of Equity Shares is subject to the risk factors mentioned in the section
titled “Risk Factors” on page 12 of the Letter of Offer.

e All enquiries in connection with the Letter of Offer or accompanying CAF and requests for Split Application
Forms must be addressed (quoting the Registered Folio Number/ DP and Client ID number, the CAF number and
the name of the first Eligible Equity Shareholder as mentioned on the CAF and super-scribed “Kallam Textiles
Limited - Rights Issue” on the envelope) to the Registrar to the Issue at the following address:

Bigshare Services Private Limited

SEBI Regn. No.: INR000001385

1%t Floor, Bharat Tin Works Building,

Opp. Vasant Oasis, Makwana Road, Marol,
Andheri East, Mumbai — 400 059

Tel.: +91 22 6263 8200

Fax: +91 22 6263 8299

E-mail: rightsissue@bigshareonline.com
Investor Grievance e-mail id: investor@bigshareonline.com
Website: www.bigshareonline.com
Contact Person: Ashish Bhope

The Issue will be kept open for a minimum of 15 days unless extended, in which case it will be kept open for a maximum
of 30 days.
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MATERIAL CONTRACTS AND DOCUMENTS FOR INSPECTION

The following contracts (not being contracts entered into in the ordinary course of business carried on by our Company
or entered into more than two years before the date of the Draft Letter of Offer), which are or may be deemed material
have been entered or are to be entered into by our Company. These contracts and also the documents for inspection
referred to hereunder, may be inspected at the Registered Office of our Company situated at N.H 5, Chowdavaram,
Guntur, Andhra Pradesh — 522 019, from 10.00 AM to 02.00 p.m. from the date of the Draft Letter of Offer until the
date of closure of the Rights Issue.
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Material Contracts

Issue Agreement dated March 22, 2019 entered between our Company and the Lead Manager

Agreement dated March 22, 2019 entered between our Company and the Registrar to the Issue

Banker to the Issue Agreement dated [e] between our Company, the Lead Manager, the Registrar to the Issue and
Banker to the Issue.

Documents available for inspection

Certificate of Incorporation of our Company dated February 18, 1992.

Memorandum and Articles of Association of our Company.

Tripartite agreements dated April 21, 2006 and March 20, 2006 entered into with NSDL and CDSL respectively.
Copy of the Resolution passed by the Directors in their meeting dated September 29, 2018 approving the Issue.
Consents of the Promoters, Directors, Compliance Officer, Lead Manager to the Issue, Legal Counsel, Registrar to
the Issue, Bankers to our Company, Statutory Auditors to include their names in the Draft Letter of Offer to act in
their respective capacities.

Copy of resolution appointing the Managing Director.

Annual Reports for the financial years ended March 31, 2014, March 31, 2015, March 31, 2016, March 31, 2017
and March 31, 2018.

Audited Financial Statements for last three financial years ending March 31, 2018, March 31, 2017 and March 31,
2016.

Limited Review report for Quarter and Six months ended September 30, 2018.

Unaudited Financial Results for the quarter and nine months ended December 31, 2018.

Statement of Tax Benefits dated November 24, 2018 received from the Statutory Auditors of our Company.

A Certificate from M/s Chevuturi Associates (Firm Reg. No. 000632S), Chartered Accountants dated March 15,
2019 for deployment of funds towards objects of the issue.

Initial Public Offering Prospectus dated 10.01.1995 of our Company.

In-principle listing approval for this Issue dated [e] from BSE.

Any of the contracts or documents mentioned in the Draft Letter of Offer may be amended or modified at any time if
so required in the interest of our Company or if required by the other parties, without reference to the Shareholders
subject to compliance of the provisions contained in the Companies Act and other relevant statutes.
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DECLARATION

No statement made in the Draft Letter of Offer contravenes any of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
rules made thereunder. All the legal requirements connected with the said issue as also the guidelines, instructions etc.
issued by SEBI, Government of India, Reserve Bank of India and any other competent authority in this behalf, have
been duly complied with. We further certify that all statements made in the Draft Letter of Offer are true and correct.

On behalf of Right Issue Committee of the Board of Kallam Textiles Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

G V Krishna Reddy Swargam Pulla Rao
Joint Managing Director Director

Sd/- Sd/-
V. Bhargavi M V Subba Reddy
Director Chief Financial Officer

Sd/-
Nandan Bisoi

Company Secretary

Place: Guntur
Date: March 27, 2019
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